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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
R W

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”, or the
“Directors”) of Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (“BCL" or the
“Company”; together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
am pleased to present the Group's interim results for the
six months ended 30 June 2019.

During the first half of 2019, amid complicated global
economic conditions, rising protectionism in various
international markets led to increased risks for the world
economy and a slowing of investment in international
trade. The negative implications of increasing protectionism
also gave rise to instability and uncertainty in the world
markets. Against this backdrop, China coped with the
short-term downward economic pressure by introducing a
number of counter-cyclical adjustments, including proactive
fiscal policy and prudent monetary policy. Meanwhile, it
also promoted structural economic adjustments guided by
new concepts of development, actively implemented tax
and administrative fee reductions, energized small and
medium enterprises, boosted domestic consumption and
steadily advanced supply-side structural reform. During
the first half of 2019, the domestic economy continued
to remain stable while further progress was made. GDP
growth was 6.3% year-on-year, which demonstrated the
tenacity of the Chinese economy.

During the first half of 2019, the Chinese government
continued to follow the overarching theme of “houses
are for people to live in, not for speculation” for its real
estate policy. After experiencing a quick bounce in sales
volume thanks to the spring lift, markets in tier-1 and tier-
2 cities returned to stability. On the other hand, markets
in tier-3 and tier-4 cities witnessed a significant cooling-
off with an intensifying trend of differentiation as China
withdrew monetary compensation policies for shantytown
renovations, and implemented city-specific measures and
category-specific guidance. In general, domestic real estate
policies focused on stabilizing housing prices, land prices
and market expectations to prevent dramatic fluctuations.
As such, the industry has entered a path of stable
development, while becoming increasingly subject to short-
term policies and significantly shortened market cycles.
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During the first half of 2019, the Group continued to
faithfully implement its “fast turnover” strategy by taking
advantage of an open window of market opportunities,
accelerating project launches, cash collection and project
delivery, and actively revitalizing inventory. It also upgraded
its “BCL Made 2020" strategy with the rollout of core
developments under the “Tian Yue”, “Xi Rui” and "“Xi
Yue” brands, and leveraged its in-house sales team to
efficiently improve sell-through rates. During the first half,
the Group recorded total contracted sales of RMB40.54
billion, representing an increase of 12.4% year-over-year.
The Group's revenue totaled RMB10.48 billion, an increase
of 47.2% year-over-year. Net profit attributable to Owners
of the Company totaled RMB1.19 billion, representing an
increase of 61.2% compared with the previous year.

During the first half, the Group continued to implement
its regional strategy for land investment by concentrating
on three key metropolitan areas (Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei,
the Yangtze River Delta and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area) and key tier-2 cities with market
potential. The Group also made its first foray into the
Suzhou, Dongguan and Xiamen residential property
markets. Amid the rapid recovery of the land market, the
Group adhered to a prudent countercyclical investment
strategy and acquired land resources with a differentiated
approach based on careful selection and robust research.
During the first half, riding on the Group’s funding
advantages and diversified land resource acquisition
channels, it successfully acquired multiple premium land
plots. In total, the Group invested RMB17.13 billion on land
with an aggregate GFA of 1.84 million sg.m., representing
an average land premium rate of 16.9%.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EER®WE

For the outlets business, the Group mostly achieved its
strategic goal of deploying outlet projects in “Twenty Cities
in Five Years”. Capital Grand, the commercial property
arm of the Group, shifted from investment-led expansion
to the operation and management of projects to further
consolidate its leading position in the outlets industry.
During the first half, the Group launched two new projects
— Beijing Fangshan Capital Outlets Phase 2 and the Jinan
Capital Outlets project, bringing the total number of outlet
projects that are open for business to ten. Meanwhile,
the Group also accelerated its efforts to improve quality
and efficiency. As a result, the operating capabilities of
its outlet projects were further enhanced and the outlets
business maintained fast growth. During the first half,
the outlets business generated total turnover of RMB3.64
billion, a substantial increase of 54% over the same
period last year, and customer traffic hit 18.64 million,
representing an increase of approximately 81% year-over-
year.

During the first half, in response to the government’s
policies, the Group actively pushed forward its expansion
into diversified businesses, launching a number of rental
housing projects and creative heritage projects at a fast
pace. During the period, the Group’s Fangshan He Yuan
Project in Beijing hit full occupancy and the Shuanggang He
Yu Project in Tianjin reported an average occupancy rate of
85%. In addition, the Group officially started construction
on the Shibalidian Project, the largest rental housing
project developed on collectively owned land in Beijing.
The Group also launched the Beijing Yongyuan Project,
an intangible culture heritage themed park. It is the first
project of its kind in China and joins the Group’s Langyuan
Vintage Project as another benchmark development that
promotes Chinese culture and creativity in Beijing. Both
have become signature projects of BCLl's cultural and
creative industries projects, which should help the Group
expand its management know-how and rapidly improve its
operating capabilities.
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During the first half, leveraging its strong advantages in
the capital markets, the Group pushed forward initiatives
to establish a sound financial structure. During the period,
the Group took advantage of favorable market conditions
and successfully issued three tranches of private corporate
bonds totaled RMB8.09 billion and RMB1 billion in
perpetual medium-term notes in the inter-bank market.
The Group was able to secure low interest rates record
compared with other similar issuances. During the period,
the Group’s rights issue plan was also approved at the
general meeting of shareholders. Prime Golden Capital, the
financial platform under BCL, began to pick up momentum
with five newly acquired projects during the first half,
providing an effective boost for the Company’s expansion
and resource integration.

In the second half of the year, the Group will proactively
respond to market changes while adhering to its corporate
values and strategic focus as it works to realize “quality
growth”. The Group will improve turnover by accelerating
destocking and cash collection in a bid to achieve its
annual sales target of more than RMB80 billion. In terms
of investment, the Group will continue focus on strategic
regions and further diversify land resource acquisition
channels in a counter-cyclical and differentiated manner
in order to fully unleash its competitive edge in acquiring
prime resources in key cities. It will also take advantage of
its strategic synergies with Beijing Capital Group and its
state-owned enterprise resources, and continue to explore
innovative businesses to develop new profit drivers. With
regards to financing, the Group will step up efforts on
its rights issue plan and achieve breakthroughs in equity
financing. Meanwhile, the Group will further expand and
strengthen Prime Golden Capital, the financial platform
of BCL, in an effort to connect with funding and other
resources by proactively participating in the comprehensive
fund management process including “fund raising, strategic
investment, fund management, and fund exit”. This will
enable BCL to deeply integrate property development
and property financing, and further help accelerate the
development of BCL's core businesses and facilitate its
business transformation and upgrading.
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During the first half, the Group effectively executed its
“Endeavor Initiative”, a project co-investment platform
launched at the beginning of the year, and achieved
significant results. All of the new projects that were added
within the year secured co-investments and the Group
saw dramatic increases in both contracted sales and cash
collection from operations. In the second half of the year,
while continuing to push forward the “Endeavor Program”,
the Group will promote the establishment of a multi-level
incentive mechanism, thereby aligning the interests of
shareholders, management and staff members.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to sincerely express
our gratitude to all of our shareholders, partners, and
customers for your long-term and determined care,
support, and help. BCL will continue to forge ahead,
enhance its competitive advantages, and strive to become
China’s most valuable integrated property developer.

Li Songping
Chairman

Beijing, 16 August 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

During the first half of 2019, the Group’s revenue
totaled RMB10,476,385,000 (first half of 2018:
RMB7,116,813,000), up 47% from the same period last
year, operating profit increased 42% vyear-on-year to
RMB2,178,675,000 (first half of 2018: RMB1,538,912,000).
Profit attributable to owners of the Company increased
61% year-on-year to RMB1,187,493,000 (first half of 2018:
RMB736,528,000). Earnings per share (basic and diluted)
were RMBO0.30 (first half of 2018: RMBO0.19), representing
an increase of 58% compared with the first half of 2018.
The Board resolved not to declare an interim dividend for
the six months ended 30 June 2019.

PROPERTY SALES PERFORMANCE

During the first half of 2019, BCL adhered to its “fast
turnover” strategy and captured opportunities presented
by favorable market conditions to successfully launch
high-quality projects, increase sell-through rate of newly
released projects, and effectively revitalize inventory. The
Group also fully upgraded its “BCL Made 2020" product
strategy that encompasses thorough market research,
first rate construction, high-end project design and timely
delivery. The Group continued to hone its core product
lines such as “Tian Yue”, “Xi Rui” and “Xi Yue” series, in
an attempt to take its product quality and service quality
to the next level. The Group's in-house sales teams also
dedicated to tap into multiple marketing channels and
contributed contracted sales of RMB12.9 billion. Coupled
with multiple measures including improving sell-through
rate and strictly collecting cash on schedule, the Group
hit a record high in terms of contracted sales and a great
increase of sales proceeds.

During the first half of 2019, the total contracted sales area
of the Group's projects was 1.627 million sq.m., up 19.4%
from the same period last year. Total contracted sales
were RMB40.54 billion, up 12.4% from the same period
last year. During the period, the three key metropolitan
areas on which the Group focused contributed significantly.
Contracted sales was RMB36 billion, up 23.9% from the
same period last year, accounting for 90% of the total.
In particular, Beijing further demonstrated its position
as a major driver of contracted sales growth as the
city alone contributed RMB21.50 billion, or 53% of the
total contracted sales. During the period, some projects,
including the “Capital of Vision” project in Shanghai and
the “Novotown” project in Kunshan, achieved a 100%
destocking rate and total contracted sales of RMB5 billion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WM

Geographical distribution of property sales performance in 1H of 2019 and 1H of 2018

“ENFEFFN T N\FLFFROEESERIE DM

Beijing 1t 3%

Tianjin X%

Shanghai &

) 1H of 2019 1H of 2018
Chengdu A% #B 13% —E-hE 9% —E-N\E
by by
. Chongqing EE e B0z
10%
Sydney and Brisbane 15%
e R 2 AT
. Others HAth
Contracted
Contracted Average Contracted
Sales Area Selling Price Sales Revenue
City W HEER HEHYE HESH
(sgq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.) (RMB'000)
(ANR®T/
(F7K) F 7 AK) (AR¥FT)
Beijing Bigy 641,030 33,542 21,501,333
Tianjin Rz 321,155 19,469 6,252,640
Shanghai riB 92,413 55,092 5,091,215
Chengdu B &R 48,186 16,776 808,367
Chongging BE 84,881 9,888 839,281
Sydney and Brisbane AIE - MBI 28,381 41,839 1,187,430
Others E At 411,387 11,818 4,861,775
Total CEl 1,627,433 24,912 40,542,041
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COMMERCIAL PROPERTY

During the first half of 2019, Beijing Capital Grand, the
commercial property arm of the Group, continued to
expand its presence, rolling out new projects such as the
Beijing Fangshan Capital Outlets Phase 2 and Jinan Capital
Outlets. To date, the Group has deployed outlet projects
in 17 cities, and 10 outlet projects are currently open for
business. The Group remains No. 1 nationwide in terms of
the number of outlets both deployed and operated in the
industry.

During the period, the Group accelerated outlets
operating quality and efficiency by further optimizing its
business structure and unveiling innovative new marketing
strategies. On the tech front, the Group improved
its operating efficiency by improving its technological
capabilities across digital platforms and big data analytics.
In terms of marketing, BCL continued to improve its brand
influence by adopting innovative marketing strategies to
effectively attract targeted customers and drive rapid
growth in business performance. As a result, outlets in
operation during the period achieved turnover of RMB3.64
billion, up 54% from the same period last year, and
customer traffic of 18.64 million, up 81% from the same
period last year. In particular, daily customer traffic at
Beijing Fangshan Capital Outlets Phase 2 reached over
170,000 on the opening day, and turnover surpassed
RMB50 million, which was a new record in terms of
daily sales for the Group’s outlets business. Additionally,
innovative marketing at the Wanning Capital Outlets in
Hainan province during the Labor Day holiday helped to
increase average daily sales by 55% year-over-year.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
IR B wm MDA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT ERYE

During the first half of 2019, the Group, together with Z—ZZ—NAFELE¥F AEERAEEZEE
its joint ventures and associated companies, completed QR HEARER R THEEBAEKERE
the construction of projects with an aggregate GFA of HEm|EI47TEFHK o

approximately 1.47 million sq.m..

10

Approximate

Completed Attributable
Project Type GFA Interest
A& R HAIEX
HEE® MEER BEEEE FE 45 ¥ &=
(sq.m.)
(F 7 K)
Beijing Capital of Western Village Residential/Commercial 42,562 100%
b R R B 7E L TE Bm%
Beijing IC-PARK Commercial 51,084 50%
it R IC-PARK HES
Beijing The Happiness House Residential/Commercial/ 156,916 100%
IEREHA Support Facilities
FE BX EE
Beijing Xanadu Mountain Residential (nursing care) 48,842 100%
b e I W FTE(EZ)
Beijing Xihuangcun Project Residential/Support Facilities 316,302 100%
I RAEENIER T=x - BEE
Tianjin International Peninsula 7-8 Commercial 30,197 100%
REBEKFSH7-8 [EES
Tianjin Poetic Life Residential 89,251 20%
RO L AR F=x
Tianjin Metropolis Residential 29,072 100%
REKNHE =
Kunshan Novotown (south land plot) Residential 140,042 100%
B2 1150 #0 (7 4 18 ) F=x
Chongging Capital City Apartment/Commercial/ 160,032 30.4%
EEEEIM Car Parking
NE-EEEM
Chongging Capital Outlets Commercial/Support 127,646 71.79%
BEREHRg Facilities
X BEE
Zhengzhou Capital Outlets Commercial/Support 96,583 71.79%
BN B85 B M Facilities
BE EE
Jinan Capital Outlets Commercial/Support 181,700 71.79%
75 R R 3R A Facilities
EEN S
Total a5t 1,470,229
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LAND BANK

During the first half of 2019, with a recovery of the land
market, the Group implemented its strategy to stabilize
land investment by focusing on three key metropolitan
areas and key tier-2 cities that management believes to
have particular potential. The Group successfully acquired
multiple plots of high-quality land at low cost through
leveraging synergies in primary and secondary land
development, acquiring land with Prime Golden Capital,
and also through joint ventures. During the period, the
Group acquired 13 secondary land development projects
with a total GFA of 1.84 million sq.m. for a total of
RMB17.13 billion, representing an average land premium
rate of 16.9%. Specifically, investments in the three key
metropolitan areas accounted for 81.3% of the total.
During the period, the Company entered the Suzhou,
Dongguan and Xiamen residential property markets for
the first time. While expanding its presence in the Yangtze
River Delta and Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area, the Group continued to expand its deployments in
the single core cities.

During the first half of 2019, the Group leveraged its
synergies in primary and secondary land development
and newly acquired three projects in the Beijing region
at initial bidding prices, with an aggregate investment
of RMB6.74 billion, representing 39.3% of the total land
investment, and an aggregate GFA of 533,000 sq.m. For
example, the Group acquired the Xihuangcun Project in
the Shijingshan District, which is a high-quality project in
Beijing that is situated next to the West 5th Ring Road
and adjacent to metro line No. 6 as well as several primary
urban roads. It is surrounded by many convenient facilities,
including premium schools, business centers and superior
natural environment. The project has an aggregate GFA of
196,000 sg.m.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
IR B wm MDA

As of 30 June 2019, the Group had total land bank with
an aggregate GFA of 13.09 million sgq.m., and total ground
area of 10.11 million sq.m. The aggregate GFA attributable
to the Group ‘s equity interests was 9.04 million sq.m.,
and the ground area attributable to the Group's equity
interests was 6.90 million sq.m. of the total land bank,
approximately 85% is for property development, and
15% is for investment properties and others. The existing
land bank is considered to be sufficient for the Group’s
development over the coming three years.

Project Project Name  Location

HHER ERER HWENE

BE_Z-NEFRAE AEELTHHER
EEMEL089BF K ERETETR
TOMNEFHT K mBEEMmMAI04.48
TR R FREmMEE89.58F K o
THHEARZERET  8S5%/ERME
5% REEWMEREAM - WAL HFEEHR A
MEBEARAR=ZFLIANERTE  RIEE
o

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of

Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
BRIEX rE AEBL

MERE  $:4:40] EHER ABREEH BEER
(sq.m) (sq.m) (sq.m)

(EAK) (FAK) (F73K)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REME
1 Fangshan Capital Outlets Fangshan District, Beijing
AIESSY 3 ERFTELR
2 Huzhou Capital Outlets Taihu Lake Resort, Huzhou, Zhejiang
Province
N B AR HOLE MM T AR IR EERR
3 Wanning Capital Outlets Liji Town, Wanning, Hainan Province
BEASRE BHEBETRAE
4 Kunshan Capital Outlets East New Town, Kunshan, Jiangsu
Province
Bl B IHERILTRBHA
5  Nanchang Capital Outlets Nanchang, liangxi Province
EEESSE S IRmBEEET
Plot A
AR
Plot B
Bith 52
6 Hangzhou Capital Outlets Fuyang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province
RlESSS 3 HIEmMTERRE
7 Wuhan Capital Outlets East Lake New Town, Wuhan, Hubei
Province
RERBRE MILERETRAFR
8  Xi'an Capital Outlets Xi‘an Hi-Tech Industrial Development
Zone, Xi‘an, Shaanxi Province
AR BERE REAAZTEARNELRER
9  Zhengzhou Capital Zhengzhou, Henan Province
Outlets
EIES S 9] AEEEMT
10 Jinan Capital Outlets Tangye New Town, Licheng District,
Jinan, Shandong Province
EERERE LR ERTERERANE
11 Hefei Capital Outlets Binhu New Area, Hefei, Anhui
Province
AERERE ZHERETENHE
12 Chongging Capital Lujiao New Town, Banan District,
Outlets Chongging
BERRERA EETERERANN
13 Kunming Capital Outlets Wuhua District, Kunming, Yunnan
Province
BRRRRE ZHERATHER
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Commercial 71.79% 90,766 196,490 196,490
[EES
Commercial 71.79% 214,317 54,700 54,700
[EES
Commercial 55% 199,807 103,200 103,200
[EES
Commercial 71.79% 93,026 100,530 100,530
[EES
Commercial 86,987 159,400 159,400
B

71.79% 56,833 129,700 129,700

28.72% 30,153 29,700 29,700

Commercial 71.79% 101,691 112,280 112,280
[EES
Commercial 71.07% 89,757 107,560 107,560
[EES
Commercial 71.79% 81,301 118,840 118,840
B
Commercial 71.79% 80,790 96,580 96,580
B
Commercial 71.79% 114,929 121,520 121,520
[EES
Commercial 71.79% 87913 96,270 96,270
[EES
Commercial 71.79% 74,349 110,560 110,560
[EES
Commercial 61.02% 67,920 136,040 136,040
[EES



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
I B wm M AT

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of

Project Project Name  Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
BRIEX FE AE L
HEAR EEER wENE MEER [ $:-3:47] ERER ABREER BEER
(sq.m) (sg.m) (sq.m)
(FAHAK) (FAHXK) (FAK)
14 Qingdao Capital Outlets Qingdao High-tech Zone, Shandong Commercial 71.79% 93,972 97,130 97,130
Province
EEEFRE LREERTRFNE (53
15 Nanning Capital Outlets Xingning District, Nanning, Guangxi ~ Commercial 71.79% 101,974 138,440 138,440
Zhuang Autonomous Region
BMERERE ERELEREAERETEER RS
16 Xiamen Capital Outlets Xiangan District, Xiamen, Fujian Commercial 71.79% 55,657 126,660 126,660
Province
EaeESsy i BREEMTARR RS
17 Beijing Haidian Yongfeng Haidian District, Beijing Office/ 50% 59,750 96,029 63,141
Industrial Base Project Apartment
Site B2
ERERKEEFENB2 ERTERER BFE/ 1B
18  Capital Group Plaza Dongcheng District, Beijing Office/ 100% 7,069 48,431 35,867
Commercial
EREARE ERTRAR BYE/HmE
DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY
HENE
19 Beijing Hujialou Project ~ Xanadu Chaoyang District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 34,163 51,860 38,611
Commercial
ERWREER B # IRTHEGE TE/HE
20 Beijing Haidian Yongfeng Capital of Western Haidian District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 65,219 62,964 36,617
Industrial Base Project  Village Apartment/
Plot F1 Commercial/
Office
ERERKEEEENF RBEL ERTEER e/ 28/
wE/BFR
21 Beijing Haidian Yongfeng Haidian District, Beijing Office/ 50% 59,750 36,387 36,387
Industrial Base Project Commercial
Plot B2
ERERKEEEEHB2 ERTEER BYE/ W%
22 Lize Financial Business Fengtai District, Beijing Office/ 26,352 20,959 19,407
District Project Apartment
BESREBR LRTEaRE BFE/DE
Lize F02 50% 15,963 13,011 13,011
EEF02
Lize FO5 Tian Yue Mansion 100% 10,389 7,948 6,396
EEF05 PPN
23 Beijing Chaoyang Sunhe Xi Rui Chun Qiu  Chaoyang District, Beijing Residential 50% 90,394 138,634 99,569
Xidian Village Project
TREGFRTEANILE EREN IRTHEGE FE
24 Beijing Chaoyang Sunhe  Tian Rui Chen Chaoyang District, Beijing Residential 20% 53,526 84,769 62,234
Beidian West Village Zhang
Project
TREBRTLARNER XERE IRTHGE FE
25 Beijing Chaoyang One Liang Ma Chaoyang District, Beijing Residential/ 10% 61,023 134,346 100,002
Tuofangying Project Commercial
TREGRRE 11 EnE tRTHER /g
26 Beijing Zhaoquanying Passion World Shunyi District, Beijing Apartment/ 100% 27121 3,755 3,755
F1-01 Project Commercial
ER#22M-018R I fe B B ERTIEER 2B/ HE
27  Beijing Zhaoquanying Site Enjoyable Trees  Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 104,345 100,375 59,702
No. 4 Project Apartment
ERE2 2451 15 B LRTIEER FE/DE

ERIBEXROBERAR —T-NFhHRSE 13



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
IR B wm MDA

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name  Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HAER RE AEM L
HEER EREER wENE MEER  $:4:40] EHER AELEER BEER
(sq.m) (sg.m) (sq.m)
(FAHAK) (FAHK) (FAK)
28  Beijing Zhaoquanying Site Enjoyable Bay Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 114,154 107,562 67,179
No. 2 Project Apartment/
Commercial
EREZE25 1 g ERTIES R e/ 08/
GRS
29  Beijing Shunyi No. 17 Xanadu Mountain Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 85,056 52,946 42,286
Project Apartment
ERIER17HEER Bl ERTIEZRE FE/ 28
30  Beijing Zhaogquanying Plot Shunyi District, Beijing Apartment/ 100% 17,277 43,407 34,507
F2-01 Project Commercial
ERE2EF2-018E ERTIEER AB/HE
31 Beijing Shunyi New Town Capital Park #26  Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 12.5% 88,702 43,303 43,302
Block No. 26 Project Commercial
ERIEEHM6ERIAE JEE26HE ERTIEE R TE/HE
32 Beijing Miyun Yunfeng  Beijing Landscape Miyun District, Beijing Residential 100% 334,855 64,508 52,727
Villa Project Villa
TREZERWLEEE  RBEW IRTEER (i3
33 Beijing Miyun New Town The Happiness ~ Miyun District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 56,254 34,449 9,956
Project Commercial
ERETRHHER BUF ERMEERE T/ H%
34 Beijing Miyun New Town Lang Garden Miyun District, Beijing Residential/ 24% 13,868 9,270 -
Block No. 0102 Project Commercial
EREEFHNI02EE EHERE ERTHER T/ HE
ER
35 Beijing Miyun Tanying Miyun District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 60,999 82,752 42,812
Town Project Commercial
tREEBERER ERMEERE FE/H%
36 Beijing Pinggu Glory Mansion  Pinggu District, Beijing Residential/ 25% 220,878 132,581 101,626
Changchunyuan Project Commercial
ERTIAEEEER MEHZE ERMTAR T/ H%
37  Beijing Pinggu Jinhai Lake Pinggu District, Beijing Apartment/ 100% 176,100 150,695 149,507
Hanzhuang Village Site Commercial/
B1 Project Office
ERFALEHELNBI ERTFAR AB/EE/
Eep) Brig
38  Beijing Pinggu Jinhai Lake Pinggu District, Beijing Residential 33% 58,643 97,885 58,666
Hanzhuang Village Site
6014 Project
TRTASEREEN ERHTAR FE
60144 %
39  Beijing Pinggu Jinhai Lake Pinggu District, Beijing Residential/ 49% 133,408 202,931 125,009
Hanzhuang Village Site Commercial
6019 Project
ERFASEHEIN ERTTAR T/ H%
60193 %
40 Beijing Pinggu Jinhai Lake Pinggu District, Beijing Commercial 49% 48,800 65,680 65,680
World Leisure Congress
Project
ERFAS B RRKE ERTTFAR [EES
N-pEL
41 Beijing Fangshan Higher ~ Nobles Mansion  Fangshan District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 56,138 59,904 37,865
Education Park Project Apartment/
Commercial
EREILEHEER S ERmELE Tx/ 28/
[GES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

I B wm M AT

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name  Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
BRIEX RE AE L
HEAR EREER wENE MEER [ $:-3:47] ERER ABREER BEER
(sq.m) (sg.m) (sq.m)
(FAHAK) (FAHXK) (FAK)
42 Beijing Huang Xin Zhuang Ealing Fangshan District, Beijing Residential 95% 114,166 137,362 99,853
Project
TREFHEE FHE ERTRELE FE
43 Beijing Fangshan The Great City ~ Fangshan District, Beijing Residential/ 1.1% 53,579 132,302 92,188
Liangxiang Project Commercial/
Office
TRELRBER BB ERmELR Fe/m%/
BFE
44 Beijing Daxing Sun Village Enjoyable City Daxing District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 61,512 31,616 27,704
Project Apartment/
Commercial
TRAEENEE R #E TRTARE T/ 28/
[GES
45 Beijing Daxing Huang Daxing District, Beijing Apartment/ 100% 84,213 223,732 134,479
Village Project Commercial
ERAEEHIER ERFTAER RE/HE
46 Beijing Daxing Yinghai ~ Grand Harmony  Daxing District, Beijing Residential/ 30% 75,065 108,522 108,517
Site Emerald Commercial
Residence
ERAEE G i EXEBNER LIRTAER TE/HE
47  Beijing Daxing Yizhuang Sino Ocean Daxing District, Beijing Residential/ 50% 76,286 208,580 153,931
Site Commercial/
Office
ERRERHE R BmXE TRTARE FE/H%/
BT
48  Beijing Shijingshan Wisdom Mansion  Shijingshan District, Beijing Residential 49% 48,464 174,013 110,996
Xihuang Village Project
ERASRWAENERRE EHER ERFTASLUE T
49  Shanghai Qingpu Yingpu The Happiness Qingpu District, Shanghai Residential/ 100% 204,781 243,450 180,133
Lane Project Commercial
FEERREHERER  BH LEMERR FE/H%
50  Shanghai Yangpu Capital of Vision  Yangpu District, Shanghai Residential/ 100% 32,360 23,317 3,594
Pingliang Project Commercial/
Office
BB ETRER REEIL LETHEER tE/BHE/
BTiE
51  Shanghai Zhoupu Project Pudong New Area, Shanghai Residential 51% 69,433 170,960 101,272
LBABER LETERTRE i3s3
52 Shanghai Xinchang Xana Shine Pudong New Area, Shanghai Residential 50% 56,887 102,570 52,867
Project
LRHISER BhREE LEMERTR FE
53 Shanghai Jiading Project The Great City  Jiading District, Shanghai Residential/ 60% 123,090 37132 88
Commercial
FEEEEA BEIBE FETEER FE/H%
54 Shanghai Minhang Minhang District, Shanghai Residential 100% 18,049 46,398 45,705
Huajing Town Site
FERTEERR FETETRE FE
55 Tianjin Shuangang No.  Fortune Class Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/ 55% 255,038 64,505 58,732
121 Project Apartment/
Commercial/
Office
REEB121HE BRI RETRZER e/ 28/
mE/BTE
56  Tianjin Shuangang No.  Tianjin — A-Z Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 55% 183,511 433 -
122 Project Town
REEE122ER R EA-Z Town REMREER F=x

ERIBEXROBERAR —T-NFhHRSE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
IR B wm MDA

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name  Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HRIEX R E REH E
HEAR EEER wENE MERR i Ll ERER ABREER BEER
(sq.m) (sg.m) (sq.m)
(FAK) (EAK) (FHAK)
57  Tianjin Huaming Project  Noble City Dongli District, Tianjin Residential/ 40% 271,830 70,800 70,800
Apartment/
Commercial
REBERIER R REMRERE tx/ 28/
GRS
58  Tianjin Xiging Project Landing House  Xiging District, Tianjin Residential/ 40% 151,596 17,100 17,100
Office
REEERE BEHE RETEER T2/ BT
59  Tianjin Hongni River Tianjin Capital Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 257,093 129,182 28,889
Project City Commercial
KBS MER REHEIW RETRER T2/ H%
60  Tianjin MTR Project Tian Yue River Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 66,888 223,387 151,812
Apartment/
Commercial/
Office
REBHER KRB KRB R tx/28/
BE/BFE
61  Tianjin Beiyunhe Project Grand Canal Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 62,817 165,739 84,647
Milestone Apartment/
Commercial
RELENIER KARE REMAL R 2/ 128/
EES
62 Tianjin Zhongshan Road  Metropolis Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 22,455 86,452 69,467
Project Commercial/
Office
REFLEES A#E RETTILR T/ E%/
BFE
63 Tianjin Xinzhuang No. 5  Poetic Life Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 20% 82,164 3,631 3,174
Project
REFERRWER 15 1L 28 REMEHR T=
64 Tianjin Hongxianli Project North Shore Honggiao District, Tianjin Residential/ 25% 106,920 75,649 66,320
Center Commercial/
Office
REAREER LERL RETARR tE/ %/
BT
65 Tianjin Youzhichang Xanadu Garden  Honggiao District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 38,704 40,828 40,828
Project Commercial
R mERER B XRMAER /g
66 Tianjin Xiging Zhongbei ~ Xanadu Capital ~ Xiging District, Tianjin Residential 50% 41,175 80,372 67,142
Town Project
REBERILEAER EmEM RETESR FE
67 Tianjin Beichen Liuyuan  Oriental Mansion Beichen District, Tianjin Residential 24.7% 129,903 281,268 198,253
No. 1 Site
XREREEFINIEE KEAN REMLRE T
68 Tianjin Beichen Liuyuan 188 Long Chau  Beichen District, Tianjin Residential 17.5% 98,263 183,032 133,254
No. 2 Site Road
KELREE25EE  BME188 XEmRE T=
69  Tianjin Binhai New District Binhai New District, Tianjin Residential 100% 173,988 222,705 222,705
Ninghe Site
REBRIEE TR REMEEHE T=
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

I B wm M AT

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name  Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
BRIEX RE AE L
HEAR EREER wENE MEER [ $:-3:47] ERER ABREER BEER
(sq.m) (sg.m) (sq.m)
(FAHAK) (FAHXK) (FAK)
70  Tianjin Wuging Project  International Wuging District, Tianjin Residential/ 1,755,838 782,458 699,962
Peninsula Commercial/
Office
RERBHEE il e RETRER TE/HE/
BT
Plot 08-02 100% 171,418 20,647 20,647
08-023t 3%
Plot 01-05 100% 193,496 15,762 15,762
01-053t 5
Plot 03-02 100% 174,948 21,312 21,312
03-021 %
Plot 04-02 100% 187,396 49,213 49,213
04-023 32
Plot 07-02 100% 49,871 2,535 2,535
07-02:t 5%
Plot 06-09 100% 401,601 6,162 6,162
06-09 %
Plot 07-08 100% 24,584 7,832 7,832
07-081t 5%
Jingzhu Square 100% 18,103 18,101 18,101
BNES
Plot 03-06/03-07 30% 164,005 166,858 166,858
03-06/03-07 32
Plot 01-01 50% 132,169 172,973 172,973
01-0131 32
Plot 06-02 50% 92,906 67,446 67,446
06-021 32
Plot 02-02 50% 145,341 233,616 151,120
02-02 %
71 Shenzhen Longhua Capital Longhua  Longhua District, Shenzhen Apartment/ 100% 9,519 42,882 42,882
Project Centre Commercial/
Office
R EEE BEIEERLD ERERTRER AB/BE/
BFE
72 Guangzhou Zengcheng Zengcheng District, Guangdong, Residential/ 51% 40,778 73,975 72,881
Shiwei Road Project Guangzhou Commercial
EMESAREREE EREEMNTEHE TE/ %
73 Guangzhou Zengcheng Zengcheng District, Guangdong, Residential/ 20% 85,336 255,647 252,677
Licheng Street Project Guangzhou Commercial
BEMEHZRERE EREBEMNTEHE TE/HE
74 Guangdong Foshan Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong Residential/ 100% 25,001 77,586 64,038
Shishan Town Project Commercial
BRI L HEER EREBUTHER e/ %
75 Guangdong Foshan Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong Residential/ 100% 74,600 193,941 131,679
Shishan Town Xingye Commercial
Road East Project
EREFLBLERERR EREHFLTHER TE/ %
BH
76 Guangdong Dongguan Dongguan, Guangdong Residential/ 100% 38,796 136,425 95,671
Wangniudun Project Commercial
ERRZEFHEE ERERZM /g
77 Hangzhou Yuhang Project Yuhang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Residential/ 100% 85,897 128,425 127,055
Province Commercial
MMARIEE WIEmMmRNE T/ ¥

ERIBEXROBERAR —T-NFhHRSE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IR B wm MDA

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name  Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HRIEX RE AEM L
HEAR EEER wENE MEER i Ll ERER ABREER BEER
(sq.m) (sg.m) (sq.m)
(FAHAK) (FAHK) (FAK)
78  Hangzhou Yuhe New City Gongshu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Residential/ 36% 40,488 135,296 87,867
Project Commercial
MMETHAER HIEMMNTHER /g
79  Fujian Xiamen Xiangan Xiangan District, Xiamen, Fujian Residential/ 65% 16,786 47824 33,385
New City Plot JO5 Commercial
BREEMARMMI0SH 1} BREEMTARR TE/ ¥
80  Fujian Xiamen Xiangan Xiangan District, Xiamen, Fujian Residential/ 100% 12,320 36,486 24,221
New City Plot H19 Commercial
BREPAZIHHI90 1 BREEMTARR TE/H%
81  Fujian Xiamen Xiangan Xiangan District, Xiamen, Fujian Residential/ 100% 18,723 54,949 36,724
New City Plot H24 Commercial
BREFARNAHA R BREEMTARZR TE/HE
82  Chongging Hongensi Hong'en Jiangbei District, Chongging Residential/ 100% 229,314 61,726 357
Project International Commercial
Living District
EEBEFEE BEEBREEE FEETILE /¥
83  Chongging Xiyong Chongging Eco  Shapingba District, Chongging Residential/ 96.39% 146,394 113,525 21,181
Project Village Apartment/
Commercial
BEFAKEAR EEXAH EETHTER 2/ 128/
GES
84 Chongging lialingchang  Chongging Capital Shapingba District, Chongging Residential/ 30.40% 218,303 401,625 220,058
Project City Commercial
ERREBER BEEAIN EETHIBE TE/HE
85  Chongging Dapingquan Yuzhong District, Chongging Residential/ 33.00% 14,447 71,774 58,698
Project Apartment/
Commercial
EFATEEE EETRATE tE/ 28/
[GES
86 Chongging Nan‘an Tea Nan‘an District, Chongging Residential/ 100% 95,092 194,434 141,691
Garden Project Commercial
EFEEAEEA EETHEE T/ HE
87  Chongging Xipeng Jiulongpo District, Chongging Residential/ 30% 67,855 114,180 100,548
Project Commercial
EERBYER EETAERRE /g
88 Chengdu Qinglongchang Chengdu Eco Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/ 100% 87,312 92,416 31,428
Project Village Sichuan Province Commercial
m#BEHESER PR St AR mERBTKER TE/ ¥
89  Chengdu Huaxin Village ~Galaxy No. 1 Jinjiang District, Chengdu, Residential/ 67.50% 95,663 63,158 18,008
Project Sichuan Province Commercial
HEBEHIAR BFI% mIERBTHILR TE/HE
90 Chengdu 68 Mailbox Chengdu The Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/ 100% 50,836 59,608 20,909
Project Palace No. 68 Sichuan Province Commercial
RE68EMIHE RiE68# mERBTLRER TE/HE
91 Chengdu Tianfu New Xanadu Jinjiang  Tianfu New Area District, Chengdu, Residential/ 100% 48,322 127,206 90,295
Area Project Sichuan Province Commercial
BRI HEIAE BR#RIT m)IERBHRFHE Tz/H%
92  Xi'an Feng-cheng Road ~ Xi'an First City ~ Xi'an Economic and Technology Residential/ 71.79% 355,909 479,492 254,912
Project Development Zone, Shaanxi Province  Commercial/
Office
BEZEHEEE AR E R REEELTEERNHER tE/HE/
93  Shenyang Shenying Road Shenyang First ~ Hunnan New District, Shenyang, Residential/ 30% 175,348 41,584 18,253
Project City Liaoning Province Apartment/
Commercial
EHEERRR G E B BELEGMERNR e/ 08/
GRS

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
I B wm M AT

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name  Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
BRIEX RE AE L
HEAR EREER wENE MEER [ $:-3:47] ERER ABREER BEER
(sq.m) (sg.m) (sq.m)
(FAHAK) (FAHXK) (FAK)
94 Shenyang Yinhe Bay Qipan Hills First Qi Pan Mountain District, Shenyang, Residential/ 50% 420,317 328,516 313,316
Project Villa Liaoning Province Commercial
BHRTEER HE L5 BEAEGTHEALR /g
95  Shenyang Shenzhong Shenyang Eco Hunnan New District, Shenyang, Residential/ 100% 194,249 47,574 9,196
Street Project Village Liaoning Province Commercial
EHLRAEHEE b ik RELEGTERNE /g
96 Shenyang Hupoda Bay  Legendary Bay Qi Pan Mountain District, Shenyang, Residential/ 100% 231,666 64,925 64,925
Project Project Liaoning Province Commercial
EGRMEER G nE RELEGTHEANR TE/ %
97  Shenyang Tiexi District Tiexi District, Shenyang, Liaoning Residential/ 100% 32,818 90,094 69,145
No. 3/4 Site Province Commercial
EERGEAEATI EELERTHRER TE/HE
98 Qingdao Chengyang Airport Chengyang District, Qingdao, Commercial/ 100% 92,455 55,944 55,944
Project International Shandong Province Office
Centre
EBHBHE EHEERSL LWREERTHER BE/BFiE
99  Qingdao Park No. 1 Qingdao Central  Chengyang District, Qingdao, Residential/ 100% 81,016 519 519
Project Park No. 1 Shandong Province Apartment/
Commercial
EBAEIRER DETH WEEEETHEE tx/ 28/
GES
100 Yantai Sunny Chief Yard Yantai Sunny Chief Fushan District, Yantai, Shandong Residential/ 100% 195,609 7,545 2,990
Project Yard Province Commercial
EaBxERER Eabiak LWREEATRILER TE/HE
101 Qingdao Cang'an Road Licang District, Yantai, Shandong Residential/ 100% 29,219 42,419 42,415
Project Province Apartment/
Commercial
EBRRKER LREERTEER e/ 128/
GES
102 Zhenjiang National Joyous House Zhenjiang Technology Development  Residential/ 100% 111,364 12,335 3,872
University Science Park Zone, Jiangsu Province Commercial
Project
HIBRAZHREEE EINRF IHEHEITRITEER TE/ %
103 Kunshan Jinxi Project Kunshan Eastern  Jinxi Town, Kunshan, Jiangsu Province Residential/ 51% 550,037 265,542 265,542
Myster Commercial/
Hotel
RIIHZHEE BHE-RAWSR TIHERIITHZER E%g/ﬁeﬁ%/
b
104 Wuxi Dongting Town Wuxi Gentle Xishan District, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province Residential/ 100% 162,911 17,962 14,553
Project House Commercial
EHRZHEAR EHER IHAEHTHLE FE/H%
105 Wuxi Airport Road Project Wuxi Joyous Wuxi New District, Jiangsu Province  Residential/ 100% 96,598 10,312 1,128
House Commercial
EHHKSRER EH U IHEREGTIR FE/H%
106 Jiangyin Yuyue Project  Jiangyin Yushan Bay, Jiangyin, Jiangsu Province Residential/ 100% 78,258 65,759 61,053
Auspicious Commercial
House
TREHIER TEREER IEHATIRMEHLE TE/HE
107 Jiangsu Suzhou Qingjian Suzhou Industrial Park, Jiangsu Residential 51% 71,841 150,339 105,163
Lake Project Province
IHHMNSRAER IHEHENTIEER F=
108 Huzhou Taihu Project Huzhou Integrated Taihu Lake Resort, Huzhou, Zhejiang Residential/ 100% 145,153 101,210 101,210
Outlets Project  Province Commercial
WM ABEE WRESSE Y] T E MM T RN R EERE /g
GaR
BRIEXROHARLA —E-—NFPHRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
IR B wm MDA

Total Above
Total GFA Ground
Attributable  Site Area of Land GFA of
Project Project Name  Location Type Interest of Land Bank Land Bank
HRIEX R E AEM L
HEAR EEER wENE MEER i Ll ERER ABREER BEER
(sq.m) (sg.m) (sq.m)
(FAHAK) (FAHK) (FAK)
109 Hainan Wanning Project Hainan Integrated Liji Town, Wanning District, Hainan ~ Residential/ 100% 188,514 136,516 130,613
Outlets Project  Province Apartment/
Commercial
BEEERA EEESS Y BHEEBETREE e/ 108/
GaR GRS
110 Kunshan Capital Outlets Kunshan East New Town, Kunshan, Jiangsu Residential/ 100% 354,912 185,294 148,650
Project Integrated Province Apartment/
Outlets Project Commercial
EIRSHTAR ALY i] IHERILTRBIM TE/ 28/
GaR EES
111 Jiangsu Kunshan Zhangou Zhangpuzhen District, Kunshan, Residential 100% 68,114 221,464 166,143
Site Jiangsu Province
THE LR IHERLTRARR i3
112 Kunming Panlong Panlong District, Kunming, Yunnan  Residential/ 100% 58,687 328,698 246,774
Zhongba Project Province Commercial
EHBREDHRE EHEERTRER TE/HE
113 Nanchang Capital Outlets Nanchang Capital Nanchang, Jiangxi Province Commercial 28.72% 30,153 24,840 24,840
Outlets
ELESF ) ERRFHRE IRmEmAT [EES
114 Jinan Capital Outlets Jinan Capital Tangye New Town, Licheng District, ~Commercial 71.79% 114,929 760 760
Outlets Jinan, Shandong Province
BERERE BEERRRE LWREERTERERANE [EES
115 Chongging Capital Chongging Capital Lujiao New Town, Banan District, Commercial 71.79% 74,349 9,230 9,230
Outlets Outlets Chongging
BERERERM EERFREN EETEREREARTN [EES
116 Nanning Capital Outlets Nanning Capital ~ Xingning District, Nanning, Guangxi  Commercial 71.79% 101,974 15,300 15,300
Outlets Zhuang Autonomous Region
BMERERE HERRRE ERELEREAERETRER RS
117 Project Merrylands Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 21,043 16,472 16,472
Merrylands & B BAFTERES i3
118 Project Arden Brisbane, Australia Residential 50% 2,319 973 973
ArdenIE B RAR G EHET i3s3
119 Project Max Sydney/Brisbane, Australia Residential 50% 37,356 5,784 5,784
Max2 B RAFGERE /HEHED %
120 Project Campsie Phase 2 Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 2,612 289 289
Campsie— 2B F RAFTERS FE
121 Project Thornleigh Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 1,148 219 219
Thornleigh 78 B RAMEERED T=
122 Project Park Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 2,016 785 785
Parki2 B BAMEERES %
123 Project Rose Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 4,519 1,244 1,244
RoseZE B HARGERED TE
13,089,104 10,111,494

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019



HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 30 June 2019, the Group employed 3,407
professionals who had an average age of 33.7. In terms of
education, 77.2% of employees held a bachelor’s degree or
higher and 11.6% of employees held a master’s degree or
higher. Employees with intermediate or senior professional
titles accounted for 16.1%.

During the first half of 2019, as a part of the Group's
strategy to upgrade its business and regional operations,
it further strengthened the support services provided by
headquarters, gradually repositioned itself towards multi-
business platform management, and actively explored
regional platforms and innovative new business models, so
as to lead and promote the expansion and strengthening of
its regional businesses, optimize innovative new businesses,
and support the realization of the Group’s “13th Five-Year”
strategic goal.

In order to meet the strategic development requirements
of the Group, the Company continued to improve its
performance assessment and incentive systems, and
actively promote risk sharing and win-win partnerships that
are built on collaboration and innovation. Meanwhile, the
Company further explored the use of incentive mechanisms
for newer businesses such as fund management,
cultural and creative project developments, and science
and technology projects, and well-played the role of
performance assessment and incentive systems in order to
support the Company'’s strategic upgrading.

The Group consistently adheres to the vision that “talent
is the most crucial capital”. BCL endeavored to establish
comprehensive practices to develop the workforce needed
to meet the Group's development strategies. It also focused
on build human capital for key functions and diversified
businesses, especially to cultivate capable leaders for
middle management. Together with job rotation and on-
the-job training practices, the Group was able to update
its human capital structure and provide support for its long
term sustainable growth.
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OUTLOOK

Looking out to the second half of 2019, China will continue
to follow the overarching themes of “housing is for people
to live in, not for speculation” and “one city, one policy”
for the housing sector. The government’s policies, which
set a primary goal of “stabilizing land and housing prices
and guiding market expectations”, will promote the stable
development of the housing market and give rise to
the establishment of long-term housing policies suitable
for different cities. The current rigid market regulations
are expected to remain in place in the short term and
developers are still facing great financing challenges ahead
as a result of deleveraging and a moderate tightening
of industry-specific monetary policy. Meanwhile, as
the differentiation in developers intensifies further, the
advantages of developers with strong backgrounds will
be further enhanced. The Group will continue to strive
to achieve “quality growth” as part of its core vision in
response to volatile external conditions, maintain stable
growth and continued progress, and adopt the following
development strategies:

1. While continuing to develop core projects in line with
s "BCL Made 2020" strategy, the Group will adhere
to a “fast turnover” strategy and speed up the launch
and delivery of new projects. Leveraging its in-house
salesforce, BCL aims to achieve an annual sales target
of RMB80 billion. The Group will accelerate cash
collection by strengthening its performance evaluation
and incentive systems, and revitalize inventory in
an innovative manner. By implementing a “stable
investment” strategy, the Group will continue to focus
on investing in the three core metropolitan areas of
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, the Yangtze River Delta and
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
as well as key tier-2 cities with market potential.
Meanwhile, it will replenish its high-quality land bank
at a low cost through diverse channels and with
varied approaches.
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In response to the government’s policies, the Group
will accelerate the launch of new projects in its
three diversified business lines, including cultural
and creative industrial property developments,
rental housing, and high-tech industrial property
developments, in a bid to develop new profit drivers.
In terms of cultural and creative industrial property
business, the Group will develop projects through
M&A, joint ventures, and self-operation, and operate
them in an asset-heavy and asset-light combined
business model. This will enhance BCL's management
capabilities which will not only help to generate
stable income, but also allow the Group to benefit
from potential assets appreciation by operating the
properties. In terms of rental housing, the Group aims
to make “Hé Cohesive Hub” a better and stronger
rental housing brand, creating a unique model of
running rental apartment projects on collective land,
and achieving both social and economic benefits.

The Group will actively promote a rights issue plan
in an effort to achieve breakthroughs in equity
financing. It will also leverage its edge in credit and
capital operations to maintain smooth financing
channels and expand new channels in order to
further consolidate its advantage in financing
costs. The Group will continue to strengthen Prime
Golden Capital, its financial platform, by developing
comprehensive fund businesses in various respects
including real estate development, asset management,
cultural and creative industrial property, private equity
and an overseas fund. This will enable the Group
to create financial operating synergies across diverse
assets and projects, facilitating its core resource
acquisition and strategic upgrading.

The Group will be dedicated to further establish
a multi-faceted incentive mechanism. The Group
will further implement the “Endeavor Initiative” -
the project co-investment platform under BCL -
expand its coverage and solicit support from Group's
management team and headquarters, continuously
optimize and effectively execute the program, thereby
aligning the interests of shareholders, management
and employees.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

In the first half of 2019, the operating revenue of the
Group was approximately RMB10,476,385,000 (first half
of 2018: RMB7,116,813,000), representing an increase
of approximately 47% as compared with the first half
of 2018. Such increase in operating revenue was mainly
attributable to the increase in new projects completed and
occupied and revenue of primary land development during
the period. In the first half of 2019, the Group achieved
a gross profit margin after business tax of approximately
38%, representing an increase of 4 percentage points
when compared to approximately 34% in the first half
of 2018, which was mainly attributable to an increase of
gross profit margin in the property development and sales
business during the period.

In the first half of 2019, the operating profit of the
Group was approximately RMB2,178,675,000 (first half
of 2018: RMB1,538,912,000), representing an increase of
approximately 42% as compared to the first half of 2018.

1. Financial Resources, Liquidity and Liability
Position

During the period of review, the Group
maintained a healthy liquidity position and a
reasonable appropriation of financial resources.
As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s total assets
were RMB195,350,796,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB169,716,823,000), of which current assets
were RMB160,826,617,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB137,511,685,000) and non-current assets
were RMB34,524,179,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB32,205,138,000); and total liabilities were
RMB153,236,281,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB131,516,141,000), of which, current liabilities
were RMB73,195,765,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB63,777,213,000) and non-current liabilities
were RMB80,040,516,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB67,738,928,000), and owners’ equity
was RMB42,114,515,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB38,200,682,000).
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The Group has sound liquidity and solvency.
Current ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2019
was approximately 2.20 (31 December 2018:
approximately 2.16).

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s cash at bank
and on hand amounted to RMB37,387,248,000
(31 December 2018: RMB22,526,602,000), which
represented sufficient cash flow for operations. As at
30 June 2019, loans and debentures of the Group
amounted to RMB101,558,271,000 (31 December
2018 RMB88,549,769,000) in aggregate, of which
the long-term loans and debentures amounted
to RMB77,290,425,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB65,130,175,000). The bank loans were mainly
used to satisfy the capital requirements of the Group's
property development projects.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group's gearing ratio
was approximately 78% (31 December 2018:
approximately 77%). The gearing ratio of the Group
is calculated as the total liabilities divided by total
assets.

Changes in major subsidiaries, principal
jointly controlled entities and associates

Kunming Shouzhi Xinye Real Estate Development Co.
Ltd. (EREEFERMERZLBR LA, a subsidiary
of the Group, was established in February 2019, and
100% of its equity interest was held by the Group.

Tianjin Tianke Real Estate Co., Ltd. (KEXRIE XA
[RA7]), a subsidiary of the Group, was established in
February 2019, and 100% of its equity interest was
held by the Group.

Foshan Shourui Real Estate Development Co. Ltd. (f#
&R EH EM AR AF]), a subsidiary of the Group,
was established in February 2019, and 100% of its
equity interest was held by the Group.

Hangzhou Langyuan Culture Development Co., Ltd.
(TNEPE LB R BRAF]), a subsidiary of the Group,
was established in April 2019, and 100% of its equity
interest was held by the Group.
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Xiamen Shouzhi Xiangfa Real Estate Development Co.
Ld. (EFTEEANEFHEREFR A A]), a subsidiary
of the Group, was established in May 2019, and 65%
of its equity interest was held by the Group.

During the period, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest of Kunshan Guangsheng Real Estate
Development and Management Company Limited
(BWmEBRFHEMZELEERDA) (“Kunshan
Guangsheng”). Following the completion of the
acquisition, Kunshan Guangsheng became a
subsidiary of the Group.

Suzhou Hongchang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (& /5,54
E¥HMRAR) a joint venture of the Group, was
established in February 2019, and 51% of its equity
interest was held by the Group.

Beijing Yuechuang Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
(tRIH A EH ERZEERAR), a joint venture of the
Group, was established in March 2019, and 49% of
its equity interest was held by the Group.

Beijing Jingu Chuangzhan Real Estate Co., Ltd. (3t =
CREIEBEEEREIAA]), a joint venture of the
Group, was established in April 2019, and 49% of its
equity interest was held by the Group.

During the period, the Group entered into an
agreement with a partner in relation to the joint
development project of the property on the land at
No. 2-2, Wuging through Tianjin Ruihe Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (RERWmMEZEMR 2 a]) (“Tianjin Ruihe”), as
the platform. Tianjin Ruihe was the vehicle for project
development. 50% equity interest of Tianjin Ruihe
was held by the Group and the partner respectively.

Entrusted Deposits and Overdue Time
Deposits

As of 30 June 2019, the Group did not have any
entrusted deposits in financial institutions in the PRC.
Most of the Group’s cash was held in commercial
banks in the PRC in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. The Group has no bank deposits
which are not recoverable upon maturity.
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Borrowings

As at 30 June 2019, bank borrowings of
RMB38,088,942,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB27,437,949,000) were from credit
facilities obtained by the Group, of which,
RMB34,510,890,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB25,022,967,000) were secured by guarantees
provided by the Group for its subsidiaries;
and RMB3,578,052,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB2,414,982,000) were general credit facilities
obtained by the Group.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’'s guaranteed
bank borrowings amounted to RMB6,387,000,000
(31 December 2018: RMB6,393,000,000), of
which, RMB1,887,000,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,893,000,000) were secured by the guarantees
provided by the Company and the third parties for the
subsidiaries; and RMB4,500,000,000 (31 December
2018: RMB4,500,000,000) were guaranteed by
Beijing Capital Group Co., Ltd. ("Capital Group”), the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s mortgaged bank
borrowings amounted to RMB10,452,762,000
(31 December 2018: RMBS&,843,807,000). Of
them, RMB3,062,108,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB3,763,000,000) were secured by certain relevant
properties under development; RMB2,196,007,000
(31 December 2018: RMB2,274,007,000) were
secured by investment properties and land use
rights; RMB3,201,647,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,116,800,000) were secured by guarantees
provided by the Group for its subsidiaries and by
certain relevant properties under development of the
subsidiaries; RMB1,908,000,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,600,000,000) were secured by guarantees
provided by the Group for its subsidiaries and by
investment properties and land use rights of the
subsidiaries; RMB85,000,000 (31 December 2018:
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RMB90,000,000) were secured by inter-company
guarantees between subsidiaries of the Group and by
investment properties and land use rights of relevant
subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’'s guaranteed
and mortgaged bank borrowings amounted
to RMB248,000,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB248,000,000), of which RMB248,000,000 (31
December 2018: RMB248,000,000) were secured by
guarantees provided by Capital Group for the Group
and by relevant properties under development of the
Group.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group's pledged bank
borrowings amounted to RMB2,480,000,000
(31 December 2018: RMB2,766,470,000). Of
them, RMB1,350,000,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,350,000,000) were secured by the entitlement
to the receivables to be generated from the
sales of properties under development of the
Group; RMB1,130,000,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,130,000,000) were secured by the trade
receivables of subsidiaries of the Group; Nil (31
December 2018: RMB286,470,000) were secured by
guarantees provided by the Group for its subsidiaries
and by the trade receivables of subsidiaries of the
Group.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s mortgaged
and pledged bank borrowings amounted
to RMB1,073,000,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,073,000,000), which were secured by
guarantees provided by the Group for its subsidiaries,
investment properties and land use rights of the
subsidiaries of the Group and the entitlement to trade
receivables of the Group.

Corporate Bonds

In May 2015, the Group issued 5-year RMB listed
bonds in a principal amount of RMB3,000,000,000
with an interest rate of 4.58% per annum.
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In April 2016, the Group issued 3-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB700,000,000 with
a prevailing interest rate of 6.1% per annum. The
issuer shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate and
the investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds
at the end of the second year. The bonds had been
fully settled in April 2019.

In April 2016, the Group issued 5-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB2,300,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 4.5% per annum.
The current balance is RMB640,000,000. The issuer
shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds at
the end of the third year.

In June 2016, the Group issued 3-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB2,300,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 5.7% per annum.
The issuer shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate
and the investors shall be entitled to sell back the
bonds at the end of the second year. The bonds had
been fully settled in June 2019.

In June 2016, the Group issued 5-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB1,700,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 4.4% per annum.
The current balance is RMB750,000,000. The issuer
shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the
investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds at
the end of the third year.

In July 2016, the Group issued 3-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB2,000,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 5.9% per annum.
The issuer shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate
and the investors shall be entitled to sell back the
bonds at the end of the second year. The current
balance is RMB1,510,000,000.

In July 2016, the Group issued 5-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 3.84% per annum.
The issuer shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate
and the investors shall be entitled to sell back the
bonds at the end of the third year.
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In September 2017, the Group non-publicly issued
3-year RMB corporate bonds in a principal amount
of RMB500,000,000 with a prevailing rate of 5% per
annum. The current balance is RMB400,000,000.

In November 2017, the Group non-publicly issued
RMB corporate bonds in a principal amount of
RMB500,000,000 with a maturity in September 2020
and an interest rate of 5.7% per annum. The current
balance is RMB400,000,000.

In January 2018, the Group non-publicly issued
RMB corporate bonds in a principal amount of
RMB1,000,000,000 with a maturity in September
2020 and an interest rate of 5.7% per annum. The
current balance is RMB800,000,000.

In April 2018, the Group issued 5-year RMB
denominated private bonds in a principal amount of
RMB2,000,000,000 with a prevailing interest rate of
5.84% per annum. The issuer shall be entitled to an
option to adjust the coupon rate and the investors
shall be entitled to an option to sell back the bonds
at the end of the third year.

In April 2018, the Group issued 3-year RMB
denominated private bonds in a principal amount of
RMB1,000,000,000 with a prevailing interest rate of
5.7% per annum. The issuer shall be entitled to an
option to adjust the coupon rate and the investors
shall be entitled to an option to sell back the bonds
at the end of the second year.

In July 2018, the Group issued 3-year RMB
denominated private bonds in a principal amount of
RMB1,500,000,000 with a prevailing interest rate of
5.8% per annum. The issuer shall be entitled to an
option to adjust the coupon rate and the investors
shall be entitled to an option to sell back the bonds
at the end of the second year.

In July 2018, the Group issued 5-year RMB
denominated private bonds in a principal amount of
RMB500,000,000 with a prevailing interest rate of
5.94% per annum. The issuer shall be entitled to an
option to adjust the coupon rate and the investors
shall be entitled to an option to sell back the bonds
at the end of the third year.
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In September 2018, the Group issued 5-year RMB
denominated listed corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB2,500,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.89% per annum. The issuer shall
be entitled to an option to adjust the coupon rate
and the investors shall be entitled to an option to sell
back the bonds at the end of the third year.

In September 2018, the Group non-publicly issued
3-year RMB denominated corporate bonds in a
principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000 with a
prevailing interest rate of 6% per annum.

In December 2018, the Group issued 3-year RMB
denominated listed corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB1,500,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.16% per annum.

In December 2018, the Group issued 5-year RMB
denominated listed corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB1,000,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.50% per annum.

In January 2019, the Group issued 3-year RMB private
bonds in a principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000
with an interest rate of 6.00% per annum.

In April 2019, the Group non-publicly issued 3-year
RMB denominated corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB1,500,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.30% per annum. The issuer shall
be entitled to an option to adjust the coupon rate
and the investors shall be entitled to an option to sell
back the bonds at the end of the second year.

In April 2019, the Group non-publicly issued 5-year
RMB denominated corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB1,000,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.58% per annum. The issuer shall
be entitled to an option to adjust the coupon rate
and the investors shall be entitled to an option to sell
back the bonds at the end of the third year.

In May 2019, the Group non-publicly issued 5-year
RMB denominated corporate bonds in a principal
amount of RMB3,460,000,000 with a prevailing
interest rate of 4.37% per annum. The issuer shall be
entitled to an option to adjust the coupon rate and
the investors shall be entitled to an option to sell back
the bonds at the end of the third year.
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6.

Notes

In February 2014, Central Plaza Development Ltd.
(“Central Plaza”) established a Guaranteed Medium
Term Notes and Perpetual Securities Scheme (the
“Scheme”), pursuant to which International Financial
Center Property Ltd. (“IFC") or, as the case may be,
the Company would provide guarantees for securities
to be issued thereunder. Under the Scheme, Central
Plaza may offer and issue securities in a principal
amount up to USD1,000,000,000.

In February 2014, Central Plaza made a drawdown
under the Scheme to offer and issue 5-year notes in
a total principal amount of RMB250,000,000 at an
interest rate of 6.875% per annum. In February 2019,
the notes have been repaid.

In January 2017, Central Plaza renewed the Scheme,
pursuant to which IFC or, as the case may be, the
Company would provide guarantees for securities to
be issued thereunder. Under the renewed Scheme,
Central Plaza may offer and issue securities in a
principal amount of up to USD1,000,000,000.

In January 2017, Central Plaza made a drawdown
under the renewed Scheme to offer and issue 3-year
notes in a total principal amount of USD400,000,000
at an interest rate of 3.875% per annum.

In July 2017, Central Plaza made a drawdown under
the renewed Scheme to offer and issue 3-year notes
in a total principle amount of USD100,000,000 at an
interest rate of 3.7% per annum.

In January 2018, Central Plaza renewed the Scheme,
pursuant to which IFC or, as the case may be, the
Company would provide guarantees for securities to
be issued thereunder. Under the renewed Scheme,
Central Plaza may offer and issue securities in a
principal amount of up to USD2,000,000,000.

In January 2018, Central Plaza made a drawdown
under the renewed Scheme to offer and issue 3-year
notes in a total principal amount of USD500,000,000
at an interest rate of 3.875% per annum.

In August 2018, Trade Horizon issued 3-year notes
in a total principal amount of USD400,000,000 at a
prevailing interest rate of 5.15% per annum.
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7.

Equity Instrument

In November 2014, Central Plaza issued
UsD450,000,000 perpetual securities under the
Medium Term Notes and Perpetual Securities Scheme
at a distribution rate of 7.125%. Such securities were
guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Group
including IFC. Such securities have no maturity date
and are redeemable at the option of Central Plaza
as the issuer. Central Plaza as the issuer may elect
to defer distribution with no times limit only if
Central Plaza or the Company does not declare or
pay a dividend. The securities are classified as equity
instrument.

In July 2016, the Group raised a total amount
of RMB3,000,000,000 through Xinghan Assets.
According to the terms of the Investment Agreement,
the amount of other equity instruments recognized
amounted to RMB2,895,291,000 after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable future.
In March 2019, the Group issued a prepayment
announcement in accordance with the Investment
Agreement to redeem 50% of principal of the Assets
Management Plan in July 2019. Since the Group
had the inevitable payment obligation pursuant,
such amount did not meet the definition of equity
instrument any longer and was reclassified as current
portion of long-term borrowings after issue of
prepayment announcement, and a decrease in capital
reserve amounted to RMB52,355,000 was recognized
accordingly. As at 30 June 2019, the remaining
other equity instruments to RMB1,447,647,000 was
recognized after deducting the amounts classified as
current portion of long-term borrowings.

In September 2017, the Group through Huaxin
International Trustee raised a total amount of
RMB2,000,000,000. According to the terms of
Investment Agreement, the amount of other
equity instruments recognized amounted to
RMB1,970,027,000 after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

S DEEL

EmTH

MZZE -+ —H - Central Plaza
BIEPPHEE R KEESTE - BT
450,000,000k EEH * DIkEA
7125% - ZBHFBAAEESE T FRA
REER EFRBIEIFC Z&H T E
R HE B B # 77 ACentral Plazam] & 12 &
[ 3% & % : 317 ACentral Plazar] %2
EEDAM - ELE R ENZ RS - 18
gnCentral Plazagi KRR E & 3 2+ I
Ao BTEEREEDA - ZBESH D EA
=R -

R-FB—RNFLA AEEREHBE
= 5 % AR%3,000,000,0007T * 18 #&
CREW ) BB - HBRAI B R K
PR DALR  EREMERT
H A K #2,895,291,0007T - R =& —
NF=ZR  AREKREREHZ) F b
(RAMEEBANE) BREAR_FT—
NFLAEEZEEEMN50% AR
AEEBHNZRBCHBE LA # R
N&EL EIMBTERaTANTER
RUtZEESRBANEZLARED
BE-—FRIHORBERZE - X8
FE R > BEARATE A K#52,355,0007T ©
RZE-NFRA=+HB IKREHE
E-FRIHNRBERE - RerHAM
#am T A/ ARME447,647,0007T °

RIZE—EtFNA AEBEBBEEEHR
Bt 5% AKR%2,000,000,0007T -
RBREHZ) NIRRT HIKAER
AR RN D& - BREMER
T A AEK#1,970,027,0007T °

BEIEERMBERLAR ZE—NFHRBERE

33



34

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
IR B wm MDA

In December 2017, the Group through Sino-
Australian International Trust raised a total amount
of RMB1,100,000,000. According to the terms
of Investment Agreement, the amount of other
equity instruments recognized amounted to
RMB1,024,650,000 after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In March 2018, the Group issued a debt financing
plan of RMB600,000,000. According to the terms of
the Prospectus, other equity instruments recognized
amounted to RMB553,800,000 after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In April 2018, the Group issued a debt financing
plan of RMB200,000,000. According to the terms of
the Prospectus, other equity instruments recognized
amounted to RMB184,600,000 after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In June 2018, the Group issued perpetual
medium-term notes of RMB2,000,000,000. Other
equity instruments recognized amounted to
RMB1,988,000,000 after deducting issue expenses.

In August 2018, the Group issued perpetual
medium-term notes of RMB2,000,000,000. Other
equity instruments recognized amounted to
RMB1,991,000,000 after deducting issue expenses.

In August 2018, the Group issued debt financing
plan of RMB1,800,000,000. Other equity instruments
recognized amounted to RMB1,735,200,000 after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

In September 2018, the Group issued perpetual
debt instruments of RMB870,000,000 through
Sino-Australian International Trust. Other
equity instruments recognized amounted to
RMB796,050,000 after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In September 2018, the Group issued a debt financing
plan of RMB350,000,000. Other equity instruments
recognized amounted to RMB337,400,000 after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.
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In April 2019, the Group through Avic Trust issued
perpetual bonds amounting to RMB1,800,000,000
and the amount of other equity instruments
recognized amounted to RMB1,685,347,000 after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

In April 2019, the Group issued a debt financing plan
amounting to RMB2,000,000,000 and the amount
of other equity instruments recognized amounted
to RMB1,862,842,000 after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In April 2019, the Group issued perpetual medium-
term notes amounting to RMB1,000,000,000 and
the amount of other equity instruments recognized
amounted to RMB995,500,000 after deducting the
relevant fees.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had arranged bank facilities for certain
purchasers of its properties and provided guarantees
to secure the repayment obligations of such
purchasers. The outstanding balances of guarantees
amounted to RMB5,535,115,000 at 30 June 2019
(31 December 2018: RMB7,284,277,000). Such
guarantees will be terminated upon: (i) the issuance
of the real estate interestship certificate which will
generally be available within six months to two
years after the Group transfers the ownership of the
relevant property to its purchasers; (ii) the completion
of the mortgage registration; and (iii) the issuance of
the real estate other right certificate relating to the
relevant property.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group provided a guarantee
amounted to RMB590,000,000 for a long term
borrowing of a joint venture.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group provided an
irrevocable and joint and several guarantee expiring
in May 2020 in respect of a long-term borrowing of
RMB750,000,000 borrowed by a subsidiary of a joint
venture from AVIC Trust Co., Ltd. in March 2018.

Save for the above, the Group had no other material
external guarantee.
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SHARE CAPITAL RN

As of 30 June 2019, there was a total issued share capital ARAR-_ZT—NAFNA=ZTHHNBEETR
of 3,027,960,000 shares of the Company (the “Shares”)  7Z/&3,027,960,0008% &5 + E R & 4E :
which include:

Approximate
Number of percentages of

Shares share capital

KM A RABANB D

Domestic Shares N & & 1,649,205,700 54.47%
Non-H Foreign Shares FEHAR SN E AR 357,998,300 11.82%
H Shares H&x 1,020,756,000 33.71%
3,027,960,000 100%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS IN

SHARES

So far as is known to any director of the Company, as of 30
June 2019, the following parties (other than the directors
or senior management of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company

LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
RERABRMEZRER

T2RRFRIBNR

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

the SFO:

Approximate percentages
in relevant class of shares (%)
EERERRGZENES (%)

ARBR-ZF-NFERNA=1TH " BHEMFE
ERM - TIAL(EFARBAZEZTESR
BIEAB)RARRRDMBEEROPHEE R
BEESLBEGOIXVEE2R3IBHHE
RRRZEHIKR

Approximate percentages
in total issued share capital (%)

EEBEANROZBOBD (%)

Number
of Shares
directly and Direct Indirect  Aggregate Direct Indirect ~ Aggregate
Name of shareholders indirectly held Class of Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
EEREERE
RRAR ZRBEE RHEF ERER BMEER BHAY ERER BEES ERAY
Capital Group 1,649,205,700  Non-listed Shares 82.17 - 82.17 54.47 - 54.47
EEES (Note 1) FEmHH (long position) (long position)
(&) (#2) (2)
Beijing Rongtong 357,998,300  Non-listed Shares - 17.83 17.83 - 11.82 11.82
Zhenghe Investment (Notes 1 and 2)  3EL (D (long position) (long position)
Management Co., Ltd. (ME1R2) (##2) (§F8)
FPRBRENREERERAT
Guoda Limited 357,998,300  Non-listed Shares - 17.83 17.83 - 11.82 11.82
(Note 3)  3kLmkM (long position) (long position)
(M33) (#8) (F8)
(#8)
China Resource Products 357,998,300  Non-listed Shares 13.71 4.12 17.83 9.09 2.73 11.82
Limited (Note 4) kLMK (long position)  (long position) (long position) ~ (long position)
HENEERAR (Wisxd) (#2) (#2) (#2) (#2)
Yieldwell International 82,762,100  Non-listed Shares 412 - 412 2.73 - 2.73
Enterprise Limited El ¥ (long position) (long position)
EEERCEERAT (#2) (#8)
Reco Pearl Private Limited 121,814,000  H Shares 1193 - 1193 4.02 - 4.02
HI (long position) (long position)
(#2) (#2)
Recosia China Pte Ltd. 121,814,000  H Shares - 11.93 11.93 - 4.02 4.02
(Note 5)  HR& (long position) (long position)
(M35) (#8) (##8)
Recosia Pte Ltd. 121,814,000  H Shares - 11.93 1193 - 4.02 4.02
(Note 6)  HR (long position) (long position)
GED) (#2) (#2)
Government of Singapore 121,814,000  H Shares - 11.93 1193 - 4.02 4.02
Investment Corporation (Note 7)  HP& (long position) (long position)
(Realty) Pte Ltd. (W37) (#2) (#2)

ERIBEXROBERAR —T-NFhHRSE
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Notes:

1. 1,649,205,700 Shares are directly held by Capital Group. As at 30
June 2019, China Resource Products Limited is held as to 31.53% by
Beijing Sunshine Real Estate Comprehensive Development Company
(L =BG K B E 4R A B % 2 F]), which in turn is wholly-owned by
Capital Group. Accordingly, Capital Group is not deemed to be
interested in 275,236,200 Shares held through China Resource
Products Limited and 82,762,100 Shares held through China
Resource Products Limited and Yieldwell International Enterprise
Limited pursuant to the SFO.

2. 275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to
the SFO indirectly held through Guoda Limited and China Resource
Products Limited. 82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests
pursuant to the SFO indirectly held through Guoda Limited, China
Resources Products Limited and Yieldwell International Enterprise
Limited.

3. 275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to
the SFO indirectly held through China Resource Products Limited.
82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the
SFO indirectly held through China Resources Products Limited and
Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited.

4. 82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to
the SFO indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise
Limited.

5. 121,814,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the
SFO indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited.

6. 121,814,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the
SFO indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited and Recosia
China Pte Ltd.

7. 121,814,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the
SFO indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited, Recosia China
Pte Ltd. and Recosia Pte Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors,
as of 30 June 2019, none of the parties (other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company) had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

As at 30 June 2019, none of the directors, supervisors
and senior management of the Company had any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. None
of the directors, supervisors and senior management of the
Company or their spouses or children under 18 years of
age had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities
of the Company or had exercised any such rights during
the period.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial report
matters, including the review of the unaudited interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2019.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Company
had not redeemed any of its shares. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities during the period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 June 2019,
the Company has complied with all the code provisions
of the “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” as set out in Appendix 14 to the
“Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited” (the “Listing Rules”).

OTHER INFORMATION

ESMEFHER

RZFE-NFARA=TH  XRFEF EF
REBITHRABBELERNRR R E BB EE
(EERBHLBEGRMIEXVE) D - 48
Mk EEREY BETARBESLS
BERPIE3I521F R E AT 1o B M AT ac
BARE LT AR EFETESFIINEE
STRABEAMARA KB LIANERIORE - 1
HA ARAEF EERERITHRAEX
BMEZERBHISEATFRHMEFEAIRE
ARRBALBEHE S ZEN - RETFELT
B AEAA] % R HE R

BERZEGCHMAETEERNASEMRK
SRR RES - AHFEF AMEER
MEHRRESFEEERENEE-_FT-NLEA
A=TBLEREANKREEZFTRHRE)ET
BER o
BE LEHBEALQR LHE S
ARARRBEZT-NAFNA=THILENRX
BAREBEEMARA Z KN - ARFR
HEMER Tﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
RRFZ EHEH

Al A N
TEER

E-_Z-NF-A-BEZZT-NFRA=
THIENEEAR  ARAFRE2HET(E BB
ERXGMABRAAEZ EMRAIDICLET R
ADD M ER1ACEEERTRDR(EEE AR
YA FTA ST AR

BEIEERMBERLAR ZE—NFHRBERE

39



40

OTHER INFORMATION
H &

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code which is on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the
“Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the company
code throughout the period.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
A PF K w B E R AR

AS AT 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
“E-NAFAA=ZTE(RERGEHEN  2EECRARETT)

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE ZZ-\§ ZEBE-hf ZE-N\%
AB=tH tZA=t-H AA=tTH tZA=1-H
Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
& At | N
Notes Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
Assets £E M REET EE REET EE)
Current assets RBEE
Cash at bank and on hand EHEe 4(1) 37,387,248 22,526,602 19,731,209 8,580,020
Trading financial assets RHMEHEE 4(2) 3,444,820 3,024,250 269,495 73,845
Trade receivables R 4(3) 4,712,341 3,610,558 159 159
Advances to suppliers BANE 4(4) 413,761 872,313 3,828 3,596
Other receivables LR EN 4(5)15(1) 26,640,280 20,245,009 77,311,193 67,358,127
Inventories FE 4(6) 79,309,628 75,403,717 33,544 33,544
Contract assets AREE 47) 5,366,384 4,436,823 = -
Assets classified as held-for-sale BEGEEE = 73,244 = -
Current portion of non-current —ERIHNERBEE
assets 49) 311,975 4,397,880 = -
Other current assets EiBEE 4(8) 3,240,180 2,921,289 - 1,560
Total current assets RBEESH 160,826,617  137511,685 97,349,428 76,050,851
Non-current assets FRBEE
Derivative financial assets TEeREE 4(28) 253,787 262,202 - -
Long-term equity investments RERERE 4(11)15() 5,843,330 5,108,373 9,136,607 6,942,155
Other equity instrument AtEZIARE
investments 4(12) 288,283 288,283 50,000 50,000
Other non-current financial assets ~ EMFRBLREE 4(10) 3,686,097 3,226,200 80,000 80,000
Investment properties REUFEHE 413) 21,862,908 20,570,240 = -
Fixed assets BTEE 4(14) 301,815 314,770 52,119 51,853
Right-of-use assets FRELE 47,438 - - -
Intangible assets BWAE 17,660 - = -
Long-term prepaid expenses REGEER 278,529 244117 = -
Deferred income tax assets BREFMEHEER 4(15) 1,934,411 1,534,029 1,571,157 1,297,316
Other non-current assets At EngEE 9,921 656,924 - -
Total non-current assets FRBEES 34,524,179 32,205,138 10,889,883 8,421,324
Total assets EEAG 195,350,796 169,716,823 108,239,311 84,472,175

HEIEERHBRAR ZE—NFHPHRE
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
EHERRIEERARR

AS AT 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
“E-NAFAA=ZTE(BRERGEHEN  2EECRARETT)

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-hE —E-)\F ZE-RE —E-N\E
~NA=tH T-A=1-H ~A=tH +-A=1+-H

Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
At aft | N
Notes Unaudited Audited  Unaudited Audited
Liabilities and equity BERRRESR it st KEE EE KEEH BEG
Current liabilities REAE
Short-term borrowings REER 4(17) 2,433,128 2,748,664 1,473,415 1,750,000
Trading financial liabilities RHEEBER 4(18) 7,959 15,849 - -
Notes payables [ ARES 101,256 32,706 - -
Trade payables EHER 4(19) 7,356,474 9,442,087 18,620 10,814
Contract liabilities ARBE 4(20) 17,207,581 17,102,209 807 807
Employee benefits payables ERBTEMH 421) 111,204 218,546 68,270 126,793
Taxes payable ERHE 4(22) 3,647,066 3,140,045 31,497 22,096
Other payables AR 4(23)15(3) 19,657,065 10,406,177 48,364,896 29,728,404
Current portion of non-current —ERIHNERD
liabilities BE 4(24) 22,674,032 20,670,930 11,884,897 14,544,427
Total current liabilities REBBEAT 73,195,765 63777213 61,842,402 46,183,341
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Long-term borrowings REER 4(25) 50,164,622 38,212,972 3,310,000 1,532,000
Debentures payable ERES 4(26) 27,099,827 25,310,202 20,268,877 15,739,993
Lease liabilities HEEE 15,900 - = -
Long-term payables RHENT 4(27) 25,976 1,607,001 - -
Provisions Ei AR 4123 4123 - -
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFMEHAE 4(15) 2,674,969 2,571,759 - -
Derivative financial liabilities TEcBaRE 4(28) 55,099 32,871 - -
Total non-current liabilities ¥RBEEAT 80,040,516 67738928 23,578,877 17,271,993
Total liabilities BEARH 153,236,281 131,516,141 85,421,279 63,455,334
Equity hEER
Share capital KA 4(29) 3,027,960 3,027,960 3,027,960 3,027,960
Other equity instruments EfEsIA 15(4) 16,572,063 13,476,018 16,572,063 13,476,018
Including: Perpetual bonds EhkER 15(4) 16,572,063 13,476,018 16,572,063 13,476,018
Capital reserve EARTE 4(30) 417,575 469,930 3,006,965 3,059,320
Other comprehensive income e s 4(31) 317,142 438,746 = -
Surplus reserve BHBAE 4(32) 665,381 665,381 665,381 665,381
Retained earnings RABHE 4(33) 11,274,296 11,037,357 (454,337) 788,162
Total equity attributable to owners ZBRELAFERES
of the Company At 32,274,417 29,115,392 22,818,032 21,016,841
Non-controlling interests YERERR 9,840,098 9,085,290 = -
Total equity RRESR At 42,114,515 38,200,682 22,818,032 21,016,841
Total liabilities and equity BERRRER AN 195,350,796 169,716,823 108,239,311 84,472,175

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these M BEHmEMFAMBHRERNEKILS °
financial statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
TEEAEAN: FEEHIENEE A SARBAEE A
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
A OF B s w R A&

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BE-2-1fF HE-T-)\§ HE-Z-hE HEZT-N\%
AB=THE  AAZTALE AAZTHE  AAZTHLE
~EASE ~NERHRE AEAEH ~NEAHE

Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
& At A7 N
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
FEEH REHE FEEH REEE
Notes (Restated) (Restated)
Items BH i (&) (i)
Revenue 10N 4(34):15(5) 10,476,385 7,116,813 37,265 13,629
Less: Cost of sales W EENA 4(34).15(5) (6,317,344) (4,626,327) - -
Taxes and surcharges BaREm 4(35) (1,032,729) (518,485) (1,191) 1,199
Selling and distribution expenses HEEBA 4(36) (275,723) (236,939) - -
General and administrative ERER
expenses 4(36) (538,477) (477.916) (101,006) (107,487)
Financial expenses HEER 4(37); 15(6) (1,476,779) (1,262,296) (982,893) (870,883)
Including: Interest expenses HEH:FIBER (1,527,923) (1,090,593) (1,002,267) (901,541)
Interest income FIBBA 155,692 136,378 91,561 70,376
Credit impairment losses ERERERX = (58,019) - -
Add: Other income m: E s 4(38) 62,640 43,587 = 5,438
Investment income "EWE 4(39):15(7) 1,071,740 1,249,111 452,519 174,945
Including: Share of profit of Hep: HBECEN
associates and REREN
joint ventures BB E 107,651 166,517 15,162 22,348
Gains on net exposure hedges FHOEBY 5 4(40) 5,887 6,819 = -
Gains arising from changes in MRBEEDNE
fair value 4(41) 199,985 302,570 25,928 9,743
Gains/(Losses) on disposal of EEREBNE/
non-current assets (B%) 4(42) 3,090 6) 167 -
Operating profit/(loss) EERNE/(FR) 2,178,675 1,538,912 (569,211) (773,416)
Add: Non-operating income m:EEMEA 4(43) 7,603 2,685 3,313 4
Less: Non-operating expenses B EENT 4(44) (8,355) (3,812) - -
Profit/(Loss) before income tax B/ (BB aE 2,177,923 1,537,785 (565,898) (773,412)
Less: Income tax expenses BMGEHER 4(45) (418,840) (469,526) 273,841 230,377
Profit/(Loss) for the period FAE/ (58) 1,759,083 1,068,259 (292,057) (543,035)
Classified by operating continuity REERELDIE
Profits/(Losses) from continuing SEigE
operations FHE/(BB) 1,759,083 1,068,259 (292,057) (543,035)
Profits from discontinued operations RIEREFTA - - - -
Classify by attributions of the RFERGEAE
ownership
Attributable to owners of the Company FERELARRMNF
G 1,187,493 736,528 N/ATE A N/AZ 8 B
Attributable to non-controlling interests LPEREER 571,590 331,731 N/AREA NATER
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS

RS ONCIEIDEES

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE_ZT-NAFAAZTEEANEABRERENZHIN eBRELRARE T
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BE-E-NE HE-T-\F BE-Z-AE BE-Z2-)\%
AA=ZTAHLE ~NAZTAL AA=THL ~A=TEL
~EASE A~ E A E AEAEH ~NEAHE
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
=X =X | Nl
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
KEEG REE G KEF REE G
Notes (Restated) (Restated)
Items B i (gEa) (gsin)
Other comprehensive (losses)/income for Ht%&4 (FE)/KHH
the period, net of tax RERE 4(31) (121,604) 33,795 - (9,407)
Attributable to owners of the Company BERSRAREOEL
FE(BR) Mzl
REFE (121,604) 33,795 = (9,407)
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or BESFERRNEM
loss thereafter G4 (BR) /W (121,604) 33,795 = (9,407)
Share of other comprehensive income EaiTOEERY
in the investees can be reclassified EtiaEE
into profit or loss at equity method = (31,984) = (9,407)
Recycling of changes in fair value of FEAEMGA
investment properties previously BRRAtFhE
recognized in other comprehensive AEEED
income EHEL (29,618) (10,154) - -
Effective portion of cash flow hedges BeneEnkE (77,975) 58,498 - -
Currency translation differences NEHBRRFE
B8 (14,011) 17,435 = -
Attributable to non-controlling interests BERIBRROEM
GmalEmRETE - - B -
Total comprehensive income for the RERBEAE
period 1,637,479 1,102,054 (292,057) (552,442)
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company FEREARAREN
GANRER 1,065,889 770,323 N/ATER N/ATE B
Non-controlling interests GERIHEREY
GEWHER 571,590 331,731 N/ATER N/AZ 8 B
Earnings per share for profit attributable &KW &
to ordinary shareholders
of the Company 4(46)
Basic earnings per share (RMB Yuan) Erxghia(ARET) 0.30 0.19 N/ARE A N/AT & B
Diluted earnings per share (RMB Yuan) HEGRYE(ARET) 0.30 019 N/AT & N/AZ 8 A

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

Legal representative:
TrEBEEAN:
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
a PR E Bl iR R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BZ-2-hE HE-Z-\f BE-Z-Nf HEZZT-)\fF
AA=THLE  ~AZTHLE  RA=THAE  AA=tALE
~ME B N A ~EREME 7~ E A B

Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
& Al A7 A
Notes Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Items ER i3 REET REEH AEET REBH
Cash flow from operating activities SEFHELHRLHE
Cash received from sales of goods and ~ HEHH - RESHY
rendering of services EEokika 14,450,388 8,168,878 32,855 5,224
Cash received relating to other operating ~ WEIE L EL2ES
activities CE Lk 4(47)(a) 293,649 198,500 21,646,460 11,030,128
Sub-total of cash inflows BETHREFANG 14,744,037 8,367,378 21,679,315 11,035,352
Cash paid for goods and services BEEm ZX%%
G (9,414,827) (6,934,626) = (4,593)
Cash paid to and on behalf on IHEBINR
employees ERIZNMES (635,367) (599,531) (133,814) (94,774)
Payments of taxes and surcharges INMEERE (1,596,092) (2,430,174) (9,941) (43,188)
Cash paid relating to other operating XRAMELLED
activities BENRE 4(47)(b) (974,758) (651,216) (15,074,028) (14,478,588)
Sub-total of cash outflows RETHREST L et (12,621,044)  (10,615547)  (15,217,783) (14,621,143)
Net cash flow generated from/(used in) E&ZEHEL/(KR)H
operating activities RERERE 4(48) 2,122,993 (2,248,169) 6,461,532 (3,585,791)
Cash flow from investing activities  REZFHELHHLKE
Cash received from disposal of REREAWIMES
investments = 662,139 = -
Cash received from refund of W EREHNES
investments 2,439,175 1,523,200 2,439,175 1,500,000
Cash received from returns of RERE i3
investments income Be = - = 23,200
Net cash received from disposal of BETARAREMLE
subsidiaries BIENASEE 912,264 - 837,423 -
Net cash received from disposal of fixed EEETEEMELM
assets, and other long-term assets RHEENRNRE
T8 11,543 2,054 167 -
Cash received relating to other investing ~ WEIEREREEHE
activities bk 4(47)(c) 5,913,754 2,193,559 1,431,847 436,714
Sub-total of cash inflows REFBRES R AN 9,276,736 4,380,952 4,708,612 1,959,914
Cash paid to purchase fixed assets and ~ BRETEEMLMR
other long-term assets HEEINMNES (875,653) (1,296,522) (1,514) (641)
Cash paid to acquire investments REZNES (2,868,900) (2,613,476) (2,600,000) (2,630,000)
Net cash paid for acquisition of BEFRAAREMESR
subsidiaries and other companies BUTHNALFE (1,381,229) (2,153,454) - -
Cash paid relating to other investing XHEMEREEDE
activities BRRe 4(47)(d) (9,968,045) (7,592,361) (1,529,141) (1,285,408)
Sub-total of cash outflows BREZBRS R NG (15,093,827) (13,655,813) (4,130,655) (3,916,049)
Net cash flow (used in)/generated from R&Z& (L) ELH
investing activities BEREFE (5,817,091) (9,274,861) 577,957 (1,956,135)
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
BHERRIBREREX

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BZ-Z-NF HZE-ZT-\§f HZE-Z-hf HEZZT-)\%
AAZtTHE  A~AZ=tHLE  RA=tHE  SAZ=tAEL
~EREH N ERE ANMEAHHE NEASRE

Consolidated ~ Consolidated Company Company
& af A7 N
Notes Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Items %R i KEEH REEH REEG AEE:
Cash flow from financing activites = EEEHELHRETE
Cash received from capital contributions ~ RURZEMEI MR & 295,050 553,433 = -
Including: Cash received from capital Ef:FRARKDH
contribution of the hE U]
non-controlling interests mE e 295,050 553,433 = -
Proceeds from other equity instruments —~ AFIETHMERTA
issued by the Company DE RS 4,778,342 4,283,500 4,778,432 -
Cash received from borrowings REETKINRSE 15,131,267 13,225,972 = 10,391,500
Proceeds from bonds issued BNESMENRE 7,421,140 7,115,742 7,421,140 -
Cash received relating to other financing ~ WEIEpEEEED
activities CL BEES 4(47)e) 6,297,780 1,625,610 = 1,267,420
Sub-total of cash inflows EETBRERMANG 33,923,579 26,804,257 12,199,482 11,658,920
Cash repayments of borrowings BEEHXNNRS (11,215,853) (5499332 (6,130,000) (3,492,091)
Cash payments for interests expenses AEBRA - FEREN
and distribution of dividends or profit MExAmnRe (3,641,725) (2,378,281) (1,809,654) (490,839)
Cash paid for repayments of specific FRABEEEHER
assets management plan issued by e
subsidiaries = (2,618,193) = -
Cash paid relating to other financing XREMEEEEDA
activities BaEs 4(47)(9) (247,404) (2,061,770) (137,733) -
Sub-total of cash outflows EETHRE KM (15,104,982) (12,557,576) (8,077,387) (3,982,930
Net cash flow generated from EETHELNRERE
financing activities FE 18,818,597 14,246,681 4,122,095 7,675,990
Effect of foreign exchange rate EX2HURERRS
changes SENNTE
on cash (25,481) (255,589) (10,395) (9,992)
Net increase in cash RERFEEEY
REME 4(48) 15,099,018 2,468,062 11,151,189 2,124,072
Add: Cash at beginning of period m:-BN5eRkReE
EnHE 21,748,206 18,049,837 8,580,020 6,366,030
Cash at end of period HABERELEEN
®E 4(48) 36,847,224 20,517,899 19,731,209 8,490,102

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these M BIEBERM T AMBEBREOERLD °
financial statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
TEBEAN: TEGFIENEREA: SATRBREE A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
B DF Ji ROBE 2 5 B A%

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BHET-AFANA=+THIENEABME (K ERIFEES -

Unaudited

ABELT

CHREMR/RARE T

Attributable to owners of the Company

BENGRARRESR

Other equity
instruments Other Non-
Share perpetual Capital ~ comprehensive Surplus ~ Retained  controlling Total
capital bond reserve income reserve  eamings interests equity
Notes AERTA APE  JERR  RRER
Items Ef i3 e XEE EARE  HtthekE ARLE Lk R ait
Balance at 1 January 2018 ZE-\E-F-ABOHE 3,027,960 5,889,968 653,652 412,161 570,905 10,392,692 11,000,218 31,947,556
Movements for the six months ended HE-Z-N\ERA=1H
30 June 2018 LRERBEEHSEE - 4142925 (176,056 33795 - (65,637)  (1,887,267) 2,047,760
Comprehensive income for the period Fakagg
Profit for the period FHE - - - - - 736,528 331,731 1,008,259
Other comprehensive income 2GR 431) - - - 33,795 - - - 33795
Total comprehensive income GAKREBA - - - 33,795 - 736528 331731 1,102,054
Capital contribution and withdrawal by owners — REZAFF A AR
Capital contribution by owners of ERERIARER
other equity instruments RAER - 4195 - - - - - 4142925
Equity transaction with HOBRRRS
non-controlling interests - - (176,05) - - - (2218998)  (2,395,054)
Profit distribution HMEAR
Profit distribution to owners HRENAIE 433) - - - - - (635872 - (635872
Profit distribution to owners of BHEERIA
other equity instruments BEANSE 433) - - - - - (166,293) - (166,293
Balance at 30 June 2018 ZE-NERACTREREE 3027960 10,032,893 477,5% 445,956 570,905 10,327,055 9,112,951 33,995,316

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AGIRREREDE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

Unaudited
AEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
BERELARRER
Other equity
instruments Other Non-
Share  perpetual  Capital comprehensive  Surplus  Retained controlling Total
capital bond  reserve income  reserve  earnings interests equity
Notes EpERIA AE  SHRR  RRER
Items %R (i3 RA AR ERDE  EfGAUE BHOR b & af
Balance at 31 December 2018 ZE-N\FtzR=t-B
BABE 3,027,960 13,476,018 469,930 438,746 665,381 11,037,357 9,085,290 38,200,682
Add: Changes in accounting policies n:eHRRERE = = = = = (112) = (112)
Balance at 1 January 2019 “E-nE-R-ABOHE 3,027,960 13,476,018 469,930 438,746 665381 11,037,245 9,085,290 38,200,570
Movements for the six months ended BE-Z-NEARZTH
30 June 2019 tABAEEERSDE - 3,096,045 (52,355) (121,604) - 231,051 754,808 3,913,945
Comprehensive income for the period Gahaeg
Profit for the period aib = = = = - 1,187,493 571,590 1,759,083
Other comprehensive income A AkE 4631) - - - (121,604) - - - (121,604)
Total comprehensive income GANEEEAG = = = (121,604) - 1,187,493 571,590 1,637,479
Capital contribution and withdrawal by RREANFDER
owners
Capital contribution from owners REZAEL = = = = = = 295,050 295,050
Capital contribution by owners of other EpERIERER
equity instruments RAER 15(4) - 4,503,689 = = = - - 4,543,689
Recycling of other equity instruments AR TEEH 15(4) - (1,447,644) - - - - - (1,447,644)
Profit distribution HEAE
Profit distribution to owners HREROAR 4(33) = = = = - (666,151)  (111,832)  (777,983)
Profit distribution to owners of other equity HEBEEIE
instruments BEENDR 433) - - - - - (284,291) - (284,291)
Repayment of other equity instruments HERMERAMEEIA
ahead of schedule prospectively 4(30) = - (52,35) = = = = (52,355)
Balance at 30 June 2019 “2-nERAZTH
BRGBE 3,027,960 16,572,063 417,575 317142 665,381 11,274,296 9,840,098 42,114,515

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

Legal representative:
rEBEEAN:

BB RERM ERMERRNAKED -

Person in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

TEGFIENEBREA: SERBEREA:

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019



COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
25 7 IR A 25 8 T

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

Unaudited
AEE
Other equity Other
Share instruments Capital comprehensive Surplus Retained Total
capital perpetual bond reserve income reserve eamings equity
Note AHESIA Bima AR RRE&E
Items R ik B X &R UYN ks BROE HE CEH
Balance at 1 January 2018 ZE-NE-A-BEUBE 3,027,960 5,889,968 3,113,441 9,407 570,905 1121670 13,733,351
Movement for the six months ended 30 HZ=F-\£xB=+H
June 2018 LABANBRAZEE - 4,142,925 - (9,407) - (1,345,200) 2,788,318
Comprehensive loss for the period GEBELE
Loss for the period FEE - - - - - (543,035 (543,035)
Other comprehensive loss B aEE - - - (9,407) - - (9,407)
Total comprehensive loss GABRESEAMH - - - (9,407) - (543,035)  (552,442)
Capital contribution by owners RERAMELER
Capital contribution by owners of EERIENAE
other equity instruments RAEX - 4,142,925 - - - - 4142925
Profit distribution HEAR
Profit distribution to owners HERNPE 4(33) - - - - - (635,872)  (635,872)
Profit distribution to owners of other HEHERIA
equity instruments investments BEENSR 4(33) - - - - - (166,293)  (166,293)
Balance at 30 June 2018 —2-\FAAZTRBARE 3007960 10032893 3113441 - 50905 (223530) 16,521,669
Balance at 1 January 2019 ZE-NE-B-BENHE 3,027,960 13,476,018 3,059,320 = 665,381 788,162 21,016,841
Movement for the six months ended BE-2-AFAAZTA
30 June 2019 LABANBRAZEE = 3,096,045 (52,355) = - (1,242,499) 1,801,191
Comprehensive loss for the period GEBEEE
Loss for the period FEE = = = - - (292,057)  (292,057)
Total comprehensive loss GAFREEAH = = = = - (292,057)  (292,057)
Capital contribution and withdrawal by RERAMESER
owners
Capital contribution by owners of EHERIANAR
other equity instruments BNV 15(4) = 4,543,689 = = = - 4,543,689
Recycling of other equity instruments EfESTAEHY 15(4) = (1,447,644) = = = - (1,447,644)
Profit distribution MEAE
Profit distribution to owners HERNDPE 4(33) = = = = = (666,151)  (666,151)
Profit distribution to owners of other HEMERIA
equity instrument investments BEENARE 4(33) = = = = - (284291)  (284,291)
Repayment of other equity instruments FERAMESEMERTIE 4030) = = (52,355) = = = (52,355)
Balance at 30 June 2019 ZE-AERACTREAHE 3,027,960 16,572,063 3,006,965 - 665,381 (454,337) 22,818,032

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

Legal representative:
rEBEEAN:

Person in charge of accounting:

TEEAIENBEA:

SRt HBEREA:

BT HREME/MBRENVERTED -

Head of accounting department:

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 it 4% M R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (hereinafter “the Company”)
was established by seven companies (hereinafter
“the promoters”) on 23 July 2002, namely Beijing
Capital Group Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Capital
Group”), Beijing Sunshine Real Estate Comprehensive
Development Company, Beijing Capital Sunshine
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Beijing Capital
Technology Investment Co., Ltd., Beijing Capital
Hangyu Economic Development Co., Ltd. (renamed
“Beijing Capital Investment & Development Co.,
Ltd.” as at 4 December 2013, hereinafter “Beijing
Capital Investment”), China Resource Products Limited
and Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited. The
Company’s place of registry is Beijing, the People’s
Republic of China (hereinafter “the PRC”) and is
headquartered in Beijing, China.

The Company’s parent company and the ultimate
controlling party is Capital Group, a state-owned
enterprise established in Beijing.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in June 2003.
As at 30 June 2019, the total share of the Company
is RMB3,027,960,000 with RMB1 per share.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
“the Group”) are principally engaged in the real
estate development and investment, primary land
development, commercial real estate operation and
property consulting services.

These consolidated financial statements were
approved by the Board of Directors on 16 August
2019.

The interim financial statements were unaudited.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the Basic Standard of the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
issued by the Ministry of Finance on 15 February
2006, Interpretations of Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises and other relevant
regulations issued thereafter (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises” or “CAS").

The financial statements were prepared on basis
of going concern.

Statement of compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises

The financial statements of the Company for
the six months ended 30 June 2019 are in
compliance with the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises, and truly and
completely present the financial position of the
Consolidated and the Company as at 30 June
2019 and of their financial performance, cash
flows and other information for the six months
ended 30 June 2019.

Accounting year

The accounting year starts on 1 January and
ends on 31 December.

Functional currency

The functional currency of the Company and
most of its subsidiaries is Renminbi (RMB).
The functional currency of the Company’s
subsidiaries is determined based on the primary
economic environment in which they operate,
the functional currency of certain subsidiaries of
the Group incorporated in France and Australia
are local currency, the consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB.

— N ohH
—_. ==

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
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MBEBRRNBRER
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EREAMEMERRTAELE
SR EAMER EE - TEI
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BHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(5) Business combinations

(a)

Business combinations involving
enterprises under common control

The consideration paid and net assets
obtained by the acquirer in a business
combination are measured at the carrying
amount, but measured on the basis of the
acquiree’s carrying amount of assets and
liabilities (including the goodwill generated
from the acquisition of the acquiree by
the ultimate controlling party) presented
in the consolidated financial statements
of the ultimate controlling party, under
the condition that the acquiree was
acquired from a third party by the ultimate
controlling party in previous years. The
difference between the carrying amount
of the net assets obtained from the
combination and the carrying amount of
the consideration paid for the combination
is recognized in the capital surplus (share
premium). If the capital surplus (share
premium) is not sufficient to absorb
the difference, the remaining balance is
recognized in retained earnings. Costs
directly attributable to the combination
shall be recognized in profit or loss in the
period when occurred. Transaction costs
associated with the issue of equity or debt
securities for the business combination are
included in the initially recognized amounts
of the equity or debt securities.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . FEEGTHRENEE AR (&)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(5) Business combinations (Continued) (5) ©EEHE)

(b) Business combinations involving (b) FE-—EZHTHEESH

enterprises not under common control
The consideration paid and identifiable BEFTEHENE FRARAE
net assets obtained by the acquirer in a SUHPRENFHREEE
business combination are measured at REBEANAAEBETE -
fair value at the acquisition date. Where BHRAERRE HPERFH
the cost of the combination exceeds WHETNBEERHRF
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value BEAABEMENEZSRE
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, BRREE SHKEANR
the difference is recognised as goodwill; BOFRIGEWEBE 7 A 2
where the cost of combination is lower REEELAABEOMENE
than the acquirer’'s interest in the fair BoGtABHES RETT
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net CESHBENEERAEE
assets, the difference is recognised in ARBERFAZEER -
profit or loss for the current period. Costs RTEESMBETERE
directly attributable to the combination are BEUEBUEBFNZHE
included in profit or loss in the period in At A\EmEBEFLED
which they are incurred. Transaction costs MBSOV BASHE -

associated with the issue of equity or debt
securities for the business combination are
included in the initially recognised amounts
of the equity or debt securities.

(6) Preparation of consolidated financial (6) B BRERNFERS
statements
The consolidated financial statements comprise RESOHUBREE  a0H&E
the financial statements of the Company and all BRERARBIREFF AR -

of its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on HMEFRANEERZESE 2R
which the Group obtains control and are de- BAEEREBEEAAS &
consolidated from the date that such control PR ERIESIE 2 ARFLE
ceases. For a subsidiary that is acquired in MAEOEE - HRE—FHT
a business combination involving enterprises TPESHREHFAR B AHE
under common control, it is included in the RARRAX &G 7Sz A
consolidated financial statements from the BMARRBEHEHEE WHKE
date when it, together with the Company, EEMARNEBERNFNBES O
comes under common control of the ultimate FERFBENNIEE R -

controlling party. The portion of the net
profits realized before the combination date is
presented separately in the consolidated income
statements.

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. EEEeStBEMIEEET &)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(6) Preparation of consolidated financial (6) B BRERNEE T E(E)

statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, where the accounting policies
and the accounting periods are inconsistent
between the Company and subsidiaries, the
financial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted
in accordance with the accounting policies
and accounting period of the Company.
For subsidiaries acquired from a business
combination involving enterprises not under
common control, the individual financial
statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted
based on the fair value of the identifiable net
assets on the acquisition date.

All significant inter-group balances, transactions
and unrealized profits are eliminated in
the consolidated financial statements. The
portion of a subsidiary’s equity, the portion
of a subsidiary’s net profits and losses and
comprehensive income for the period not
attributable to the Company are recognized as
non-controlling interests and income attributed
to non-controlling interests as presented
separately in the consolidated financial
statements within equity, net profits and
comprehensive income respectively. Unrealized
inter profit or loss in transactions where the
Company sells assets to its subsidiaries are
fully eliminated to the net profits attributable
to owners of the Company. Unrealized inter
profit or loss in transactions where a subsidiary
sells assets to the Company are eliminated
between the net profits attributable to owners
of the Company and the profit or loss of
the non-controlling interest in proportion to
the Company’s allocation to the subsidiary.
Unrealized inter profit or loss in transactions
between subsidiaries selling assets are
eliminated between the net profits attributable
to owners of the Company and the profit or loss
of non-controlling interest in proportion to the
Company’s allocation to the selling side.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZZT-NAFRAZTALENERAHAEBRERZHIN  SBEMLAARETIT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(6) Preparation of consolidated financial (6) EOMBBMENER T E(E)
statements (Continued)
A transaction will be adjusted from the MEUAREE ARG EEEINK
perspective of the Group in condition that NARF AR REFTERYER—
assertions are different when accounting RHGWRETRE  AREED
entities are the Group and the Company or its ARHEZZSHTIANHE -
subsidiaries.
(7) Cash (7) BRg
Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits that ReEEEFIR S A KA EERA
can be readily drawn on demand. NS ENE:OREE N
(8) Foreign currency translation (8) HHimHE
(a) Foreign currency transaction (@) HERZH
Foreign currency transactions are HINER B IR 58 - Bl
translated into functional currency using HEXREIINEETERT
the spot exchange rates at the dates of the BRANALEEABR -

transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary items REEBRERB  INEBEEK
denominated in foreign currencies are MEBEERAEEBERAN
translated into functional currency using BNEERTERTERAM
the spot exchange rates on the balance o RERENAERNERE
sheet date. Exchange differences arising A& 8 & E i g A B Sk
from these translations are recognized BKEMEREENERLZE
in profit or loss for the current period, HEEAMCHEATUAER
except for those attributable to foreign b EfblE R ZBEETA
currency borrowings that have been EHER c WEELK ARG E
taken out specifically for the acquisition BINEIEEBMHIER - RE
or construction of qualifying assets, EaE %E%ﬁﬁx%?‘iﬂ
which are capitalized as part of the cost BYRNERRE KT o [E R F )
of those assets. Non-monetary items HE &K %%%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁmi
denominated in foreign currencies that are KPEBITR -

measured at historical costs are translated
at the balance sheet date using the
spot exchange rates at the date of the
transactions. The effect of exchange rate
changes on cash is presented separately in
the cash flow statements.

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(8) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Translation of foreign currency
financial statements

The asset and liability items in the
balance sheets for overseas operations
are translated at the spot exchange rates
on the balance sheet date. Among the
owners' equity items, the items other than
“retained earnings” are translated at the
spot exchange rates on the transaction
dates. The income and expense items
in the income statements of overseas
operations are translated at the spot
exchange rates on the transaction dates.
The differences arising from the above
translation are presented separately in the
owners’ equity, as other comprehensive
income. The cash flows of overseas
operations are translated at the spot
exchange rates on the dates of the cash
flows. The effect of exchange rate changes
on cash is presented separately in the cash
flow statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments

Financial instruments are contracts forming
financial assets of a party and financial liabilities
or equity instruments of other parties. When
the Group becomes a party to the financial
instrument contract, the Group recognizes the
related financial asset or financial liability.

(a) Financial assets
(i) Classification and measurement

Financial assets are classified into the
following three categories depends
on the Group's business mode of
managing financial assets and cash
flow characteristics of financial
assets: financial assets at amortized
cost, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets are measured at
fair value at initial recognition. The
relevant transaction costs of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognized in profit or loss
for the current period. Transaction
costs related to other financial assets
are included in their initial recognition
amounts. Trade receivables or notes
receivables arising from the sale of
products or rendering of services,
which do not contain or do not take
into account significant financing
elements, are initially recognized by
the Group in accordance with the
amount of consideration expected to
be entitled to receive.

i3

T EGHHAEMEH &3 ()

9) #¢mITH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . FEEeSTHER M HET(E)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(9) Financial instruments (Continued) 9) €I HE(E)
(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) &WEEE)
(i) Classification and measurement () DEHMAEE)
(Continued)
Debt instruments EFITA
Debt instruments held by the Group AEBFENERKL
are instruments that meet the BERERBTHAESD
definition of financial liabilities from MEEemBETEE
the issuer’'s point of view and are BWIE  SRIFANT
measured at the following two ways: MERNETFE

at amortized cost:

The Group’s business model for AEBERLEEAESR
managing such financial assets is BENEBEXRMA
aimed at collecting contractual cash KHMERRERER
flow, and the contractual cash flow BE HiEEEREE
characteristics of such financial HeaRRemERH
assets are consistent with the basic HEXREELHEE—
lending arrangements, i.e. cash B RAERNTRRES
flow generated on a specific date WRENE BERY
is only payment of principal and KeEMARERNEE
interest based on the amount of DHEAERMNIEN
outstanding principal. The Group AT o AN E Rt
recognizes interest income for such BoemMEERRER
financial assets in accordance with I ETERFBWA ©
the effective interest rate method. LEeRMEETER
Such financial assets mainly include RE¥E: EBEREZE
cash at bank and on hand, notes BREWERR - A
receivables and trade receivables, JE WK - BRI E M
other receivables, debt investments RHEKRRE K&
and long-term receivables. The Group EXEEERBERARE
lists the debt investments and long- —FRNE—F)IH
term receivables maturing within one WERRENK AR
year (including one year) since the WK RE—FR
balance sheet date as current portion FIERRIE R BN & B BN
of non-current assets, and the debt SREARE-FA(E
investments maturing within one year —F)MERRESIR
(including one year) as other current REMTBHEE -
assets.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (9) smMIA#E)

(a) Financial assets (Continued) () eWMEEE)
(i) Classification and measurement (i) HEAEE)
(Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued) EBETAE)
at fair value through profit or loss: Ko nEBETEHHE
Byt AEHIE -

The Group lists debt instruments AEEBRBHRE S
which are not measured by amortized 7 DA 82 BN B = A
cost or at fair value through other NARBEFERER
comprehensive income as trading BT AHMEE W
financial assets at fair value through EHNEBIAE  UAQ
profit or loss. Those that are maturing NEEFEEHEES
over one year and expected to be STAEHIER TR
held for more than one year since the XHZHeHMEE B
balance sheet date are recognized as EEBEXRARLBR—
other non-current financial assets. FRHAEERFAR B

B—FH JRRHE
MwIFRBEREE -

e
Bk
\H

Equity instruments

Investments in equity instruments AEBBHERAEE
which are not controlled, jointly # - A FEX
controlled or significantly affected by TENERIARE
the Group will be measured at fair BERANEETER
value through profit or loss and listed HEFHTAEHER -
as trading financial assets; those that WRAERSMS/ME
are expected to be held for more E - BEEABRKRAR
than one year since the balance sheet TR A BR—FH
date will be recognized as other non- JIRBEMIETRE S
current financial assets. BEE -

In addition, the Group designates BEoh - A& E AR 3E
some non-tradable equity instrument R TIARER
investments as financial assets which ERUARABEGE
are measured at fair value through BHEFHFAHMGS
other comprehensive income and Wamr e/ EE - 5
are recognized as other equity TREMBGZTIAR
instruments investment. The relevant BE-ZFEesmEEN
dividend income of the financial N S R QNG S
assets is included in the current profit HRFAEHES
or loss when certain conditions are

met.

HEIBEXRMERRAR —T—hEPHHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment

The Group accounts for the
impairment of financial assets at
amortized cost and contract assets
based on expected credit loss. The
Group takes into account reasonable
and valid information on past events,
current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, with
the risk of default as the weight, to
calculate the probabilistic weighted
amount of the present value of the
difference between the cash flow
receivable from contract and the
expected cash flow to be received
and recognize the expected credit
loss.

On each balance sheet date, the
Group measures the expected
credit losses of financial instruments
at different stages. The financial
instrument is in the first stage if
its credit risk has not increased
significantly since the initial
recognition. The Group measures
loss provision according to the
expected credit loss in the next 12
months. The financial instrument
is in the second stage if its credit
risk has increased significantly since
the initial recognition, but no credit
impairment has occurred. The Group
measures loss provision according
to the lifetime expected credit loss.
The financial instrument is in the
third stage if credit impairment has
occurred. The Group measures loss
provision according to the lifetime
expected credit loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . FEEGTHRENEE AR (&)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) 9) &mITHE)

(a) Financial assets (Continued) (@) 2®mEEE)
(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) BEGE)

For financial instruments with low HREEEAREKRAA
credit risk on the balance sheet date, EREGEARRN S
the Group assumes that their credit BTE  AEEEHZE
risk has not increased significantly ERRRBRBEVIHER
since the initial recognition, and ALK BEEILM - R
measures the loss provision according RBAKRT=—EARBTE
to the expected credit loss over the HERABXAGFEEX
next 12 months. o
For financial instruments in the first REBEBHRERE —
and second stage and with lower PEERME —RE -
credit risk, the Group calculates ERIEEARRS S H
interest income on the basis of their TE mRBERMRK
book value without deducting the BB ZEE ) BR H BR R
provision for impairment and using MEBEMNXFERNE
effective interest rates. For financial WA e ﬂEAF@E/\’“*
instruments in the third stage, BEremITH %
interest income is calculated on the RERERBERD
basis of their book value deducting R EEE ?éﬁ’]fiﬁﬁ%
the amortized cost after the provision BRAMERNEGHE
for impairment has been made and FEHA -

using the effective interest rates.

For trade receivables and contract HREWEREXME R
assets, the Group measures loss EE EwmedRE
provisions in accordance with lifetime EAREKD A&
expected credit losses whether or not 5% R (R 17 & 5
significant financing elements exist. MIEBERABEXE

BAER -

BRIEXROHARLA —E-—NFPHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment (Continued)

When it is unable to evaluate the
information of expected credit loss of
a single financial asset at a reasonable
cost, the Group divides the receivables
into portfolios according to the
characteristics of credit risk, calculates
the expected credit losses on the
basis of the portfolio, and determines
the portfolio on the basis of the
following:

Portfolios of FH&A
receivables from FIE KA
joint ventures, ?fx EREA
associates and joint
bidding

Portfolios of e B R AEE
receivables from
customers

Property tenant MEABER
Portfolio 1 He—

Property tenant MEABEP
Portfolio 2 HEeE—

For trade receivables divided into

portfolios, the Group refers to the
experience of historical credit losses
and combines the current situation
with the forecast of future economic
conditions to prepare a comparative
table of the expected credit loss
between the overdue days of trade
receivables and the lifetime expected
credit loss rate and calculate expected
credit loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . FEEGTHRENEE AR (&)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(9) Financial instruments (Continued) 9) €T HE(E)
(a) Financial assets (Continued) (@) 2®mEEE)
(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) BifE(E)
For other receivables divided into HRES>RHESHE
portfolios, the Group refers to the hERR AEBEZ
experience of historical credit losses ERLERBRLR
and combines the current situation e E AR A R
with the forecast of future economic AN EBEMN B TE
conditions to calculate expected Al - iR E R B R
credit loss by using default risk AMARR+—EARL
exposure and the expected credit loss BEAFERESRER
rate over the next 12 months or over BEAX -FFEEHE
the lifetime. AE% -
The Group recognized the accrued AEBBFTIRIED
or reversed loss provision in profit or WELXEHETAEH
loss for the current period. B e
(iiij) Derecognition (iii) AR 7ER
A financial asset is derecognized R E E W R T E
when any of the below criteria is 22— TLAKRIEHRE
met: (1) the contractual rights to RN WEZ 2
receive the cash flows from the EEHSRENEGR
financial asset expire; (2) the financial BRHEIE: Q) Z®
asset has been transferred and the MEEDE® BEX
Group transfers substantially all the SEKEmEEMA
risks and rewards of ownership of ELEETRERR R
the financial asset to the transferee; MMM E B EEAT
or (3) the financial asset has been ) memEEDE
transferred and the Group has not % BAKREERRR
retained control of the financial asset, FERBHLERES
although the Group neither transfers MEEMBRLLT
nor retains substantially all the risks Fr B & & b2 A0 R B
and rewards of ownership of the BEERETHZ TR
financial asset. BEEES -

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of other equity
instrument investments, the
difference between the «carrying
amount and the sum of the
consideration received along with
the cumulative changes in fair value
that had been recognized directly
in other comprehensive income, is
recognized in retained earnings;
On derecognition of other financial
assets, the difference between the
carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received along with the
cumulative changes in fair value that
had been recognized directly in other
comprehensive income, is recognized
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at amortized cost and
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition.

The Group’s financial liabilities are
mainly financial liabilities at amortized
cost, including notes payables and trade
payables, other payables, long-term
payables, borrowings and debentures
payable which are initially recognized at
fair value deducting transaction costs and
recorded at amortized cost using effective
interest rate in subsequent measurement.
Financial liabilities with repayment period
within 1 vyear (including 1 vyear) are
stated as current liabilities; other financial
liabilities with repayment period over 1
year but repayment date within 1 year
since balance sheet date are stated as
current portion of non-current liabilities;
others are stated as non-current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZZT-NAFRAZTALENERAHAEBRERZHIN  SBEMLAARETIT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) 9) &smITAE)

(b) Financial liabilities (Continued) (b) ¢BMEEE)
A financial liability is derecognized or EemBENERELR
partly derecognized when the current o B ERRE - K%
obligation is discharged or has been partly ER IERZeBmERENE
discharged. The difference between the BEBBRRED  KLILHER
carrying amount of the derecognized BBy 19 BRE (B 18 B S A
part of the financial liabilities and the BrEHERE  TAZHIE
consideration paid is recognized in profit oo
or loss.
() Determination of fair value of financial () &M IANAAREERE

instrument
The fair value of a financial instrument that FEEREMSNE/MIA
is traded in an active market is determined AR R ™ IS R ERETE
by the quoted price in the active market. HERAAREE - TNFHEEREM
The fair value of a financial instrument %El’]iwﬁlﬂ KAMER
that is not traded in an active market is i EEAREME - Eﬁﬂﬁ
determined by using a valuation technique. - K’él%ﬁﬂﬁa Al
The Group uses the valuation technique Tﬂﬁﬁjlﬂ*ﬁ‘ﬂ%’]‘fﬂfﬁ%(
when it is applicable under current ?Ffuﬁi\fm* LX) E R
conditions and there are enough available fif - BEEMS2HEELNA
data and other information to support HMEEXBENRSFRE
and the technique should maximize the BREENRBEREE
use of relevant observable. Unobservable B AE - WRAREELE
inputs are used under the circumstance AEEA B REAE - £
that the relevant observable inputs cannot IR RS PN =k 97N E T 3=l
be obtained or not feasible. Those inputs BMENYEATHERLT
should be consistent with the inputs a FERATAHEREAE-

market participant would use when pricing
the asset or liability.

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(10) Hedging activities

The Group sets financial instruments as hedging
instrument to manage exposure to foreign
exchange risks. Changes in fair value or cash
flow of the hedging instrument are expected to
offset all or part of the changes in fair value or
cash flow of hedged items. The Group accounts
the hedging by using hedge accounting method.

Fair value of the hedging derivatives would be
classified as a non-current asset or liability when
the residual maturity of the hedged item is

longer than 12 months.

The Group continuously evaluates,

hedging

circumstances will

of cash flow hedge.

Gain or loss on the cash flow hedging
instrument relating to the effective portion is
recognized in other comprehensive income and
presented separately. Gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion, that is gain or loss deducting
the portion recognized in other comprehensive

income, is recognized in profit or loss.
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both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis,
of whether the derivatives used in hedging
transactions are highly effective, analyzes the
cause for ineffective portion of hedging which
will influence hedging relationship within the
remaining period of hedging, and evaluates
relationship at the balance sheet
date and when significant changes in relevant
affect the effectiveness
requirements of hedging. The Group adopts
ratio analysis to assess subsequent effectiveness
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(10) Hedging activities (Continued)

The amount of cash flow hedging reserve shall
be treated in accordance with the following
provisions: (1) when the hedged item is an
anticipated transaction, and the anticipated
transaction enables the Group to subsequently
recognize a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, or the anticipated transaction of non-
financial assets or non-financial liabilities to
form a determination commitment applicable to
fair value hedging accounting, the amount of
cash flow hedging reserve recognized in other
comprehensive earnings will be transferred out
and included in the initial recognized amount of
the assets or liabilities; (2) for cash flow hedging
that does not belong to the abovementioned
(1) the amount of cash flow hedging reserve
recognized in other comprehensive earnings will
be transferred out and included in profit and loss
during the same period when the expected cash
flow of the hedging affects the profit and loss;
(3) if the amount of cash flow hedging reserve
recognized in other comprehensive income is a
loss, and the loss is expected to be irreparable in
whole or in part in the future accounting period,
the expected irreparable part will be transferred
out from other comprehensive income and
included in profit or loss for the current period.

When the Group no longer applies hedging
accounting on cash flow hedging, any
cumulative cash flow hedging reserve
recognized in other comprehensive income
previously should be dealt with in accordance
with the following provisions: (1) when the
hedged future cash flow is still expected to
occur, the cumulative cash flow hedge reserve
should be kept; (2) when the hedged future
cash flow is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative cash flow hedge reserve should
be transferred out from other comprehensive
income and recognized in profit or loss. When
the hedged future cash flow is no longer highly
possible expected to occur but still expected to
occur, the cumulative cash flow hedge reserve
should be kept.

i3

SR R G B A A o)

(10) EM®REE)

RenEEHRENSE  BK
THRERE: (1) WEHEER
RIEHPRG  BZREBMRFER
SEERER -HITHEENL
FERMBEN LEFEREE
HFEMBENBHRRIZ K —
HEAR AR EBEERNSOE
EAHE  SREEMES WS
THEANEEREENFEETSR
B FAREEXRERENTS
BREE Q) R ITBR LA
MFPEMREREEDR  EWRE
HHERReREFERENE
FHE SREELMES KES
BERNReEREEHHESRE
h FFAEHER Q) WRE
HEGeRatERNReRE
EfREeRE—BEXR B
BREHHE Y AAERKS
HIM T e mmr - ER TR
e BRATEBANTE K
HipraWamPE L stAEH

Y
B e

AEEHREREERRILEER
EMeRE  EHMEAKET
BANZFHEREENRERES
B mRTIREETRE: (1)
REHOARRRS REARDA
TELEN BRARESREEY
RENESETARE: 2)  ®WE
HHAKRRERERRNTIBEL
M BRFRSREERFHED
TRNEMEAREFEL - &
AEMBE - WEHMHAKRRE
METRM A BRAIEEAEREE
BHOAgHL ERHADAS
BEWMBRAT BRFAHEERE
EMREENSBETURE -

HABEBRBARAT —B-AFFHEE

67



68

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(11) Inventories

(a)

(b)

Classification

Inventories include properties under
development, properties held for sale,
merchandise inventories and low-cost
consumables, which are measured at the

lower of cost and net realizable value.

Measurement of inventories

Inventories are initially recognized at the
actual costs. The costs of properties under
development and properties held for sale
comprise land cost, construction cost,
capitalized borrowing costs, and other
direct and indirect fees incurred during
the development period. On completion,
the properties are transferred to properties
held for sale at the actual costs. For
land use rights that are developed for
subsequent sales, the cost paid for land
use rights are classified and accounted for
as part of the costs of properties.

Public ancillary facilities comprise
government-approved public ancillary
projects, i.e. roads etc. The relevant costs
are recognized in the properties under
development, and are recorded by each
cost items; the cost paid for land use rights
are classified and accounted for as part of
properties under development.

Merchandise inventories are finished goods
purchased from external for retail, which
are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods is purchase costs agreed in
purchasing contracts.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019

1) 78
(a)

(b)

D
H

FTEBEMERAN  FARE
CEFEMNEES RS
» KON B ] B 3R % B

it & -

g Bo 3t

IR

7 8 035 %

FERIUSRIZEBRKAA
AR o B % BN M B 3 EE Y
RABIE LA - BREX
KBREMERER H
EEMAZRZER
BEMKAEERFIZERNX
AiZHE - AEEBRBH L
EREANEEHINHEN
FEZEDN - HEN L
FERETAMBRENEER
YRR °

RABREREIERBTER
B ENAHKEEER -
MBS AMBEENXH
SIAFBERAE  BRAEZE
B RAMKATEBETRHADZ
B ORBERALIHMELENS
MR AFRERARNZE -

EFEmattINEBANR
REENETIEM &K
REREEFENEE -
SETEMMNKAZBHES
R E BB - R B IN4EF
BRETE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. EEEeStBEMFEHET &)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(11) Inventories (Continued) (M) EE(#E)

(c) Measurement of net realizable value () FEWERFENEEME

and provisions of inventories REEKEEENTRAEE
Provisions are determined at the excess GFEMEBEEFHRFERAK
amount of the carrying value of the BRER T FENZEEG
inventories over their net realizable value. IR AR EHELKERE S
Net realizable value is determined based on FoUFENGEERE
the estimated selling price in the ordinary ERIRHABERENK
course of business, less the estimated A AHETHHEE E AU KAE
costs to completion and estimated selling MM EEN REETE -

expenses and related taxes.

(d) The Group adopts the perpetual inventory d TEENFEESREFHERA
system. KBBRIFH -

(e) Low-cost consumables are amortized using (e) EEZHEmMER—REHZE
the one-off amortization method. HEATHEG -

(12) Long-term equity investments (12) REBRERSE

Long-term equity investments comprise the REREREBRE  RARYHFA

Company’s long-term equity investments in its ﬂﬂ’]%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%&ﬁ T AEEEE

subsidiaries and the Group’s long-term equity EhENBEPENRBARER

investments in its joint ventures and associates. B o

Subsidiaries are the investees over which the YNCID PN HHEEHE

Company is able to exercise control. Joint %UE’J?&& éﬁu éEﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁZﬁ

ventures are joint arrangements of which the SEEBEBFREEN  BE

net asset is attribute to the Group based on the Hth F Btk EZES - H%b‘\ A

legal forms, terms of contract and other facts B ARGRALAEMEER

and the investees over which the Group is able E?RT%%TE?%%%%’%% A&

to exercise joint control together with other EHE e “*/JE%FEKEI X

ventures. Associates are the investees that the HEMBNEERKEAEFERY

Group has significant influence on their financial ENRKREEN -

and operating policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in HFRaRE  EARPBEmE
the Company’s financial statements using the TIRBENEEEN IR
cost method, and are adjusted for preparing RS BRRFIRERE
the consolidated financial statements using the ARBETEH HEE D EMN
equity method. Investments in joint ventures and BMErERERARRERE -
associates are accounted for using the equity

method.

BRIEXROHARLA —E-—NFPHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

SHEMNAARETT)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(12) Long-term equity investments
(Continued)
(@) Measurement of investment cost

For long-term equity investments acquired
through a business combination: for long-
term equity investments acquired though
business combination involving enterprises
under common control, the investment
cost shall be the acquirer’s share of the
carrying amount of the acquiree’s owners’

equity presented
financial

in the consolidated
statements of the ultimate

controlling party on the combination date;
for long-term equity investments acquired
through a business combination involving
enterprises other than joint control, the
investment cost shall be the combination

cost.

For long-term equity investments acquired
not through a business combination: for
long-term equity investment acquired by
payment in cash, the initial investment cost
shall be the purchase price actually paid,;
for long-term equity investments acquired
by issuing equity instruments, the initial
investment cost shall be the fair value of
the equity instruments issued.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(12) Long-term equity investments (12) REBRERE(ZE)
(Continued)
(b) Subsequent measurement and (b) #EBEHERBZEALE
recognition of investment income and
loss
For long-term equity investments A A EZE 8RB E
accounted for using the cost method, they RE  RBOBKREKAKNG
are measured at the initial investment cost, B BREBLUESEDIKH
and cash dividends or profit distribution WEEMAE - BRBEK
declared by the investees are recognized BEWmst A AEHIER -

as investment income in profit or loss.

For long-term equity investments RARR EZZENRAKE
accounted for using the equity method, BE - MBERERERNRE
where the initial investment cost of a EREZAHIEEEMATH
long-term equity investment exceeds REEERAAEBENDED
the Group's share of the fair value of N E K AERKH
the investee’s identifiable net assets RIEREKR : HBIREK
on the acquisition date, the long-term RIREREFEZEHRIRE
equity investment is measured at the BUAHREFEELAAEBE
initial investment cost; where the initial MER - HEFEFAEHIE
investment cost is less than the Group's W WAHEFAERARER
share of the fair value of the investee’s PN

identifiable net assets on the acquisition
date, the difference is included in profit
or loss and the cost of the long-term
equity investment is adjusted upwards
accordingly.

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(12) Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

(b)

Subsequent measurement and
recognition of investment income and
loss (Continued)

For long-term equity investments
accounted for using the equity method,
the Group recognizes the investment
income or losses according to its share
of net profit or loss of the investee. The
Group discontinues recognizing its share
of net losses of an investee after the
carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment together with any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part
of the investor's net investment in the
investee are reduced to zero. However, if
the Group has obligations for additional
losses and the criteria with respect to
recognition of provisions are satisfied,
the Group continues recognizing the
investment losses expected to be borne.
For changes in owners’ equity of the
investee other than those arising from its
net profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and profit distribution, the Group
adjusts the carrying amount of long-
term equity investments and records its
proportionate share directly into capital
reserve. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced by the Group's
share of the profit distribution or cash
dividends declared by the investee. The
unrealized profits or losses arising from
the intra-group transactions amongst the
Group and its investees are eliminated in
proportion to the Group's equity interests
in the investees, and then based on
which the investment gains or losses are
recognized. For the loss on the intra-group
transaction amongst the Group and its
investees attributable to asset impairment,
any unrealized loss is not eliminated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZZT-NAFRAZTALENERAHAEBRERZHIN  SBEMLAARETIT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(12) Long-term equity investments (12) REBRERE(ZE)

(Continued)
(c) Definitions of control, joint control (c) BEHBEREBENABEG -

and significant influence HEZS EARENRE
Control is the power over the investee BRI REREEEBRRES M
when the investor is exposed, or has rights, WS RBAZ2HEERES
to variable returns from its involvement EEESmMERAZD
with the investee companies, and has the W W BAENEREWIE
ability to affect those returns through its BEUNENZEHEORS
power over the investee companies. B o
Joint control is the contractually agreed HEZEGZERREBAOTE
sharing of control of an arrangement, HEBZHMABROES
which exists only when decisions about the WAZZHOEE RS KA
relevant activities require the unanimous KRN B R o = 12 R R
consent of the Group and the other parties Ht2uEp—HRAZES &
sharing control. R o
Significant influence is the power to BAXEREHWIRESEN
participate in the financial and operating M EMEEBRRBLER
policy decisions of the investee, but is not KEVRED - B TE %’JT il
control or joint control over those policies. & B A 7 — 2 F [R5

B BRABIE -

(d) Impairment of long-term equity d RERERERE
investment
The carrying amounts of long-term HFRAA - &dFE Hs" =
equity investments in subsidiaries, joint PENRAKRERE  §X
ventures and associates are reduced to the AkEeBEEREEREEER
recoverable amounts when the recoverable B - BREEER L E A WE
amounts are below their carrying B o
amounts.

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE-T—

AVEFER A=+ B L7 M8 A B (B R B FE B 4 -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(13)

(14)

Joint operations

Joint operations are operations with a
contractual arrangement, whereby the Group
and other parties jointly enjoy related assets
and are responsible to related liabilities. Under
joint operations, the assets and liabilities which
belong to joint operations and are related to
profit shares should be recognized separately or
shared by proportion; Revenues were recognized
from selling the Group’s share in joint operations
or selling products of joint operations; expenses
were recognized separately or shared by
proportion in the joint operations.

Investment properties

Investment properties, including land use rights
that have already been leased out, buildings that
are held for the purpose of leasing and buildings
that is being constructed or developed for the
purpose of leasing in the future, are measured
initially at cost. Subsequent expenditures
incurred in relation to an investment property is
included in the cost of the investment property
when it is probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and their
cost can be reliably measured; otherwise, the
expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

The Group adopts the fair value model for
subsequent measurement of investment
properties. Investment properties are measured
at fair value model when the following
conditions are met:

(@) There is an active property market where
the investment property locates.

(b) The Group can obtain the market price
or the relevant information regarding the
same type of or similar property market,
so as to reasonably estimate the fair value
of the investment property.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(14) Investment properties (Continued)

Depreciation or amortization will no longer be
provided for investment properties measured
at fair value. Investment properties will be
valued as at the balance sheet date and its
carrying amount will be adjusted accordingly.
The difference between the fair value and the
carrying amount will be charged to the current
profit and loss account of the Group.

Where fair value of investment properties
under construction is not reliably measurable
but is expected to be reliably obtained after
the construction is completed (including those
investment properties under construction
acquired initially by the Group), the property is
measured at cost until the earlier of the date
construction is completed or the date at which
fair value becomes reliably measurable.

When the Group converts investment property
to owner-occupied property or real estate
inventory, the property’'s carrying amount is
stated at the fair value on the conversion date.
The difference between the fair value and the
original carrying amount is recognized in profit
or loss for the current period. When any owner-
occupied property or real estate inventory
is converted to investment properties to be
measured through the fair value model, the
fair value on the conversion date is recognized
as the carrying amount of the investment
property. When the fair value on the conversion
date is less than its carrying amount, the
difference will be charged to profit or loss for
the current period. When the fair value on
the conversion date is more than its carrying
amount, the difference will be charged to other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_T-NAFAA=ZTRLEAEARBECGRREIZAN  2EELAARE T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(14) Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognized on
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its
disposal. The net amount of proceeds from sale,
transfer, scrapping or damage of an investment
property subtracts its carrying amount and
related taxes and expenses is recognized in profit
or loss for the current period.

(15) Fixed assets
(@) Recognition and initial measurement

Fixed assets comprise buildings, motor
vehicles, and office equipment, etc.

Fixed assets are recognized when it is
probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the
related cost can be reliably measured. Fixed
assets purchased or constructed by the
Group are initially measured at cost at the
time of acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a
fixed asset are included in the cost of the
fixed asset when it is probable that the
associated economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the related cost can be
reliably measured. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. All
the other subsequent expenditures are
recognized in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE-T—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING h—_
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(15) Fixed assets (Continued)
(b) Depreciation methods of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
the assets to their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives. For the
fixed assets that have been provided for
impairment loss, the related depreciation
charge is prospectively determined based
upon the adjusted carrying amounts over
their remaining useful lives.

The estimated useful lives, the estimated
rate of residual value and the annual

NERNA=+TBIEE AR BREFRIFHEIN -

CHREMR/RARE T

TESHRRME TG @)

(15) BE&EE#)

(b) BEEENFTELE

BEEENERBFR TS
AW IEE A REEMEE
FRERERERSS
AHiE - BETIR T REEED
Bl & E - AlfERKHER
MR EERROREEE
Ko 45 18 T8 PR 6 PR B E 4
E®-

BEEENETERSD
FERERRFFEXRTRN

depreciation rate are as follows: I
Estimated rate Annual
Estimated of residual depreciation
useful lives value rate
EHERASD BERERER FHEXR
Buildings 10 to 40 years 0%-10% 2.3%-10.0%
EERBEY 10404
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years 0%-10% 9.0%-20.0%
Eag T H 5-104F
Office equipment 3 to 10 years 0%-10% 9.0%-33.3%
NS 3-104F

The estimated useful lives, the estimated
residual value of a fixed asset and the
depreciation method applied to the asset
are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate
at least each year end.

(c) When recoverable amount of a fixed asset
is lower than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount should be written down
to the recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE-T—

AVEFER A=+ B L7 M8 A B (B R B FE B 4 -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(15) Fixed assets (Continued)

(d) Disposal of fixed assets

A fixed asset is derecognized on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. The
amount of proceeds from disposal on sale,
transfer, scrapping or damage of a fixed
asset subtracts its carrying amount and
related taxes and expenses is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period.

(16) Borrowing costs

The Group’s borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and construction
of investment properties or real estate projects
that need a substantially long period of time
for its intended use or sale commence to be
capitalized and recognized as part of the cost
of the asset when expenditures for the asset
and borrowing costs have been incurred, and
the activities relating to the acquisition and
construction that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale have
commenced. The capitalization of borrowing
costs ceases, when the investment properties
under acquisition or construction becomes
ready for its intended use, the properties under
development become ready for sale (generally
after Completion Certification granted),
the borrowing costs incurred thereafter are
recognized in profit or loss for the current
period. Capitalization of borrowing costs
is suspended during periods in which the
acquisition or construction of the asset is
interrupted abnormally and the interruption lasts
for more than 3 months, until the acquisition or
construction is resumed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(16) Borrowing costs (Continued)

For borrowings that specified for acquisition and
construction of investment properties and real
estate projects and qualified for capitalization,
the capitalization amount is measured as current
actual interests of the specified borrowings
subtract interest revenue earned from unused
borrowings deposited at bank or investment
income earned from temporary investment
activities with unused borrowings.

For general borrowings that occupied by the
acquisition and for construction of investment
properties and real estate projects qualified
for capitalization, the capitalization amount
should be the weighted average exceeds
of accumulated capital expenditures for
capitalization over the amount of specialized
borrowings multiplied by the weighted average
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
is the rate used to discount the estimated future
or the applicable shorter period cash flows of
the borrowings to the initial measurement of the
borrowings.

(17) Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include
expenditures that have been incurred but should
be recognized as expenses over more than one
year in the current and subsequent periods.
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized
on the straight-line basis over the expected
beneficial period and are presented at actual
expenditure subtract accumulated amortization.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(18) Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, intangible assets with finite useful
lives, investment properties measured using the
cost model and long-term equity investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
tested for impairment if there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired at the balance
sheet date. If the result of the impairment
test indicates that the recoverable amount of
the asset is less than its carrying amount, a
provision for impairment and an impairment loss
are recognized for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of the future cash flows expected
to be derived from the asset. Provision for asset
impairment is determined and recognized on
the individual asset basis. If it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the recoverable amount of a
group of assets to which the asset belongs to
is determined. A group of assets is the smallest
group of assets that is able to generate cash

inflows independently.

Goodwill that is separately presented

the financial statements is tested at least
semiannually for impairment, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that it may be
impaired. In conducting the test, the carrying
value of goodwill is allocated to the related
asset groups or groups of asset groups which
are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination. If the result of the
test indicates that the recoverable amount of an
asset group or group of asset groups, including
the allocated goodwill, is lower than its carrying
amount, the corresponding impairment loss is
recognized. The impairment loss is first deducted
from the carrying amount of goodwill that is
allocated to the asset group or group of asset
groups, and then deducted from the carrying
amounts of other assets within the asset groups
or groups of asset groups in proportion to the
carrying amounts of assets other than goodwill.

Once the above asset impairment loss
recognized, it will not be reversed for the value

recovered in the subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(19) Employee benefits (19) B T &
Employee benefits are all forms of considerations BIFMEArASEAKER TR
given in exchange for services rendered by HEOREHBREDEERMELE T
employees or compensation paid in order MEBEANRMIHEE B
to terminate the employment relationship. EEREIEN - BERLIEZIE A BER1E
Employee benefits mainly include short- FIANE = EAR T8 75 -

term employee benefits, demission benefits,
termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits, etc.

(a) Short-term employee benefits (a) =H%

Short-term employee benefits mainly EHFHeREIA  ®&£4
include wages or salaries, bonuses, EERAMA BIRNE -
allowances and subsidies, staff welfare, BEERRE IGHERRE -
social security contributions, housing £ERBE TEAES
funds, labor wunion funds, employee ITEMBELE  BEHTH
education funds, short-term compensated 0"E - MESEHEEF oK
absences and profit sharing plan. When EETBIRERENS
an employee has rendered service to the AR BERELENED
Group during an accounting period, the FHERREME Wi AE
Group shall recognize short-term employee MRS AEEENR - &
benefits as liabilities and charge to the cost FoEEBHERNERRBAA
of an asset or as an expense at the same BEFE -

time. Non-monetary benefits are measured
in accordance with fair value.

(b) Demission benefits (b) BEBEEAR

Demission benefits are classified as defined REEBBEBRERENGTE S
contribution plan and defined benefit BARTERGEFENRER
plans. Defined contribution is demission matd o RERFFERR
benefits plan in which the Group is not EERBUYNESZFEE
obliged to make further payment after EBRkE THAEE-—FX
paying a certain amount to individual T 25 75 1O B BB 12 4R A 5T &
funds. Defined benefit plans is other REXRTERZKRRTIER
demission benefits plan except for defined Trat LA ) B B 12 18 A 5t
contribution plan. During the period, gl o RIEBAAN - AEER
demission benefits mainly include basic BEBRERENIZER/REIH
social pension security and unemployed MOELABZRE  #RAE
insurance, both of which are defined ZRBMEERR  HBER
contribution plan. HERFETE -

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(19) Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Demission benefits (Continued)

Basic social pension security

Employees of the Group participate in
the basic social pension plan set up
and administered by the government
authorities. Basic pensions are provided
monthly according to stipulated
proportions and basis, which are paid to
local labor and social security institutions.
After retirement of employees, local labor
and social security institutions will pay
related pensions to employees accordingly.
When an employee has rendered service
to the Group during an accounting period,
the Group shall compute and recognize
liabilities according to the above stipulation
and charge to the cost of an asset or as
an expense at the same time.

The Group provides a pension scheme,
which is established under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”),
for all employees in Hong Kong. The
statutory contribution requirements to
the MPF Scheme are paid for eligible
employees. The assets of this pension
scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered
funds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZZT-NAFRAZTALENERAHAEBRERZHIN  SBEMLAARETIT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(19) Employee benefits (Continued) (19) BT &N (=)

(b) Demission benefits (Continued) (b) EEBEEF(Z)

Supplementary pension security plan HrEERE
Qualified employees of the Group can AEEMFaGRENB IR
voluntarily join the supplementary pension FEMAHZEZREETE
security plan. Supplementary pensions are AEBUBRITEFLRE
provided monthly based on employees’ HBBEE B Ol &b KRE
social security basis from the Group and ABE EA IJ?ETJE/\%%WW
employees, which are paid to trustee. After mMABEZRRE - BRI
retirement of employees, trustee will pay & ZRABETRCER
related pensions to employees accordingly. BEIXNHAEES - A&
When an employee has rendered service ERIRZHERBO S
to the Group during an accounting period, HifE - BiRE il RIRE
the Group shall compute and recognize EH%UE%WWE’J%%EEE%’ =3z
liabilities according to the above stipulation & WEHAZEHIBRRAE
and charge to the cost of an asset or as %TEEXZIK

an expense at the same time.

(c) Termination benefits (c) BERF
Termination benefits are payables when AEFEEBRTLHARIS
employment is terminated by the Group Z B R R B T &) 5 B
before the employment contract expire, R ERHEB I AMEE
or compensation provided as an offer to RHB MR LG THE &
encourage employees to accept voluntary ﬁ%?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ(@ﬁﬂ?
redundancy. The Group recognizes 55 B AR 51 8 SR E &R
termination benefits as liabilities and %DEEM,\&&iﬁﬁthaﬂ
charges to profit or losses at the earlier WEHABENKAE ARR
of the following dates: when the Group EANFER - mERE MR R
can no longer withdraw the offer of IS BEERGE THEME
termination plan; and when the Group FRBE - RFTAEHIE
recognizes costs for restructuring which oo
involving the payment of termination
benefits.
Termination benefits is disclosed as current EHEEEBEBERALE —F
liabilities if it is planned to be paid within NBEXZNEEREFR - 5T
one year after the balance sheet date. RMEBEE -

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(20) Equity instruments

(21)

Financial instruments issued by the Group are
classified as equity instruments when both of
the following conditions are satisfied:

(@ The financial instruments have no
contractual obligation to pay in cash or
other financial assets to other parties nor
to exchange financial assets or liabilities
under potential adverse condition with
other parties;

(b) The financial instruments should and can
be settled via equity instruments of the
Group. For non-derivative instruments, the
instruments have no contractual obligation
to be settled by delivering fixed number
of equity instruments of the Group. For
derivative instruments, they can only be
settled through the exchange of fixed
number of the Group’s equity instruments
with fixed amount of cash or other
financial assets.

Equity instruments except for ordinary shares
issued by the Company are presented as other
equity instruments in the financial statements.
The amounts issued by the subsidiaries
and classified as equity instruments in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group
are presented as non-controlling interest.

Distribution of dividends

The amount of dividends is recognized as liability
in the current period in which it is approved by
general meeting of shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(22) Provisions

Provisions for product warranties, pending
litigations etc. are recognized when the Group
has a present obligation, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the related present obligation. Factors
surrounding a contingency, such as the risks,
uncertainties and the time value of money, are
taken into account as a whole in reaching the
best estimate of a provision. Where the effect
of the time value of money is material, the
best estimate is determined by discounting the
related future cash outflows. The increase in
the discounted amount of the provision arising
from passage of time is recognized as interest
expense.

The carrying amount of provisions is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate.

A provision is disclosed as current liabilities if it
is planned to be paid within one year after the
balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(23) Revenue recognition

When a customer gains control of the relevant

goods or services,

the Group recognizes

the revenue at the amount of consideration
expected to be entitled to receive.

(a)

Sales of properties

Revenues are recognized when or as the
control of the properties is transferred to
the customer. Depending on the terms of
the contract and the laws that apply to
the contract, control of the properties may
transfer over time or at a point in time.

For the sale of properties, if the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
the part of performance that has been
completed so far during the whole contract
period, the relevant revenue is recognized
over time. The Group recognizes revenue
according to the progress of performance
obligations completed during the
whole contract period. The progress
of performance obligations completed
is measured by expenditures or inputs
incurred by the Group in order to fulfill
its performance obligations and is based
on the proportion of the budgeted costs
incurred by the end of the reporting period
for each contract. For the sale of other
properties, the revenue is recognized at a
point in time when the customer obtains
the control of the property, that is, when
the properties are completed and reached
check and accept status and is delivered or
regarded as delivered to the customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZZT-NAFRAZTALENERAHAEBRERZHIN  SBEMLAARETIT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
(23) Revenue recognition (Continued) (23) W AR (&)
(b) Primary land development (b) Li—aRHE
Some of the Group’s primary land REBLH— R - I
development recognized revenue over D ERBAERE —ERER
time, and the progress of implementation BRIWA - EREHERE
is based on the proportion of the cost EREHREBENK KA
incurred over the budgeted cost by the end %ES@?)&KEP BVt 2R T E TR
of the reporting period. Some recognized HNEEZ: BoeRBAEEX
revenue at a point in time. —H%%ﬁ@w
(c) Investment properties rental income () REMEEHERASKA
The rental income of investment properties REMEWENESRAL
is recognized by straight-line method MAOMEBEREER -
according to the lease term.
(d) Retail income d) ZEKA
The Group is engaged in retail business REEBBRERTEER
through Outlets. When the Group transfers mTEEL  EAEEMH
certificates of ownership of goods to %%?&Hﬁ:ﬁuﬂuﬁé CAEBEE
customers, the Group recognizes the sales PR R mA S WA -
income of the goods. Retail income is ZEWABEARSHER
usually settled by cash or credit card. REEHE -
(24) Government grants (24) B Bh
Government grants are the gratuitous monetary T 4 B 7% 7N £ B 1 KA £ fE X
assets or non-monetary assets that the Group SHEEMEESEEMEEE
receives from the government, including tax BREMNERE VRHESF -

returns and financial subsidies.

Government grants are recognized when there BUAT # Bh R & B B S B H
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be FTFS & 5 30 B RE 59U B RS - T
received and the Group is able to comply with LR BT REBENEE
the conditions attaching to them. Monetary E - ERBRKIIKERS S\
assets of the government grants are measured E-BNAEDAIERKEEE
as the amount received or receivable. Non- B BBARNEETE AREE
monetary assets of the government grants are THEAIZNGH  EHREESHE
measured as fair value or notional value if the itE

fair value cannot be obtained reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(24) Government grants (Continued)

A government grant related to an asset is the
government grants acquired by the Group
that specified for acquisition and construction
or in other ways to form long-term assets.
For government grants related to income are
government grants other than government
grants related to assets.

Government grants related to assets are
recognized as deferred revenue or writing
down book value of relevant assets and will
be amortized over the useful life of the related
assets in profit or loss using a reasonable
method. Government grants related to income
which are used to compensate expenses or
losses in subsequent periods, are recognized as
deferred revenue and realized in profit or loss or
writing down relevant costs for the period such
expenses or losses occurred; the ones which are
to compensate expenses or losses occurred in
previous periods are directly realized in profit
or loss or writing down relevant costs. The
Group disclosed government grants in the same
category in the same way.

Government grants related to daily operations
are recognized in operating profit and otherwise
in non-operating income.

The book value of the borrowings with granted
prime interest rate received by the Group are
recognized at the value of net cash received, and
the borrowing costs are calculated on the capital
of borrowings and the granted prime interest
rate. The fiscal interest discount received directly
by the Group writes down the borrowing costs
related.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(25) Deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income
tax liabilities are calculated and recognized
based on the differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts (temporary differences). Deferred
income tax asset is recognized for the deductible
losses that can be carried forward to subsequent
years for deduction of the taxable profit in
accordance with the tax laws. No deferred
income tax liability is recognized for a temporary
difference arising from the initial recognition
of goodwill. No deferred income tax asset or
deferred income tax liability is recognized for
the temporary differences resulting from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities due to a
transaction other than a business combination,
which affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit (or deductible loss). At the balance
sheet date, deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
income will be available to offset the deductible
temporary differences, deductible losses, and
deductible tax amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. EEEeStBEMIEEET &)
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(25) Deferred income tax assets and (25) EEFIEHEENELRBH

deferred income tax liabilities
(Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for
temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
except where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference, and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future. When it is probable that the temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates will be
reversed in the foreseeable future and that the
taxable profit will be available in the future to
offset the deductible temporary differences, the
corresponding deferred income tax assets are
recognized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset if all the following conditions are met:

o they related to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority; and

o the tax payer within the Group has a
legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and current tax liabilities.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . FEEGTHRENEE AR (&)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(26) Leasing (26) A &
At the beginning date of the lease term, the FHESRMAKA  FAAEEY
lessee shall recognize the right- to use assets HERRBEAEEEMNEESR
and lease liabilities. & o
The right-to-use assets shall be initially measured EREEERERBENETH
at cost. The cost includes: (1) the initial WBETE c ZEKABRE (1) HE
measurement amount of the lease liability; BEMVRTESE (2 £HE
(2) the lease payment paid on or before the EMMABB CAZ A ER
start date of the lease term should deduct the HE GEHEERBS  OKRE
relevant amount of the lease incentives which EXHNHENBRABeE: (3
have already rewarded if there were any lease EEABRENVIHREEZEER: @)
incentives; (3) the initial cost directly incurred by EHEARBKHEEGREEEE -
the lessee; (4) the estimate cost to which the ERESEEEMAESMIHEE
lessee is expected to dismantle and remove the EEMEZHEBKRROTMETE
leased assets, restore the leased assets or restore ST EARKAE -
the leased assets to the agreed conditions of
the lease term.
Lease liabilities shall be initially measured at HEaGEREERREEHMASGA
the present value of lease payments that have MAZANHEENKENREE
not been paid at the beginning date of the THBETE - B EMHENHRE
lease term. When calculating the present value WIRER ATAAEBEERAEE
of the lease payment, the lessee shall use the NENEERITEXR: BEET
interest rate implicit in the lease as the discount HERNSMEY  EERBAM
rate; if the use the interest rate implicit in the ABEERMEER/FTRE -
lease cannot be determined, the incremental
borrowing interest rate of the lessee shall be
used as the discount rate.
The right-to-use assets are depreciated using ERAEEENERAFRFHE
the straight-line method to allocate the cost WREAREBBEEHEGEASS
of the assets over their estimated useful lives WEtiR - Wt AEHER -
and recognized in profit or loss for the current
period.
The lessee shall calculate the interest expenses EEAEERRBREEBEVRE
for each period of the lease term according REMEANFTREFEAEEE
to the discount rate used in the initial rental HASHENFEER YA
interest rate and recognized in profit or loss for EHEE -

the current period.

BRIEXRODARAR —E-AFPRHRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(27) Maintenance and quality guarantee
funds

Maintenance fund is collected from property
buyers according to related regulations on behalf
of housing administration bureau, by certain
percentage of selling price of property, the
fund will be delivered to housing administration
bureau upon registration of property ownership.
Maintenance fund is recognized in other
payables when received and is for the repair and
update for the common parts and equipment
and public facilities of the real estate specially.

Quiality guarantee fund is reserved by certain
percentage of the project payment and when
the properties are completed it will be repaid to
constructor, in condition that there’'s no quality

issue in agreed warranty period.

(28) Held for sale and discontinued
operations

A non-current asset or a component of the
group satisfying the following conditions is
classified as held for sale: (1) the non-current
asset or the component in current conditions
can be sold immediately according to usual
trading terms; (2) the Group has made a legally
binding sales agreement and has been approved
for disposal of the non-current asset or the
component, and the transfer will be completed

within one year.
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(27)

(28)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(28) Held for sale and discontinued
operations (Continued)

Non-current assets (except for financial assets,
investment property at fair value and deferred
income tax assets), which meet the recognition
criteria for held for sale are measured at the
lower of the fair value less costs to sell and
the carrying amount. Any excess of the original
carrying amount over the fair value less costs to
sell is recognized as an asset impairment loss.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale, the
assets and liabilities in the disposal groups are
classified as current assets and current liabilities
and should be listed on the balance sheet
separately.

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group that either has been disposed of
or is classified as held for sale, and can be
distinguished from other components within
the Group: (i) the component represents a
separate major line of business or an individual
geographical area of operations; (i) is part
of a single coordinated plan to disposal of a
separate major line of business or an individual
geographical area of operations; (iii) is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively for the purpose
of resale.

Profit or loss from discontinued operation listed
in income statements includes profit or loss from
operating and the disposal.

i3

ST BRI & ATl AT (48)

(28) FERERRLEE(#E)

TARARERTNIERBEE
(TEEeMEE ULAREEE
EMNREERMENNELRS
MEE) UWEHAEEREQAAER
HELEERRFEAMKE -
ARBERELEEBENFHE
BERRERMEBENTE  BRAS
EERERXLX-

REDABEFENFRBEE
MEBEMHTHNEEMEE 28
BRDEEMRBEE UEE
EREXRTEBIR -

RIERERMRTIMRFZ—/

CIEREE
REWEBRYMMEKBLD - B
HRBIERREXERARTE

FEEA: (—) ZERIY KK
—HBUNIBEXHX—EES
mEELEME: (Z) ZEX
BoRBRE -—HBYNEBER
- EEBNITELEMEETT
RREH—RMAREBE M D
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RFHF Al e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(29) Segment information

SHEMNAARETT)

The Group identifies operating segments based
on the internal organization, management
requirements and internal reporting system and
the reportable segments is determined and
segment information is disclosed based on the
operating segments.

An operating segment is a component of
the Group that satisfies all of the following
conditions: (i) the component is able to earn
revenues and incur expenses from its operation
activities; (ii) whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the Group’s management
to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and to assess its
performance, and (iii) for which the information
on financial position, operating results and cash
flows is available to the Group. If two or more
operating segments have the similar economic
characteristics and satisfy certain conditions,
they could be aggregated into one single
operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZZT-NAFRAZTALENERAHAEBRERZHIN  SBEMLAARETIT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(30) Critical accounting estimates and (30) E E 2 5t 14 5 F1 3
judgments
The Group continually evaluates the critical AEBERBELEBRMEMESE
accounting estimates and key judgments applied BESRREENESEES &
based on historical experience and other factors, FRER A B & 2 & 51 i 51 A0 B 52 2
including expectations of future events that BETRENTE - THEAN
are believed to be reasonable. The following B ANERARTEEER
accounting estimates and key judgments may — B FEEEMEBENKRE
lead to significant adjustments in the book value Efﬁﬂjfﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%&’ﬂ@@ :

of assets and liabilities in the next fiscal year:

(i) Impairment of trade receivables (i) EUREBEREEE

The Group’'s main criteria for judging a AN B 2 (5 P R B R I
significant increase in credit risk are that MEE BIRE RS H R EUEB
the number of overdue days exceeds 30 W=+H EBZEAT—EL
days or that one or more of the following ZEBEREEREZ(C:E
indicators have changed significantly: the BAFMBERKEERE - A
debtor’s business environment, internal EBERFR  BERIEHEK
and external credit ratings, significant ERRNEEEL  ERY
changes in actual or expected operating BEIERAFERATRNOE
results, significant decreases in the value ETRE-

of collateral or the credit rating of the
guarantor, etc.

The Group’s main criteria for judging the NEBEHE 2 EEERARBEAE
occurrence of credit impairment are that B F Z R 5w B R BUE B
the number of overdue days exceeds 90 NTBEN BEBEEL)
days (i.e., default has occurred), or that HEFEUT — A% @i
it meets one or more of the following B EBANEEERTBR
conditions: the debtor has major financial BOETHMEBEAIR
difficulties, other debt restructuring or is BEA Y-

likely to go bankrupt, etc.

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(30) Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

()

(i)

Impairment of trade receivables
(Continued)

The Group calculates the expected credit
loss through default risk exposure and
expected credit loss rate, and determines
the expected credit loss rate based on
default probability and default loss rate. In
determining the expected credit loss rate,
the Group uses internal historical credit
loss experience and other data, and adjusts
the historical data with current situation
and forward-looking information. In
considering forward-looking information,
the indicators used by the Group include
the risk of economic downturn, growth
of expected unemployment rate, external
market environment, technological
environment and changes in customer
conditions. The Group regularly monitors
and reviews assumptions related to the
calculation of anticipated credit losses.
The above estimation techniques and key
assumptions have not change significantly
for the six months ended 30 June 2019.

Deferred income tax assets

Judgment for whether deductible
temporary differences and deductible
losses can be reversed in the future
period is required from the Group in
recognizing deferred income tax assets.
For deductible temporary differences and
deductible losses, the Group recognizes
deferred income tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available in the future to offset the
deductible losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(30) Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(iii) Fair value of investment properties

The Group adopts fair value model for
subsequent measurement of investment
properties. Where fair value of investment
properties under construction is not
reliably measurable but is expected
to be reliably obtained after the
construction is completed, the property
is measured at cost until the earlier of
the date construction is completed or
the date at which fair value becomes
reliably measured. Critical estimates and
judgments are required in determining
the timing to adopt fair value model for
subsequent measurement of investment
properties, the Group makes such
estimates and judgments based on the
area, market condition, and development
progress of the investment property
project and obtains independent valuations
for its investment properties at least
annually from an independent professional
appraiser as a third party. The fair value
is determined in accordance with the
methods below:

o Current prices (open market
guotations) in an active market
for the same or similar investment
properties;

o When such information above is not
available, then use recent trading
prices in an active market of the same
or similar investment property, and
take the factors of situations, dates
and locations of transactions, etc.
into consideration;

° Based on the estimated rental income
generated in the future and present
value of the related cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(31) Changes in significant accounting
policies

(a)

Modification of the format of general
enterprise statements

In 2018, the Ministry of Finance issued
“Notice of the Ministry of Finance on
Revising the Format of the General
Enterprise Financial Statements for
2018 (Accounting [2018] 15)” and
its interpretation, the Group and the
Company reclassify the non-bank interest
income for the six months ended 30 June
2018, which originally included in the
finance expense to investment income.

In 2019, the Ministry of Finance issued
“Notice of the Ministry of Finance on
Revising the Format of the General
Enterprise Financial Statements for
2019 (Accounting [2019] 6)" and its
interpretation, the Group split the notes
payable and accounts payable, in addition,
interest payable in other payables of the
Group and the Company only reflects
interests that have been due for the
relevant financial instrument but has not
been paid at the balance sheet date,
interest of financial instruments based
on effective interest method should
be included in the book value of the
corresponding financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZZT-NAFRAZTALENERAHAEBRERZHIN  SBEMLAARETIT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Z. FEEHRENGEEE#E)

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(31) Changes in significant accounting BN EZEHRREE(E)

policies (Continued)
(b) Leasing (b) ME
In 2018, the Ministry of Finance issued MRBR_FE—NFEMT
revised CAS No. 21 — Leasing (hereinafter Bl EGFEANSE
“the new leasing standards”). The Group 2158 — HEIAT B M
has adopted above-mentioned standards SR - REBED KB
to prepare the financial statements for the HEEB R B £201956
six months ended 30 June 2019. A308 1L/} M6 A 5 B 7% 4R
=

For contracts of the Group signed before AEBEHR-_Z—-NF—A
1 January 2019, the Group chose not to —HAEREENER A&
reassess whether it was a lease or included EEEIENFIEEEER
a lease. HEREBEHE -
On account of implementation of the new HfTHEEER - RNEE
leasing standards, the Group increased A —T-NFARNA=1TH
the total assets by RMB43,168,000, BHMBHRRTREEAR
total liabilities by RMB43,547,000 in its #43,168,000 T © FHILRE
consolidated financial statements as at 30 & AR #®43,547,0007T °
June 2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

3.

TAXATION =. WA
The types and rates of taxes applicable to the Group AEBBERANETENEREHRXIRNA
are set out below: i
Type Taxable base Tax rate
BE =T B AKX & B =
Enterprise income tax Taxable income of subsidiaries located in 25%
the PRC
EEMREH REE AT QR ENT TSR
Income from taxable dividends of non- 5%-10%
resident enterprises and investments
disposal in mainland China
HFERCENETRMBA RERBEIEA
BRERENEA
Taxable income of subsidiaries located in 16.5%

Value added tax
("VAT")()

s# (8 5t

LAT
T IR AR

City maintenance and
construction tax

YT A R R

Education surcharge

e =K 4Pl

Property tax
FEM

Hong Kong
EB T RP R E A

Taxable value added amount (calculated
at taxable sales multiplied by applicable
tax rate, deducting the input VAT
deductible in current period)

JEE 40 7156 1 (B 7R (B 4 750 2R 4% JRE A B4 3H B R O
NEAREHNRERAATFEMAEIRDR
BH R H

Taxable value added amount through sales
of properties

EEEWEMNGHRMNTIEER

Amount of VAT and business tax paid

FERERI RIBERRE

Amount of VAT and business tax paid

fEME X R ER KRR

Taxable residual value of properties
FE®FHERE

Rental income of properties
EEHMBESBA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE-T—

TAXATION (Continued)

According to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance
and the State Administration of Taxation on the
Adjustment of VAT Tax Rate issued by the Ministry of
Finance and the State Administration of Taxation (No.
32 of Finance and Tax [2018]), and relevant provisions,
the VAT tax rate applicable to the income of the
Group’s sales of properties is 10% from 1 May 2018,
and 11% before 1 May 2018.

According to the Notice of Announcement on
policies to deepen VAT reform issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of
Taxation and the General Administration of Customs
(Announcement No. 39 of the Ministry of Finance,
the State Administration of Taxation and the General
Administration of Customs in 2019), and relevant
provisions, the VAT tax rate applicable to the income
of the Group's sales of properties is 9% from 1 April
2019, and 10% before 1 April 2019.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

NERNA=+TBIEE AR BREFRIFHEIN -

CHREMR/RARE T

Tt I8 (#)
RIBHMEE BRBRBERBGOCH
BE  BRBGERBENFHEEZEHRS

3@ &) (B #[2018]325%) K A8 4 48
E-B-ZE-N\FREA-BE ~&E
MEMEHSEXH WA BRNEEN

MER/IO%  —FT—\FRA—HAZ
EBEREERREER/% -
REVERS BREFER  BHEE

AN REIEETNERBRR
BMAENTBRAHBEREHEEELNSE
—E-NEFEFEIN) MERESRE  B=F
—NFEMNA—BR  AEBENFEMEH
EXEBRANERNEERRERI%
“E-NFEA-BAZEREMAEE
MHER/I0% -

& G R R A B MY &

(1) Cash at bank and on hand (1) E¥ES
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—N\F
~NA=+H +=-—A=+—H
Cash on hand EFER% 303 553
Bank deposits |ITHFE R 37,143,644 22,388,421
Other cash balances EmEEE 243,301 137,628
Total A 37,387,248 22,526,602

As at 30 June 2019, bank deposits include
supervised advances from customers,
mortgaged and pledged deposits for loans,
performance guarantee fee, security deposits
for certain mortgage loans to customers and
certain loan and bond interests amounted
to RMB370,955,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB721,005,000). The Group has reclassified
the above amounts to restricted bank deposits.

As at 30 June 2019, other cash balances include
deposits for bank acceptance bill amounted
to RMB169,069,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB57,391,000). The Group has reclassified the
above amounts to restricted bank deposits.

R-ZE—NFEXA=1tH"  R7T
FRPEHEARKE370,955,0007T
—N\E+ZA=+—H: AE
#721,005,000) W IR EEE A
% E }R?ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ/\ B #
REFIE FPRIBEFRRER
&ﬁﬁﬂ%{%ﬁi\i AEED
REIPHEXRES -

R-Z—hENA=ZF+H EibE
MEeheEARE169,069,000
T(CE—N\E+_A=+—H: A
R #57,391,0007T) /938 77 74 5 (&
ZREFECHER AEEEHES
HEXRER o

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHEMNAARETT)

M. SOt B|KRIAE W T #E)

(2) Trading financial assets 2) xEGHEMEE
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
ZE-hF —T-N\F
ANAB=+H +ZA=+—H
Financial assets designated at WUAREEFTERLHSE
fair value through profit or P AEHERNS
loss — BEE -
Investment of real estate —FARERKR
projects in Australia due MEFERER
within one year (Ff¥ 7 78 (10)(a))
(Note 4(10)(a)) 3,078,546 2,950,405
Investment Funds operated by BHAIESFBREML
Capital Securities Co., Ltd. AEl (AT BIEE
(“Capital Securities”) (i) BEDEEES() 161,439 32,575
Investment Funds operated FRIEBEFRH
by First Capital Securities BRAR AT
Co., Ltd. (“First Capital [— &l %))
Securities”) (i) "EE2) 108,056 41,270
Capped currency swap MEEREBREH
contracts 96,779 -
Total A& 3,444,820 3,024,250

(i) As at balance sheet date, the fair value of the trading
financial assets is determined by the closing price on

the last trading day of the period.

(3) Trade receivables

0] NEEBEBRA ZEXZUEH

EERBEEFRRIMA

HRE-AXZARRERT -

(3) EWERR

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

~NA=+tH +-A=+—H

Trade receivables JrE W BR 3R 4,719,341 3,617,558
Less: provision for doubtful 12 AR E ()

debts (i) (7,000) (7,000)

Net V8 4,712,341 3,610,558

Most sales of the Group are in the form of
cash and advanced payment. Other sales are
collected according to the agreed terms on sales

contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL m., 8HPBERRIEBWNFE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(3) Trade receivables (Continued) (3) EWBERFRE)
The aging of trade receivables based on their FEWEBE R E ARA BRI D
recording dates is analyzed as follows: Mo

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

~AB=+tH +=ZA=+—H

Within 1 year —FHA 1,399,533 1,264,461

1 to 2 years — 3= 1,819,415 2,157,101

2 to 3 years —E=F 1,335,147 65,400

Over 3 years =FE 165,246 130,596

Total & 4,719,341 3,617,558
(i) Provision for doubtful debts (i) Z=ER%EE

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-AEF —E-N\F

~NA=+tH +=-A=+—H

Provision for doubtful debts JE UG BR R BR

of trade receivables A 7,000 7,000
As at 30 June 2019, analysis of separate RZZE—hFA=1+H"
assessment for provision for doubtful debts BRI R B A E AR
of trade receivables are as follows: HOMMT -
Expected Provision
Book lifetime loss for doubtful
value rates (%) debts
EEFED
EHEA
B T #4288 BXE(%) ERER
Trade receivables JE U BR R 7,000 100 (7,000)
Except for the trade receivables with the BRIA F B IR B AR EH Y
provision for doubtful debts mentioned FEU R 7R - AN 5= B At IR UL
above, there is no significant anticipated ERITFEERNEHER
credit loss and no provision for doubtful BEX - R REBRER -

debts in other trade receivables were
recognized by the Group.

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL m. aHFBEHRRIEBEWNFE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Advances to suppliers (4) FERFIE
The aging analysis of the advances to suppliers T RIBRE®RDTOT
is as follows:
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
“E-AFERA=tH ZE—N\FE+ZHA=1+—H
% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
L ZE L5l 1l #8 %8 L )
-l (%) 5 (%)
Within 1 year —F PR 282,559 68 831,355 95
Over 1 year —F LAk 131,202 32 40,958 5
Total = 413,761 100 872,313 100
The advances to suppliers with aging over Ll RREc A — F M TR RIE £
one vyear are mainly advances to suppliers EREMNIER AREBEEEE
for construction. As progress of the projects MARERNEEGEE  ZFEER
had not reached the terms of settlement, the e o

advances had been not recognized as properties
under development.
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BEZ-NAFNA=THLENERHSBE (KR EHEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

.

CHREMR/RARE T

B Ot R IA B M Rk (#)

(5) Other receivables (5) HEMEWR
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E—hE —ET-N\F
ANA=+H +ZA=+—H
Receivables due from related JRE LT 8 Bt 75 5k 1B
parties (note 9(6)) (P 5 11(6)) 20,908,908 15,059,343
Receivables from joint A AR R3)
bidding (i) 3,045,592 2,761,328
Consideration receivables from  J& U i% # &
disposal of equity and claims & 18 8 % R (i)
for debts (ii) 487,075 1,320,927
Land deposits and other THEREREZS
guarantee deposits B iReE & 1,485,916 398,471
Receivables from government 4 it [0] B8 X
repurchase of land use rights 157,927 227,927
Collect and remit payment on R UL B 5K 18
behalf 120,454 137,866
Dividends receivable JE A A% A 36,578 12,000
Interests receivable JE A1) B 5,059 2,826
Others HAtb 655,781 587,331
Total & Er 26,903,290 20,508,019
Less: provision for doubtful B EERERE
debts (263,010) (263,010)
Net pEig-L 26,640,280 20,245,009

As at 30 June 2019, receivables from joint bidding
were mainly receivables of the Group due from
cooperation in real estate projects with third party real
estate development companies.

In 2013, the Group disposed 50% of equity interests
of Outlets Property Investment Guangdong Ltd.
(hereinafter “Outlets Guangdong”) to a third party,
with part of consideration for equity transfer and
receivables from Outlets Guangdong unreceived. As at
30 June 2019, receivables of consideration from equity
transfer and receivables from Outlets Guangdong
totaled to RMB392,834,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB392,834,000). As at 30 June 2019, the Group
believed the credit risk of the receivable has increased
significantly and accrued provisions for impairment
of RMB178,000,000 based on the lifetime expected
credit loss (31 December 2018: RMB178,000,000).

HEIEERMG

RZZE-AFRA=+TH BaR
?*Xﬁlﬁgliﬁi%*ﬁ%i@?%ﬁ%
BR AT EERBARER

RZZ—AFXA=+H " EEK
BEZRARREERTRRAER
& it A A R #392,834,000T (=
T-NF+-_A=Z+—H AR%
392,834,0007T) * EAREARHRL
T ZHFEASEBRFENR
HENEXERERAAUATHE
W‘%F?J)SO%HM&L.&%%*
o BB R EE R R R R E
%E’JEX RIEE KWK E - NEEE
RREEFERERERIE XK
12 R E 2 B A R 178,000,000
(Z2—NE+=-B=+—H8: AR
#178,000,0007T) °

MBERRAR ZE—NEFHHPHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(5) Other receivables (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Besides, as at 30 June 2019, the amounts included
receivables due from HuaQian Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
“HuaQian Company”) for the disposal of overseas
equity interests of Beijing Tiancheng Yongtai
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Tiancheng
Yongtai”), an original subsidiary of the Group,
amounted to RMB94,241,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB90,670,000). The Group believes that the
amounts are recoverable and not impaired, so are
not subject to separate assessment for provision for
impairment.

Aging analysis of other receivables are as
follows:

M. SOt B|KRIAE W T #E)

(5) HtbEUWR#E)

EBBUAFEREERT QA
RBKFERIINREELENRIKE
HAEBRRTOATHEHR QAR
A R 594,241,000t (=
E-N\F+ZA=+—H:AR¥
90,670,0007t) * AEER READ
HIEAAME - A FEERNTAS
ERBAEL BRAHREERER -

(a) HtBUKEHRIFTMOT :

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-)N\F

~AA=+H +ZA=+—H

Within 1 year —F LA 22,835,094 19,340,858
1 to 2 years —H =% 3,232,731 469,025
2 to 3 years —H=F 156,440 106,739
Over 3 years =FMNE 679,025 591,397
Total a&t 26,903,290 20,508,019

Loss provision and changes in book

(b) BAEBERHKREAKELD

value *®
First stage Third stage Total
E-K8 EELES At
Expected credit Expected credit Expected credit loss for the
loss over the next loss over the next lifetime (impairment has
12 months (grouping) 12 months (separate) Sub-total occurred)
ARRTZ@AR ARTZBAR EEGAREAGRAER
RAGREX(ER) RAGERAX(EE) it (BRERARE)
Provision Provision Provision Provision Provision
Book for doubtful Book for doubtful for doubtful for doubtful for doubtful
value debts value debts debts Book value debts debts
REHE ERER REBE BRER BRER REKE BRER BRER
31 December 2018 ZE-\FTZAZT-8 16,154,076 - 3,829,099 - - 524844 (263,010) (263,010)
Additions N:iEip: 5,832,779 - 562,492 - - - - -
Transfer to the third stage  BAZE=K& - - - - - - - -
30 June 2019 ZE-NERRZTH 21,986,855 - 4,391,591 - - 524844 (263,010) (263,010)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. &0 %R &xIE B M 5T (&)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(5) Other receivables (Continued) (5) HEtEWRE)
(b) Loss provision and changes in book (b) BXEBREKREHKESET

value (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, there is no significant
expected loss for other receivables at the
first stage and no provision for doubtful
debts has been recognized.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has no

other receivables at the second stage.

As at 30 June 2019, analysis of provision
for doubtful debts for other receivables at

®R(E)

RZZE—NFXNA=+8"
B 7 85 — Py B A L B U 3K
FrEEEANESHEZHIE
KOREMIRIBIREWH o

RZE-NAFRA=1+H"
AEEEBNE _BROE
i FE Y SRR o

R-ZZT—-—hFANA=1TH"
Ba 1R 56 = P& B ) EL At FE MR

the third stage are as follows: BIZREBSTAOT
Expected Provision
credit loss for
Book rate for the doubtful
value lifetime (%) debts
BEFED
EHEAR
BE=E
B T 85 58 (%) ZHRE®H
Separate assessment for BIFET R
provision:
Receivables of consideration  J& 4% & i 3 &
from equity transfer BEER
and due from Outlets TR KA
Guangdong 392,834 45  (178,000)
Receivables of agent MREMIAR
construction from Nanjing  REZEFHIA
Longpao project 70,219 33 (23,219)
Others H A 61,791 100 (61,791)
Total CE 524,844 (263,010)

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL /g .
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Bt R R M (®)

108

(6) Inventories (6) F7&
(a) Inventories are classified as follows: (@) FESBWNT:
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
—E-NERAZTH —F-\f+zZA=1+-H
Book Provision for Book Book Provision for Book
balance inventories value balance inventories value
RAKE FEUEEE 2 REEE FESE GEREER REEE
Properties under development B E A& 64,209,788 - 64,209,788 58,683,646 - 58,683,646
Properties held for sale BEER 14,879,848 (45,361) 14,834,487 16,265,545 (45,361) 16,220,184
Land under development Bodti 87,949 = 87,949 364,600 - 364,600
Others A1) 177,404 = 177,404 135,287 - 135,287
Total A 79,354,989 (45,361) 79,309,628 75,449,078 (45,361) 75,403,717
(b) The movement of inventories’ book (b) FTERMHBBEAFTELE SN
balance in current year is as follows: T
31 December 30 June
2018 Additions  Reductions 2019
—E-N\F “E-hE
+-A=+—H A A E R D ~A=1H
Properties under development B % i A& 58,683,646 8,692,733  (3,166,591) 64,209,788
Properties held for sale FHE#ER 16,265,545 3,166,591 (4,552,288) 14,879,848
Land under development FEmLi 364,600 43,096 (319,747) 87,949
Others Hi 135,287 95,848 (53,731) 177,404
Total X 75,449,078 11,998,268  (8,092,357) 79,354,989
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6)

Inventories (Continued)

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

(6) #FE(#)

(c) Analysis of provisions for impairment of () FEXKEBEEBIFTWOT:
inventories are classified as follows:

31 December Additions Reductions 30 June

2018 AR KR D 2019

—E-N\F Provision Reverse Write-off Z=ZB—-h#&

F=F == e 4G @ XA=tA

Properties held for sale REED 45,361 - - - 45,361

For the six months ended 30 June 2019,
the properties with the carrying amount
of RMB4,503,972,000 (for the six months
ended 30 June 2018: RMB3,754,684,000)
has been recognized as cost of sales from
sales of properties.

As at 30 June 2019, the finance
costs capitalized in the properties
under development amounted to
RMB5,798,986,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB5,202,779,000). For the six months
ended 30 June 2019, the capitalization
rate is 5.66% (for six months ended 30
June 2018: 5.18%).

As at 30 June 2019, certain land use
rights and buildings in properties under
development of the Group with the
carrying amount of RMB17,401,898,000
(31 December 2018: RMB18,916,208,000)
have been mortgaged as security for
long-term borrowings amounted to
RMB6,511,755,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB5,127,800,000) (note 4(25)).

BEIEERMERAA

HEz—_ZT—-—hLF~A=+H
IER{E AM K& B R®E
REEWEHEETEER
KAMTFEXREABARKE
4,503,972,000 0 (HEz—=
—N\EXA=+TAHLEAREARH
Al A R #3,754,684,000

JC) ©

RZZE—-NAFRNA=T
B HAEXAHRESMER
EREAENEBARE
5,798,986,0007T (=& —/\
FTZR=+—B:AR¥
5,202,779,0007T) - # = —
E-AFXRA=+tHILR
BAME FHEREX
R5.66% (B E_ZT—\F
NA=THIEAREAHME:
5.18%) °

R—_ZT—h&ExA=+8"
AEBHBEXN AP EFET
B1E A R#17,401,898,000
T(ZE-N\F+ZA=+—
H: A K #18,916,208,000
TRt ERAEREER
KWMLK BT ERH
&3 A R#6,511,755,0007T
(Z2—NF+=ZA=+—8:
AR #5,127,800,0007T ) (Bt
FEPO(25)) °

ZE-NERHRE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL /M. &8 %R & IE B M5 (#)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(7) Contract assets (7) cEEE
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
~B=+tH +=ZA=+—H
Primary land development T — R B 5,366,384 4,436,823

As at 30 June 2019, there was no significant
expected credit loss in contract assets and
no provision for doubtful debts has been
recognized.

(8) Other current assets

R=E-AFAA=+H 2RA
EFFEEANBEMEABR -
RETRERRL -

(8) HiRBHEE

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

AA=tH +ZH=+—H

Prepaid taxes BHTE 3,161,234 2,820,691
Costs for obtaining contracts & R EE K AR 78,946 100,598
Total =1y 3,240,180 2,921,289

(9) Current portion of non-current assets

(9 —FRIPNFABEE

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
AA=tH +ZH=+—H
Receivables from primary land  EUR Tt — 4% FI 33X
development 311,975 4,397,880

WL —REERBEIRER
ERZESEXFARETLAAUA
THRIZZEXZDRSFLANIER
MARIEEEN L —HH
(W P [ B &) 18 B 1 8 U B 3R
B -R-ZE-AFANA=ZTB&
BA ™A RH¥311,975,0007T (=
Z-NEF+ZA=+—RH ARH
4,397,880,0007T) T8 &t #% 70 AR 2K
—FRKE - BEEFA-FR
FMERBEE -

Receivables from primary land development are
mainly receivables of Beijing Liujin Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Liujin Real Estate”) from
primary land development (rebuilding project
of shanty town) in Xihuangcun, Shijingshan
District, Beijing, amounted to approximately
RMB311,975,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB4,397,880,000), which is expected to be
recollected within one year, such amounts were
reclassified as current portion of non-current
assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZZT-NAFRAZTALENERAHAEBRERZHIN  SBEMLAARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10) Other non-current financial assets

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

(10) Atk RBERMEE

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E—-h#EF —E—)N\F

AA=+tH +Z-H=+—H

Investment of real estate RO I8 B ih E R B K

projects in Australia (a) (@) 4,599,172 4,011,134
Investment of Tiancheng HRWKFRTRER
Yongtai (b) (b) 2,165,471 2,165,471
Less: Investment of real estate  J&t : —F AR HIAYIR K
projects in Australia MEFHERE
due within one year (B 5 7 (2))
(Note 4(2)) (3,078,546) (2,950,405)
Net F EE 3,686,097 3,226,200
(a) This investment is the principal and interest of the (a) ZREAANEEHRKRNANTE
AUD debt investments in real estate development EEERMHEEERIKRENSK
project in Australia. The principal and interests SRAE -RZZT-—NERA=ZF

amounted equivalent to RMB4,599,172,000 as at 30
June 2019 (31 December 2018: RMB4,011,134,000)
and will mature in December 2021 respectively and
will be recollected at the maturity date. Among which,
RMB3,078,546,000 will be recollected before 30 June
2020, therefore it is reclassified as trading financial
assets as at 30 June 2019.

The investment is the right to profit in real estate
development project of Tiancheng Yongtai held by the
Group.

B A kA EFEGARERL;D
4,599,172,000c (=& —NF+ =
A=+—H: AKRI#%4,011,134,000
) A RFBEERZT=—F+
ZARDRIEE - BE -k E AR
BoHp KERMEFTEARKE
ﬁ§+%’U3,078,546,00077:H%E§:§:
TEXNA=ZTHANKE - A=
—NEXNAZ +EEA%EZ%&
CREE °

(b) ZHER/REEZENRMKERH
FIEE R RS -

(11) Long-term equity investments (1M REBRERE

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

~B=+tH +=ZA=+—H

Joint ventures (a) &%) 3,576,454 2,974,549

Associates (b) i & 1 2 (b) 2,266,876 2,133,824

Total &5 5,843,330 5,108,373
Less: provision for impairment i : REAIR IR E R E

of long-term equity i
investments = -
Net F R 5,843,330 5,108,373

AEBTNFERBREREZEDR
KW s e Bl e B R BR 1)

There is no significant restriction on sale of the
long-term equity investments of the Group and
collection of the investment income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M.

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity i
(Continued)

nvestments

Bt R R M (®)

(1) REKRERESE)

(@) Joint ventures (a) &gix
Changes in this period
AEEHEY
Share Cash
of net Share of other Other ~ dividend Impairment
31 December Increase in - Decrease in~ (losses)/ comprehensive equity o profit  Provision for 30 June  at period
2018 investment  investment profit income  movement  declared  impaiment  Others 2019 end
R EEEH
13 ERRN  ApGS  EfEE RERN  HREE Z¥-hE REER
ToAZT-A EBNRE  WORE  BBE hEEE 28 3R g Hf AAStR  HRHE
Shenyang Jitian Real Estate Co, Ltd. ~ BEEREXERAR
("Shenyang Jitian") (ATRIBEER) 87,785 - -3 - - - - - 85468 -
Beijing Wanzhu Real Estate Co, ltd.  #REZEMERFERER
("Befing Wanzhu") ARNTRILREE] 48,938 - - 6,32 - - - - - 55,259 -
Tianjin Tonghua Qiangyu Investment and % % B4 T REFEARAT
Management Co,, Lid. (ATRIEE%T)
("Tonghua Qiangyu") 14,365 - - 2,253 - - - - - 16,618 -
Thuhai Henggin Shouju Chuangein Equity 5 EZ &R EREREE
fund Co. Ltd. (""Zhuhai Henggin Fund £ EERA(NTHE
Management Company”) [REREELEELA) 31367 - - 8 - - - - - M0 -
Zhuhai Henggin Chengdu Weihua HEREABRERER LD
Equity Investment Fund (LLP) (‘Zhuhai 0 (ERAB)(ATE
Henggin Chengdu Weihua Fund”) () [ ERERSBEEER) () 34241 - - 35m - - - - S £ E] -
Shanghai Shoujia Real Estate Co, Ltd.  tHEEE$ARLE
("Shanghai Shoujia”) (i (ATRILEEED () 816,853 - - 6,686 - - - - - 83539 -
Shanghai Henggu Real Estate HEERRMEREERLR
Development Co,, Ltd. (ATBILEEE)
("Shanghai Henggu') 118,496 - - (1309 - - - - - 17192 -
Shanghai Songming Real Estate LERERRERYERLA
Development Co,, Lid. (TR0 )
("Shanghai Songming”) 101,588 - - 9 - - - - - 101,680 -
Capital Qinglv (Kunshan) Real Estate Co. EBIEHER (BU)ERAR
Ltd. ("Capital Qinghv") (ii) (AT BIE8ER]) (i) 239,754 - - e - - - - - 3159 -
Beijing Jinlong Yonghui Real Estate Co, 72 EXBEEERAT
Ltd. (*Jinlong Yonghui") (v) (AT RI28XE]) (v) 99310 - - 49 - - - - - 1042 -
Beijing Dacheng Guangyuan Real Estate 3t 3 A tEE$ARAT
Co,, Ltd. ("Dacheng Guangyuan”) (\) (AT ERMEEL) (1) 95,079 - - B - - - - - 10812 -
Beijing Shangbodi Investment Consultant 4 7 2 E BRI AR AR
(o, Ltd. (*Shangbodi’) (vi (AT BIE L) ) 199,360 - - 4999 - - - - - 204359 -
Tianjin Lianjin Real Estate Co, Ltd RARERHEREERLA
("Tianjin Lianjin") 18,568 - - (1,198) - - - - - 11310 -
Shanghai Zhiyue Industrial Co,, Ltd.
["Shanghal Zhyue’) 4419 - - B - - - <943 24169 -
Beijing Yuanchuang Xingmao Real Estate St REEIRKERARAA
Co, Ld. ("Yuanchuang Xingmao’) (AT RIEEEK)) 17967 - - (1589) - - - - - 10,378 -
Beijing Chuangyuan Yicheng Real Estate 3t 78I EE£ARAT
Co., Ltd. ("Chuangyuan Yicheng") (ATRIeERE]) 42,565 - - B4 - - - - - W -
Shanghai Zanchuang Sports Venues  HEEEIRESRERERAT
Management Co,, Lid. (ATRILEEE)
("Shanghai Zanchuang") 2387 - - kil - - - - - 2,698 -
Befjng Yuanchuang Xingcheng Real X REEIEHEZHRLA
Estate Co,, Ltd. (AT RIRERS))
("Yuanchuang Xingcheng") 45,629 - - (6986 - - - - (38643 - -
Beijing Jinhaihu Culture Tourism IXERERRAR
Investment Co, Ltd. E:tieid)
("linhaihy Culture Tourism") 171,25 - - (40d) - - - - - 170851 -
Tianjin Lianzhan Real Estate Development % 2HBREHERLERA
Co,, Ltd. ("Tianjin Lianzhan") {vil AATRIRZHE ] il 158,014 - - (1599) - - - - (7458 148,961 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE-ZT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M.

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(@) Joint ventures (Continued)

—NFENA=THIENE AR (BRES BRI

CHREMR/RARE T

B Ot R IA B M Rk (#)

(1) REKRERE#E)

(@) &&LEE)

Changes in this period
THEHEY

Share Cash

of et Share of other Other ~ dividend Impairment
31 December Increase in  Decrease i (losses)/ comprehensive equity o profit Provision for 30 June at period
2018 investment  investment ~ profit income  movement ~ declared  impaiment  Others 2019 end
iEg 0
I k3 BN AfRR  ERER RERM  HREE ZB-hE HEER
TZASt-A EBNRE  WORE  FBE haEE 29 3MR EE At RAZTR  HREE
Chongging Huayu Yesheng Industrial Co, EFETEAEEERAT
Ltd. ("Chongging Huayu Yesheng”) BEFEA) 19,625 - - (19) - - - - - 19,429 -
Tianjin Ruibin Real Estate Co., Ltd. A
("Tianjin Ruibin”) 318,553 - - (1769 - - - - - 310784 -
Tianjin Hefa Real Estate Development
Co,, Ltd. ("Tianjin Hefa") (AT BIX24%)) 48431 301340 - (139 - - - - (26272) 322,260 -
Beijing Yuechuang Real Estate FRBEABREREARAA
Development Co,, Lid (TR
("Beijing Yuechuang”) - %849 - (1579 - - - - 74,188 -
Bejing Tonghao Beifang Real Estate Co, % Z@H A
Ltd. (Bejing Tonghao Beifang) - 19600 - 861) - - - - - 18,739 -
Xiamen Rongdi Real Estate Co,, Ltd
("Xiamen Rongdi”) - 36000 - mn - - - - (1) 20,748 -
Ningbo Shouju Yiming Investment ?&EP qs“aéQ%\%
Partnership (*Ningbo Shouju Yiming")  (§RAE)
(ATRIZREERH) - 233300 - 1 - - - - - 13330 -
Others it - 45,608 - (19806) - - - - (3600 2,180 -
Total E 2974549 734338 - 13476 - - - - (145909) 3,576,454 -
The related information of the joint BEMERNERIEBE
ventures are set out in note 6(2). BREMENRQ) -
(i) Zhuhai Henggin Chengdu Weihua Fund is (i) KEBREKBEEES A

limited partnership established by Zhuhai
Henggin Fund Management Company as
the general partner in 2015, and the Group
subscribes 22.52% of the intermediate units in
the Fund, which holds 100% equity interests
Estate Co., Ltd.

in Chengdu lJinhui Real

(hereinafter “Chengdu Jinhui”). The fund has a 1

total scale of 1,200,000,000 shares amounted
to RMB1,200,000,000. The fund is treated as
interests of non-consolidated special purpose

vehicle of the Group.

For the six months ended 30 June 2019,

7$1,200,000,00015 -
# & A R %1,200,000,000
T REERAEERRMA

TE-RFBRERINEAR
ABEE KEH
BERMBEEEL22.52%
B R AR B
ERHEAREEXERR
2~ A (AT RIAK 2B 28 & |)

REBIKE

% E SR

00% fix 1 - ® 2 & R 1K

B

EHBENEBLIE-

the Group recognized investment income of

RMB39,572,000 (for the six months ended 30
June 2018: RMB47,203,000).

HE—

—NFRNA=1+H
/\flﬂﬁﬁf&ﬁ ANEEE

FENREBERER/ARE
39,572,0007T (B = =

=T —

NERA=+HILXEAHS
i AR #¥47,203,0007T) °

HEIEXRONDARR

Al —E-NFPHRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

(@) Joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(vii)

The Group holds 60% equity interests of
Shanghai Shoujia. According to the Articles
of Association of the company, the decisions
of relevant operation activities of Shanghai
Shoujia require the unanimous consent of the
Group and other shareholders, therefore it is
recognized as a joint venture.

The Group holds 51% equity interests of
Capital Qinglv. According to the Articles of
Association of the company, the decisions
of relevant operation activities of Capital
Qinglv require the unanimous consent of the
Group and other shareholders, therefore it is
recognized as a joint venture.

The Group holds 14.55% equity interests of
Jinlong Yonghui. According to the Articles
of Association of the company, the decisions
of relevant operation activities of Jinlong
Yonghui require the unanimous consent of the
Group and other shareholders, therefore it is
recognized as a joint venture.

The Group holds 12.5% equity interests of
Dacheng Guangyuan. According to the articles
of association of the company, the decisions
of relevant operation activities of Dacheng
Guangyuan require the unanimous consent of
the Group and other shareholders, therefore it
is recognized as a joint venture.

The Company holds 51% equity interests
of Shangbodi. According to the articles of
association of the company, the decisions
of relevant operation activities of Shangbodi
require the unanimous consent of the Group
and other shareholders, therefore it is
recognized as a joint venture.

The Company holds 17.5% equity of Tianjin
Lianzhan. According to the articles of
Association of the company, the decisions
of relevant operation activities of Tianjin
Lianzhan require the unanimous consent of the
Group and other shareholders, therefore it is
recognized as a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . A BHEzxBEEW T (&)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments M) REBEREZ)
(Continued)
(b) Associates (b) Mg
Change in this period
ARERRD
Cash
Share of Share of other ~ Other ~ dividend Impairment
31 December Increase in  Decrease in et profit/ comprehensive  equity or profit Provision for 30 June at period
2018 investment investment ~~ (losses) income  movement  declared  impaiment  Others 2019 end
RERAE 0
I SIt3 Eld ibhe  AfEE RERH  RREE Z$-hE REER
ToAZt-A ENRE  HORE  BRE  hERE 25 9iE L3 ] i ABStR  HRHE

Beijing Golden Net Property Investment % R4 848 % 5 48M

Adviser ("Golden Net") (i (TR @R 13211 - - (105) - - - - - 1311 -
Beijing Sunshine City Commercil IREAREERERRAT

Investment Co,, Ltd. (“Sunshine City (W T&IB 7))

Commercial") 250217 - - 6,289 - - - - - 256,506 -
Shenyang Capital Xinzi Real Estate Co, BBEEINAEZHRLA

Ltd. ("Shenyang Xinz") (ATEIREHE] 260127 - - 318 - - - - - 263200 -
Tanjin Xinging Real Estate Co, ltd. ~ RZEEFEEZERDA

("Tianjin Xinging") (ATBIXEHE]) 264,444 - - 1170 - - - - - 265614 -
Tianjin Xinming Real Estate Co,, Ltd. R 2EEHHIFERLA

("Tianjin Xinming") (AT BIREHE]) 194783 - - (56) - - - - -1 -
Thuhai Henggin Ruiyuan Jialing Equity  ARERTERRERES

Investrnent Fund (LLP) (“Zhuhai bERA

Henggin Ruiyuan Jiaing Fund") (i)~ BERTERES]) (i) - - - - - - - - - - -
Capital Qingly Culture Tourism (Kunshan) & 8 & &1t B (E.L)
Co,, Ltd. ("Capital Qinglv Cultwre”) ~ BRAFAUATE

EE B3] 14,965 - - - - - - - - 14965 -
Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit FReBREHE R AR
Garden Development Co, Ltd. BERLATRRER
("Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit R E R i)
Garden") i) 403221 - - 89,750 - - - - (%404 483567 -

Nanchang Huachuang Xinghong BEEHRRELERLA
Real Estate Co,, Ltd. ("Nanchang A IEEES)

Huachuang”) 30170 - - 4,457 - - - - - 34,621 -
Befjng Tengtai Yiyuan Real Estate Co, S REREREXERLA
Ltd. ("Tengtai Yiyuan") UTBIEEEER) 208,363 - - (4.953) - - - - - 203410 -
Beiing Kaiyuan Hean Investment FRRTARREERERD
Management Co,, Ltd. ATRETNZ])
("Kaiyuan Hean") 494,257 - - (4,635) - - - - - 489,622 -
Beijing Ruicheng Yongchuang FRBRAEHRERAA
Technology Co, Lid. (AT BIRAAE)
("Ruicheng Yongchuang”) - 11,100 - (447) - - - - - 10653 -
Guangzhou Zengcheng Runyu Purchase B 2B RS EZERAA
(o, Ltd. {"Guangzhou Runyu") (ATRIEMESR) - 40,000 - 438 - - - - 819 36783 -
Total At 2,133,824 51,100 - 94,175 - - - - (12223) 2,266,876 -
The related information of the associates EHECEPNEREBE
are set out in note 6(2). B RMWFERQ) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

()

(iii)

The Company holds 14% equity interests of
Golden Net and has significant influence on
board of the directors of Golden Net, which
is responsible for determining the financial
policies in the ordinary course of business,
therefore it is classified as an associate of the
Group.

Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan Jialing Fund is limited
partnership established by Zhuhai Henggin
Fund Management Company as the general
partner in 2014, and the Group subscribes
20.73% of the intermediate units in Zhuhai
Henggin Ruiyuan lJialing Fund, which holds
100% equity interests in Chongging Shouhui
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Shouhui
Real Estate”). The fund has a total scale
of 2,200,000,000 shares amounted to
RMB2,200,000,000.

The fund is recognized as interests of non-
consolidated special purpose vehicle, and
the Group has significant influence over the
fund according to the partnership agreement,
therefore it is classified as an associate.

The Group holds 50% equity interests of
Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit Garden.
According to the articles of association, the
Group has significant influence on board of
Zhongguancun Integrated Circuit Garden,
which is responsible for the financial decisions
in the ordinary course of business, therefore it
is classified as an associate of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. & (7 s&xIB B M s (&)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(12) Other equity instrument investments (12) HESTAEARE

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E—hE —ET-N\F
~B=+tH +=ZA=+—H
Equity instrument investment T A&
Equity interests of non-listed NG ¢
companies
— UCOMMUNE (Beijing) -ERIHEER)
Venture Investment BIERERR
Co., Ltd. (hereinafter NE (AT 13
“UCOMMUNE") [MBETH] 238,283 238,283
— CDB Siyuan (Beijing) - BERBEGER)
Investment Fund Ltd. KEESBR
(hereinafter “CDB NE (AT
Siyuan”) [EF B ) 50,000 50,000
Total A& 288,283 288,283
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
~AA=+H +ZA=+—H
UCOMMUNE BRI
— Cost - B AR 200,000 200,000
- Accumulated changes - B ARBEEZS
in fair value 38,283 38,283
CDB Siyuan Bl B
— Cost RN 50,000 50,000
- Accumulated changes - B ARBEEZE
in fair value = -
Total AFr 288,283 288,283

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(13) Investment properties

M. SOt B|KRIAE W T #E)

(13) REUFHE

Investment  Investment

properties  properties

under under

Completed development development

Investment measured at measured at
properties fair value cost (i) Total

NAEE  HAHED

BRI HENERT HRPREM
REKEHE REUEHE B E() At
31 December 2018 2 \f+ZA=1+-H 16,216,941 2,862,000 1,491,299 20,570,240
Additions REER - 592,916 558,261 1151177
Other adjustments HE (1,972) - - (1972)

Gains on change in fair value MEEEDESR

(Note 4(41)) (3 2 (41) 110,585 32,878 - 143,463
Transfers e - 637,700 (637,700) -
Transfer of completion REEE 1,636,488 (1,636,488) - -
30 June 2019 ZE-NERA=TH 17,962,042 2,489,006 1411860 21,862,908

U]

As at 30 June 2019, some of the investment properties
of the Group are still under construction, of which the
fair value cannot be reliably determined but is expected
to be measured reliably after the completion, therefore
the Group measures such investment properties at cost
until the date construction is completed or the date at
which fair value becomes reliably measurable, when is
earlier.

As at 30 June 2019, certain investment properties
with book value of RMB13,236,023,000 (31
December 2018: RMB11,113,254,000) have been
pledged for long-term borrowings amounted
to RMB5,262,007,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB5,037,007,000) (note 4(25)).

For the six months ended 30 June 2019, the
capitalized financial costs in the investment
properties amounted to RMB105,928,000 (for the six
months ended 30 June 2018: RMB98,115,000). The
capitalization rate is 5.93% (for the six months ended
30 June 2018: 5.18%).

For the six months ended 30 June 2019, the
effect on changes in fair value of investment
properties recognized in profit or loss amounted to
RMB143,463,000 (for the six months ended 30 June
2018: RMB235,134,000).
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFNA=THLENERHSBE (KR EHEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(14) Fixed assets

CHREMR/RARE T

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

(14) BIE&EE

Motor Office
Buildings vehicles equipment Total
EE -
BEY EBHIAE BOARE A&t
Cost RE

31 December 2018 “E-N\F+-A=F—H 298,100 43,562 113,044 454,706
Increase AEEM - 1,495 9,983 11,478
Purchase BE - 1,495 9,983 11,478
Decrease KER D (7,950) (5,314) (634) (13,898)
Dispose and written-off RERWE (7,950) (5,314) (634) (13,898)
30 June 2019 “E-NERAZTH 290,150 39,743 122,393 452,286

Accumulated depreciation 2t E
31 December 2018 —E-\E+ZA=1+—H (26,539) (32,732) (80,665) (139,936)
Increase AEE M (5,915) (2,321) (7,744) (15,980)
Provision iR (5,915) (2,321) (7,744) (15,980)
Decrease YR 928 4,310 207 5,445
Disposed and written-off BE NRE 928 4,310 207 5,445
30 June 2019 —E-NERA=TH (31,526) (30,743) (88,202) (150,471)

Provision for impairment WEER
31 December 2018 ZE-\E+ZA=T—H - - - -
Increase AEEM - - - -
Decrease AER D - - - -
30 June 2019 “T-NERAZTH - - - -

Net book value FEEE
30 June 2019 —E-NERA=ZTH 258,624 9,000 34,191 301,815
31 December 2018 - \F+ZA=1+—H 271,561 10,830 32,379 314,770

For the six months ended 30 June 2019,
depreciation expenses charged to general
and administrative expense amounted to
RMB15,980,000 (for the six months ended 30
June 2018: RMB7,747,000).

BE_ZT-NFRA=THIEXRE
AHMBFAERERNINEER
A ANE#15,980,000T (B E=ZF
—N\FERA=THIERERERE
AR ¥7,747,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL m. aHFBEHRRIEBEWNFE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(15) Deferred income tax assets and (15) EEFBREENELZFBH
deferred income tax liabilities 8fE
(a) Deferred income tax assets before (a) AREHENELRBHEE
offsetting
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
“E-hERAZTA ZZ-\tZA=1+-H
Deductible Deductible
temporary temporary
differences  Deferred differences Deferred
and deductible income tax  and deductible income tax
losses assets losses assets
BE:ik 11 A ME R
EERUEN BEMSH ZEARUEN  EEAEH
BR gE B BE
Provision for impairment of BEAEER
assets 32,310 8,077 32,310 8,077
Accrued salaries and other BRIAREMKAER
costs and expenses 68,576 17,144 58,576 14,644
Accumulated losses ZiEE 8,030,784 2,007,696 6,423,108 1,605,777
Downstream trading offset B % %58 158,132 39,533 - -
Internal unrealized profit BHATRERTE
elimination 176,848 44,212 178,796 44,699
Total At 8,466,650 2,116,662 6,692,790 1,673,197
Including: E:
Amounts of reversal expected B R -ER(5—F)
within 1 year BOmed
(including 1 year) 108,567 53,191
Amounts of reversal expected — EiR-FREANLE
beyond 1 year 2,008,095 1,620,006
Total At 2,116,662 1,673,197
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL g .
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(15) Deferred income tax assets and

B Ot R IA B M Rk (#)

(15) EEFREHEENELREHR

deferred income tax liabilities =8-1€ V)
(Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax liabilities before (b) ARIEENELFMESBAE
offsetting
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
“E-AERAZTH “E-\f¥+-A=t-H
Taxable  Deferred Taxable Deferred
temporary income tax  temporary  income tax
differences liabilities differences liabilities
Eas EEREH @K BEHREHR
HRMER 8 ERUEZE B
Other non-current financial assets AR eRnAE 142,084 35,521 142,084 35,521
Business combination other than FR-BHTEEEH
common control 844,012 211,003 845,760 211,440
Capitalized interest BRI E 4,092,912 1,023,228 3,604,788 901,197
Changes in fair value of investment — SFABHMBERRFIHLE
properties recognized in profit or AREERE
loss 5,250,102 1,312,526 5,115,465 1,278,866
Changes in fair value of investment ARG ARENEE
properties recognized in other EEHELDABEED
comprehensive income 416,494 104,124 455,984 113,996
Depreciation differences of REMEHENTEEER
investment properties 312,360 78,090 263,652 65,913
Primary land development - HEE 368,380 92,095 367,552 91,888
Others Hith 12,660 633 58,552 12,106
Tota At 11439004 2,857,220 10853837 2710927
Including: e
Amounts of reversal expected within B3t R —F R (5 —F)
1 year (including 1 year) BOREE 862,657 495,550
Amounts of reversal expected BiR—FREEM
beyond 1 year L E 1,994,563 2,215,377
Total EEl 2,857,220 2710927
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL m. aHFBEHRRIEBEWNFE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(15) Deferred income tax assets and (15) EEFBREENELZFBH
deferred income tax liabilities B8E#E)
(Continued)
(c) The deductible temporary differences and () AEBRERELEMESHE
deductible losses with no deferred income EMAENEREEERTA
tax assets recognized are as follows: BIOEESTOT

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E)N\F

~NB=+H +=-A=+—H

Deductible losses AENEE 3,244,668 2,976,688
Deductible temporary AENEREER

differences 652,010 652,010

Total =1 3,896,678 3,628,698

(d) The deductible losses with no deferred d) KXERELEHMEMEEN
income tax assets recognized will be AT E BN TEEF
expired as follows: H -

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hF —E)N\F

ANB=+H +ZA=+—H

2019 —E-NF 532,248 532,248

2020 —_EEF 668,652 668,652

2021 —E-—F 821,472 821,472

2022 —E-= 444,212 444,212

2023 B =4 510,104 510,104

2024 —EZPF 267,980 -

Total =X 3,244,668 2,976,688
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(15) Deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities
(Continued)

(e) The net balance of deferred income tax
assets and liabilities after offsetting are as

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

(15) EEFREHEENELREHR
aE#)

(e) HEHEMELEMBHEEM
AT P 1S B BB F 51 R A0

follows: N
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
ZE-nEXAZ1H —E-\¥+-_A=+-H
Balance Balance
Offsetting after  Offsetting after
amount  offsetting amount  offsetting
EHEE HELHE DEeE HBEERE
Deferred income tax assets EEREHEE 182,251 1,934,411 139,168 1,534,029

Deferred income tax liabilities  EEFEHEE

182,251 2,674,969 139,168 2,571,759

(16) Provision for impairment of assets

(16) EERERBXREHR

Decrease

31 December 30 June

2018 RS 2019

—Z—/\%# Additions  Reversal  Write off —Z-f%&
tZA=t-A A8%h B #% AA={H

Provision for doubtful debts of FERETRRER

trade receivables (note 4(3)(i) (2 3)) 7,000 - - - 7,000

Including: separate assessment Hi BEGRER
for provision B 7,000 - - - 7,000
Provision for doubtful debts RN SRER

of other receivables (B Em5)b)

(note 4(5)(b)) 263,010 - - - 263,010
Sub-total INEt 270,010 - - - 270,010
Provision for inventories FERBEER

impairment (note 4(6)(c)) (H P (6)(0) 45,361 - - - 45,361
Provision for goodwill EEREERE

impairment 172,137 - - - 172,137
Sub-total N 217,498 - - - 217,498
Total it 487,508 - - - 487,508

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(17) Short-term borrowings

(17) EHER

M. SOt B|KRIAE W T #E)

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

~NA=+tH +-A=+—H

Credit borrowings SRAER 1,059,713 1,398,664

Pledged borrowings (a) E 1B F () 1,350,000 1,350,000

Interest accrued FHEF B 23,415 -

Total &3 2,433,128 2,748,664

(a) Pledged borrowings (a) BEHER

As at 30 June 2019, short-term RZZE—-—NEFNA=Z+

borrowings of RMB1,350,000,000 (31
December 2018: RMB1,350,000,000) are
pledged by the right to profit of trade
receivables to be collected after sale of
properties under development of the
Group.

As at 30 June 2019, the range of annual
interest rate for short-term borrowings
is 2.73% to 6.50% (31 December 2018:
3.66% to 6.50%).

(18) Trading financial liabilities

B EHERXRARE
1,350,000,0007t (ZZF—N\
F+_A=1t—H:AR%
1,350,000,0007%) B A&
B DA G 3 K AN S ] EE A
FEM BR R s R E R E RS
Ao

R-ZZE—-HNFANA=1TH"
MHEROMNERER
2.73% £6.50% (ZZF — N\
F+-ZA=+—H:3.66%
%6.50%) °

(1) X EZHEmAE

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—)N\F

~NA=+tH +-A=+—H

Derivative instruments THETLA 7,959 15,849

The Group entered into capped cross currency
swap contracts for certain foreign currency
liabilities such as medium-term notes, etc,
which belong to derivatives.

The Group

recognized such derivatives as trading financial

liabilities.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(19) Trade payables

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

(19) BN IR

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

~B=+tH +=ZA=+—H

Trade payables JE 11 BR 5K 7,356,474 9,442,087

The aging analysis of trade payables are as

FENERIZEARBSOREK D

follows: W
30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E—-h#E —E-)N\F

ANB=+tH +=ZA=+—H

Within 1 year —F R 6,732,583 8,673,535

Over 1 year —&F M 623,891 768,552

Total =X 7,356,474 9,442,087

(20) Contract liabilities

(20) eE&E

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-h#E —E-)N\F
AA=tH +ZH=+—H

Advances from sales of FEIEBEE X
properties under development 17,085,251 16,984,377

Advances from sales of 8 W7 o R

merchandise 36,756 32,080
Others EAh 85,574 85,752
Total & & 17,207,581 17,102,209

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL m. aHFBEHRRIEBEWNFE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(21) Employee benefits payables (21) E B T & o
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hE —T—N\F

AA=+HB +ZHA=+—H

Short-term employee benefits &} 52 HA #7 Bl (a)

payables (a) 110,842 216,101
Defined contribution plans & 3% FE 12 17 51 2 (b)

payables (b) 362 2,445

Total & &t 111,204 218,546

(@) Short-term employee benefit payables (a) EHFHM

31 December 30 June

2018 Additions  Reductions 2019

—E-N\% “E-hE

TZA=+—-8  AHEEM AHES KNA=tH
Wages and salaries, bonuses, T8 %% RENFEHE

allowances and subsidies 144,029 429,718 (535,734) 38,013
Staff welfare BIGEMNE - 1,271 (1,271) -
Social security contributions HEeRBRE 1,756 23,709 (24,545) 920
Including: Medical insurance H: BERRE 1,549 21,166 (21,920) 795

Work injury insurance ITERRE 146 842 (885) 103

Maternity insurance YERKBE 61 1,701 (1,740) 22
Housing funds FERES 28 23,448 (23,292) 184
Labor union funds and employee TE&EENBIHELE

education funds 9,517 6,564 (4,732) 11,349
Directors' emoluments (Note 9(7)) #=Z# & (K& (7)) 26,550 419 (419) 26,550
Profit-sharing plan FBEAZEEE 33,705 - - 33,705
Others short-term employee H {th 55 50 %5 B

benefit payable 516 1,956 (2,351) 121
Total CE 216,101 487,085 (592,344) 110,842

As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December RZZE-NFARA=THERK

2018, there is no defaulted payables in —E-N\Ft+ZA=+—8"

employee benefits. FERT B TP R BB RN
KRB R -

The Group does not provide non-monetary AEERBELSRBITIRHENIEE

benefit to employees. B A o
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(21) Employee benefits payables (Continued)

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

(21) BB T HM (&)

(b) Defined contribution plans payables (b) BEEREE
31 December 30 June
2018 Additions  Reductions 2019
“E-)\F “E-nE
TZA=+—-B  AEEM  ABES ARA=TH
Basic social pension security ETRERR 2,128 37,671 (39,592) 207
Annuity FeHE 133 1,850 (1,965) 18
Unemployment insurance KERRE 184 1,419 (1,466) 137
Total Bt 2,445 40,940 (43,023) 362

(22) Taxes payables (22) EXHE

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
AA=tH +ZA=+—H
Land appreciation tax payable 22 £ # B EF 2,497,903 2,236,500
Enterprise income tax payable [EXMZEFEH 680,972 552,412
VAT payable JE I (B 421,257 274,406
Others HAth 46,934 76,727
Total A& 3,647,066 3,140,045

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE-T—

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

AVEFER A=+ B L7 M8 A B (B R B FE B 4 -

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(23) Other payables

SHEMNAARETT)

(23) Hftb B X

M. SOt BHRKRIBE W T E

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
ARA=+H +ZH=+-—H
Payables to related parties JRE Y B8 B 77 1 2R 3K
(Note 9(6)) (Pt 5 1.(6)) 11,759,859 5,517,878
Payables for equity transfer JRE <t Bt e 8 5 3K 1,300,000 1,300,000
Payables to Tiancheng Yongtai  FEff X K A KR 2,657,050 779,251
Interests payable due to J& 1< & 55 F 8
debentures payable = 729,580
Dividends payable to related JE 11 B8 Bt 7 Pk A
parties (Note 9(6)) (Bt 3% S1.(6)) 495,978 133,153
Payables to project investment JEfFIBE IR E XK 29,613 345,803
Payables for routine business JRE S L A £ & 4 2R K 594,175 381,177
Dividends payable to other JE Ao EL At #E 25 T A R R
equity instruments 450,595 422,697
Collection of deeds tax and KU R e E
maintenance funds on
behalf of government 151,989 217,239
Deposits from customers BE® 102,713 108,508
Interests payable due to JE 18 R B
borrowings = 51,893
Tender deposit WIRIRE R 337,597 44,812
Dividends payable to senior & = A ok BB (B R A
perpetual securities 17,405 17,405
Others HAb 1,760,091 356,781
Total A& 19,657,065 10,406,177

(24) Current portion of non-current

(29) —FRIHENERBES

liabilities
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZZE-N\F
ARA=+H +ZH=+-—H
Long-term borrowings due —FRH N RAER
within one year (Note 4(25)) (Pff % 19 (25)) 6,155,369 5,800,590
Debentures payable due within — — & R | HiH) fE S & 5
one year (Note 4(26)) (B 3£ 7T (26)) 9,842,764 10,250,340
Long-term payables due within  — & RE|HH K B fE
one year (Note 4(27)) (KT EEm(27)) 5,860,000 4,620,000
Lease liabilities due within one —FREIHNAEEE
year 27,647 -
Interest accrued A A 788,252 -
Total & &t 22,674,032 20,670,930
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL g .
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(25) Long-term borrowings

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

B Ot R IA B M Rk (#)

(25) RAE R

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E—hE —ET-N\F
ANA=+H +ZA=+—H
Credit borrowings (a) & B1E R (a) 26,029,229 18,879,285
Guaranteed borrowings (b) IR B fE % (b) 1,887,000 1,893,000
Mortgaged borrowings (c) A E () 10,452,762 8,843,807
- General mortgaged - —REMERX
borrowings 5,258,115 6,037,007
- Guaranteed by the Group - EEANHMBER -
and mortgaged borrowings 185 5,194,647 2,806,800
Pledged borrowings (d) B A 1E () 1,130,000 1,416,470
— General pledged borrowings - — & & ## & 3 1,130,000 1,130,000
- Guaranteed by the Group - SEARNMER
and pledged borrowings BEHRER = 286,470
Guaranteed and mortgaged REE -~ HEEZK ()
borrowings (e) 248,000 248,000
Mortgaged and pledged B BHRER
borrowings (f) 1,073,000 1,073,000
Borrowings from debt BRI &5 88 (9)
investment plan (g) 15,500,000 11,660,000
- Guaranteed by the Group - FEANEERERX 11,000,000 7,160,000
— Guaranteed by Capital - BEIEEERER
Group 4,500,000 4,500,000
Sub-total IINEF 56,319,991 44,013,562
Less: Long-term borrowings W — F B A
due within one year, REIEF
including: Hrp:
Credit borrowings (a) EHERQ) (2,505,961) (387,182)
Guaranteed borrowings (b) R &7 (b) (61,000) (62,000)
Mortgaged borrowings (c) T E () (440,408) (769,408)
Pledged borrowings (d) =1 3R (d) (1,130,000) (64,000)
Mortgaged and pledged HiR - BHRER
borrowings (f) (18,000) (18,000)
Borrowings from debt ERR A EItEF(9)
investment plan (g) (2,000,000) (4,500,000)
Sub-total NEE (6,155,369) (5,800,590)
Net FER 50,164,622 38,212,972

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(25) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit borrowings

Among the borrowings above, interests
of principal of RMB700,000,000 are
paid half-yearly, interests of principal of
RMB25,329,229,000 are paid quarterly.
Principal of RMB2,505,961,000 should
be repaid on or before 30 June 2020,
such amount was classified as long-term
borrowings due within one year in financial
statements.

Guaranteed borrowings

As at 30 June 2019, the guaranteed
borrowings amounted to
RMB1,887,000,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,893,000,000) are guaranteed by
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
or third parties.

Interests of the borrowings above are
paid quarterly. The principal amounted to
RMB61,000,000 should be repaid on or
before 30 June 2020, and such amount
was classified as long-term borrowings due
within one year in financial statements.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019

(a)

(b)

M. SOt B|KRIAE W T #E)

(25) REAfERR(E)

FERER

A R #700,000,0007T # &
RHBEFEFEIN—IK A
R #525,329,229,000 8y &
RABE=Z@EAIZMN—K -
Ke AR ¥2,505,961,000
TER-ZZE_FTF A=
HANEE  WEFBRE L
FIRB—FRNEEHNRBE

=+
oo

AR

R-ZE—-—NFRNA=1TH"
AEBREBEERAGFARE
1,887,000,0007c (=& — N\
F+ZA=+—RH:AR%
1,893,000,0007T) * B+ 2
B2 EBRRIE=ZTRT
NERMEREA

L EFRMNEE=MEA
XR—K A2 ARE
61,000,000 cEN T -F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(25) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(o)

Mortgaged borrowings

As at 30 June 2019, the mortgaged
borrowings amounted to
RMB10,452,762,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB8,843,807,000). Of which, bank
borrowing of RMB3,062,108,000 (31
December 2018: RMB3,763,000,000)
were secured by the mortgage of certain
properties under development of the
Group (Note 4(6)), bank borrowing of
RMB2,196,007,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB2,274,007,000) were secured by the
mortgage of certain investment properties
of the Group (Note 4(13)), bank borrowing
of RMB3,201,647,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,116,800,000) were guaranteed by
the Group for subsidiaries and secured by
the mortgage of certain properties under
development of subsidiaries (Note4(6)),
bank borrowing of RMB1,993,000,000 (31
December 2018: RMB1,690,000,000) were
guaranteed by the Group for subsidiaries
and secured by the mortgage of certain
investment properties of subsidiaries
(Note4(13)).

Among the borrowings above, interests
of principal of RMB1,135,000,000 are
paid monthly, interests of principal of
RMB9,317,762,000 are paid quarterly. The
principal amounted to RMB440,408,000
should be repaid on or before 30 June
2020, and such amount was classified as
long-term borrowings due within one year
in financial statements.

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

(25) REAfERR(E)

(c)

BEIEXRMNARDA

i ERK

R-_ZT—hFENA=Z+H8"
AEEEMEREFTARE
10,452,762,0007T (= & —
NE+—A=+—HB: AR
8,843,807,0007T)  Eh -
& 3 A R #3,062,108,000
T(ZE-N\F+ZA=+—
BH: A R #3,763,000,000
JT) B 7R &= E LA AR B BE B
¥ E R R S (K
FmeE): e R ARK
2,196,007,0007c (=& — N\
F+-—AZ+—H:ARK
2,274,007,0007T) LA AN 5= &)
K1 B 1% F i EE AR E
A EmEA3)  fERAR
#3,201,647,0007C (=& —
NFE+—A=+—B: ARH
1,116,800,0007T) f 7~ & &
BT ARREER  YHT
REAEERERYEESR
WHEA (MM (6)) 5 B3R
AR #1,993,000,0007T (=
E-NE+-A=F+—-H:A
E#1,690,000,0007T) 1 4
EEATRARRMEER I
BT RARNRE M FHEE
AR S A (s (13)) ©

Eat & xR AR E
1,135,000,0007T #) f&
MBEMEAXN—R: A
E %9,317,762,0007T &
ERAMNEEB=@EA XM
—Re BEHF - AEARE
440,408,000t BN =T =
TENA=ZTHAEE &
EMBRR EIRAE—FA
FHHREMER -

—E-NFHBERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(25) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(d) Pledged borrowings

(e)

As at 30 June 2019, bank borrowings
of RMB1,130,000,000 (31 December
2018: RMB1,416,470,000) were pledged
borrowings obtained by the Group. Of
which, borrowings of RMB1,130,000,000
(31 December 2018: RMB1,130,000,000)
were pledged by the right to profit of trade
receivables of subsidiaries of the Group.

Interests of the borrowings above are
paid quarterly. The principal amounted to
RMB1,130,000,000 should be repaid on or
before 30 June 2020, and such amount
was classified as long-term borrowings due
within one year in financial statements.

Guaranteed and mortgaged
borrowings

As at 30 June 2019, the guaranteed
and mortgaged borrowings of the
Group amounted to RMB248,000,000
(31 December 2018: RMB248,000,000)
are guaranteed by the Capital Group
and secured by the mortgage of certain
properties under development of the
Group (Note 4(6)).

Interests of the borrowings above are paid
quarterly.
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(d)

(e)

M. SOt B|KRIAE W T #E)

(25) REAfERR(E)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE-T—

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(25) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Mortgaged and pledged borrowings

As at 30 June 2019, the mortgaged
and pledged borrowings of the Group
amounted to RMB1,073,000,000 (31
December 2018: RMB1,073,000,000) are
guaranteed by the Group, secured by the
mortgage of certain investment properties
of the Group (Note4(13)) and pledged by
the right to profit of trade receivables.

Interests of the borrowings above are
paid annually and the principal of
RMB18,000,000 should be repaid before
30 June 2020, such amount was classified
as long-term borrowings due within one
year in financial statements.

Borrowings from debt investment plan

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had
borrowings of RMB15,500,000,000 (31
December 2018: RMB11,660,000,000)
through certain debt investment plans.
Of which RMB4,500,000,000 (31
December 2018: RMB4,500,000,000) are
guaranteed by Capital Group with interest
paid quarterly; RMB11,000,000,000 (31
December 2018: RMB7,160,000,000) are
guaranteed by the Group with interests
paid quarterly. Among the borrowings
above, RMB2,000,000,000 should be
repaid before 30 June 2020, such amount
was classified as long-term borrowings due
within one year in financial statements.

As at 30 June 2019, the range of annual
interest rate for long-term borrowings
is from 3.40% to 8.30% (31 December
2018: 3.40% to 8.30%).

NERNA=+TBIEE AR BREFRIFHEIN -

CHREMR/RARE T

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

(25) ﬁﬁﬂ{a TA(ZE%)

()

(9)

HEIEERMG

BH - BREX

R-ZZE—-—hFRNA=1TH"
REBEM - ERERHG
AR #1,073,000,0007T (=
T N\F+ZA=+—H:A
K #1,073,000,0007T) * M
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REEFREAAREEFH
IZ{’E%TRW(W?@(B))
]IEEFEWEE KU s EE RS
iEA

FaEFRNEEF AN
—ReHf - KEe ARE
180000007EFEE<\ ==
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i

EREEREBEGHNE
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FFEmENEREARK
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE-T—

4.

AVEFER A=+ B L7 M8 A B (B R B FE B 4 -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(26) Debentures payable

SHEMNAARETT)

.

Gk

Ot B1 7% ¥ 3% 18 B Y 5 (#)

(26) B &%

Including:
interest
accrued at
Issued in  Amortization book value
31 December current  at effective  Redemption Other 30 June  in current
2018 period interest rate in this period  movements 2019 period
Hep
—E-N\E ERA % “2-AE FEREE
+ZA=+—-H KEET B REER Hi#8s A~A=TH FHRA &
Corporate bonds (i) AEF() 25,740,419 7,421,140 18,212 (5,810,000) - 27,369,771 687,806
Medium term notes (ii) EPEH?H%( i) 7,083,805 - 4,059 (258,600 8,062 6,837,326 132,863
Other notes (iii) H A& % (i) 2,736,318 - 2,616 (3,440) - 2,735,494 114,492
Sub-total NaE 35,560,542 7,421,140 24,887  (6,072,040) 8,062 36,942,591
Including: debentures LS LEL
payable due B A
within one &%
year (10,250,340) (9,842,764)
Net FE 25,310,202 27,099,827
0) With approval of Bond Financing Plan Investment (i) CAREREERSHATHEIL

(CFAE letters[2018] 472) of Beijing Financial Assets
Exchange Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “CFAE"), the Company
issued non-public corporate bonds with amount
of RMB1,500,000,000 at 30 January 2019. After
deducting the related underwriting and issuing fees,
the net amount of bonds actually received by the
Company is RMB1,482,000,000. The bond has a
three-year term with a fixed annual interest rate at
6%. The bond pays interest annually and pays the
principle one-time at maturity and the last interest.

With the approval of Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE
letters [2019]171), the Company issued non-public
corporate bonds across two tranches with amount
of RMB5,960,000,000 before 30 June 2019. After
deducting the related underwriting and issuing fees,
the net amount of bonds actually received by the
Company is RMB5,939,140,000. The bond has a
three-year or five-year term. The bond is interest-
bearing with a fixed annual interest rate range from
4.3% to 4.58%. The bond pays interest annually and
pays the principal one-time at maturity and the last
interest.

As at 30 June 2019, the Company holds corporate
bonds with a total face value of RMB27,460,000,000,
after deducting the related underwriting and issuance
fees, net amount totalling RMB27,369,771,000,
the interest rate range is 3.70% to 6.00%. On 30
June 2019, the book value of corporate bonds was
RMB7,100,893,000 and was repayable on or before
30 June 2020, therefore classified as non-current
liabilities due within one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(26) Debentures payable (Continued)

(if)

As at 10 February 2014, the Board of Directors of the
Company announced the establishment of medium-
term notes and perpetual securities program. Under
this program, Central Plaza Development Ltd. (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, hereinafter
“Central Plaza”) can offer and issue securities to
professional and institutional investors, with a principal
limitation of no more than USD1 billion (or equivalent
in other currency units). Securities will be issued
on different release date and with different terms.
International Financial Center Property Ltd., (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, hereinafter “IFC")
and some of its subsidiaries provided unconditional
and irrevocable guarantees and the Company entered
into a Keepwell Deed for the medium-term notes.
Pursuant to the Keepwell Deed, the Company will
undertake to cause Central Plaza to remain solvent and
going concern at all times, and guarantee both Central
Plaza and IFC have sufficient liquidity to ensure timely
repayment in respect of the bonds and the guarantee
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
medium term notes and other obligations under the
Keepwell Deed. On 12 January 2017, the Medium-
Term Notes and Perpetual Securities Program was
updated with the maintenance agreement provided by
the Capital Group.

As at 17 February 2014, Central Plaza issued medium
term notes amounted to RMB250,000,000 and
received proceeds of RMB245,627,000 net of relevant
issuance costs. The bond carries a fixed annual
interest rate of 6.875% paid semi-annually and with
a maturity period of 5 years. The principal and the
interests for the last period will be fully repaid on the
maturity date. On 30 June 2019, the note was due for
repayment.

As at 25 January 2017, Central Plaza issued medium
term notes amounted to USD400,000,000 and
received proceeds of USD396,006,000. The bond
carries a fixed annual interest rate of 3.875% paid
semi-annually with a maturity period of 3 years. The
principal and the interests for the last period will
be fully repaid on the maturity date. IFC provided
unconditional and irrevocable guarantees and Capital
Group entered into a Keepwell Deed for the medium
term notes. As at 30 June 2019, the book value of
the medium-term note was RMB2,741,871,000, which
was reclassified into non-current liabilities due within
one year.

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

(26) B &% (&)

(ii)

RZTE—NMF_A+H  XRFE
EEEERUPHERRKEES
&l - REBEZE  ARAZEE
F 2 A]Central Plaza Development
Ltd., (LATF#[Central Plazal) Al [a)
HENKREBREEREZEENET
&% A+ E£RA1,000000,000
EFR(HNEMBEERBELNEE
BH) BFHERTRETHAR
BARGHRDHET - hHREH
A AT 2 2 & F A #AlInternational
Financial Center Property Ltd., (1A
THEMNFCH R EE D F QA2 # &
R PR REESEEER I
MARBRBETHE  REHS
oW % 0 AN R G5 % B Central
Plaza7E 1L fo &5 & 5 18 1+ 82 7 M #5 4
% - W BhCentral PlazaflIFCA A
RMEERB ML BREIZBHH
REGERERGHERBEXNRPEHER
BRERNTMENFIBSHTH
HBETHET RZT—tF—A
TZB RPHEBRKERSF

AEThEREERMETHE -

R-_T—mMFE=-A++8 - Central
Plaza Bk I 2 X HA R & T 4F 1) R A
Z & A R #250,000,0007T © #
B AE B & S5 317 B A & - Central
PazaB B MBI HEAARY
245,627,0007T » s HI R B R A
BHFEE - EEFHNEA6.875% -
FBEFEME K BB REEARN
W T HEE—BRNE - RZFT—
NENA=ZTH ZZHECHHE

B/ o

R—ZFE—tF—-—A=-+HHB"
Central Plazap{Tie R EEE A4E
ETTHFPHZE - N AE R R
1TEM% » Central Plaza® KU 2|
75 %0396,006,000% T - & H =
BHRA=F  HKABFMNFE B
FEMEKR3.875% @ FEEMNE—
R EH-kEERS T I HEE
— R B - BIFCIREEEN - A
BHETECER YhHEA&EE
Rt ItE RN_ZE—NENA
=+H ZYHEEEESHEAR
#%2,741,871,000tENEEZ—F R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(26) Debentures payable (Continued)

(iii)

As at 5 July 2017, Central Plaza issued medium term
notes amounted to USD100,000,000 and received
proceeds of USD99,238,000. The bond carries a fixed
annual interest rate of 3.700% paid semi-annually
with a maturity period of 3 years. The principal and
the interests for the last period will be fully repaid
on the maturity date. IFC provided unconditional and
irrevocable guarantees and Capital Group entered into
a Keepwell Deed for the medium term notes.

On 24 January 2018, Central Plaza updated medium
term notes and perpetual securities program, the
principal limitation for offering and issuing securities
to professional and institutional investors increased to
UsD2,000,000,000 (or equivalent in other currency
units).

As at 30 January 2018, Central Plaza issued medium
term notes amounted to USD500,000,000 and
received proceeds of USD493,832,000. The bond
carries a fixed annual interest rate of 3.875% paid
semi-annually with a maturity period of 3 years. The
principal and the interests for the last period will
be fully repaid on the maturity date. IFC provided
unconditional and irrevocable guarantees and Capital
Group entered into a Keepwell Deed for the medium
term notes.

As at 2 August 2018, Trade Horizon Global Limited
(@ subsidiary of the Company, hereinafter “Trade
Horizon") issue note amounted to USD400,000,000
and received proceeds of USD397,619,000 net of
relevant issuance cost. The notes carry a floating
interest rate paid quarterly with a maturity period
of 3 years. The principal and the interests for the
last period will be fully repaid on the maturity date.
Capital Grand provided unconditional and irrevocable
guarantees and Capital Group entered into Keepwell
Deed, liquidity support and equity purchasing
commitment for the note.
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BHET-AFANA=+THIENEABME (K ERIFEES -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(27) Long-term payables

(27) RMEMAR

CHREMR/RARE T

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
ZE-hF —T-N\F
ANA=+H +ZA=+—H
Pingan Trust Co. Ltd. FTRETEREARR
("Pingan Trust”) (a) (ATHEIFZEED
(a) 3,600,000 3,600,000
Huanengguicheng Trust Co. EREHEFXERAF
Ltd. (“Huaneng Trust”) (b) (ATHEIEREED
(b) 960,000 1,200,000
Zhongjian Investment Trust Co. R EFEFXERET
Ltd. (“Zhongjian Investment RAIAT B REKR
Trust”) (c) =50 © 1,300,000 1,400,000
Others HAth 25,976 27,001
Sub-total NEF 5,885,976 6,227,001
Less: Long-term payables due & : —F A Z Bm K H
within one year JE 5 3K
Pingan Trust (a) F &5t () (3,600,000) (3,600,000)
Huaneng Trust (b) #EgeEstb) (960,000) (720,000)
Zhongjian Investment Trust (¢) A EE{EFE(Q) (1,300,000) (300,000)
Sub-total NEF (5,860,000) (4,620,000)
Net FRE 25,976 1,607,001

(a

As at 30 June 2019, the borrowings principal due
to Pingan Trust amounted to RMB3,600,000,000 (31
December 2018: RMB3,600,000,000) was guaranteed
by the Company with a maturity period of 2 years.
Principal of RMB3,600,000,000 should be repaid on
or before 30 June 2020, such amount was classified
as current portion of non-current liabilities in financial
statements.

As at 30 June 2019, the borrowing principal due to
Huaneng Trust amounted to RMB960,000,000 (31
December 2018: RMB1,200,000,000) was guaranteed
by the Company with a maturity of 3 years. Principal
should be repaid on or before 30 June 2020, such
amount was classified as current portion of non-
current liabilities in financial statements.

(a)

RZBE-NFRNRA=1THE £&&
BENFLZEERARARE
3,600,000,000L (== N\F+=
A=+—B8:AR#¥3,600,000,000
) BERHBRERA-F > HARAR
FARRFEERMEA - ZRBEHR
“ECRFEXRNASTAMEE  8E
DPRE-FANIMOERDEE -

RZZE-NFRA=ZTRH X%
BRENEREXTREARARE
960,000,000 c(=ZE—NF+=H
=+ —H: A K#¥1,200,000,000
) ERBMRA=F > BARAR
FRBEHRBREA - ZKEER
“E-EFEXRASTEAIE  BE
SDEE-FRNIHHERDAMR -

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHEMNAARETT)

FINANCIAL

(27) Long-term payables (Continued)

(©) As at 30 June 2019, the borrowing principal
due to Zhongjian Investment Trust amounted
to RMB1,300,000,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,400,000,000) was guaranteed by the Company
with a maturity of 3 vyears. Principal should be
repaid on or before 30 June 2020, such amount was
classified as current portion of non-current liabilities

in financial statements.

As at 30 June 2019, the range of annual interest
rate for long-term payables is 5.40% to 6.50% (31

December 2018: 5.40% to 6.50%).

(28) Derivative financial instruments

(0)

M. SOt B|KRIAE W T #E)

(27) RBEARE)

RZB-NhFEFRNA=1TH &K%
BENTFEREEFERARE
1,300,000,0007C (= F —NF+=
A=+—H:AR%1,400,000,000
) BEFRHRA=ZF ARAR
FRAERHEEREA - ZREBR
“RCRFEXNAZTHANE  8E
DRE-FAIMNERDEE -

RZE-NFAA=+A RHE
{4 3480 i % [ 1 45.40% £6.50%
(CF-AFt+-A=+-8:
5.40% %6.50%) ©

(28) 1€ I A

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
ZE-hF —T-N\F
AA=tH +ZA=+—H
Derivative financial assets — MEeHMEE -
Forward exchange contracts EHINEA L
- cash flow hedges -HenEEH 253,787 262,202
Derivative financial liabilities = {144 maE -
Cross currency interest rate RXE RN =25
swap TA
- cash flow hedges -BeREEH 55,099 32,871
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL m., 8HPBERRIEBWNFE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(29) Share capital (29) &=
Changes in this period
AHEHED
Transferred
31 December  Issue of from 30 June
2018 shares Allotment reserve Others Sub-total 2019
—E-N\% ZE-MF
+=B=t-B BTHR BER 2BeER Hit Mt NAZtA
Non-circulating shares - EMARBR -
held by domestic legal entity BEREAREBR 1,649,206 - - - - - 1,649,206
held by oversea legal entity ENEARER 357,998 = = = = - 357,998
Circulating shares - mERG -
H share H& 1,020,756 - - - - - 1,020,756
Total Ch 3,027,960 = = = = - 3,027,960

Changes in this period

RRERED

31 December Issue of Transferred 30 June
2017 shares  Allotment  from reserve Others  Sub-total 2018
ZE—t% —T-N\E
+ZA=+-B EO#Hk Bk REeER ity Nt AB=tA

Non-circulating shares - MRRBR -
held by domestic legal entity BREAFER 1,649,206 - - - - - 1,649,206
held by oversea legal entity BINEARER 357998 - - - - - 357998

Circulating shares - mBRN -
H share Hi% 1,020,756 - - - - - 1,020,756
Total At 3,027,960 - - - - - 3,027,960
(30) Capital reserve (30) EXnTE

31 December 30 June
2018  Additions Reductions 2019
—E-N\§ “E-RE

+tZA=t-H FHEm rHEY  ASA=tH

Share premium (note15(4)) BRAREE

(ff =+ H4) 469,930 = (52,355) 417,575

31 December 30 June

2017 Additions Reductions 2018

& —E-N\F

+-A=+—H AEEM KE R NA=TH

Share premium BARGE 653,652 - (176,056) 477596

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFAA=ZTRLEANEASNBEGRERZHN SRECRARET

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(31) Other comprehensive income

7T)

M. SOt B|KRIAE W T #E)

Other comprehensive income

in balance sheet

(31) Hit &= & W &

Other comprehensive income in income statements

for the six months ended 30 June 2019

EERERMAMGANE BE-R-NEAAZTALABARBARRDANEAYE
Less: Transfer
in profit or
loss previously Attribute
Attribute to recognized Attribute to to the non-
owners of Amount in other ownersof  controlling
31 December the Company 30 June before  comprehensive  Less: Income  the Company interests
2018 after taxes 2019 taxes income taxes  aftertaxes after taxes
Z§-NF RRBER ZR-AE FERA WoAEE  HFR R4BER  HABER
tZA=1-A 808 AB=tA REE  UEAEER %R 828 HERR
Other comprehensive income cannot be AR ERERBRH
reclassified into profit or loss thereafter — ZfiANE 38,283 = 38,283 = = = = =
- Changes in fair value of other equity - EhB&IZ%E
instrument investments ArEEER 38,283 = 38,283 = = = = =
Other comprehensive income may be HERENREREN
redlassified into profit or loss thereafter £t ANE 400,463 (121,604) 278859  (117,978) (39,490) 35,864 (121,604) -
= Changes in fair value of investment -REEBARENE
properties transferred from inventories  #EEDHEfiA
@) ha%E0) 341,951 (29,618) 312,333 o (39,490) 9,812 (29,618) o
- Effective portion of gains or losses on -~ - B4 FEEHRR
hedging instruments in a cash flow
hedge 66,868 (17,975) (11107)  (103,967) = 25,992 (17975) =
- Currency tranlation differences -NERENEEE (8,356) (14011) (22367 (14,011 - - (14,011) -
Total EEl 438,746 (121604) 317042 (117,978) (39,490) 35,864 (121,604) =

(a) For the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group
disposed certain properties, of which fair value
gains previously recognized in other comprehensive
income amounted to RMB29,618,000 (for the six
months ended 30 June 2018: RMB10,154,000) was
accordingly transferred into profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HE_ZT-NAFAA=Z+THELEAREADRE(KRERZHN  2EECRARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . &0 &EHRBEEW T E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(31) Other comprehensive income (Continued) (31) Etama = (&)
Other comprehensive income in income statements
Other comprehensive income in balance sheet for the six months ended 30 June 2018
EEARRPAMGAUE BECE-N\EAAZTRELAAAABRBRPEBGANE
Less: Transfer
in profit or
Adjustment Attribute loss previously Attribute  Attribute
- the new to owners recognized to owners to the non-
financial of the Amount in other Less: of the  controlling
31 December instrument 1 January  Company 30 June  before comprehensive  Income  Company interests
2017 standards 2018  after taxes 2018 taxes income taxes after taxes after taxes
#E- BoEf
Z8-tF  HERMIR ZB-\F  RABE  -R-0\F  FEHA GAWE M FEH HABE H4ABER
tZB=t-R R -B-R  W828  AB=tA REH REEH G S| HERR
Other comprehensive income W& F & E 5 Ef&%ﬁ #H
cannot be reclassified into £t &4
profit or loss thereafter - - - - - - - - - -
Other comprehensive WEBRENBEERN
income may be reclassified  Etb &AM
into profit or loss thereafter 413,159 (998) 412,161 33,795 445,956 95,432 (42138)  (19,499) 33,795 -
- Share of other -BRETERREEN
comprehensive loss NEREARERRD
in the investees can LGRS LR ol
be reclassified into %
profit or loss at equity
method 31,984 - 31,984 (31,984) - - (31,984) - (31,984) -
- Changes in fair value of - EZEZAREUREILE
investment properties BANLbEENEEY
transferred from
inventories 39147 - 39147 (10,154) 381,317 - (10,154) - (10,154) -

- Effective portion of gains - BEHEEHEE

or losses on hedging

instruments in a cash

flow hedge (10,847) (998) (11,845) 58,498 46,653 77997 - (19499) 58498 -
- Difference on translation - SEREFEZE

of foreign currency

financial statements 551 - 551 17,435 17,986 17435 - - 17435 -

Total aif 413,159 (998) 412,161 3379 445956 95,432 (42138 (19499 33,795 -

HAEERGAERAT —E-NFRHBE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(32) Surplus reserve

SHEMNAARETT)

M. SOt B|KRIAE W T #E)

(32) 2% &

31 December Other 30 June

2018  Additions adjustments Reductions 2019

BN\ ZE-NE

TZA=t-H RERE Hitt A% REH D RNA=TH

Statutory surplus reserve EEBHAER 665,381 = = = 665,381
31 December Other 30 June

2017 Additions  adjustments  Reductions 2018

“FLF “E0\F

+-A=1+-H R EAE RHER D ~NA=TH

Statutory surplus reserve N YNk 570,905 - - - 570,905

In accordance with the PRC Company Law
and the Company’'s Articles of Association
and resolution of the board of directors, the
Company should appropriate 10% of net profit
of the year to the statutory surplus reserve, and
the Company can cease appropriation when the
statutory surplus reserve accumulated to more
than 50% of the capital. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to make up for the loss or
increase the paid in capital after approval from
the appropriate authorities. The Company does
not recognize statutory surplus reserve for the
six months ended 30 June 2019 (for the six
months ended 30 June 2018: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL g .
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(33) Retained earnings

B Ot R IA B M Rk (#)

(33) & 2 B R &

Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018

BE-Z-h& BE_ZT-N\F
ANA=tTHL NA=TBIE

18 B H 7~ {8 A HA
Retained earnings at the AR 5 B A E
beginning of the period (A& A
(before adjustments) 11,037,357 10,376,979
Adjustment — the new revenue  F% — UK A LR
standards = 13,760
Adjustment — the new financial #F% - ¢ @MTA
instrument standards 3l - 1,953
Adjustment — the new leasing #% — ¥ & %]
standards (112) -
Retained earnings at the AR 5 B A E
beginning of the period (AER)
(after adjustments) 11,037,245 10,392,692
Add: profit attributable to m:AREEBR AR
owners of the % 3R A9 % A
Company 1,187,493 736,528
Less: appropriation of B IRBUATE BB AR
statutory surplus
reserve - -
Dividends to common I B 3 38 AR AR I (a)
share (a) (666,151) (635,872)
Dividends to other equity HHMERTA
instruments interests IR 5 B (284,291) (166,293)
Retained earnings at the end  HiR Ko & 58
of the period 11,274,296 10,327,055

(a) On the meeting of board of directors held on 8
March 2019, the directors proposed a final dividend
of RMB0.22 per share to the shareholders, the total
amount payable were RMB666,151,000 based on the
Company’s total issued number of shares which is
3,027,960,000. The dividend distribution plan was
approved by shareholders on general meeting of

shareholders held on 23 April 2019.

(a) BRE-_Z—-NF=-AN\BES=g}
FOEFERZARAAAZER
REE-Z—)/\FESHH K
AR®BO22 RBREBITERH
3,027,960,0000% 5t & + £t AR
666,151,0007T * % & 9 & 75 =
ERZTE-NFNA=Z+=HH81T
WEAFKRERNE EEREE -

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(34) Revenue and cost of sales

M. SOt B|KRIAE W T #E)

(34) EX WM AMEFE KA

Six months Six months

ended 30 June ended 30 June

2019 2018

BE-Z—-hG& HEZZT—N\F

NA=ZTHIE NA=THIE

~ME A E N EREEIE

Revenue from main operations (a) FEEBRKA@Q) 10,323,850 7,022,946
Revenue from other operations (b) H b ZE B U A(b) 152,535 93,867
Total = 10,476,385 7,116,813
Six months Six months

ended 30 June ended 30 June

2019 2018

BE-_ZT—h§ HEZZ—N\F

ANB=+HL ANA=ZtAHL

A~ME B HE N EREEEIE

Cost of sales from main operations (a) = & % % 5k 7~ (a) 6,240,113 4,584,866
Cost of sales from other operations (b) % b 2 7 5% 7 (b) 77,231 41,461
Total &Er 6,317,344 4,626,327

(a) Revenue and cost of sales from main
operations

() FEXBWANETEEBR
Zx

Six months ended
30 June 2018
HZ2-T-N\#

NAZTHIEAERSE

Six months ended
30 June 2019
HE-EZE-hE

NAZTELEABREE

Revenue Cost of sales Revenue Cost of sales
from main  from main  from main  from main
operations  operations  operations  operations

TEER TEER FEER FREH

ON B & A KA

Sales of properties BHEHE 7,371,862 4,503,972 5,272,995 3,754,684

Consulting services FELON 36,928 = 13,081 -

Primary land development TR 2,565,246 1,695,196 1,497,296 813,235
Rental income of investment &M EMEMA

properties 349,814 40,945 239,574 16,947

Total B 10,323,850 6,240,113 7,022,946 4,584,866
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL m., 8HPBERRIEBWNFE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(34) Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) (B34) BEWAFEERAK (&)
(b) Revenue and cost of sales from other (b) HMEBWANEAMELR
operations ax

Six months ended Six months ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

BE-Z-N% BH2-ZT-N\#&
NAZTHLEABREE NAZTHLENEASER
Revenue Cost of sales Revenue Cost of sales

from other from other  from other  from other
operations  operations  operations  operations

LRSS A% HMXH EEH

KA TS WA A
Temporary rental BEEEE 28,044 15,222 25,174 -
Others Hih %% 124,491 62,009 68,693 41,461
Total A& 152,535 77,231 93,867 41,461
(35) Taxes and surcharges (35) B & R M n
Six months Six months
ended 30 ended 30
June 2019 June 2018 Standards
= H=
—E-hEF —E—N\F
AA=+tBLE KNA=+8HIE
1B B A 7~ 8 A H AR %
LAT T EER 892,756 415,780 Note 3
28 Wit =
Others E b 139,973 102,705
Total & 1,032,729 518,485

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL /M. &8 %R & IE B M5 (#)

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(36) Expense by nature (36) EAEMHEDE

MERTHEERAS HEER
MEREBRRBUEESE  JIR

Cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses
and general and administrative expenses in

income statements classified by nature are as N
follows:
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-Z- & ®BE_Z-N\F
NA=T+THIE NA=THILE
< A H 7~ & A E
Costs of properties sold 5 i 2 TH B KR 4,296,207 3,647,095
Costs of primary land development = #h — 4% B 3 gk A 1,695,196 813,235
Costs of operation of investment %4 ¥ 2 & & pk &
properties 21,886 9,659
Salaries, social security and welfare T#& - #1R & 1& 7 528,025 376,665
Administrative office expenses TERHENE 136,362 97,524
Depreciation and amortization r € B2 % 3 34,980 27,357
Travel and entertainment expenses Z KRB FE 17,419 12,239
Auditors’ service fee TR AR 15 & A 2,933 9,650
- Audit service fee - BHREER 2,366 2,435
- Capital market transaction and - BAMEHERH M
other non-audit service H b IF 2 5T
expenses AR 7 & A 567 7,215
Other agency service fee Hr N REE 44,182 84,967
Marketing and commission fee HHERBEEER 246,600 180,054
Others H b 107,754 82,737
Total & &h 7,131,544 5,341,182
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M.

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(37) Financial expenses

(37) B &M

B Ot R IA B M Rk (#)

Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-ZE—h& HE_ZT—N\F
~NA=1+HIE NA=+THIE
~E A 5 E 7~ 8 A H
(Restated)
(EE )
Interest expense FEXH 2,795,023 2,148,718
Less: cost of capitalized interest — J& : & &b F| B & i (1,267,100) (1,058,125)
Interest expense — net MEER - %8 1,527,923 1,090,593
Interest income B U A (155,692) (136,378)
Exchange gain or loss [ 718 (32,531) 262,330
Others EAb 137,079 45,751
Total At 1,476,779 1,262,296
(38) Other income (38) HEftbur &=

Six months Six months Assets/
ended 30 June ended 30 June income
2019 2018 related

BEZ-_Z-1F #HEZZT-N\F
AA=t+HLE NA=t+BIE HEE/
AEBHE 7~ fE A HA 1 %5 48 2
Government grants and K FEEI R Income related
tax refund BOR 8 62,460 43,587 £ 47 25 16 78
Income related
Others Hitb 180 - 1y %5 48 8

Total Bt 62,640 43,587
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL /M. &8 %R & IE B M5 (#)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(39) Investment income (39) ;#E W=
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-®-hE BE-T-N\F
~NA=1+HIE NAZ=ZTHILE
NE A H A 7~ & A B
(Restated)
=819
Share of net profit or loss of R EZB K
investees under equity method DENERESN
FEEMNMEE 107,651 166,517
Interest income earned during the E## 5 # M
period of ownership of debt 15 59 F 2 U A
investments 953,595 408,093
Gains on disposal of an associate & & B & 1 % Wz 1,597 699,008
Others ) 8,897 (24,507)
Total & &h 1,071,740 1,249,111
(40) Gains on net exposure hedges (40) FkOEH W H
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-_Z—h&F BEZZ—N\F
AB=t+ALE  AA=TAL
7~ A HA 7~ & A B
Projects in Australia BN TE B 5,887 6,819
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M. & (7 s&xIB B M s (&)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(41) Gains/(Losses) arising from changes in

(41) 2AREEB KRS (BX)

fair value
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-Z—-N&F BE_ZT-)\F
AA=tHIE ANA=THILE
<18 B H & 7~ {8 A ER
Non-financial assets — FemEE -
Investment properties ®AE M EHE
(Note 4(13)) (B 3= (13)) 143,463 235,134
Trading financial assets RXHteRmEE 25,928 9,743
Trading financial liabilities oM emaE
- Capped cross currency swap - MEXXE
contract EH]EH 39,420 60,758
Realization of fair value gains ERHEE QAR
from sale of properties AAEBEEEHER (8,826) (3,065)
Total & &h 199,985 302,570

(42) Gains/(Losses) on disposal of assets

(42) EERBWRZE (B X)

Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-Z—hF HEZZ-N\F
ANAE=tHIL NA=THILE
<18 B H & 7~ E A HA

Gains from government repurchase B ¥ L #b 1= i 7 13
of land use rights 2,275 -

Gains/(Losses) from disposal of BEFNBEE

non-current assets &, (B %) 815 (6)
Total & &t 3,090 (6)

BRIEXROHARLA —E-—NFPHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M.

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(43) Non-operating income

SHEMNAARETT)

(43) &R HWA

Bt R R M (®)

Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-ZE—h& HEZT—N\F
~NA=1+HIE NA=THIE
NE B E 7~ {E A 8f
Default fine B 2,452 1,044
Others i) 5,151 1,641
Total = 7,603 2,685
(44) Non-operating expenses (44) €% H

Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-—Z—hhFE BHE_ZT—N\F
NA=T+THILE ~NA=ZF+HLE
~E A H E 7~ & A H#3

Default fine and delaying BHNEMNENS
payment fine 5,230 243
Others EA 3,125 3,569
Total =) 8,355 3,812
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(45) Income tax expenses

PRC enterprise income tax is computed
according to the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC. For the six months ended 30 June
2019, the applicable PRC enterprise income tax
rate is 25% (for the six months ended 30 June
2018: 25%).

According to the current tax laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, profits tax in Hong
Kong is calculated by 16.5% of the assessable
profits. For the six months ended 30 June
2019, the Group has no Hong Kong assessable
profits.

Withholding income tax should be charged
against income from taxable dividends of non-
resident enterprises in Mainland China and
investments disposal in Mainland China of the
tax rate of 5% to 10% according to the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC.

The amount of taxation charged to the
consolidated income statements represents:

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

(45) REHER

B (b X PSR AR R o B AE B
FRMERGE  BE-TAF
NA=ZTBERBEAHEER®
BEEMBHESL25% (BE-F
—N\FERA=THIERERERE
25%) °

REFBRTRERE BB
(B A & AR Bt A 4% BR16.5% A9 B
REAENEH BE-_FT-NF
NA=ZTHLEXNEAMRE - AEH
W EE B ERD&E A -

FREIAMEAEFEREEFTRETE
MHEERIMOER - IB5%-10%
TR B AR A S B R
IS BRRIIRBAAER -

TRBEEFAGHMNBERZFAE

HERERE:
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018

BE-ZF-NF HE_ZT-)N\F
ANA=tHL NA=tTHIE

~1E B 7~ 8 B #

Current income tax based on tax &% NABRR Tt
law and related regulations EHEHMEMN 706,141 683,520
Deferred income tax IEIE TS (287,301) (213,994)
Total & & 418,840 469,526

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL /M. &8 %R & IE B M5 (#)

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(45) Income tax expense (Continued) (45) Fr8 B E A (&)

#ER A G FIE RN B ERK
RERAMEFAENMEHAS R

Reconciliations from income tax calculated
based on the applicable tax rates and total

profit presented in the consolidated income FEBER:
statements to the income tax expenses are as
follows:
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-Z- & ®BE-Z-N\F
NA=t+HIE NAZ=THILE
AE B B 75 {8 A HA
Profit before income tax REEE 2,177,923 1,537,785
Income tax expenses calculated at ¥% i B E25% &t
applicable tax rates (25%) BEFEH 544,481 384,446
Impact of income tax at different FIEHHEREZEN
tax rates -2 - (95,677)
Share of net profit of joint ventures & A= Ak HE
and associates under equity ML E R BFE
method @ W 10§ (26,913) (41,629)
Other loss/(profit) not subject to  3EEFRIIE R
tax (49,129) 32,514
Profit from internal equity transfer 52 &% & A 30A% 42
transaction subject to tax CL R g 2,804 101,941
Distribution eligible for tax AJAFE B BT 51 2 B 42
deduction mwTED4L (127,620) (62,470)
Deductible losses for which no ERARBRELERS
deferred income tax asset was MEEMNREIE
recognized B 66,995 70,731
Impairment provision for which no EHRERIELFE
deferred income tax asset was & 2 B R B ZE
recognized = 14,500
Expenses, costs and losses not 15 H R B B
deductible BRAMEX 8,222 65,170
Income tax expense Frigti & A 418,840 469,526
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(46) Earnings per share

(a)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated
by dividing the consolidated net profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

(46) B W &=

(a)

EXgRE S

EAGRKREUNEBRER
B AR RO & GFF B
B IARE AR AT SN E B A

the Company by the weighted average BN B E
number of ordinary shares issued during
the period:
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-Z2-NF #HEZNF
AA=tHILE NA=ZTHLE
<8 B 7~ {8 A B
Consolidated net profit BERNERERERN
attributable to owners A otE AN
of the Company 1,187,493 736,528
Less: Distribution to other equity J5i: EthiEm TAH A
instruments (284,291) (166,293)
Consolidated net profit FERASARL AR
attributable to ordinary IR R 1) & BF 7 F S
shareholders of the Company 903,202 570,235
Weighted average number ARBBETHEINEBR
of ordinary shares issued B 0 # 19 B
(in thousands) (FR&) 3,027,960 3,027,960
Basic earnings per share EARG R
(RMB yuan per share) (AR®ETER) 0.30 0.19
Including: Hep:
Basic earnings per share FELEEEREGR
relating to continuing fam(AR®T
operations (RMB yuan Fk)
per share) 0.30 0.19

(b) The diluted earnings per share is calculated

by dividing the net profit of the combined
shares attributable to the shareholders of
the parent company after the adjustment
of the diluted potential common shares
by the weighted average of the common
shares issued by the company after the
adjustment. For the six months ended 30
June 2019 and 2018, there is no potential
ordinary shares with dilution, so diluted
earnings per share equals to basic earnings
per share.

(b)

mEESRW R AREREL
BEEBRBABRERNEBR
SRAREBRBERN G GF
) 7B R DA FE BB 1R B9 AR 2 B) B
TTHE SN E 58 B 9 0 #E 715 81
HEBE_ZE-NFAA
=tRLERNEARBREE
“E-NAFEXA=ZTHLER
BEAME  XRRTFER
ERBENEET AR
bt HESREAEENER
Rk -

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL /g .
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(47) Notes to the cash flow statements

Bt R R M (®)

47) REREREBEIER

(a) Cash received relating to other (a) KEMEMHELETE TR
operating activities WE <
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-Z-NF &#HE_ZT)NF
ANA=THIL NA=ZTHLE
A{E A E AN ERER
Government repurchase of land Ut 2 & BT + 40 [0 B8
use rights B 70,000 -
Return from operations Y B B 48 2 1E 2k 5,317 18,359
Bank interest income RITHEWA 155,692 136,378
Government grants and tax U B 89 I8 4 B B R R
returns IR 12 3% 62,640 43,763
Total =k 293,649 198,500
(b) Cash paid relating to other operating (b) ZXFAWHMEKLE ZBEE
activities WHE <
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-Z-N1F HEZZ-N\F
AA=tTHL NA=THIE
A8 A H E 7~ {E A H
Land deposit AIRER 200,000 -
Marketing and promotion M ES
expenses 126,858 105,143
Sales commission and BeERHhNE
agency fees 166,817 169,528
Administrative expenses EBHNE 182,514 151,038
Cash paid to operations ERNER SR 255,596 208,717
Service charges and others FEEBEZHM 42,973 16,790
Total At 974,758 651,216
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(47) Notes to the cash flow statements

M. SOt BHRKRIAE W T

47) REREXRBEBITR(E)

(Continued)
(c) Cash received relating to other () KWEMWHMEREZTEHEEH
investing activities HWHRE
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BEE-Z-NF BE_ZT-N\F
AA=tHI NB=tHIE
AEAHE N8 A B
Cash received from cooperation g 2| & {EIR & 2%
projects 1,057,319 146,216
Principals and interests repaid U El BBt 5 A SR E
from related parties e RF B 4,720,968 447,343
Returns of principals and interests U [l &) & 4 1% & A 4
from debt investments & B 135,467 -
Returns of performance IEPN=2 % ok =
guarantees paid for acquisition  ER AT (LA TE
of Tianjin TJ-Metro MTR [ 245 48 5 4 )
Construction Co. Ltd. B4R
("T)-Metro MTR") B - 1,600,000
Total & &t 5,913,754 2,193,559

(d) Cash paid relating to other investing

(d) ZXAHEBREREZHEE

activities W<
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-Z-NE HEZZ-N\F
AA=tHL NA=THIE
A8 A H 7~ {E A H
Cash paid for cooperation THBEEAERER
projects 502,833 2,179,474
Cash paid for debt investments % /4B # I E % - 164,826
Cash paid to Tiancheng Yongtai ¥ {4 X¥f kT K &
for operations and investment 158 ¥
properties 117,300 1,012,260
Cash paid to related parties TNBBHTESRER 9,317,912 4,235,801
Performance guarantees paid for =% {< 4k & 7% & B 49 (%
acquisition of TJ-Metro MTR MEX-E- 30,000 -
Total A&t 9,968,045 7,592,361
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(47) Notes to the cash flow statements

M. SOt B|KRIAE W T #E)

47) REREXRBEBITR(E)

(Continued)
(e) Cash received relating to other (e) WEMEMEEETEHEH
financing activities WRE
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-Z-NF HEZZ—N\F
ABA=tHI NB=tHIE
A{E A N8 A B
Cash received from related WE @l L SR ED
parties 6,297,780 573,198
Cash received from Tiancheng i ) X3 k Z= 15 %k 2
Yongtai = 539,420
Cash returned from termination  F 17 3 2 % U [0 218
of deposit pledge = 500,000
Others Hith = 12,992
Total At 6,297,780 1,625,610

(f) Cash paid relating to other financing (f) ZXAMNHEHMEEEZHEE

activities WRE
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
HE-Z-NF BHEZZ-N\F
AB=tHI NHA=THIE
AMEAEE 7N fE A HA e
Repayment of other long-term  F R FEE M EM
borrowings by subsidiaries EHEBRELS - 1,221,025
Principals and interests paid EEEBFTESIRE
for borrowings from related KR FE
parties 67,200 531,736
Payment of keepwell deed service % ft# 717 REE
fee 31,329 -
Cash paid to non-controlling LB IR B R 8
interests for capital reduction YA - 279,805
Payment of financing expenses L {{&I g & & H 70,533 29,204
Cash paid under capped currency i & &iE A 45
swap contracts IR 59,703 -
Others Hith 18,639 -
Total At 247,404 2,061,770
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZZT-NAFRAZTALENERAHAEBRERZHIN  SBEMLAARETIT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL m., 8HPBERRIEBWNFE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(48) Supplemental information of cash flow 48) HeRERWBRESR
statements
Reconciliation from net profit to cash flow BENERATALEIBHEESR
from operating activities =1
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018

BE-E-N1F BE_ZT-N\F
AB=THL /\)E]_‘I'EUk

B B H A N EE
(Restated)
(L&)
Net profit ey b 1,759,083 1,068,259
Add: Provisions for credit impairment il : 1= R (B % = 58,019
Depreciation of fixed assets BEBEETE
(Note 4(14)) (Bt 5Em(14) 15,980 7,747
Amortization of long-term REGHERD
prepaid expenses B 34,643 27,401
(Gains)/Losses on disposal of EEETEEM
fixed assets F (Wa) 1Bk (3,090) 6
Interest expenses BBER 2,787,019 1,382,128
Investment income K E W= (982,835) (1,249,111)
Gains of changes NABEEZEKE
in fair value (208,811) (305,635)
Gains on net exposure hedge F A E B (5,887) (6,819)
Increase in deferred EREFEHEED
income tax assets 0 (360,849) (270,378)
Increase in deferred income tax BEREHAaEN
liabilities E 102,467 72,435
Increase in inventories HFERIEM (3,558,609) (666,286)
Decrease/(Increase) in XREHEEH
restricted cash () 389,413 (381,705)
Decrease/(Increase) in BE M EWIER /Y
operating receivables /Uw/ (&) 1,909,376 (920,867)
Increase/(Decrease) in e ENIBERR
operating payables i'iJl]/ ) 245,093 (1,063,363)
Net cash flows generated from/(used & E8EE,(FH)H
in) operating activities RengFs 2,122,993 (2,248,169)
For the six months ended 30 June 2019 and HE-ZT-NFA=1THIE~E
2018, there were no significant non-cash AHBEEBZE_ZE-N\FA=T
investing and financing activities. HBiIENE A8E - B RBE €

WXHWERREMNEELERS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE-ZT-NAFNA=TRHLIE/E A B GRREFRIEBEN

4. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHEMNAARETT)

(48) Supplemental information of cash flow

statements (Continued)

(@) Change of cash and cash equivalent

M. SOt B|KRIAE W T #E)

(A8) RERERWAER (&)

(@) BERBELZENEBEHE

n
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2019 2018
BE-ZE-N& HEZZT-N\&F
NA=THLE NA=THIE
ANEAEE 7~ fE A 5 i
Cash at the end of the period 3¢ ) 8K # 58 36,847,224 20,517,899
Less: cash at the beginning of & : IR & w HR 9] 64 58
the period (21,748,206) (18,049,837)
Increase of cash and cash B4 RESEEY
equivalent IS 15,099,018 2,468,062
(b) Cash and cash equivalent (b) RERBELEEY
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF = —\F
~NA=+tH +=-—A=+—H
Cash at bank and on hand E&¥ &4 37,387,248 22,526,602
Less: restricted cash at BB BR AR R 1T
bank 173 (370,955) (721,005)
restricted other cash 5 R &9 B A
balances BEEE g (169,069) (57,391)
Cash and cash equivalent R&RIREFEY
at period end HRER5E 36,847,224 21,748,206
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

CHANGES OF CONSOLIDATION SCOPE

In January 2019, the Group set up wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Shoujin Hechuang (Tianjin) Real Estate
Co., Ltd., Shoujin Longchuang (Tianjin) Real Estate
Co., Ltd., Shoujin Shengchuang (Tianjin) Real Estate
Co., Ltd., Shoujin Tianke (Tianjin) Real Estate Co.,
Ltd., Shoujin Jiachuang (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd.,
Shoujin Huichuang (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd. and
Beijing Capital Xindu Real Estate Co., Ltd.(hereinafter
“Capital Xindu"), by capital injection.

In February 2019, the Group set up wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Shoujin Yuanchuang (Tianjin) Real Estate
Co., Ltd., Shoujin Wanchuang (Tianjin) Real Estate Co.,
Ltd., Shoujin Jiechuang (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd.,
Kunming Shouzhi Xinye Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.(hereinafter “Kunming Shouzhi Xinye”), Foshan
Shourui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.(hereinafter
“Foshan Shourui”) and Tianjin Tianke Real Estate Co.,
Ltd., by capital injection.

In March 2019, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest of Shoujin Yingchuang Investment
Management (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. with a consideration
of RMB5,894,000, therefore it is recognized as a
subsidiary.

In April 2019, the Group set up wholly-owned
subsidiary, Hangzhou Langyuan Culture Development
Co., Ltd., by capital injection.

In May 2019, the Group set up wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Xiamen Shouzhi Xiangfa Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.(hereinafter “Xiamen Shouzhi
Xiangfa”), Dongguan Shouwang Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.(hereinafter “Dongguan
Shouwang”) and Shenyang Longjing Real Estate Co.,
Ltd., (hereinafter “Shengyang Longjing”) by capital
injection.

In June 2019, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest of Kunshan Guangsheng Real Estate
Development and Operating Co., Ltd. with
a consideration for both debt and equity of
RMB1,386,262,000, which is treated as asset
purchasing, therefore it is recognized as a subsidiary.

fi.

A b 5 ) 1y 2

REER-_ZT-NF-ALERIZE
FTRABZARI(RBEXZERAR
DA CBEERBA(RKBEXRERAR
NECBEERAKRBDEERERAR
NECBEEAMRBDEXRERAR
NECEHERA(RBEEXEZERARA
ACEBEEBA(RBEFRERARA
At RERIHAEXRERAAAT
wIEAIF ) -

AEBR-_ZT-NF_AHERIEE
FRAABEZTA(RBDERZERAR
NECEHEBRA(RPEXERARA
ACEBEEA(RBPEFRERARA
Al -EAEENEFHEREARA
AIATHIZEHAEEHNED  HLUER
FHEREERARTUATHEMELE
) RERMEBERRAQA -

AEEBR-_ZT-NFOALERIEE
FREMMAEEXCERBRAF -

AEBR-_Z-NFRALERIFA
AEMEEANEFHEMEARAF (A
THRIEMEENZE) RxaL2Fit
ERZERRATNUATHEIREEE]
BEEREMARARATHEOESRE
=) e

AEEBR-_ZT-NFRABENRGFEEE
FRABWUMTEESHWERELER
Rom - BEMMEEHESTRARE
1,386,262,0007T - RIFBEEE - #
HERATRAKE -

BRIEXROHARLA —E-—NFPHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries

(@) Information of significant subsidiaries

N, EEMEETES
(1) EF28+FHER
() EEFAFAER

Name Type of legal Place of main Place of Nature of business Mode of

entity operation registration Interests held acquisition

FRRER EA BRI TERER = it EBME R nEsA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
B M%)

Central Plaza Limited liability A B.VI Investment holding Injected by

company sponsor

Central Plaza EREARA HEARRES EBE4BRES REER 100 - BRAEA

IFC Limited liability BV B.VI Investment holding Injected by

company sponsor

IFC BEREARA REABRESE HEAAREE REZR 100 - ERAEA

S.C. Real Estate Development  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Business
Co., Ltd. ("S.C.") company development and combination

sales

BRIEBEHERRARAT BREERA R IR FHERERHEE rEAH
(ATRIERIHE]) 100 -

Beijing Xinbocheng Real Estate  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Business
Development Co., Ltd. company development and combination

sales

ERFEREHERRERAR BREFAA R ERW EHERERHE - 100 XA

Zhejiang Outlets Property Real  Limited liability Huzhou Huzhou Property Business
Estate Co., Ltd company development and combination

operation

HIBRRNEXBRAA BEREARA WM M EHEREREEL - 729  RESH

Capital Grand Limited liability Cayman Islands ~ Cayman Islands  Investment holding Business

company combination

BEIER BEREARA Hews HEMS REER - 729 RESH

Xi‘an Capital Xinkai Real Estate  Limited liability ~ Xi‘an Xian Property Business
Co., Ltd. company development and combination

sales

EREENAEEERAA EREARRA ikl [k FEHERERHEE - 729 REAH

Liujin Real Estate Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Business

company development and combination
sales

ZEER EREARA R R EHERERHE - 100 XA

Donghuan Xinrong Investment  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property leasing Business
and Management Co., Ltd company combination
("Donghuan Xinrong")

IRRRERREERAR BEREARA R IR FEHE rEAH
RAATBIRRER]) 100 -

Zhuhai Henggin Capital Real Limited liability ~ Zhuhai Zhuhai Investment Business
Estate Eco Village Equity company Management combination
Investment Fund (Limited
Partnership)

GEREERIEE A MNKE BREARA kigm Wigm REER TEAG

REES(BRAH)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFNA=THLENERHSBE (KR EHEN

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

CHREMR/RARE T

N, EEMERBAPAERE)

(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (1) EFRAHFHERE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries () EEFRABERGE)
(Continued)
Name Type of legal Place of main Place of Nature of business Mode of
entity operation registration Interests held acquisition
TRARER = A BB TERER it i EBME =340 nEsA
Direct (%) Indirect (%)
EE(%) 8 # (%)
Chongging Shouyong Real Limited liability Chongging Chongging Property Business
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and combination
sales
EEEKEXARAA BEREARA BEEM EEW EHERERHE - 9639  EAH
Shenyang Haohua Real Estate  Limited liability Shenyang Shenyang Property Business
Co., Ltd. company development and combination
sales
BEHREEXERAA BREERA BT BB FEHERERHEE - 100 L&xAH
Chengdu Capital Ruihua Real  Limited liability ~ Chengdu Chengdu Property Business
Estate Development Co., Ltd company development and combination
("Chengdu Ruihua”) sales
KBEEREEEERAR BREERA %l KT EHERERHE LESH
ATRIREBIRE]) - 100
Tianjin Capital Xinyuan Real Limited liability Tianjin Tianjin Property Capital
Estate Development Co., company development and injection
Ltd. (“Tianjin Xinyuan”) sales
REEAHEEXBRAA BREARA REM REW FHERERHEE HERT
(ATBIRZHED - 55
Jingjin Tongcheng Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property Capital
company development injection
RER EREARRA REM REM 3 2 B % - 90 HAHY
Beijing Capital Outlets Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Property Investment Fang company development, injection
Shan Ltd. operation and
management
IREHRERABLER BEREARA R IR EHERZELRER HERL
BRAF - 729
Beijing Capital Zhongbei Limited liability ~ Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Infrastructure Investment company development injection
Co., Ltd.
TREEFLERRIERE EREARRA ERM R FEHERE HERYL
BRATE - 100
Beijing Anshunyuan Real Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Estate Development Co., company development and injection
Ltd. sales
IRZIEEFHEREERAR BARELRA R IR EHERERHE - 95  HARL
Jiangyin Yuyue Real Estate Limited liability ~ Jiangyin Jiangyin Property Capital
Development Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
TRERERERAA BREERA IR L FEHERERHEE - 100 WEFY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHEMEBIMERE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries 1) EFRAEHHERZREE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries () EEFRABRGE)
(Continued)
Name Type of legal Place of main Place of Nature of business Mode of
entity operation registration Interests held acquisition
FRARER EA B TELED it EY 331 R LA mEsA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) 8 % (%)

Qingdao Xinli Weiye Real Limited liability Qingdao Qingdao Property Capital
Estate Development Co., company development and injection
Ltd. sales

EERURXRHEREER AREARA BB 58 FHMERERHEE HART
N - 100

Hainan Outlets Tourism Limited liability ~ Wanning Wanning Property Capital
Development Co., Ltd. company development, injection
("Hainan Outlets Tourism”) operation and

management

BEABREREAEERAR BREEARA BED BED EHERZELRER HERL
(ATRIEMERKED - 55

Shenyang Capital Xinyun Real  Limited liability Shenyang Shenyang Property Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

BHEANEERERAA BEREARA EBHH BB FEHERERHEE - 100 HERL

SAS Datang Weiye Holdings Limited liability France France Real estate business Capital

company and others injection

AEREREBERAA EREARRA 5 3l mEEBREM - 100 WEFY

Hainan Capital Outlets Real Limited liability Wanning Wanning Property Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

EHRERREEBERDA EREARA BED BED EHERERHE - 100 HEFL

Beijing Tiancheng Yongyuan Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Investment Management company development and injection
Co., Ltd. (“Tiancheng sales
Yongyuan”)

ERRUATEEERAA BEREARA R RS FHERERHEE HEZ Y
AT BIRIATT]) 50 -

Beijing Chuangrui Xiangan Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Real Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

EREEHLEERRAA EREARA R R EHERERHE - 100 HEFL

Beijing Guijiamao Real Estate  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Co. Ltd. company development and injection

sales

IREGEXEXBERAR BEREARA R RS FHERERHEE - 100 HERL

Xingtai Jihong Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property Capital

company development and injection
sales

ERESR EREARRA REM REM FEHERERHEE - 100 WEFY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEHMERBPOE S E)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (1) EFRAHFHERE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries () EEFRABERGE)
(Continued)

Name Type of legal Place of main Place of Nature of business Mode of

entity operation registration Interests held acquisition

TRARER EA B TERER it i ES 331 R A mELA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) 8 # (%)

Beijing Lianchuang Shengye Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Real Estate Development company development and injection
Co., Ltd. sales

IRBEAREEHEREER AREERA R IR FHERERHEE HERT
A7 - 100

Chengdu Capital Zhenghua Limited liability Chengdu Chengdu Property Capital
Real Estate Co.,Ltd. company development and injection

sales

KBEEIEEEEERAR EREARRA 7% KT FEHERERHEE - 100 WERL

Beijing Xujia Real Estate Co.,  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Ltd. company development and injection

sales

LRBEEXERAR BEREARA R R EHERERHE - 100 HWERL

Tianjin Xingtai Jisheng Real Limited liability Tianjin Tianjin Property Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

REAREEBRXERRA BERELLA REM REW FHERERHEE - 100 HERL

Tianjin Hongtai Weiye Real Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

RERFRERHERE EREARRA REM REM FEHERERHEE HERL
BERAR - 100

Shanghai Shoupu Real Estate  Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

LEBEREXBRAA BEREARA Ligw Ligm FHERERHEE - 100 HERL

Beijing Tianzhiying Real Estate  Limited liability ~ Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

TRREBREXERAA EREARARA ERM R FHERERHEE - 100 WHEFY

Beijing Jinyifeng Real Estate Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

ETReREEXERAA EREARA R R EHERERHE - 100 WEFL

Beijing Baochitong Real Estate  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

IRERBEXERAA BEREARA R IR FHERERHEE - 100 HERIL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

8. TEE D E RS P EY M ()

(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (1) EFRAHFHERE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries () EEFRABRGE)
(Continued)
Name Type of legal Place of main Place of Nature of business Mode of
entity operation registration Interests held acquisition
FTRARER EAER TERER i ES 331 R H mELA
Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E (%) 8 (%)
Shanghai Shouhu Investment  Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
TEERREBRRA BEREARA Lgm 1) FHERERHEE - 100 HERL
Shanghai Shouyang Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property Capital
Investment Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
LEEBRABRAA EREARRA Ligm Ligm FEHERERHEE - 100 WEFYL
Hangzhou Capital Outlets Real  Limited liability Hangzhou Hangzhou Property Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development, injection
operation and
management
MMBRIREREEXERAA ARELRA M N FHEHEEZRER - 729  HARIL
Jiangxi Capital Outlets Real Limited liability Nanchang Nanchang Property Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development, injection
operation and
management
IAERIRRRGBEEERAR BREFAA mam Bam EHERBELRER - 729 HAHKL
Wuhan Capital Juda Outlets Limited liability ~ Wuhan Wuhan Property Capital
Business Management Co., company development, injection
Ltd. operation and
management
REEAEARRBEER BEREARA RED RET FHERZEZRER HERYL
BRAR - 722
Xi‘an Shouju Commercial Limited liability ~ Xi'an Xi‘an Property Capital
Development and company development, injection
Management Co., Ltd. operation and
management
EXEERXREERERAT BREELA AR AR EHERZELRER - 729  HAHRL
Zhengzhou Juxin Outlets Limited liability ~ Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Property Capital
Industrial Co., Ltd. company development, injection
operation and
management
BHNEERREXBERAR BEREARA o m B FHERZEERER - 729 HEZRU
Beijing Yongyuanxing Real Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection
sales
ERAFREAEEERDA EREARRA i) ERm FEHERERHEE - 100 WEHY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEHMERBPOE S E)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (1) EFRAHFHERE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries () EEFRABERGE)
(Continued)

Name Type of legal Place of main Place of Nature of business Mode of

entity operation registration Interests held acquisition

TRARAER EAER TERER it i ES 331 R EH mELA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) 8 # (%)

Shanghai Yujing Real Estate Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property Capital
Development Co., Ltd. company development and injection
("Shanghai Yujing") sales

LENBRHEREERAR ARELAR g i3l FHERERHEE HERT
(ATBILERE] - 51

Shanghai Xuanxi Real Estate Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property Capital
Development Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

LEBERHEREERAR BREEAA +igm L EHERERHE - 51 HERL

Beijing Youda Real Estate Co.,  Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Ltd. company development injection

ERBEEXERAA BEREARA R R Fi AR - 70 HERY

Shanghai Shoujing Investment  Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

TEBEEREBRRAR BREARA Ligm i:2ii) FHERERHEE - 100 HERL

Jinan Shouju Real Estate Co.,  Limited liability ~ Jinan Jinan Property Capital
Ltd. company development, injection

operation and
management

BHEEEXARAT EREARA BEED EET EHERZELRER - 729  HAHRL

Hefei Chuangju Outlets Limited liability Hefei Hefei Property Capital
Commercial Management company development, injection
Co., Ltd. operation and

management

AREAERKEXEREARLT AREERA =il =) il FHERZEZRER - 729 HEZU

Beijing Xiangneng Real Limited liability ~ Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Beijing company development injection
Xiangneng”)

ERVEEXERAR EREARRA ERM R 5 3 2 B % AR
AT =AEE]) 100 -

Chongging Shouju Outlets Limited liability Chongging Chongging Property Capital
Real Estate Co., Ltd. company development, injection

operation and
management

EEREARKMERERAR BARELAR BT EET FHERZEZRER - 729 HEZU

Shanghai Lingyu Real Estate Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property Capital
Development Co., Ltd company development and injection

sales

LEAREEERAA EREARRA +igm L FEERERHEE - 100 WEFYL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMERBPOESE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (1) EFRAHFHERE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries () EEFRABRGE)
(Continued)

Name Type of legal Place of main Place of Nature of business Mode of

entity operation registration Interests held acquisition

FRRER EA BRI TERER it it EHuE =344 nELA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
B WE(%)

Kunming Capital Outlets Limited liability Kunming Kunming Property Capital
Commercial Management company development, injection
Co., Ltd. operation and

management

RABEIRRBEELER EREARA BT =1k EHERZELRER HERY
BRAF - 62

Shanghai Shoudian Real Estate  Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property Capital
Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

TBEREXBERAA BEREARRA Lgm i:3ii) FEHERERHEE - 100 HERL

Shenzhen Shoulong Real Limited liability Shenzhen Shenzhen Property Capital
Estate Development company development and injection
Co., Ltd. sales

RYEEBHEREERAA BREFAA RN AT EHERERHEE - 100 WEFL

Tianjin Xingtai Jichang Real Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property Capital
Estate Co., Ltd. company development and injection

sales

RERFEEEXARRDA BEREARA REM REM EHERERHE - 100 HERL

Tailongxiang Real Estate Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital
Development Co., Ltd company development and injection

sales

IRZEDEXERAA BEREALA LR RS FEHERERHEE - 100 HERL

TJ-Metro MTR Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Property Capital

company development and injection
sales

REREEE EREARA KEM RET EHERERHEE - 100 WEFL

Hangzhou Linchuang Real Limited liability Hangzhou Hangzhou Property Capital
Estate Development company development and injection
Co., Ltd sales

MMEGAIERERAR BEREARA M N FERERHEE - 100 HERL

Chongging Shouhao Real Limited liability Chongging Chongging Property Capital
Estate Development company development and injection
Co., Ltd sales

EFEREEXERAA BEREARRA BEEM EEM FEHERERHEE - 100 HERL

Qingdao Juda Outlets Limited liability Qingdao Qingdao Property Capital
Commercial Management company development, injection
Co., Ltd operation and

management
BREARRBXERERAR BREFAA E5M BB FHERZELRER - 729  HARI



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFNA=THLENERHSBE (KR EHEN

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

CHREMR/RARE T

N, EEMERBAPAERE)

(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (1) EFRAHFHERE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries () EEFRABERGE)
(Continued)

Name Type of legal Place of main Place of Nature of business Mode of

entity operation registration Interests held acquisition

FTRRER EA BRI TERER it EBME R nEsA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
BE(R)  ME(%

Trade Horizon Limited liability Hong Kong B.VI Investment Capital

company management injection

BRIRR EREARA R EBABRES REER - 729  HAHRL

Shanghai Shouyue Real Estate  Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property Capital
Development Co., Ltd company development and injection

sales

LEREREXBRAA BEREARA i3 L EHERERHE - 100 HERIL

Shanghai Shoudi Real Estate Limited liability Shanghai Shanghai Property Capital
Development Co., Ltd company development and injection

sales

LEEBEXBRAA BREERA Ligm L FEHERERHEE - 100 WEHY

Shoujin Capital Management  Limited liability ~ Tianjin Tianjin Investment Capital
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd ("Shoujin company management injection
Capital”)

BREAREE(RB)ERRA  BREERA REM KEM REER HERL
ATRIELEX]) 100 -

Qingdao Canghai Weiye Real  Limited liability Qingdao Qingdao Property Capital
Estate Development Co., company development and injection
Ltd sales

EERBEEARHEREER ABRELERA EBM 58 FHERERHEE HERT
A7 - 100

Chengdu Capital Huafu Real Limited liability Chengdu Chengdu Property Capital
Estate Development Co., company development and injection
Ltd sales

KBERIZENEEZERAR EREARA % K& EHERERHE - 100 HERL

Nanning Outlets Real Estate Limited liability Nanning Nanning Property Capital
Development Co., Ltd company development, injection

operation and
management

MEEARBRHEXER BREARA MEM MEM FHERZEZRER HEZ Y
A7 - 729

Foshan Shoulang Real Estate  Limited liability Foshan Foshan Property Capital
Development Co., Ltd company development and injection

sales

BLUERRHEREERAE  BREERA i i EHERERHE - 100 HERL

Zhangjiakou Ruiyuan Real Limited liability ~ Zhangjiakou Zhangjiakou Property Capital
Estate Development Co., company development injection
Ltd

RENEREHEREERAT BRELRA REAM KRAM o B - 92 HARY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R M 5
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_ZT-NFAA=ZTHIEANEAREGERIZHEN  2BECRARETT)
6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMERBPOESE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (1) EFRAHFHERE)
(Continued)
(a) Information of significant subsidiaries () EEFRABRGE)
(Continued)

Name Type of legal Place of main Place of Nature of business Mode of

entity operation registration Interests held acquisition

FRAEE EAER TERER it EuME BRLAH EEY

Direct (%) Indirect (%)
B#(%) (%)

Capital Jiaming New Limited liability ~ Beijing Beijing Project investment Capital
Town Investment and company and real estate injection
Development Co., Ltd. development
("Capital Jiaming")

BRIRSNEREERER BREERA ERW ERW HERERBWERE HERL
ARATRIERIZHE]) - 70

Kunming Shouzhi Xinye Limited liability Kunming Kunming Property Capital

company development and injection
sales

REREENZE BEREARA R R FHERERHEE - 100 HERL

Foshan Shourui Limited liability Foshan Foshan Property Capital

company development and injection
sales

Bl & BREERA il i FEHERERHEE - 100 WEHYL

Capital Xindu Limited liability Beijing Beijing Property Capital

company development and injection
sales

R B BEREARA SNl R EHERERHE - 100 HHEFL

Dongguan Shouwang Limited liability Dongguan Dongguan Property Capital

company development and injection
sales

REEE BEREARA RE® REM FHERERHEE - 100 HERL

Shenyang Longjing Limited liability Shenyang Shenyang Property Capital

company development and injection
sales

EHER EREARRA BHm BT FEHERERHEE - 100 WEFYL

Xiamen Shouzhi Xiangfa Limited liability Xiamen Xiamen Property Capital

company development and injection
sales

EMEEME EREARA skl B EHERERHE - 65 HEHRY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries

(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries with significant non-

controlling interests

(b1) Non-controlling interests from
common equity interests

BEZ-NAFNA=THLENERHSBE (KR EHEN

CHREMR/RARE T

N, EEMERBAAERE)

(1) EF2aA+PNERE)

(b)

A

FHEERIBRREZN T

(b1) FEEKRREBFEF
EEELEIRKE

#F 2 &l

Loss/(Profit)  Dividends

Equity attributable distributed

interests to non- to non-
portion controlling controlling Non-
held by interests interests controlling
non- for the six for the six interests
controlling months months as at
interests ended 30 ended 30 30 June
(%) June 2019  June 2019 2019

BZ2 Bz

ZE-NE ZE-NE
~AAZtALE AAZ+AL ZE-A%
SERRN AEAEE AEASH ASA=TH
BRitAl BERYE BIERR  LERR
Name FRARLR (%) BEMBE ARRA i
Tianjin Xinyuan AEHE 45 718 - 215319
Tiancheng Yongyuan Rk 50 513 - 1,549,779
Shanghai Yujing LafE 49 (712) - 962,9M
Jingjin Tongcheng RERH 10 56,439 = 177,193
Capital Jiaming HEEH 30 (432) = 149,974
Xingtai Jucheng BREM 80 359,390 - 997,549
Total A 415,916 - 4,112,785
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, HHEMEBRNESE)
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries (1) EFRAHFHERE)
(Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries with significant non- (b) FEEZLVPEREEZNT
controlling interests (Continued) DR (#E)
(b1) Non-controlling interests from (b1) AZERKEREF
common equity interests TEELHRRER
(Continued) HF R al (%)
The financial information of partly- FRERFRETEFR
owned significant subsidiaries above ANEEMKERT
are as follows: N

Financial information as at 30 June 2019
ZE-NERAZTREBMRR
Non- Non-
Current  current Total  Current  current Total
assets  assets  assets liabilities liabilities liabilities
RBEE FRBEE EEST RBAE FRBAE BESH

Tianjin Xinyuan REHE 681,396 52,009 733,405 121,585 - 121,585
Tiancheng Yongyuan REKT 1,043,902 4,142,883 586,785 458,461 1,628,766 2,087,227
Shanghai Yujing LE#E 6,693,475 11,741 6,705,216 2,913,969 1,826,000 4,739,969
Jingjin Tongcheng Z2AH 4,905,113 - 4905013 3,133,190 - 3133190
Capital Jiaming REIEH 1,235,346 2,418 1,237,764 729,810 8,042 737,852
Xingtai Jucheng BREN 1,995,547 39 1995586 748,649 - 748,649

Financial information as at 31 December 2018
“E-NE+-A=+-BBBMRR
Non- Non-

Current current Current current Total
assets assets Total assets liabilities  liabilities  liabilities

RYEE FRDEE AEAT RIAE FRPEE 8BS

Tianjin Xinyuan REHE 757572 52,009 809,581 199,357 - 199,357
Tiancheng Yongyuan R KT 1,146,170 4,072,857 5,219,027 505,729 1,614,766 2,120,495
Shanghai Yujing LiBKE 6,392,424 11,203 6,403,627 2,605926 1,831,000 4,436,926
Jingjin Tongcheng R2AH 4110743 8405 411948 2911611 - 2911611
Shouchuang Jiaming EEES 1,236,262 3,856 1,240,118 730,723 8,042 738,765
Xingtai Jucheng BREHN 3,045,035 50 3,045,085 2,247,386 - 2,247386
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries with significant non-

controlling interests (Continued)

(b1) Non-controlling interests from

common equity interests

(Continued)

N, EEMERBAPAERE)

(1) EF2aA+PNERE)

(b)

FHEERIBRREZN T

(b1) FEERREBFEF
EEELEIRKE
#F R A (&)

Financial information for the six months ended

BECR-AEAASTALABABBHERR

Cash flows
Total from

Net profit/ comprehensive  operating

Revenue income/(loss) activities

FHE/ Gehs/ BEE9

BEHA (REE HeRE
Tianjin Xinyuan REH 19,271 1,596 (60,619)
Tiancheng Yongyuan AKX 2,157 1,026 (49,057)
Shanghai Yujing LiEHE - (1,454) 222,972
Jingjin Tongcheng RERM 1,087,739 564,386 564,386 (29,481)
Shouchuang Jiaming B 2,057 (1,441) (2,972)
Xingtai Jucheng FER 1,751,590 449,238 449,238 (137,890)

Financial information for the six months ended
HEZZ-N\EAAZTRLEAEASRBHEAR

Cash

Total ~ flows from

Net profit/  comprehensive  operating

Revenue income/(loss) activities

FHE/ Gaka/ EEED

BERA 5 (BB)EE HRehs

Tianjin Xinyuan REH 245,771 27,581 22,347

Tiancheng Yongyuan RAKT - (30,375) (30,375) 84,101
Shanghai Yujing HEHE - (4,536) (1)
Jingjin Tongcheng RERM 843,134 450,214 450,214 (2,885)

Shouchuang Jiaming BElEH 126,787 (91) 579,696
Xingtai Jucheng HEREK 529,628 107,999 107,999 (614,219)

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS O
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

F RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

FEHEMERP R RS )

/\ .
(Continued)
(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries 1) EFRAEHHERZREE)
(Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries with significant non- (b) ZFEEELHRREZNT
controlling interests (Continued) DR (#E)
(b2) Equity instruments issued by (b2) FLREHIBITHIARM
subsidiaries of the Group #mTAH
Profit Dividends
attributed  distributed
to non- to non-
controlling  controlling
interests interests Non-
for the six ~ for the six  controlling
months months  interests as
ended 30 ended 30  at 30 June
June 2019 June 2019 2019
HE-Z-N§F BE-Z-1F
AA=tHLE AA=TAL ZE-hEF
~E B ~E B ~AA=TH
BERIVHY [ 8RR SHRR
RR B & 2B B&
Senior perpetual securities  FAFETER
issued by subsidiaries (i) KEEH() 111,832 111,832 2,628,899
Perpetual convertible bond — FRAE{THKA
securities issued by BE:Y &1 (0)]
subsidiaries (ii) 47 = 945,429
Total A 111,879 111,832 3,574,328
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFNA=THLENERHSBE (KR EHEN

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries

(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries with significant non-
controlling interests (Continued)

(b2) Equity instruments issued
by subsidiaries of the Group
(Continued)

)

In November 2014, Central Plaza issued
Senior Perpetual Securities amounted
to USD450,000,000, equivalent to
RMB2,759,625,000, at a distribution
rate of 7.125% per annum under the
Medium Term Note and Perpetual
Securities Program. After deducting
relevant issuance costs, the Group
received RMB2,728,222,000. As
the issuer, Central Plaza may defer
distribution without any frequency
limitations only if Central Plaza or
the Company do not declare or pay
dividends. The Group has no contractual
obligation to repay its principal or to pay
any distribution. The perpetual securities
do not meet the definition of financial
liabilities by the Group. The Group
recognized non-controlling interests
amounted to RMB2,628,899,000 after
deducting the inevitable dividend
payable in the foreseeable future.
Subsequent distribution declared will
be treated as profit distribution to non-
controlling interests.

CHREMR/RARE T

EHMFEAMEZRE)

(1) EF2aA+PNERE)

(b) FHEERLERRESNTF

DA (&)

(b2) FREHIRITHAM
B THAE)

R_FT—MFE+—4
Central Plaza 1R #
HZE B RO EE Fat
&/ - #$77450,000,000
ET WAEARE
2,759,625,0007T #) &
MoK BEESH - FHE
7125% - MR AEE &
RERIESTEAR
#2,728,222,0007T °
%177 ACentral Plazam]
BERELESLA KT
KRB ZATAAR A
{8 20 Central Plaza 3¢
KRB EHEHEZ AR
F o AIRREBRE DAL
REBEESHERILE
BEERERIMNE
ADERMNBEHEHNR
% BAZIFHRLT
HeemeENES
EAREESHETMN
CEIREE N N SN B
RH) D% R
HRRERZARK
2,628,899,0007T © &
BEEIRAEE D A RE
ERELBRENF
HAEERE ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BHE-T—

6.

AVEFER A=+ B L7 M8 A B (B R B FE B 4 -

EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(Continued)

(1) Equity interests in subsidiaries

(continued)

(b) Subsidiaries with significant non-
controlling interests (continued)

(b2) Equity instruments issued
by subsidiaries of the Group
(continued)

(ii)

In November 2016, Capital Grand
entered into a subscription agreement
with a fully-owned subsidiary of
Sino-Ocean Group Holding Limited
(hereinafter “Sino-Ocean”) and KKR
CG Judo Outlets (hereinafter “KKR")
to issue 95,192,308 ordinary shares
to Sino-Ocean and KKR respectively.
Meanwhile, Capital Grand issued
perpetual convertible bonds securities
(the “PCBS”) in the principal amounts
of HKD657,594,260 to Sino-Ocean
and in the principal amounts of
HKD420,096,153 to KKR.

The Group has no contractual obligation
to repay the principal or pay any
assigned interests, and the instrument
will or may not be settled in a
variable number of equity instruments.
Therefore, the PCBS does not comply
with the definition of financial liabilities.
The principal deducted by issuance cost
amounted to RMB945,429,000 was
recognized as non-controlling interests
in the consolidated financial statements.
Subsequent distribution declared will
be treated as profit distribution to non-
controlling interests.

For the six months ended 30 June 2019,
profit attributed to non-controlling
interests amounted to RMB47,000 (for
the six months ended 30 June 2018:
RMB46,000)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFNA=THLENERHSBE (KR EHEN

(Continued)

EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES 7N.

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and

associates

(a) Basic information of significant Joint

Ventures and Associates

Place of main Place of

CHREMR/RARE T

(2) EEELXNBELEPIRE

=
() EZESELENMBELEN
ERER
Equity interests held

5 IR L i
Strategic to
the Group's

operation registration Nature of business operation  Direct (%) Indirect (%)
HEBEHRE
FTERE = i 4t XBHE EREmKY H#E(%) 8 # (%)
Joint ventures
BEDE
Shangbodi Beijing Beijing Construction engineering Yes 51 -
survey and design and
investment consultation
i) 18 3 Emm Emm TiEHEERS =
RAEFAE
Dacheng Beijing Beijing Property development and No - 12.5
Guangyuan sales
KR Emm Emm FiEMBZREE &
Associates
Bt i 1 3¢
Sunshine City Beijing Beijing Properties operation and No 35 -
Commercial management
R R Siaay] MEBLRER &
Shenyang Xinzi Shenyang Shenyang Property development and No - 30
sales
&G i i FEiEMEREE &
Nanchang Nanchang Nanchang Property development, No - 29.2
Huachuang operation and
management
MEEE =1l =1l EHEREZEEERER a
Zhongguancun Beijing Beijing Property development and Yes - 50
Integrated Circuit sales
Garden
TENEXERE Emm Emm FiERBREE b=

Investments in above equity are accounted

for using the equity method.

AR B Bl IR ER AR

REmEZE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE_ZT-NAFAAZTEEANEABRERENZHIN eBRELRARE T
6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, HHEMEBRNESE)
(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) HEEELEMNMBELEFRNE
associates (Continued) (%)
(b) Key financial information of significant (b) EZEAECENETETERE
joint ventures 2
Shangbodi Dacheng Guangyuan
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
Z2-nf  ZT)\E  ZE-ff CE)\F
~A=tH +ZA=1+-A ~AA=tH +ZA=1+-A
Current assets mBEE 225,659 205961 3,232,281 3,105,798
Including: cash and cash AR ReMEe 31,420 22,220 451,545 543,514
equivalent ZEM

Non-current assets ERBEE 478,831 485,062 794 928
Total assets BEAG 704,490 691,023 3,233,075 3,106,726
Current liabilities nHEE 38,637 35,859 2,368,100 1,958,598
Non-current liabilities FRBRE 265,150 264,263 = 387,500
Total liabilities 2fE4; 303,787 300,122 2,368,100 2,346,098
Total equity fREEHS 400,703 390,901 864,975 760,628
Net assets calculated by the BERLOGENF 204,359 199,360 108,122 95,079

percentage of shares holding EENE
- Unrealized profit from - ABRHRER - - - -

intra-group transactions MiE
Book value of investment in joint ~ HAELEREM 204,359 199,360 108,122 95,079

ventures REEE

Market value of joint ventures FEREBREM N/A N/A N/A N/A
(Public) RECEREM TER TER TEH TER

NABEE
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6.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE—_FT-NAFANA=TRALAEAREGRENZHAN  SEELABARE T

EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES
(Continued)

(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and

N, EEMERBAAERE)

(2) EEELXNBELEPIRE

AEEABHRHY
REARLEN
BA

Dividends from joint ventures

associates (Continued) (%)
(b) Key financial information of significant (b) EZEAELENTERESRE
joint ventures (Continued) B (&)
Shangbodi Dacheng Guangyuan
Six months  Six months ~ Six months  Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2019 2018 2019 2018
EHZE BE Bz EE
“E-AF ZE\F Z®-nF ZEONF
~AZ+AE #~A=tHE #~A=+AE ~A=tHE
~EREE  AEASE  AEAEE AEAEHE
Revenue EELON 43,565 50,401 835,657 615,201
Interest (expenses)/income B (BR)/ A (6,916) (7.724) 1,974 10,457
Income tax expenses FENER (3,262) (5,744) (34,816) (47,689)
Net profit EHE 9,801 17,217 104,347 143,066
Other comprehensive income EZaka = - = -
Total comprehensive income Felnes 9,801 17,217 104,347 143,066

The Group calculates asset share according
to amounts that attributed to the Company
from consolidated financial statements of
joint ventures.

The amount in the consolidated financial
statements of joint ventures has taken the
influence of the fair value of identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee joint
venture into consideration and the unified
accounting policies.

REBMNEGEEXEHYH
BERTEBRERAANEHE
RER  BERLAIGESR
EME -

BELXAFMBHRERPH
THRERTHERERFAE
TCEABRFEENRED
NABERER —SEEK

My e -

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE-Z-NEAA=+ALAEANE(BENTHIN  2EELAARETT)
6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EEMEREANERE)
(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) HEEELEMNMBELEFRNE
associates (Continued) = (&)
() Key financial information of significant (c) EEMECENTERRE
associates B

Zhongguancun Integrated

Sunshine City Commercial Shenyang Xinzi Nanchang Huachuang Circuit Garden

178

BxE EBNE HEES TENRHERE

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“E-Af  ZE-\f ZE-Af ZE-\f ZB-hf  ZE-\f ZB-AF ZIN\%

~NAZtR tZB=+-B  A~A=tH tZB=t-B  ~A=tH t-ZA=t-B ~A=tR +=B=t-H

Current assets RBEE 290,919 270,970 960,604 954,982 245,842 288,249 1,818,306 2,153,727

Including: cash and cash BB 46,246 24,481 46,691 33,844 8,024 10,000 278,847 539,318

equivalent £EN

Non-current assets FRBEE 1,234,322 1,232,259 20 20 105,741 94,364 2,225,249 1,935,361

Total assets BEA 1,525,241 1,503,229 960,624 955,002 351,583 382,613 4,043,555 4,089,088

Current liabilities RBEE 62,915 60,921 63,280 68,135 221,035 295,045 693,923 999,749

Non-current liabilities Eik )\ 727,866 725818 - - 11,864 12,144 2,363,690 2,282,897

Total liabilities BEA 790,781 786,739 63,280 68,135 232,899 307,189 3,057,613 3,282,646

Total equity MEEREAH 734,460 716,490 897,344 886,867 118,684 75,424 985,942 806,442

Net assets calculated by the ERRILAHENTEE 257,061 250,772 269,203 266,060 34,627 30,170 492,97 403,221

percentage of shares holding he
- Unrealized profit from intra- -RPRERERNE (555) (555) (5,933) (5,933) = - (9,404) -
group transaction

Book value of investment in HBELEREREN 256,506 250,217 263,270 260,127 34,627 30,170 483,567 403,221
associates FEER

Market value of associates (Public) ~ BAAHBENBLLE NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

REMDAER THER TR A TER TR TER THER TR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHMAETEINERE)
(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) HEEELEMNBELEFRNE
associates (Continued) = (&)
(c) Key financial information of significant () EEHECENTENKE
associates (Continued) B (&)
Zhongguancun Integrated
Sunshine City Commercial Shenyang Xinzi Nanchang Huachuang Circuit Garden
BxE EBTNE BEEd FHENERERE

Six months  Six months  Six months  Six months  Six months  Six months  Six months  Six months
ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-nfE ZZ-\§f ZB-hf ZT-N\f ZB-Af ZE-\f ZB-nfF ZT-N%
AAZTHLE ~A=THLE RAS=tHLE ~AA=+HLE RA=+HLE ~NA=tHELE RA=+ALE RA=tELE
AEASE AEAHE AEAEE AEAHE ABAEE AEAHE AEAEM ASEAHEH

Revenue BERA 45,633 37,540 41,075 86,269 50,496 - M63 564
Interest (expenses)/income BEER /KA (14,979) (19,963) 126 139 9 24 (65,489) 3,599
Income tax expenses MEHER = - (3,492) 3,996 (112) (992) (59,875) 381
Net profit/loss) FHE/ (BB 17,968 (818) 10,477 (11,987) 15,277 (2200 179,500 (1,400)
Other comprehensive income Emalis - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income/ Gaks/(BR)ER 17,968 (818) 10,477 (11,987) 15,277 (2,202) 179,500 (1,400)
(loss)
Dividends from associates RERRHEGANRE = - - - - - - -
Bt ENRA
The Group calculates asset share according AEEBUBECESHTS
to amounts that attributed to the Company HEPEBHREATNLEE
from consolidated financial statements of AER . IREBIR A EE
associates. E1DEE -
The amount in the consolidated financial BMEPESHBERETD
statements of associates has taken the SEEEETHEREERE
influence of the fair value of identifiable PEARAFEEMNEEN
net assets and liabilities of the investee ANRBEUNEGE —STHER
associates into consideration and the O

unified accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

6. EQUITY INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N, EHAETEINERE)
(Continued)
(2) Equity interests in joint ventures and (2) HEEEDLENBELEDNE
associates (Continued) = (%)
(d) Summary information of insignificant (d) FTEEEELENBELE
joint ventures and associates WELAEE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2019 2018

BE-2-h& HBHE-T)/\F
ARA=tHL NA=tTHLE

A8 A HE 7~ {E A HA
Joint ventures: EEME:
Total book value of investment #HEBREEES 5 3,030,672 324,335
Subtotals by the percentage of %I & I8 #% # % tt.
shareholding SHERETH
Net (loss)/profit F (B8 (4,567) 78,345
Other comprehensive income — H 4R 4 W % = -
Total comprehensive (loss)/ A (B8 Wa
income B (4,567) 78,345
Associates: BERE:
Total book value of investment A EEEBEA 1,461,035 132,136
Subtotals by the percentage of %I & I8 ¥z # % £t
shareholding AEEEFH
Net loss FE B (9,463) (1,006)
Other comprehensive income — Ef 44Uz - -
Total comprehensive loss REBRBEAR (9,463) (1,006)
The calculation of net profit and other FREMEMmES K EEE
comprehensive income has taken the EZERMEGEREFIUHREE
market value of recognized assets and MBEORAREBE RS —
liabilities at acquisition date and its SABERNARTE -

accounting policy adjustments into
consideration.
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7.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

INTERESTS OF NON-CONSOLIDATED
SPECIAL PURPOSE VEHICLE

In June 2016, the Company entered into the equity
trusteeship agreements (hereinafter “Trusteeship
Agreement”) with the shareholders of Huludao
Chuangrong Investment Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
“Huludao Chuangrong”), Huludao Capital Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Huludao
Investment”), Huludao Capital Industrial Development
Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Huludao Industrial”) and
Huludao Capital Longwan Development Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter “Longwan Development”) (collectively
“Trusteeship Companies”). The Company shall
exercise the shareholder rights by trusteeship (except
for the right to profit, residual properties distribution
and disposition), including but not limited to the
right to attending shareholders’ meeting, voting,
nomination, recommendation, supervision, proposal
and questioning etc. The Company shall perform
supervision, propose suggestions for the trusteeship
companies and appoints individuals for directors,
supervisors and senior management on behalf of the
trusteeship companies’ shareholders. According to the
Trusteeship Agreement, the trusteeship expenses are
calculated as 0.2% of the sales revenue of trusteeship
companies within maximum of RMB900,000 and
minimum of RMB500,000.
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BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

7.

INTERESTS OF NON-CONSOLIDATED
SPECIAL PURPOSE VEHICLE (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has no equity interests
in the above trusteeship companies and treated
Huludao Chuangrong, Huludao Investment, Huludao
Industrial and Longwan Development as interests
of non-consolidated special purpose vehicle. These
trusteeship companies are principally engaged in the
real estate development, and the revenue are mainly
from the real estate project. As at 30 June 2019, the
Group has not transferred assets to the trusteeship
companies, and has no obligation or intention
to provide financial support to these trusteeship
companies.

Other non-consolidated special purpose vehicles,
including Zhuhai Henggin Chengdu Weihua Fund and
Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan Jialing Fund, are disclosed in
note 4(11).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The reportable segments of the Group are the
business units that provide different products or
services, or operate in different areas. Different
businesses or areas require different marketing
strategies, the Group, therefore, separately manages
the production and operation of each reportable
segment and valuates their operating results
respectively, in order to make decisions about
resources allocation to these segments and to assess
their performance.

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 and as at
30 June 2019, the Group identified eight reportable
segments as follows:

- Beijing segment, which is mainly engaged in real
estate development, sales and related business
in Beijing region.

- Huadong segment, which is mainly engaged
in real estate development, sales and related
business in Huadong region.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFNA=THLENERHSBE (KR EHEN

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

—  Tianjin segment, which is mainly engaged in real
estate development, sales and related business
in Tianjin region.

- Chengyu segment, which is mainly engaged
in real estate development, sales and related
business in Chengdu and Chongging region.

- Other segment, which is mainly engaged in real
estate development, sales and related business
in other regions, including Shenyang, Xi‘an, and
Hainan etc.

- Outlets business segment, which is mainly
engaged in Capital Outlets businesses
development and operation in different regions.

- Other investment properties segment, which is
mainly engaged in the investment properties
development and operation other than Capital
Outlets business in different regions.

- Primary land development segment (including
renovation of shanty towns), which is mainly
engaged in primary land development and
renovation of shanty towns in Beijing,Tianjin and
Hebei region.

For the six months ended 30 June 2018 and as at 31
December 2018, the Group identified eight reportable
segment, namely, Beijing, Shanghai, Tianjin, Chengyu,
other segment, Outlets business segment, Other
investment property segment and Primary land
development segment. With the gradual expansion of
the real estate sales business in Eastern China, such as
Jiangsu and Zhejiang, the Group unifies the business
of Shanghai segment and lJiangsu, Zhejiang and other
companies originally included in other segment under
the management of the newly established Huadong
segment, and restate the information of the segment
for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and as at 31
December 2018.

Inter-segment transfer prices are determined by
referring to sales price to third parties.

J\.

CHREMR/RARE T

o INEPNE P

- KESIH BEEREHEET
EHERBESEREBHERE -

- BROANE - AEERAMEETT
B ERZHERBBAER -

- Hittn® BEEEMMBERETT
FHEMEHENMREEL =
ERBEAEELNERS AR
BEEHRAEHEMEHER
MHERER -

- “¢i+*ﬂﬁ%7f&§7‘% BERME
EEJ%¢i++ Hi&R & EQ%F# %R E
- HiREMEMESH BESR

WHETHBRRERTREER
WERENMEEE -

- - ARBESIB(BREMPEXR
&) BEERRRMWERRE LM
—HRRABEMMPREERS -

HEZT-N\FXA=+HI/NEAH
Mk_ZE2E-NF+A=+—0 K&
FEENEREDE - 2Rl RLERDH -
B RESE - Koo E - K
AE > BERREBS I - HMigEM
EHES BRI — RIS I - B
Bl IS ERWERMEHESE
BHENZHRER  FXEEGLESE
UERRBEEEMD FBHEIE - L
i@?%%%ﬁfmﬁ %3 HIEER 55 &b
ETER WHESHREZE_ZT-N\F
/\)E] +E|Jt/\1lﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ&f§§_)\fﬁ
+ZA=FT—HMNHBEE -

D EEE E B B 2R
RAMWEBEREE -

RAE=FHEMN

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE

183



184

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R
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BHE-T—

AVEFER A=+ B L7 M8 A B (B R B FE B 4 -

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Assets are allocated to segments based on the
operation.
Liabilities are allocated to segments based on the
segments’ operation.

location of assets and the segments’

SHEMNAARETT)

J\.

7 #BAE B (&)
BEREBEDHMNEEUAREENAE
VEETOR  BEREBEDIOHEEE
T B -

_\

(1)  Segment information for the six months ended () #HEZZE-NAFAA=THILEAHE
30 June 2019 and as at 30 June 2019 are as AHEE_ZE-NFRA=THH
follows: BERFRAT
Primary land Intersegments
Property development, sales and related business Investment properties  development Unallocated  elimination Total
EAERRAERANER REKEHE 1#-RE% APENEE  ABHESR &it
Beiing  Huadong Tianjin -~ Chengyu Others Outlets Others
R 5 K2 HA At REREER £t
Revenue from external ANRFUA
customers 1,180,886 1,302,455 2,903,185 704170 1,304,411 378,188 56,310 2,565,942 80,778 10,476,385
Inter-segment revenue LR T T ON = = = = = = = = 123,520 (123,520) o
Revenue from contracts REZPANHNA:
with customers:
Recognized at a pointin ~ REEEEZED
time 1,180,886 1,302,455 2,903,185 704170 1,304,411 378,188 56,310 1,087,739 80,778 - 8998182
Recognized over time E-ERMER - = o < = o - 1478203 o - 1,478,203
Cost of sales from main ~ TEEHAK
operations (754,413)  (882,854)  (1,662,890) (394,150) (731,455) (34,224) (7,082)  (1,697,385) (75,660) - (6,240113)
Interest income 0N 16,417 5,663 8313 960 8,391 14,835 338 491 100,284 - 155,692
Interest expenses HEEA (243,833) (14,738) - (45,040) - (179,558) (50,386) (208,178) (786,190) - (1,527,923)
Share of profit/{loss) of HBERNAELEN
associates and joint FEhE/(B%)
ventures 75,860 2,497 (11,801) = (12,835) 4,769 = (1,264) 50,425 S 107,651
Depreciation and HEERRHE
amortization (51) (120) (416) (35) (148) (31,095) (87) o (3,028) o (34,980)
Total profit/loss) fE/ (5828 62,206 185,863 739,656 154,858 254,890 107,808 48,688 734,898 (110,944) - 217193
Income taxes expense fBHER 1914 (58,496) (186,743) (39,078) (63,996) (76,251) (12,111) (207,612) 223,533 - (418,840)
Net profit FHE 64,120 121,367 552,913 115,780 190,894 31,557 36,577 527,286 112,589 - 1,759,083
Total assets BELE 32,552,881 29,990,210 16,618,764 7760178 19,549,419 16,691,424 9,272,782 12,706,960 120,004,798 (69,796,620 195,350,796
Total liabllities BEEE (21,472,142)  (9,691,707) (6,495,035  (1,430,717)  (1,290,602) (14,978,872)  (5,628,440) (29,273,699 (135,301,823) 72,326,756 (153,236,281)
Long-term equity HBELENRED
investments on ENRBRERE
associates and joint
ventures 975,513 1,519,135 799,376 - 139,191 210,626 - 189,590 1,949,839 - 5843330
Increase in non-current FRIEEEME()
assets () 157 637 102 34 1322 1,174,105 23,699 573 1,996 - 1,203,825

i)
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HE-ZT

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(2)

—NFENA=THIENE AR (BRES BRI

Segment information for the six months ended

30 June 2018 and as at 31 December 2018 are

as follows:

(@) Segment information for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 are as follows

CHREMR/RARE T

N. DEHMER (&)

(2) BE-ZF-N\FRA=THILRE
HHﬂFEJ& E-N\F+ZA=+—
DEERIRIMT

(a) HE-_Z—N\FXA=1+H
WENERHERE» 315 B (&

(restated): =)
Primary land Intersegments
Property development, sales and related business Investment properties development  Unallocated elimination Total
EREREHERERER REUENE TH-BFR% AFEMEE  AREEH EE
Beijing Huadong Tianjin Chengyu Others Outlets Others
R B3 RE A A BEREXH it
Revenue from external LG
customers 1,777,100 706,380 1,053,913 694,630 1,134,616 180,980 58,269 1,497,296 13,629 - 716,813
Inter-segment revenue ABERHUA - - - - 83,948 325 - - - (84,273) -
Revenue from contracts REZPENHRA
with customers:
Recognized at a pointin ~ REEREZER
time 1,777,100 706,380 1,053,913 670,323 1,031,687 180,980 58,269 843,134 13,629 - 6,335,415
Recognized over time RE-BRAER - - - 24,307 102,929 - - 654,162 - - 781,398
Cost of sales from main ~~ TEEHAK
operations (1,521,942) (383,583) (706,868) (458,331) (683,960) (12,337) (4,610) (813,239 - - (4,584,866)
Interest income flgkA 4731 4430 14,552 569 7516 314 11,878 120 89,440 - 136,378
Interest expenses fEER (130,019) (51,907) (7,708) (116) (3,934) (52,012) (62,875) (70,783) (711,239) - (1,090,593)
Share of profit/(oss) of HRENRELEN
associates and joint BERE/(B%)
ventures 101,979 5492 (2,812) - (3,956) (881) - 548 61,214 - 166,517
Provisions from assets ERAERXHRE
impairment loss - - - - - - - - (58,019) - (58,019)
Depreciation and HEENRHE
amortization (1,881) (17 (402) (84) 23 (12,450) (10,974) (179) (1,233) - (27,357)
Total profit/(loss) 25,103 135,343 212,780 158,940 193,612 (81,310) (79,399) 621,277 351,439 - 1,537,785
Income taxes expense (62,287) (61,674) (45,317) (41,316) (151,757) 3903 4,599 (174,838) 59,161 - (469,526)
Net profit/(loss) (37,184) 73,669 167463 117,624 41,855 (77.407) (74,800) 446,439 410,600 - 1,068,259
Increase in non-current
assets () 561 329 304 - 49 1,079,497 88,035 31 636 - 1,169,442
(i) Non-current assets do not include financial (i) EnBEETBESRE
assets, long-term equity investments and E - RERERE MR
deferred income tax assets. BFREE °
BEIEERMERAA —NEFHRE
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BHE-ZT-NAFNA=TRHLIE/E A B GRREFRIEBEN

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(2) Segment information for the six months ended (2)
30 June 2018 and as at 31 December 2018 are

as follows: (Continued)

(b) Segment information as at 31 December (b)
2018 are as follows (restated):

Property development, sales and related business

SHEMNAARETT)

—E-N\F+-A=+—H

DEESEEEMR) !

Primary land
Investment properties

development  Unallocated

Intersegments
elimination Total

ERERRBERRRER RENENE TH-BF% AFEMEE  AREEH ait

Beijing Huadong Chengyu Others Outlets Others

IR £33 A A BEREXH At
Total assets BEEE 26,959,039 27,417,607 7482478 12594090 13720476 10,793,139 13208115 51137759 (11,562,073) 169,716,823
Total liabilities AEAE (26,795,589 (21,835,388) (5,412,310 (9758,331)  (7,661,198)  (3,291,818)  (8,926,320) (53,740,602) 18,496,580  (131,516,141)
Long-term equity HBELENAED
investments on $nRBRERE
associates and joint
ventures 597,611 1,538,459 - - 30,172 - - 2398564 - 5,108,373

The revenue generated and total
assets apart from financial assets, long-term equity
investment and deferred income tax assets from
Mainland China and overseas countries or regions

were disclosed as follows:

non-current

RHWNLEEE

BERERELEMRF

BEMABEIRMOT:

H A B 50 it [ RO Bk

7N 2 [ 7 B R R H th B 2R b [ A 3 O
AR ASEB AR REA R
TREE REK
MEEZIIIER

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2019 2018

/\E—-‘I_E.u: /\ﬂ:"f‘EHJ:

Revenue from external customers %435 WK A {8 A H 7~ 1 A Hf
China F 10,476,385 7,112,652
France 5 B = 4,161
Total = 10,476,385 7,116,813
30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hEF = — \F

Total non-current assets IRBEEHEE AB=+tH +=ZA=+—H
China M 22,341,495 21,604,672
France 5 B 176,776 181,379
Total &5 22,518,271 21,786,051

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) . D EE R (&)
Most business of the Company and main subsidiaries ARG REFEFRARINEBLZELRN
are operated in Mainland China. For the six months P BEZZT-NAFRA=THIER
ended 30 June 2019, the Group has no revenue EAERE  AEEEXREKMBEERKE R
generated from other countries (for the six months SBANEHEZZ—N\FRNA=ZFTHLERN
ended 30 June 2018: RMB4,161,000). 8 A B - A R#4,161,0007T) °
For the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group HE_Z-NAFA=THLEARHEA
has revenue of RMB1,087,739,000 generated from a HE AEEa M- REAED S
customer from primary land development segment —UEFREHNEERRARBRARK
which accounts for 10% of the total revenue of 1,087,739,0007T - fE AN & B = E A
the Group (for the six months ended 30 June 2018: W10% (BE_Z—-NFXA=+tHIE
RMB843,134,000, accounts for 12% of the total N E A AR A R #843,134,0007T -
revenue of the Group). EAEESZERANI2%) -
RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BETBEEREERERS
TRANSACTIONS
(1) The parent company (1) ZFAFER
(@) The general information of the parent (a) BRAREXRER

Place of

registration Nature of business

o it EX 1

Capital Group Beijing, the PRC Infrastructure, financial securities,

industrial technology, commercial
trade and tourist hotel, etc.

BEIEHE RE AL R EMRE erEr  LERE
SEICE R ig i
The Company’'s ultimate controlling party KRB B EF T REE
is Capital Group, incorporated in Beijing. 8 At Rm e
(b) Registered capital and changes in (b) BREAIZEMERARHEZ L
registered capital of the parent
31 December 30 June
2018 Increase Decrease 2019
S :3 “E-0E
+=A=t-~H REEM AEEY  RA=TH
Capital Group EEEE 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(1) The parent company (Continued)

(c) The proportions of equity interests

N. BETREMERS @)

(1) B2ABRE)
() BARNYARANIERLA

and voting rights in the Company held MR RELL B
by the parent company
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
ZE-AEXAZTH “Z-\§t-A=t-H
Equity Voting Equity Voting
interests rights interests rights
held held held held
BRES  RRELA BRLH  RMERLD
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Capital Group HEIEE 54.47 54.47 54.47 54.47

(2) Subsidiaries
The general information and other related
information of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 6(1).

(3) Joint ventures and associates

The general information of joint ventures and
associates are set out in note 6(2).

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY .

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(3) Joint ventures and associates (Continued)

Except for the significant joint ventures and
associates set out in note 6(2), the rest
of information of other joint ventures and
associates engaged in related party transactions
with the Group is listed as follows:

Place
of main Place of
operation registration  Nature of business

IREES i EBUE

(3)

Strategic to
the Group's
operation
HEE
RERT
ARERY

AT REERENRERS &)

BRELENBELXER (&)
BHERQTERENERA S
MEELENBRI  HBFEX
SEELTEBRIZINEMAE D
EMBELERNBRAT

Equity interests held Equity interests held

i-1:4:47] R Al

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
ZE-NE —E-)\E
~AB=tH +ZA=+-8H

Direct (%) Indirect (%)  Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) (%) BE(%) 2% (%)

Joint ventures

RERE

Shouwan Yuye (Shanghai) Shanghai Shanghai Property management
Property Services Co., Ltd.
("Shouwan Yuye")

EEZZ(LB)NERBER L L NEER
RAUATEIEEEZ))

Tianjin Yongyuan Real Estate Tianjin Tianjin Property development
Co., Ltd. ("Tianjin Yongyuan") and sales
REATESXBERAT K& RE FHERERHEE
ATRBIREAT))
Tianjin Ruitai Real Estate Tianjin Tianjin Property development
Co., Ltd. ("Tianjin Ruitai”) and sales
RERFEFARAA RED RE FHERERHEE
UATRIRERZR])
Tianjin Lianjin Tianjin Tianjin Property development
and sales
REHR RED R FHERERHEE
Tianjin Jiging Real Estate Tianjin Tianjin Property development
Co., Ltd. ("Tianjin Jiging") and sales
REEEERERAA RED REM FHERERHEE
ATRIREEE))
Chuangyuan Yicheng Beijing Beijing Property development
and sales
Bl bR ERT FHERERHE
Yuanchuang Xingmao Beijing Beijing Property development
and sales
BEAR R ERH EHERERHE
Yuanchuang Xingcheng Beijing Beijing Property development
and sales
B8 A LR ERH FHERERHEE
Tianjin Hefa Tianjin Tianjin Property development
and sales
REAE RED REM FHERERHE
Shenyang Jitian Shenyang Shenyang Property development
and sales
EBER EHH EHW EHERERHEE

Yes

il

No

iy

No

iy

No

oy ]

No

oA

Yes

il

Yes

il

Yes

il

No

oA

No

&

- 51 - 51
- 30 - 30
- 50 - 50
- 25 - 25
- 50 - 50
- 50 - 50
- 30 - 30
- 50 - 50
- 24.7 - 247
- 50 - 50
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BETBENERS#E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(3) Joint ventures and associates (Continued) (B) EELENBELEBR(E)
Place Strategic to
of main Place of the Group's Equity interests held Equity interests held
operation registration  Nature of business  operation 1 Al FR
HEE 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
RERE ZE-NE —Z-N\%
TELE  Hf EBLE ARHEKMY ~A=1H +=A=+-8

Direct (%) Indirect (%)  Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) (%) E#(%) % (%)

Tonghua Qiangyu Beijing Beijing Investment No

Management
BERT ERT LR REER & = 40 - 40
Capital Qinglv Beijing Beijing Property development  No

and sales
LR R ERH BEHERERHE & = 51 - 51
Tianjin Ruibin Tianjin Tianjin Property development  No

and sales
REEE RED REM FHERERHE & = 50 - 50
Shanghai Shoujia Shanghai Shanghai Property development  Yes

and sales
LBEE Ligm LiEm BHERERHEE IS = 60 - 60
Shanghai Henggu Shanghai Shanghai Property development  No

and sales
LBER LEm Lgm BEHERERHE & = 28 - 28
Shanghai Songming Shanghai Shanghai Property development  No

and sales
LR i3] FiEm FHERERHE & - 28 - 28
Jinglong Yonghui Beijing Beijing Property development No

and sales
SEKE ERT ERH FHERERHE & = 14.55 - 14.55
Tianjin Ruihe Real Estate Tianjin Tianjin Property development No

Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Ruihe") and sales
REHNEZERAA RED REM BEHERERHE &

(CO:IPS- 3¢ = 50 - 50
Tianjin Lianzhan Tianjin Tianjin Property development  No

and sales
REBR RED REM BEHERERHE & = 11,5 - 175
Beijing Jingu Chuangzhan Real Beijing Beijing Primarily land No

Estate Co., Ltd. development

("Jingu Chuangzhan”) N/A N/A
LTREAEAREXERRE R ERH T -RE% &

RAATEI2 AR = 49 Tam Tam
Beijing Yuechuang Beijing Beijing Yes N/A N/A
LR A ERW LR TH-RRE IS = 49 TER TER
Beijing Zhicheng Xinda Property ~ Beijing Beijing Property development  Yes

Management Co., Ltd. and sales

("Zhicheng Xinda") N/A N/A
TREASENEERER R ERH FHERERHE IS

RAUATEIHARE]) = 49 TER TER
Suzhou Hongchang Real Suzhou Suzhou Property development  Yes

Estate Co., Ltd. ("Suzhou and sales

Hongchang”) N/A N/A
BMUREXERAT BMm BM@ FHERERHE IS

(ATRBIEM ) = 51 TER Tam
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE—_FT-NAFANA=TRALAEAREGRENZHAN  SEELABARE T

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . BETBEERERRERS #)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(3) Joint ventures and associates (Continued) (3) E8LENBELERTRE)
Place Strategic to
of main Place of the Group's Equity interests held Equity interests held
operation registration  Nature of business ~ operation Al FR Al
HEE 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
BHRE “E-NF —E-N\%
TEEE i EBLE ARERY ~AB=tH TZA=t+-8H
Direct (%) Indirect (%)  Direct (%) Indirect (%)
E#(%) (%) E#%(%) % (%)
Xiamen Rongdi Xiamen Xiamen Property development No
and sales N/A N/A
EFR EM® EfH EHERERHE & = 36 TaR TaR
Guangzhou Bizeng Real Guangzhou  Guangzhou  Property development No
Estate Co., Ltd. and sales
("Guangzhou Bizeng”) N/A N/A
EMEEERERZERAAGL  BMND BME EHERERHE &
THEIENELE) = 51 TER TER
Associates
BELE
Golden Net Beijing Beijing Real estate sales agent No
k2 kD ERE ERT FHEHERE 4 14 = 14 -
Nanchang Huachuang Nanchang Nanchang Property development  No
and sales
HEES HEM BEW EHERERHE 4 - 29.2 - 29.2
Zhuhai Henggin Ruiyuan Jialing Zhuhai Zhuhai Leasing and business ~ Yes
Fund services
GKEEERTERES %8 HiEm BERABRBEE IS = 30.4 - 304
Tianjin Xinming Tianjin Tianjin Property development  No
and sales
K2 RED PS4 FHERERHEE & - 40 - 40
Tianjin Xinging Tianjin Tianjin Property development  No
and sales
REHE REH REM EHERERHE 4 - 40 - 40
Tengtai Yiyuan Beijing Beijing Primary land No
development
BREE R ERT TR & - 25 - 25
Kaiyuan Hean Beijing Beijing Property development  No
and sales
ik ERE ERT FHERERHEE & 49 = 49 -
Ruicheng Yongchuang Beijing Beijing Technology promotion  No
and consultation N/A N/A
KA R ERH RiEE %8 & = 22.2 TER TER
Ningbo Shouju Yiming Ningbo Ningbo Investment No
management N/A N/A
ERHERH ERD ERT REER & = 25 TER TER
Guangzhou Runyu Guangzhou  Guangzhou  Property development No
and sales N/A N/A
EMEE BN EMH FHEREREE & - 20 TER TER

BRIEXRODARAR —E-AFPRHRS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

9.

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY .
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) Other related parties (4)

BT REERERNRERS &)

Htt = ZERBLHER

Relationship with the Group
BN £R B B B MR

Reco Ziyang Pte Ltd (“Reco Ziyang”)

EEREARQFUATHEIEGRE]D

Shanghai Poly Jianjin Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Poly Jianjin")

FERMNEREMEGRIFUATHEMRANZR])

Kunming Wuhua District Industry Development Co., Ltd.
("Kunming Wuhua")

ERTHEREXERBRAFCATHIEADE]

Shouhui Real Estate

HESE

Chengdu Jinhui

B P 85 B

Shanghai Liangyue Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Liangyue”)

FERNEXBRAFTATHEILERN]

Beijing First One Capital Management Ltd.
("First One Capital”)

IRETEERAERGRAF

Tianjin Ruixiang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Ruixiang”).

REWEBEEBR QA (LATHEIREREFED

Chongging Huayu Shengrui Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. ("Chongging Huayu Shengrui”)

EREFRKEHEREARAQA
ATHIEEEFER]

Hongzhou Rongxiang Real Estate Co., Ltd.

("Hongzhou Rongxiang”)
MNEFE AR AR (AT E D)

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries
RRARZFRAANEZDLHKRRE

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries

ARBZFRANEELHERR

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries
KRB ZFRAMNEZLERE

Significant subsidiary of
associate of the Company
RAFZBECENERZFRA

Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RRAFZEERENERFRA

Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
ARBIZEECENEET QA

Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
ARBIZEELENEET LA

Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RRBZEELENEET LA

Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
ARBIZEEENEEF LA

Significant subsidiary of joint
venture of the Company
RARFZEERENEEZFRA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY .
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) Other related parties (Continued)

AT REERENRERS &)

Htt = ZBB 5 HERGE)

Relationship with the Group
HAEENBIE

Beijing Capital Financial Assets Transaction Information
Service Co., Ltd. (“Capital Financial Service"”)

ETREEEREERIERERBBROHERAA
ATHEIERIE2 R

Beijing Capital Investment

BRI E

Beijing XCapital Construction Investment Fund (Limited
Partnership) (“XCapital Fund”)

IR EAFREERREES(BREG®)
(ATHEIEFmEES])

Capital Securities

ELIEE:

Beijing Chuangzhi Xinrong Investment Center (Limited
Partnership)(“Chuangzhi Xinrong”)

ITREEERRERPLBEREB)ATHEIEBIEER]D

BCG Chinastar International Investment Limited (“BCG
Chinastar”)

BAEREBEEREBRAFATHEIEZERE]

Reco Yanshan Private Limited (“Reco Yanshan”)

Reco Yanshan Private Limited (LA #[Reco Yanshanl)

Bantex Investments Limited (“Bantex Investments”)

Bantex Investments Limited (LA T #&[Bantex Investments])

Beijing Xinshang Zhiyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

("Xinshang Zhiyuan”)

ERFRHBEFHERBZERAR CATREIF W BUR]

Controlled by the same
ultimate owner

RR—REEH T RGN ER

Controlled by the same
ultimate owner

5 — B AR TR E

Controlled by the same
ultimate owner
A — ARSI T E

Controlled by the same
ultimate owner
XA — R ARYEHI T ) B B

Controlled by the same
ultimate owner

XR-REES T EFNER

Controlled by the same
ultimate owner

XRA-—mEEHTEFNER

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary
of the Company
RRABIZFRAINEZLERR

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary
of the Company
RRARBZFRAAMNEZLERR

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary
of the Company
RRARAZFRAINEZDHRE

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

9.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) Other related parties (Continued)

.

BT REERERNRERS &)

(4)

Htt = ZBRB L HERE)

Relationship with the Group
HAEENBE

Hangzhou Weixin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

("Hangzhou Weixin")

AU R 3 5 b EE B B A BR 2 B (BATT 78 [470 M B %A 1)

Tianjin Xuwei Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin

Xuwei"”)

REBERFMERBER DA A THEIREBME])

Beijing Yongtongchang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

(“Yongtongchang”)

EFRKAEFEHEREERRATUATEIKREED

Jindi Xingye Real Estate Co., Ltd.("Jindi Xingye")

SHERXFHMEBERAFUATHEIE M EE )

Beijing Longhu Zhongbai Real Estate Co., Ltd(“Longhu

Zhongbai”)

ERERREERERATNATHIEATED

Zhejiang Rongshengda Holdings Limited("Rongshengda”)

WOLRFTFEERBRAR AT HEIRTE]

Beijing Jiayuan Hongye Investment Management Co., Ltd.

("Jiayuan Hongye")

ERBERAXRREEEBERAFNMUTHEIZEREE]D

Xiamen Xiangfa Real Estate Co., Ltd. ("Xiamen Xiangfa”)

EFAEMEARARUATEIEMAZE]

Beijing Financial Street International Hotel Limited
(“Financial Street Hotel”)
IRERMEREREEESRAQF

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary of
the Company

KRR ZFRAAMEZELERR

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary of
the Company

RRARZFRANEZDLHRKRRE

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary of
the Company

ARBZFRANEELHRR

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary of
the Company

RARZFRAANEZDLHRKRRE

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary of
the Company

RRARZFRAMNEZDHKRE

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary of
the Company

RRAFZFRAINEZLBRR

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary of
the Company

RRAFZFRANEZLERR

Significant non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiary of
the Company

RRBIZFRAAINEZDERE

Original associate of the
Company
RAERNF 2B E B E




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY . FEEE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (5)

The Board of directors considers all transactions
with related parties are on normal commercial
terms, and prices of related party transactions
were agreed by the Group and the related
parties.

(@) Purchases or sales of goods, providing
or receiving services

TERNEERS )

BB 5
ARRESERAMAERBET
MXZAFTALEEBEGK B
Bt 2 5 T B 2 7R 5 5] B B
W — BUEE -

(a) BHEm EHNEZEE

Purchases of goods and receiving services: RERL BEX8%:
Pricing policy and
procedure for Six months Six months
Related party decision-making of the ended ended
Related Party transactions related party transactions 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
B2-Z-N§F BZE_Z-N\F
AAZTHL NA=ZTALE
B A BHZHIAD B2 5T ERE ~EAHE NEAHE
Capital Group ~ Keepwell Deed
LY it 35,396 31,329
Capital Group ~ Guarantees
EEEIE ERRH ‘ . 21,750 10,000
Golden Net Selling agency Acco.rd|rjg 0 .mark.et price
s HERERE criterion with friendly 8,425 9,809
Shangbodi Property leasing ;egoyimn.ﬂ o
4 FERE B Gt 3,79 3,796
, o RELBHARBIERN ! '
Capital - Secur|t|§s HERBEEARE &
Securities consignment BT SER -
EEEE EFETRE = 3,300
Others Property leasing
Hit FEHEE 739 1,231
Total
G 70,106 59,465

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BB TBERERERS#E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued) (5) BBEXRS (&)
(a) Purchases or sales of goods, providing (a) Bémm EENESEK
or receiving services (Continued) (#%&)
Sales of goods and providing services: HE®m  BES

Pricing policy and

procedure for Six months Six months
Related party decision-making of the ended ended
Related parties  transactions related party transactions 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Bz HE
“B-NE —E-N\F
AA=TAHL ~NA=TALE
Gl BHZHIAD B 5 E BHE ANEAHHE ANEAHE
Tianjin Ruihe Merchandise sales
PSRl BmHE 1,087,739 -
Tianjin Jiging Merchandise sales
REEE HmiEE - 843,134
Capital Group  Property
leasing and
management
EEEY:] FEBRER , .
W R Acco.rd|rjg to .mark.et price 14,130 13,664
Chengdu Merchandise sales cnterpn.Wlth friendly
Jinhui ;egohanc;n.\ N
RESE  maEe Pt 1,140 8434
Sh(;l;?atiLReal Merchandise sales ErEEERRE ki
T BEREXHER -
BEEEX B miHE 6,608 5,093
Chengdu Consulting service
Jinhui
720 87 [ 1R 3 3 MR 75 - 4,379
Shouhui Real Consulting service
Estate
BEEEXR B R MR 75 - 2,530
Others
Hit 5,584 7,339
Total
CEl 1,115,201 884,573
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY .

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued)

(b)

Interest income/(expense) generated

AT REERENRERS &)

(5) BEBXXZ (&)

(b) XEBEBABLTBENES

from related parties: ERABA(BA):
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BE-Z-NF ®BE_T-N\F
AA=tHL NAZ=ZTHILE
~E A H R 7~ {8 A HA
Yuanchuang Xingcheng = Bl H R 130,585 -
Tianjin Hefa REGE 100,345 -
Tianjin Ruixiang RE I 53,160 39,867
Beijing Yuechuang Sl 43,749 -
Tianjin Lianzhan RO Bk R 40,204 -
Suzhou Hongchang & N 5k a 37,234 -
Shanghai Liangyue BRI 36,671 -
Tianjin Yongyuan RAEKTT 34,027 30,434
Xiamen Rongdi = 95l 20,376 -

Zhongguancun Integrated B8 & pX & & E

Circuit Garden 17,840 22,906
Tianjin Ruihe R I A 13,701 -
Guangzhou Runyu BMNEE 13,296 -
Jingu Chuangzhan eREE 13,212 -
Capital Qinglv Bl F IR - 27,932
XCapital Fund T EES (10,824) (11,585)
Others Hth 1,100 1,590
Total & &t 544,676 111,144

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BETBEERMERSE)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Related party transaction (Continued) (5) BEHMXRZ (&)
(c) Guarantee and keepwell deed () ERRREEHHEFHE
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E—-hE —E—)N\F

AB=tH +-A=+-"

Corporate guarantee  BE&I%E &R QA E R ()

of Capital Group for

the Company (i) 4,500,000 4,500,000
Corporate guarantee  H&I& B & F 2 RIERI)

of Capital Group for

subsidiaries (ii) 248,000 248,000
Keepwell deed for HAEEB AT ARIRH

subsidiaries by HE O R

Capital Group 9,986,111 9,576,035
Non-controlling FRAEAIZDERERTF

shareholders of naEER

subsidiaries for

subsidiaries 1,887,000 1,893,000
Corporate guarantee A&EREE AR ZF

of the Group for the 2 &4 1R (iii)

subsidiary of joint

ventures (iii) 750,000 750,000
Corporate guarantee of A&EERBE & R A HER(v)

the Group for joint

ventures (iv) 590,000 649,500
0) In 2014, Capital Group provided irrevocable (i) KRR EFAREHAEER
guarantee for the Company’s long-term —E-WFEERARRIFMRA
borrowings from PICC Investment Holding Co., RIEEERBERIGEEDN
Ltd. amounted to RMB2,000,000,000. The A K #2,000,000,0007t 32
guarantee will expire in October 2019. MR ES EERERE
R EBRINBHER=-FT—AN
F+A o
In 2015, Capital Group provided irrevocable RRABWERFEAEBR
guarantee for the Company’s long-term TE-REARNRERERERE
borrowings from Taikang Assets Management BEEEHEERETRAMEE
Co., Ltd. amounted to RMB2,500,000,000. The 7 A R #2,500,000,0007T
guarantee will expire in August 2022. 5B 18 FRAR £ 1 AT RS 1 3
HEERE  ERIHBEAR
—E-FNR-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFNA=THLENERHSBE (KR EHEN

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5) Related party transaction (Continued)

(c) Guarantee and keepwell deed
(Continued)

(if)

(iii)

In 2014, Capital Group provided irrevocable
guarantee for S.C.'s long-term borrowings from
Shenzhen Branch of Ping’an Bank amounted
to RMB1,220,000,000. The guarantee will
expire in August 2022. As at 30 June 2019,
the balance of the borrowing amounted to
RMB248,000,000.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group provided
irrevocable guarantees for the long-term
borrowings of RMB750,000,000 borrowed by
a subsidiary of a joint venture in March 2018
from AVIC Trust Co., Ltd (hereinafter “AVIC
Trust”). The guarantee will expire in May 2020.

As at 30 June 2019, long-term borrowings
of joint ventures of the Group, amounted
to RMB590,000,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB649,500,000), are guaranteed by the
Group.

CHREMR/RARE T

N. BETRELERS @)

(5) BAEEXZ (&)
() ERERRHEFHRE)

(i)

(iii)

RARWB AR EEIEER
—T-EEAEAIBEBL
FRIBTRINDSITEABA
X #1,220,000,0007t & Hj
BERRETAIRENES
EERF  ERIHBBEAZ
TZZZFNA -R=ZZE—N
EXA=1+H mEHEX
#HEE A A R #248,000,000
5o

R=ZZE—hhFXA=1+A8H"
KEBRBEETENTA
ARZZE—N\F=ZAHFM
EERMDABERAF AT
(FMEEDEBEANARE
750,000,0007t & Hf f& st 32
HATHEHETEER
FOERINBAAE-DZE=-Z
FHA -

RZZE-AFRA=+H"
AEERAEEERBMENR
A K #590,000,0007T 2
ER(ZE-N\F+ZA=1
— B: A R ¥649,500,000
JT) e

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY .
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5) Related party transaction (Continued)

(d) Provide/(receive) funding

BT REERERNRERS &)

(5) EBXX5H (&)
d) #4# (HwIES

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BE-Z- & ®BE-Z-N\F
~NA=1+HIE NAZ=ZTHILE
< A H 75 A HA
Suzhou Hongchang #% N J5h 8 1,340,809 -
Tianjin Ruihe X Z AN 1,200,000 -
Beijing Yuechuang Sl 682,080 -
Jingu Chuangzhan TAElRE 601,865 -
Zhicheng Xinda BHEE 580,000 -
Hangzhou Rongxiang UM b 281,943 -
Tianjin Yongyuan RAEKTT 226,029 37,364
Yuanchuang Xingcheng = A EL 206,251 778,025
Shanghai Shouijia tEEE 67,200 (228,000)
Tianjin Xinming K EF A 47,760 (84,000)
Kaiyuan Hean FT %z 36,440 -
Nanchang Huachuang EEES- 16,340 (23,941)
Chongqging Huayu Shengrui = B % F & i 9,900 -
Tianjin Xinging RKEHT 1,000 (38,000)
Tianjin Ruitai KE®HZE 307 1,254,727
BCG Chinastar = 2 K = 531,736
Hangzhou Weixin TN B = 239,406
Xinshang Zhiyuan M BUR = 217,642
Tianjin Xuwei R R B M = 217,640
Bantex Investments Bantex Investments = 204,000
Yongtongchang K [A & = 195,877
Reco Yanshan Reco Yanshan = 86,080
Financial Street Hotel EREBE N/A 7 & (66,706)
Tianjin Lianjin RIREE - (100,000)
Shang Bodi i) 18 (10,000) (30,000)
Ningbo Shoujuyiming =R HiE B (10,000) -
Ruicheng Yongchuang I B K Bl (11,100) -
Xiamen Xiangfa IESE S (12,602) -
Zhongguancun Integrated — # B & K E B E
Circuit Garden (18,911) (182,280)
Tianjin Ruibin KEFE (20,000) -
Dacheng Guangyuan ERKER (31,250) (25,000)
Baoli Jianjin R T 22 88 (13,054) 259,470
Tengtai Yiyuan BRER (50,000) -
Chuangzhi Xinrong Bl =Rt (54,078) -
Tianjin Lianzhan ROE R (87,500) 376,250
Tianjin Hefa REG B (93,860) -
Xiamen Rongdi E P9 Bl (155,977) -
Guangzhou Bizeng EN 2 (263,338) -
Tianjin Ruixiang X2 (912,024) (132,200)
Yuanchuang Xingmao R BB X (1,232,850) 122,183
Chuangyuan Yicheng BliE 5 iR (1,240,361) 135,829
Chengdu Jinhui X EB 3 b (2,695,000) -
Others HAtb 2,620 4,706
Total a5t (1,611,361) 3,750,808
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B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5) Related party transaction (Continued)

(e)

()

Key executives compensation

yir

AT REERENRERS &)

(5) BAEEXZ (&)
() BEREBEAESHFM

Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BE-Z—hE HEZZT—N\F
ANA=+HL AA=+AL

~1E A B E 7~ {E A Bf F

Remuneration of key R EEAB T
executives 5,960 7,200
Others HAb 177 173
Total AF 6,137 7,373

In February 2017, the Company entered
into an Asset Management Agreement
with Capital Securities and the custodian
bank. Capital Securities shall provide asset
management and investment services in
respect of the addition of the Entrusted
Assets no more than RMB2,000,000,000
in accordance with the investment policies
under the Asset Management Agreement.
The Company will pay, on an annual basis
and upon the termination of the Asset
Management Agreement, the Performance
Fee to Capital Securities based on the
aggregate amount of the investment return
exceeding the annual benchmark return.

f) R=FT—LF_A XRA
HEAESREERTE
RIEEEE WS NTEEE
EHRMARRRHKEESE
BRERERE ZREE
MEREMTBEARK
2,000,000,0007T * & A A
HIZFEEESFENCEEE
BEpHALRAERES
SIS EE R

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BETBEERMERSE)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances (6) A TEW ENFREREE

Receivables due from related parties: & 5 [ Bk 75 3R 0R
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
“E-NEAA=TH ZE-N\F+-A=+—H
Provisions

for Provisions

Carrying  doubtful Carrying for doubtful

amount debts amount debts

RESE BEEE  KEHE  2RER

Advances to suppliers Golden Net
T Gk 3,300 = 1,747 -
Other receivables Chuangyuan Yicheng
(notes 4(5)) BlE T2 3,230,968 - 3,384,829 -
H o JE U R (B 35 28 (5)) Yuanchuang Xingcheng (i)
EBIE () 2,736,219 = 865,883 -
Beijing Yuechuang (i)
b A Al G) 1,466,564 = - -
Suzhou Hongchang (i)
#3428 (1) 1,366,849 = - -
Kaiyuan Hean
MrilZz 1,177,297 - 1,140,857 -
Tianjin Yongyuan (i)
KAL) 1,259,550 - 997,453 -
Tianjin Ruihe (i)
X 2 55 (i) 922,224 = - -
Tianjin Hefa (i)
RAEGE() 897,221 - 1,186,056 -
Tianjin Ruitai
KERR 784,845 - 745172 -
Guangzhou Runyu (i)
&I =.(7) 659,694 = - -
Jingu Chuangzhan (i)
2ARIRE() 615,870 = - -
Zhicheng Xinda
HHEE 580,000 = - -
Capital Qinglv
EEEY R 452,216 - 447216 -

Zhongguancun Integrated
Circuit Garden ()
hENEKEREC) 440,128 = 440,128 -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE—_FT-NAFANA=TRALAEAREGRENZHAN  SEELABARE T

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances (Continued)

Receivables due from related parties (Continued):

N. BETRELERS @)

(6) BAME L EW - BN RIRERE

(%)
FE U BB 77 SRR (48 -

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
“E-hWERA=TA ZE-NFTZA=1+-H
Provisions
for Provisions
Carrying  doubtful Carrying for doubtful
amount debts amount debts
REHHBE SFREE FENE BREE
Tianjin Ruibin
RREE 371,296 = 391,296 -
Tianjin Lianzhan (i)
KEE R () 358,249 - 403,133 -
Shanghai Liangyue (i)
LBRHE() 356,871 = 318,000 -
Hangzhou Rongxiang
oM E 353,943 = - -
Tianjin Ruixiang (i)
K E I () 325,577 - 1,181,639 -
Yongtongchang
XFE 317,970 = 317,970 -
Guangzhou Bizeng
EMBEE 308,155 = - -
Yuanchuang Xingmao
4= 253 272,871 - 1,505,721 -
Hangzhou Weixin
N B 266,408 = 266,408 -
Xinshang Zhiyuan
i BUR 242,189 = 242,189 -
Tianjin Xuwei
PN 3):1:3 242,189 - 242,189 -
Bantex Investments
Bantex Investments 204,000 - 204,000 -
Tengtai Yiyuan
BRER 196,000 = 246,000 -
Jindi Xingye
S EE 100,000 - 100,000 -
Longhu Zhongbai
EHRAE 100,000 = 100,000 -
Reco Yanshan
Reco Yanshan 91,023 = 91,137 -

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BETEEIRERS E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances (Continued)

Receivables due from related parties (Continued):

30 June 2019

(6) Bt L EW - BN RIHEERE

(%)
JE U R B 77 SRR (48 -

31 December 2018

ZE-AFEAAZtR ZE-N\F+-A=1-H

Provisions
for Provisions
Carrying  doubtful Carrying for doubtful
amount debts amount debts
REHBE SFREE FEKE BREE
Rongshengda (i)
ERFE() 48,685 = 47,626 -
Chongqing Huayu Shengrui
EREFRR 37,972 - 28,072 -
Nanchang Huachuang
HEER 37,703 - 47,703 -
Shouwan Yuye
EEEX 27,636 = 27,636 -
Xiamen Rongdi (i)
= P9 7 30 (1) 21,598 - - -
Shouhui Zhiye
BEEE% 16,948 = 8,880 -
Chengdu Jinhui
P 85 B 9,331 = 6,931 -
Shenyang Xinzi
&5 A 6,838 - - -
Chuangzhi Xinrong
BEER = = 54,078 -
Shang Bodi
e 18 30 = = 10,000 -
Others
Hit 5,811 - 11,141 -
Total
&t 20,908,908 - 15,059,343 -

As at 30 June 2019, the amounts were the principal
and interests due from associates and joint ventures.
The principal has no fixed maturity date with the
annual interest rate range from 4.85% to 10%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BETEBERENERS#E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(6) Related party balances (Continued) (6) B TEW ESFREREE
(%)
Except for the receivables above, the other Br bt sRIE AN - HEREERAEE 5 1
receivables due from related parties were RRIBEHREE - EERNER
interest free, without any mortgage nor Bo - BEEEEEBR -
guarantee, and with no fixed maturity date.
Payables due to related parties: JE& 1<F /28 Bst 75 SR -
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
AA=+H +ZHA=+—H
Trade Payables Golden Net
JE 1F BR 3K © # i 4,322 40,061
Contract liabilities Shouhui Real Estate
aRABE HEZXE 11,793 9,379
Yuanchuang
Xingcheng
iR Bl B 3,039 -
Chuangyuan Yicheng
Bl 3= I8 12 257 -
Total
& 15,089 9,379
Other payables (note 4 (23)) Chengdu lJinhui
H A FE 3K (B 5E 1 (23)) B D £ (& 2,695,000 -
Chuangyuan Yicheng
BliR IR iR 1,566,500 480,000
Yuanchuang
Xingcheng
= BB 1,533,500 -
Poly Jianjin
RF 22 28 1,181,478 1,165,183
Shanghai Shoujia
LBERE 1,034,489 1,101,689
First One Capital
gl T & 938,168 1,028,280
Beijing Yuechuang
bR Al 836,600 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Related party balances (Continued)

.

BT REERERNRERS &)

(6) Bt L EW - BN RIHEERE

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019

(%)
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
ZB-hF —E-)N\F
AA=+tH +ZA=+—H
Tianjin Xinging
RENE 577,000 578,000
Tianjin Lianjin
RIOR B2 200,000 200,000
Zhuhai Henggin
Ruiyuan lJialing
Fund
RiEEE T %
E® 125,536 125,536
Kunming Wuhua
ERARE 118,225 118,225
Shanghai Henggu
FigEE 109,200 109,200
Tianjin Xinming
EROL R 93,750 62,500
Shanghai Songming
BapisZVN 89,600 89,600
XCapital Fund
MMEES 76,500 76,500
Reco Ziyang
TR K IE 72,750 65,475
Reco Ziyang
KERE 69,987 69,987
Beijing Capital
Investment
HRIKRE 54,681 20,000
Tianjin Xinming
R OEF A 51,660 99,420
Tianjin Ruixiang
PAD=SITES 39,366 -
Xiamen Rongdi
= P9 Rl 36,000 -
Tianjin Yongyuan
RIFRKTT 30,010 30,010
Hangzhou Weixin
AN B 27,002 27,002



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

9. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N. BBETERERMRERS#E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(6) Related party balances (Continued) (6) B TEW ESFREREE
(%)
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)\F

AA=+tH +Z-H=+—H

Xinshang Zhiyuan

5T BUR 24,547 24,547
Tianjin Xuwei
RE B M 24,547 24,547
Yongtongchang
K [Fl & 22,093 22,093
Capital Group
EEIE ! 21,750 -
Nanchang
Huachuang
HEEE 13,581 -
Ningbo Shouju Yiming
TR HEZH 10,000 -
Hangzhou Rongxiang
N B A 72,000 -
Xiamen Xiangfa
E 5 8 12,602 -
Other
E A, 1,737 84
Total
&t 11,759,859 5,517,878
Dividends payable (Note 4(23)) Capital Group
J& A< A ) (B 5 1 (23)) EEE ! 362,825 -
Reco Ziyang
ESL R g 109,253 109,253
Jiayuan Hongye
BREE 23,900 23,900
Total
&5 495,978 133,153
The other payables due to related parties NEE R R RIAE AR
were interest free, without any mortgage nor EEAKERBER BEEEE
guarantee, and with no fixed maturity date. EHAMR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

10.

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(7) Remuneration payable to the Board of
directors (Note 4(21))

.

BT REERENERS &)

(7) ERHES=MS (MEDER1)

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—)N\F

~A=+H +-A=+-—H

Remuneration EEMe 26,550 26,550
CONTINGENCIES +. HBEFHE

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
customers and has provided guarantees to secure
repayments obligations of these customers.

The Group provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating
to the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers
of the Group’s properties. These guarantees will be
expired when relevant property ownership certificates
are lodged with the various banks by the purchasers.
As at 30 June 2019, outstanding guarantees
amounted to RMB5,535,115,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB7,284,277,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

T— EEEIE
1) BEXHETHARSEE

UTRAEEREERAEBRA -
THHEEERBER LIITHER

11. COMMITMENTS
(1) Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for but not yet
necessary to be recognized in the balance sheet

by the Group at the balance sheet date are as 1 52 G
follows:
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
~NAB=+H +ZA=+—H
Authorized but not contracted BH#tEXRZEL 24,868,743 19,126,536
Contracted but not paid &R 16,788,844 4,113,115
Total & &t 41,657,587 23,239,651
(2) Investment commitments (2) HIBREAXZEE
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
ANA=+tH +=ZA=+—H
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B F R A 4,795,000 1,324,681
Acquisition of joint ventures HeBeE R AmRE
and associates 530,000 1,840,000
Total A& 5,325,000 3,164,681

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

12.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, and market
risk (foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk). The financial risks and the Group’s overall
risk management program focusing on the financial
risks are summarized as follows:

The board of directors is responsible for planning
and establishing the risk management structure of
the Group, formulating risk management policies and
related guidelines and supervising the implementation
of risk management measures. The Group has
established risk management policies to identify and
analyze the risks the Group exposed to. The risk
management policies has clearly defined specific risks,
covering market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk
management, etc. To update the risk management
policies and systems, the Group regularly assesses
its operating activities and the market environment.
The Risk Management Committee carries out the
risk management in accordance with the policies
approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk
Management Committee identifies, evaluates and
circumvents related risks through close cooperation
with other business units of the Group. The internal
audit department of the Group conducts regular
audits on risk management controls and procedures,
and reports the audit results to the audit committee
of the Group.

(1) Market risk
(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s major operational activities
are carried out in Mainland China and a
majority of the transactions are dominated
in RMB. The Group is still subject to
foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities in foreign currency (most of
the Group's foreign currency transactions
and balances are dominated in USD,
HKD, AUD and Euro(“EUR")). Finance
department in the Group’'s headquarter
is responsible for monitoring the amount
of assets and liabilities, and transactions
denominated in foreign currencies to
minimize potential foreign exchange
risk. Therefore the management of the
Group may consider entering into forward
exchange contracts or currency swap
contracts to mitigate the foreign exchange
risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK

(Continued)

(a)

T eMmIANMEERGE)

(1) Market risk (Continued) (1) HHERE)
Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (@) SMERRE)
As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December RZZE-hEA=1THE
2018, the carrying amounts in equivalent —E-)\F+=ZA=+—H"
RMB of the Group’s assets and liabilities AEBRNZERTUEEREAR
denominated in foreign currencies are BHARFANINESRE
summarized as follows: EMIMNEeRBETERA
REHSBEHIROT
30 June 2019
—®-hEAA=TA
usD HKD AUD EUR Total
EP Y= BHIER BrEHE BrEE B
Financial assets IEeRERE
denominated in
foreign currencies
Cash at bank and E¥E®
on hand 90,228 164,124 255 270,391 524,998
Trading financial RHMEEH
assets BE = - 3,078,546 - 3,078,546
Other non-current H i IR E
financial assets CREE = = 1,520,626 = 1,520,626
Total &5 90,228 164,124 4,599,427 270,391 5,124,170
Financial liabilities IESRERE
denominated in
foreign currencies
Short-term EEER
borrowings - 422,052 - - 422,052
Other payables H fth FE A 3R 17,405 298 = - 17,703
Current portion —EREF R
of non-current ERBARE
liabilities 164,520 - - - 164,520
Debentures JERHE %
payable 9,572,820 = = = 9,572,820
Long-term REfER
borrowings = 1,143,058 = = 1,143,058
Total &5 9,754,745 1,565,408 = - 11,320,153
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK TZ. 2T ARHERERGE
(Continued)
(1) Market risk (Continued) (1) HHERE)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (@) HNERK(E)

31 December 2018
- N\E+=ZA=1+—8

usb HKD AUD EUR Total
ELEH 75 # 18 R IE B BiTIEE &5
Financial assets IEEREE
denominated in
foreign currencies
Cash at bank and E¥ES
on hand 30,243 445,385 1,930 5,574 483,132
Trading financial RSt
assets BE - - 2,950,405 - 2,950,405
Other non-current Hi RS
financial assets CREE - - 1,060,729 - 1,060,729
Total At 30243 445385 4,013,064 5574 4,494,266
Financial liabilities NESHERE
denominated in
foreign currencies
Short-term BHER
borrowings - 438,982 - - 438,982
Other payables Hib AR 58,269 438 - - 58,707
Debentures payable B ESH 9,570,210 - - - 9,570,210
Long-term REEX
borrowings - 1,141,352 - - 1,141,352
Total At 9,628,479 1,580,772 - - 11,209,251
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

HE-T—

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

(1) Market risk (Continued)

(a)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, since the foreign
exchange risk of part of the USD
debentures payable has been offset by
the purchased capped currency swap
contracts, for the other USD dominated
financial assets and liabilities, if RMB had
increased/decreased by 5% against USD
with all other variables held constant, net
profit for the period would have been
decreased/increased by approximately
RMB4,511,000 (31 December 2018:
increased/decreased by approximately
RMB1,401,000).

As at 30 June 2019, since the foreign
exchange risk of part of the HKD
borrowings is offset by the purchased
capped currency swap contracts, for the
other HKD dominated financial assets
and liabilities, if RMB had increased/
decreased by 5% against HKD with all
other variables held constant, net profit for
the period would have been decreased/
increased by approximately RMB293,000
(31 December 2018: decreased/increased
by approximately RMB298,000).

As at 30 June 2019, since the foreign
exchange risk of the investment of real
estate projects in Australia has been
offset by the purchased forward foreign
exchange contracts, for all the other AUD
dominated financial assets, if RMB had
increased/decreased by 5% against AUD
with all other variables held constant, net
profit for the period would have been
decreased/increased by approximately
RMB13,000 (31 December 2018:
decreased/increased by RMB97,000).

As at 30 June 2019, for all EUR dominated
financial assets, if RMB had increased/
decreased by 5% against EUR with
all other variables held constant, net
profit for the period would have been
decreased/increased by approximately
RMB13,520,000 (31 December 2018:

Increased/decreased by RMB278,000).

NERA=+BLEISE B ERE (KRR R

CHREMR/RARE T
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

(1) Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposed to interest rate risk
mainly generated from long-term interest
bearing borrowings such as long-term
bank borrowings and debentures payable.
Borrowings issued at floating interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-
risk, and borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest-rate
risk. The Group determines the contracts
proportions of fixed rate and floating rate
depending on the market conditions. As
at 30 June 2019, the Group’s long-term
interest bearing borrowings were mainly
RMB-denominated with floating rates,
amounting to RMB27,106,466,000 (31
December 2018: RMB23,509,562,000).

The finance department of the
headquarters continuously monitors the
Group's interest rate condition. Increases in
interest rates will increase the cost of new
borrowing and the interest expenses of to
the Group's outstanding borrowings with
floating rate, and therefore could have a
material adverse impact on the Group's
financial position. The management of
the Group makes decisions with reference
to the latest market conditions. The
management of the Group may enter into
interest rate swap agreements to mitigate
its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 30 June 2019, if interest rates of
borrowings with floating rate increased/
decreased by 0.5% with all other
variables held constant, the net profit
for the period of the Group would be
decreased/increased by approximately
RMB135,532,000 (31 December 2018:
decreased/increased by approximately
RMB117,548,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

at bank and on hand, trade receivables, other
receivables, contract assets, debt investments,
and investment in debt instruments at fair value
through profit or loss which are not included in
impairment assessment and derivative financial
assets.

Since cash at bank and on hand of the Group
are mainly deposited at state-owned banks

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK TZ. oM TAERERKRE
(Continued)
(1) Market risk (Continued) 1) mEEREE)
() Other price risks () HaEHEEAK

Other price risks of the Group are mainly rEEREMEERAREEE
generated from trading equity instrument ERZXSUEEZTIAKRE -
investments, other equity instrument HihEems TREREMEAIE
investments and other non-current MBEREE  FEERT
financial assets, which have price risks of HEKEHER -
equity instruments.
As at 30 June 2019, for all equity —NEFEXA=+8"
instrument investments, if the expected INRAEEZEERTAR
price increase/decrease 5% with all BT H (B A& LR e T &
other variables held constant, net 5% HthAERFTE -
profit for the period would have been A1 7 5= [ % 38 0 SR 2 A1
increased/decreased by approximately #EE A4 A R#356,546,000
RMB356,546,000 (31 December 2018: T( 22— N\F+ZA=+—
increased/decreased by approximately H:# A R™®312,523,000
RMB312,523,000); other comprehensive To) N R S H MRS
income for the period would have been W # A R 814,414, OOO
increased/decreased by approximately T(ZE-NF+ZA=+
RMB14,414,000 (31 December 2018: —H: 8 AR14,414,000
increase/decrease by approximately TT) e
RMB14,414,000).

(2) Credit risk 2) EHERK

The Group's credit risk mainly arises from cash AEEERRABRFEEERER

B USRI - E M B

EREEMERRES  UEK
MAREFEEERNAREE
SAEREBHFAZHESNGE
BIARENMTESZRMEES -

AEEERESTERTFHRNE
BERUYHEABRSERFRNE

and other large and medium-sized listed BRITAMEAM KPR EHIRTH
banks, which have high reputation and credit RITFEF AEER/ETTFE
rating. The Group expects no significant credit EANERAR BFYT8E4L

risk associated and there would not be any
significant losses due to non-performance by
these counterparties.

RRITENMERNEKRERX -

BIEXERMDBRAR T —NFHERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

(2)

(3)

Credit risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group has policies to limit the
credit risk exposure on trade receivables, other
receivables and contract assets. The Group
assesses the creditability and sets credit limits
on its customers by taking into account of their
financial position, the availability of guarantee
from third parties, their credit history and other
factors such as current market conditions. The
credit history of the customers is regularly
monitored by the Group. In respect of customers
with a poor credit history, the Group will use
payment reminders, reducing or canceling credit
periods, to ensure the overall credit risk of the
Group is limited to a controllable range.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has no
significant collateral and other credit
enhancement.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by each
subsidiary of the Group and consolidated by the
Group's finance department in its headquarter.
On such basis, the Group's finance department
at its headquarter monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash and
securities that are readily convertible to cash
to meet operational needs, while maintaining
sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed
borrowing facilities from major financial
institution so that the Group does not breach
borrowing limits or covenants on any of its
borrowing facilities to meet the short-term and
long-term liquidity requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
NERA=ZTHIERNERRREGRERZREN  eBELRARE T T

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK

(Continued)

HE-T—

T SMIAREAR S

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued) 3) w"EHERRE)
The financial liabilities of the Group at the REEBEBEXRA AEEZESD
balance sheet date at their undiscounted MBEURTRENEGRRERE
contractual cash flows by their maturity date are ZEEBANTRAT :
analyzed below:
30 June 2019
—E2-RAEXNA=TA
Within 1 1to 2 to Over 5
year 2 years 5 years years Total
—FEHUR —-3=% —HEF HEHN E &t
Short-term borrowings BHER 2,444,400 = = - 2,444,400
Lease liabilities HEER 29,391 11,851 2,816 - 44,058
Trade and other payables JEA R 27,114,795 = = - 27,114,795
Long-term borrowings REER 2,822,527 20,771,236 29,290,175 5,837,983 58,721,921
Debentures payable ERES 1,320,922 7,032,162 22,351,791 - 30,704,875
Current portion of —F R 5
non-current liabilities FREBAE 23,179,837 - - - 23,179,837
Total At 56,911,872 27,815249 51,644,782 5,837,983 142,209,886
31 December 2018
- N\FE+=-A=+—8”
Within 1 1to 2 to Over 5
year 2 years 5 years years Total
—ENRA —3=fF —HHF AENLE BT
Short-term borrowings BHMER 2,827,601 - - - 2,827,601
Trade and other payables e RIE 19,880,970 B B - 19,880,970
Long-term borrowings REER 2,098,360 15,941,076 20,883,538 6,147,994 45,070,968
Debentures payable ERES 1,220,833 8,721,162 18,372,285 - 28,314,280
Long-term payables REIER 97,500 1,620,638 27,001 - 1,745,139
Current portion of —F NI
non-current liabilities FEREBEE 21,242,868 = = - 21,242,868
Total A&t 47,368,132 26,282,876 39,282,824 6,147,994 119,081,826

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK TZ. 2T A NKHEER#E)

(Continued)
(3) Liquidity risk (Continued)

According to the terms of individual housing
mortgage loans, the Group provides temporary
guarantee to the mortgage loans provided by
the banks to the customers, who purchase the
Group's available-for-sell properties by housing
mortgage. The guarantee would expire after the
customers obtain owners certificate or other
relevant warrant and completing the registration
of mortgage on properties. As at 30 June 2019
and 31 December 2018, the balance of such
guarantee refers to note 10.

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES

The level of fair value measurement result is
determined by the lowest level of the input value,
which is of great significance to the overall fair value
measurement.

Level 1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that
are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis

As at 30 June 2019,

the financial

assets/

(liabilities) measured at fair value on an ongoing
basis by three levels are analyzed below:

T=. AR EBEMGE @)
(1) FEOUAAEETENE

E/(af)
R-ZE-NFRA=TH  HEHN
WA BEFENEE (BE)
B =R RMT

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE—BRX EZBR F=ZBR &t
Financial assets: SREE:
Trading financial assets RHMeRMEE
Investment of real estate —FRI R KA D
projects in Australia FHEREN
due within one year = - 3,078,546 3,078,546
Investment Funds BEESKREES
operated by Capital
Securities 161,439 = = 161,439
Investment Funds —fEFREES
operated by First
Capital Securities 108,056 = = 108,056
Capped currency swap MEEEEHEH
contracts = 96,779 = 96,779
Other non-current financial ~ EERBH SR EE
assets
Tiancheng Yongtai R K 2= = - 2,165,471 2,165,471
Investment of real estate —F 0 BB ERKH
projects in Australia TREMERER
over one year = - 1,520,626 1,520,626
Derivative financial assets TEERMAEE
Forward foreign EHINESR
exchange contract = 253,787 = 253,787
Other equity instrument HihEmTARE
investments
Equity interests of BEIGKRE
UCOMMUNE = = 238,283 238,283
Equity interests of CDB BB B R
Siyuan = = 50,000 50,000
Total financial assets SRBEEA 269,495 350,566 7,052,926 7,672,987
Non-financial assets: FERERE:
Investment properties BREMEHE
North region =S - - 12,107,540 12,107,540
Central region EdiE = - 7,239,508 7,239,508
South region =i e = - 1,104,000 1,104,000
Total non-financial assets FEeMEESE = - 20,451,048 20,451,048
Total assets BEAL 269,495 350,566 27,503,974 28,124,035
Financial liabilities: THRARE:
Trading financial liabilities RHMeRERE
Capped cross currency MEXNEBERTA
swap instrument = (7,959) = (7,959)
Derivative financial liabilities f$T44¢®&&E
Cross currency interest RXEBFNEEHTA
rate swap instrument = (55,099) = (55,099)
Total financial liabilities cREEAF = (63,058) - (63,058)

HABEBGARAT —E—AEPHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

T=. A EER-E )

(1) BENUDABESBHE
B/ (BfE)@)
A=F—\ET-A=+ R
BOUAREEG ENEE /(B
#)E bl =EERIFMT

As at 31 December 2018 - the financial assets/
(liabilities) measured at fair value on an ongoing
basis by three levels are analyzed below:

220

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—EKX E-ER E=EX B
Financial assets: TREE:
Trading financial assets RHEERMEE
Investment of real estate —F R B AR KR
projects in Australia B EREN
due within one year - - 2,950,405 2,950,405
Investment Funds HEBHREES
operated by Capital
Securities 32,575 - - 32,575
Investment Funds —BERKREES
operated by First
Capital Securities 41,270 - - 41,270
Other non-current financial EM RS EREE
assets
Tiancheng Yongtai o IS - - 2,165,471 2,165,471
Investment of real estate —FU EEH AR KF
projects in Australia TREMERER
over one year - - 1,060,729 1,060,729
Derivative financial assets TESREE
Forward foreign BEHINES LD
exchange contract - 262,202 - 262,202
Other equity instrument HipEm TAKRE
investments
Equity interests of EETIHRRE
UCOMMUNE - - 238,283 238,283
Equity interests of CDB B 5B R AR
Siyuan - - 50,000 50,000
Total financial assets SMEEAF 73,845 262,202 6,464,888 6,800,935
Non-financial assets: FERERE:
Investment properties REMEME
North region & - - 11,662,541 11,662,541
Central region P i @ - - 6,314,400 6,314,400
South region 7 i [ - - 1,102,000 1,102,000
Total non-financial assets FeRMEEAR - - 19,078,941 19,078,941
Total assets BEAG 73,845 262,202 25,543,829 25,879,876
Financial liabilities: CSHAEE:
Trading financial liabilities RHtEeMmERE
Capped cross currency MEXXEBEHRTE
swap instrument - (15,849) - (15,849)
Derivative financial liabilities f$T44¢ @& &
Cross currency interest RXEBNEEHTA
rate swap instrument - (32,871) - (32,871)
Total financial liabilities SREEA - (48,720) - (48,720)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFNA=THLENERHSBE (KR EHEN

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair

value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

The Group recognizes transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event that caused the transfer.
There was no transfer occurred among level 1
and 2 during the period.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
in active markets. The fair value of financial
instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by valuation techniques.
Specific valuation techniques mainly include
discounted cash flow analysis and so on. The
inputs in those valuation techniques mainly
include risk-free rate, benchmark interest rate
and exchange rate.

The Group obtains independent valuations for
investment properties from an independent
professional appraiser as a third party. The
valuations are based on income capitalization
and residual approach which mainly uses
input such as market rent and its growth rate,
discount rate, interest rate and profit rate, etc.

CHREMR/RARE T

T=Z. 2R BEMT @

(1)

KFEBENUAAREETENE
E(&E)#E)

AEENEHEZEERZHAERD
FEELARERTERZHAE
MR  AHHESE -ERHE
FE_EXRREER -

HREEFRATSLEXPHEMT
B A O EE RS M E
FEHAREE  WRTEERDS
FRBMEMIA - A EEKA
BEBI R E AR EE - B
AMEEEREEARS KRN
RIERAM TG AR ERE -
A 6 A E BB S
RRIE  EREFE  EEE

HRRAREILE FEEER
o148 T {5 B 39 L 40 o O (8 M2 77 57
5 o BRI 5 % E B B 15 WS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair

T=. AR EBEMGE @)
(1) BFEOURAAEEENE

value on an ongoing basis (Continued) E/(BE)#)
The change of assets in level 3 are as follows: FPhE=FREEZHMT:
Investment properties
REMEHRE
North Central South
region region region Total
i E EhipE EHHBE &t
As at 1 January 2019 —T—-Nh&F—A—H 11,662,541 6,314,400 1,102,000 19,078,941
Additions g 344,896 248,020 = 592,916
Transferred from investment — ARG S KR E Bt EEA
properties at cost = 637,700 = 637,700
Gains recognized in profit or AABEZH NS
loss 100,103 41,360 2,000 143,463
Others Hth - (1,972) - (1,972)
As at 30 June 2019 —T-NAFXA=+H 12,107,540 7,239,508 1,104,000 20,451,048
Realized gains recognized in T AEHEZH
current profit or loss EERFERIE KX = = = =
Unrealized gains recognized STAEHESZD
in current profit or losses REBRFGHE K
— Gains from changes in fair - Q7 B {E & & W 25
value 100,103 41,360 2,000 143,463
Other non- Other
Trading current equity
financial financial instrument
assets assets investments Total
XH5ME HMERD Hfth 4 =
SWMEE ERMEE IERE A&t
1 January 2019 —T-NhF—HA—H 2,950,405 3,226,200 288,283 6,464,888
Additions REAFE A = 334,265 = 334,265
Withdraw 7N B 8 g () (135,467) = - (135,467)
Reclassification ENfE 1,672 (1,672) - -
Realized gains recognized in A AEHERHEERAE
current profit or loss 261,936 127,304 = 389,240
As at 30 June 2019 —T-NAFXA=+H 3,078,546 3,686,097 288,283 7,052,926
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) T=. 2R EBEMT#)
(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair 1) FEWNUAAREBEFTENWE
value on an ongoing basis (Continued) E (BB #)
Investment properties
& M B E
North Central South
region region region Total
b i R I o ih (& Ep i & &F
As at 1 January 2018 —E—-N\E—HA—H 11,097,501 4,844,240 1,078,000 17,019,741
Additions =g 213,220 328,555 - 541,775
Transferred from investment ~ WZAAGF MR EFMEEA
properties at cost - 505,992 - 505,992
Gains recognized in profit or  FABZEHFE
loss 192,421 33,713 9,000 235,134
As at 30 June 2018 —E-N\FRA=1H 11,503,142 5,712,500 1,087,000 18,302,642
Realized gains or losses FAAEHESEN
recognized in current EERMERIE L
profit or loss - - - -
Unrealized gains or losses STAEMBESRD
recognized in current RERFMGHBX
profit or loss
- Gains from changes in fair - AREEZ & K
value 192,421 33,713 9,000 235,134
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) T=. AR EBEMGE @)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair (1) FENUAAEBETENE
value on an ongoing basis (Continued) E (BB #)

Information about fair value measurements in F-_BARANBETENHEEBRE

224

level 3 are as follows:

B

Unobservable inputs

FABRBAE

Relationship of

Fair value as unobservable
Investment at 30 June Valuation Range/weighted  inputs of fair
properties 2019 techniques  Name average value
—E-hE
AA=tH 6E/ME HBAAEE
REMEHE MREE HERN A% THE ZBNE %
North region 12,107,540  Income Discount 3.5% to 7% The higher discount
E R approach rate 35%%7% rate, the lower
Wz % e x fair value
THREHS -
ARAEEMHE
Market RMB32 to RMB516  The higher market
rents per square rent, the higher
mizHE metre per fair value
month mEfeHs
BYAKEA AREEHER
ARERLE
ARE5167T
Residual Interest 4.35% The higher interest
approach rate rate, the lower
CEGE93 FlEE fair value
MEXHRE
AREEME
Profit rate  1.07% to 10% The higher profit
FEE 1.07%%10% rate, the lower
fair value
MEXER
AREEME
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFNA=THLENERHSBE (KR EHEN

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair

value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

T=Z. 2R BEMT @

CHREMR/RARE T

(1) FENUAIREETENE
E(&E)#E)

Unobservable inputs

FTUBEEGAE

Relationship of

Fair value as unobservable
Investment at 30 June Valuation Range/weighted inputs of fair
properties 2019 techniques  Name average value
—B-nE
~A=1H HEME HAAEE
REMEHE AABE HERN A% ¥HE ZBNE %
Central region 7,239,508  Income Discount 5.5% to 7% The higher discount
EhipE approach rate 5.5%%7% rate, the lower
W% i fair value
FREMS
RABEBE
Market RMB30 to RMB154  The higher market
rents per square rent, the higher
mizHE metre per fair value
month minHess
BYAKEA AREEHER
ARE3IOTE
AE#1547T
Residual Interest 4.35% The higher interest
approach rate rate, the lower
REFEE  MEX fair value
MEX#EE -
AAEEME
Profit rate ~ 12% The higher profit
FEE rate, the lower

fair value
FlExgs
AABEBE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

T=. 2R BEMR @&

(1) FENUARBEFENE
E(BE)#E)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

Unobservable inputs
FABEEBAE

Relationship of

Fair value as unobservable
Investment at 30 June Valuation Range/weighted  inputs of fair
properties 2019 techniques  Name average value
“2-hF
~A=TH HE/MmE HBAAREE
REMEHE AREE HERN A% YHE ZBNE &
South region 1,104,000  Income Discount 6.5% to 7% The higher discount
ZHE approach rate 6.5%Z7% rate, the lower
Wk frR=E fair value
THREHS -
ARAEBEME
Market RMB52 to RMB88  The higher market
rents per square rent, the higher
mizHE metre per fair value
month mipHesa
BYAKEA AREEHER
ARER2LE
AR#88T
Trading financial assets
RHUERMEE
Investment of real 3,078,546  Discounted Discount Contract annualized  The higher discount
estate projects in future cash rate yield rate, the lower
Australia due within flow frR=E BRATNF fair value
one year ARES Was & rHREES -
—FRE B RANE AT H ARAEBEBE
BERER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) T=. 2REBEEF#E)
(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair (1) FENUAAREBETENE
value on an ongoing basis (Continued) E (BB #)

Unobservable inputs

FUBE@AE
Relationship of
Fair value as unobservable
Investment at 30 June Valuation Range/weighted inputs of fair
properties 2019 techniques  Name average value
—B-nE
~A=TH HEME HAAEE
REMEHE AABE HERN A% ¥HE ZBNE %
Other non-current
financial assets
HthEnBepieE
Investment of real 1,520,626  Discounted Discount Contract annualized  The higher discount
estate projects in future cash rate yield rate, the lower
Australia over one flow B RS BRATEHEFL fair value
year REBRE T I gag:d TREHR
—F FRBERRA R AAEEME
TRERER
Tiancheng Yongtai 2,165,471  Market Contract RMB28,878 to The higher contract
RFK T approach price RMB58,200 per price, the higher
5% BHER square metre fair value
BIHK28878TE AHERER -
AR#58,2007T AREBEEER
Other equity
instrument
investments
HEmTAKRE
Equity interests of 238,283  Market Equity Fair value of The higher equity
UCOMMUNE approach valuation net assets of valuation, the
BRI E mi%%E R E UCOMMUNE higher fair value
multiplied by REfESS
interests held AREEES
according

to the latest
capital injection
agreement

RESHEEHZR
ENMEEISFE
ELNREEEN
F5 1 L 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

T=. 2R BEMR @&

(1) FENUARBEFENE
E(&E)#)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

Unobservable inputs

Ta BREAE
Fair value
as at 31 Relationship of
December  Valuation Range/weighted unobservable inputs
Investment properties 2018  techniques Name average of fair value
—Z-N\F
+—A
=+—8 &E /niE BHAREE
REMFEE AAEE  HERK e A 2 [ & B R
North region 11,662,541 Income Discount 3.5% to 7% The higher discount
EitiwE approach rate 35%ZE7% rate, the lower
g A % fair value
TREMS
AAEBEBE
Market RMB32 to RMB516  The higher market
rents per square metre rent, the higher
miEHe per month fair value
BYAKEA msEeHE
AREBRLEA AREBEES
R#5167T
Residual Interest 4.35% The higher interest
approach rate rate, the lower
&R FlEX fair value
MEX#EE -
AAEEMEE
Profit rate 1.07% to 10% The higher profit
MEx 1.07%£10% rate, the lower

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

T=. 2R BEMR @&

(1) FENUAAREBEFENE
E(&E)#E)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

Unobservable inputs

TaBREAE
Fair value
as at 31 Relationship of
December  Valuation Range/weighted unobservable inputs
Investment properties 2018  techniques Name average of fair value
—Z-N\F
+=A
=+—H &E/niE HAREE
REMFEE AABE  HERK B8 FHE 2 [l 6 B 1R
Central region 6,314,400  Income Discount 5.5% to 7% The higher discount
EdR approach rate 5.5%Z7% rate, the lower
Woa % fair value
FRELR -
RABEBE
Market RMB30 to RMB154  The higher market
rents per square metre rent, the higher
miHs per month fair value
BYAKEA mEEeHE
AREIOTEA AREEMER
K154
Residual Interest 4.35% The higher interest
approach rate rate, the lower
REFEE  MEX fair value
MEX#EE -
AAEEME
Profit rate ~ 12% The higher profit
FEE rate, the lower
fair value
MEXES
AAEEME

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis (Continued)

T=. 2R BEMR @&

(1) FENUARBEFENE
E(BE)#E)

Unobservable inputs

Ta BREAE
Fair value
as at 31 Relationship of
December  Valuation Range/weighted unobservable inputs
Investment properties 2018  techniques Name average of fair value
—E-N\EF
= A
=+—H &E /niE HBAREE
REMEE AABE  HERK B8 FHE 2 T R
South region 1,102,000 Income Discount 6.5% to 7% The higher discount
E@E approach rate 6.5%Z7% rate, the lower
Wk % fair value
TREMS
AAEBEMHE
Market RMB52 to RMB88  The higher market
rents per square metre rent, the higher
miHs per month fair value
BYAKEA msEeHE
AREBRLEA AREEHER
R#%887T
Trading financial assets
RHUNEMEE
Investment of real 2,950,405  Discounted Discount Contract annualized  The higher discount
estate projects in future rate yield rate, the lower
Australia due within cash flow — #Ex BRAENFL fair value
one year ARES gy THREYS -
—FRE N mATH AREEBE
N~
WERER
Other non-current
financial assets
HiERD e
BE
Investment of real 1,060,729  Discounted Discount Contract annualized  The higher discount
estate projects in future rate yield rate, the lower
Australia over one cash flow  #IRXE BRAOENF( fair value
year ARES U 35 & TREMS
—E EEHE TR ARABEBIE
BAME R
MERER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) T=. 2R EBEMT#)
(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair 1) FENMULIAAREBEFTENE
value on an ongoing basis (Continued) E (BB #)

Unobservable inputs

TaBREAE
Fair value
as at 31 Relationship of
December  Valuation Range/weighted unobservable inputs
Investment properties 2018  techniques Name average of fair value
—Z-N\F
+=A
=+—H &E/niE HAREE
REMFEE AABE  HERK B8 FHE 2 [l 6 B 1R
Tiancheng Yongtai 2,165,471 Market Contract RMB28,878 to The higher contract
R kT approach price RMB58,200 per price, the higher
Mg % BHER square metre fair value
BYK28878TE ANEREE AR
AR%58,2007T BEHS
Other equity
instrument
investments
HtESTAERE
Equity interests of 238,283  Market Equity Fair value of The higher equity
UCOMMUNE approach valuation net assets of valuation, the
BRI RE % % R E UCOMMUNE higher fair value
multiplied by RERESS 2R
interests held BEHS
according

to the latest
capital injection
agreement

RESHEERZ:
EMBEEISFE
ERABETRN
R IR LB

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) T=. AAEBEMF &)
(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair (1) FENUAAEBETENE

value on an ongoing basis (Continued) E (BB #)
Information about the fair value measurement F_RBARAANBEITENHEEBE
of level 2 are as follows: BaR:

Observable input

232

AEEE AR
Fair value
as at 30 Valuation Range/weighted
June 2019 techniques Name average
—E-NF
NA=t+H
AREE HEHIM £z EE  MEFEHE
Trading 96,779 Discounted Discount curves Discount rate for
financial future cash 7 3 i %R period from six
assets flow months to two
R rEE KRB HRITER years (currency
include USD and
RMB)
- F B W F FHR T
RE(EBEBRIEE
TAAR)
Derivative 253,787 Discounted AUD forward 4.8237 to 4.9992
financial future cash exchange rate  4.8237%4.9992
assets flow at balance
METREE RRBESRITE sheet date
BEEBBERAMRT

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019

i HABE
Discounted rate
I8 &

Forward
exchange rate
ix B b &

1.02% to 1.24%

1.02% =1.24%

Forward exchange
rate for each
forward contract
from the
valuation date to
the maturity date
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued) T=. 2REBEEF#E)
(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair (1) FENUAAREBETENE
value on an ongoing basis (Continued) E (BB #)
Observable input
ABREEAE
Fair value
as at 30 Valuation Range/weighted
June 2019 techniques Name average
ZE-hF
AA=tH
AREE HEHRN = @ nEFHE
Trading 7,959 Discounted Discount curves Discount rate for
financial future cash 1 1% h 4% period from six
liabilities flow months to three
RGMEEEE RRBESRITH years (currency
include HKD and
RMB)
FEIN=FFHH
TRE(EKBRE
BEMARE)
Derivative 55,099 Black Scholes Cross currency Observable
financial formula, interest rate exchange rate,
liabilities discounted swap interest rate and
MEeBBERE future cash R X B HEF == A volatility level
flow TA AERER - AEM
MOz — EFRET B K
AR KRB E
AT R

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) Assets/(liabilities) measured at fair

SHEMNAARETT)

T=. AR EBEMGE @)
(1) BFEOURAAEEENE

value on an ongoing basis (Continued) E (BB #)
Observable input
AEREE AR
Fair value
as at 31
December Valuation Range/weighted
2018 techniques Name average
—T-N\F
+—A
=+—H
AAEBE HERM =L EETHE

Derivative 262,202 Discounted AUD forward 4.8522 to 4.9416
financial future cash exchange rate  4.8522%4.9416
assets flow at balance

MTEemEE RIRBE MR sheet date

EEBERART
ir HRfE X
Discounted rate 1.75% to 2.21%
i = 1.75%%2.21%
Forward Forward exchange
exchange rate rate for each
i B [E X forward contract
from the
valuation date to
the maturity date
BERPERARME
B2 2 H B 8 iR 3
fEE =&

Trading 15,849 Discounted Discount curves Discount rate for
financial future cash #r 35 dh 4% period from two
liabilities flow to three years

RHMEeRMBE KRB RITH (currency include

USD and RMB)
MER =FFHH

TRE(E¥BRE

ETLMARE)

Derivative 32,871 Black-Scholes Cross currency Observable
financial formula, interest rate exchange rate,
liabilities discounted swap interest rate and

MTETRARE future cash R X B WA =iz 5 volatility level

flow

AN — &R
N KRB E
AT IR

TA

AIERER R
B K F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFNA=THLENERHSBE (KR EHEN

13. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

(2) Assets measured at fair value not on

an ongoing basis

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
amortized cost mainly include receivables,
short-term borrowings, payables, long-term

borrowings, debentures payable and long-term
payables.

Except for the financial assets and liabilities
listed below, the carrying amount of other
financial assets and liabilities not measured at
fair value is a reasonable approximation of their
fair value:

CHREMR/RARE T

T=Z. 2R BEMT @

(2)

30 June 2019

FBENURAEBEFENE
E

AEENHEBKANGTENS AL
BENTREBEIEZRR EBK
A EHER - BARE K
HAME 50 - A B 75 A0 &= B & 15 5K

/\"ro
=T

BT iemEEMSREBENRIN -
Hi NARAEBEFENERE
EMAENEEEERQALER
BER:

31 December 2018

—E-RAEXNA=tE —E-NE+-A=+—H

Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Fair value

REEE DNAREE REEE AAEE
Long-term borrowings REER 27,713,525 28,757,226 20,506,000 21,252,592
Long-term payables R 13 5% 5,885,976 5,925,758 6,227,001 6,313,216
Total A5 33,599,501 34,682,984 26,733,001 27,565,808

The fair value of long-term borrowings are
determined by the present value of the
contracted future cash flow, which is calculated
using the discount rate in the market of
comparable credit rating that can provide much
the same cash flows in the same conditions. This
situation belongs to Level 3.

EHEFIUNERARAENRERE
MERRMSLEAAAILERSE
AR R RMEAF TR T HERA
RenEMFEETHRRHOR
EREEQAAEBE BREZE

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

14. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives of capital management are to
safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders,
benefits for other stakeholders and to reduce cost of
capital by maintaining an optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Same as other companies in this industry, the group
monitors capital on the basis of the asset-liability
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total liabilities divided
by total assets.

The debt asset ratios as at 30 June 2019 and 31
December 2018 were as follows:

SHEMNAARETT)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_ZT-NFRNA=THIENEREGRERIZHEN

TH.ERNER

AEEEAEERENARRRTRE
REMES %Ff@%‘%ﬁﬁk%h
Ak SR 1A S
\$%%&%§$mﬁuhﬁé$ﬁ
o

RTRFAFHBENEE  AKEARE
EHREBEINERREROBEMNEE - AR
RIBEEAR - BITHBRALEEEAR
EER -

HRETEAEMA  REEF A
ﬁ&%htTwhﬁéﬁ LRI
BABRANREEE

REIE-AFANAZ+AR-Z—N\F
TZA=+—B AEENEEARGL
KB|RMAT:

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E—)\F

~NA=+H +Z-—A=+—H

Total liabilities waE 153,236,281 131,516,141
Total assets BE E 195,350,796 169,716,823
Debt-asset ratio EEBEKLX 78% 77%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

TH. QAWM B RRME

STATEMENTS
(1) Other receivables Hfth fE IR
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
~NA=+tH +-A=+—H
Receivables due from JE U T B 7 e 3Rk e B R ()
subsidiaries (i) 71,744,803 62,448,540
Receivables due from JRE i EC A B8 B T A 2R 3K
other related parties 5,488,696 4,868,712
Tender and other KEERES
guarantee deposits 82,600 49,600
Others HA 19,094 15,275
Total &F 77,335,193 67,382,127
Less: provisions for o BEREE
doubtful debts (24,000) (24,000)
Net F R 77,311,193 67,358,127

As at 30 June 2019, the loan from the Company
to subsidiary Hainan Outlets Tourism amounted
to RMB453,920,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB246,862,000) with interest rate of 5.66%,
with no fixed maturity date; and the loan from the
Company to Subsidiary Chengdu Ruihua amounted to
RMB980,000,000 (31 December 2018: 980,000,000)
with interest rate of 10%, no fixed maturity date.

Except for the receivables above, the other
receivables due to related parties were interest
free, without any mortgage nor guarantee, and
with no fixed maturity date.

(i) RZE-AFRA=+RH  ARAEME
FTFREEEERKREFTIRBEA
£ #453,920,0007C (=& — \F +
ZA=+—H8: AR%246,862,000
J) - F R K [/5.66% - M B EE
REE: ARFETFRARKE I
I # 8 A R #980,000,000
T(ZE-NF+=ZA=+—8:
980,000,0007T) » F & & 510% -
HEEEE KRR -

Britt 2 SMEYEL B M T R B £ 2K

FEGTEAE - EEAMER -
B EE KR

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL TH. AR M B WKW E#E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(1) Other receivables (Continued) 1) EtEWRE)
(a) The aging of other receivables is analyzed (a) HibEURERE DO
as follows:
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—®-n%E —EN\E
~AA=tH t-A=+-~H
Within 1 year —FLR 28,044,939 49,879,058
1 to 2 years —H=F 35,309,900 11,178,010
2 to 3 years —H=F 11,029,648 4,445,861
Over 3 years =FME 2,950,706 1,879,198
Total BF 77,335,193 67,382,127
(b) Loss provision and changes in book (b) BAREBREKREGRELY
value: *
First stage Third stage
F-EA FZER
Expected credit loss Expected credit loss Expected credit loss for
over the next 12 months over the next 12 months the Lifetime (impairment
(grouping) (separate) Sub-total has occurred) Total
FRR12EAAEH AR12EAAEH ERGESRAERAK
FRAX(ER) FRAX(ERE) Pt (BREFARE) &t
Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount  Provisions amount  Provisions  Provisions amount  Provisions  Provisions
REHE BRER R 68 RRER BRER RE 6 RRER BRER
31 December 2018 ZZ-\fTZA=t—-H 67,317,252 - 40,875 - - 24,000 (24,000) (24,000)
Additions KEE - = 36,819 = = = = =
Reductions KER D 9,916,247 - - - - - - -
30 June 2019 ZZ-AF~A=1H 77,233,499 - 77,694 - - 24,000 (24,000) (24,000)

As at 30 June 2019, there is no significant
expected loss for other receivables at the
first stage and no provision for doubtful
debts has been recognized.

R-ZE—NFANA=1+H"
BE 7 55 — i B A EL A 8 LUK
TFEEEXNEHREAE
KoOREHERERER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL TH. ARG wERWN T E)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, the analysis of

(1) Other receivables (Continued) (1) HaEWFHE)
(b) Loss provision and changes in book (b) BREEREEHMBRESS
value: (Continued) x®(#&)

RZZE-—hFXA=+H"

doubtful debts provision for other BE P56 = [ B 1) HL th & UK
receivables in the third stage are as HERREFH ST
follows:
Lifetime
expected Provision
credit loss for doubtful
Book value rate (%) debts
BEFED
T8 83 {5 A
AR TH 4 2R 18K E(%) EHERER
Separate provision: BIEGHR:
Receivables FE ML R 35 S
from Beijing EREE(ATH
Gehua Culture [TzEEE])
Development Co.,
Ltd (hereinafter
“Gehua Group”) 24,000 100 (24,000)

As at 30 June 2019, the loans from the
Company to Gehua Group amounted
to RMB24,000,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB24,000,000). The Group expected that
the receivable would not be collected, so a

R-ZE—NFANA=1+H"
RN MR E KB KA
# 5 /B A R %24,000,000
T(ZE-NF+ A=+~
H: AK#¥24,000,0007T)

AE B R RZ A EEK
B - E R AR E 28 A
RBEER -

(2) REKRERE

full provision for impairment is recognized.

(2) Long-term equity investments

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
AA=+H +ZA=+—H
Subsidiaries (a) F A7) 8,653,574 6,474,284
Joint ventures (b) & & () 211,439 197,824
Associates (c) Bt & > 2 (0) 271,594 270,047
Total a5 9,136,607 6,942,155
Less: impairment of B REREREREEE
long-term equity
investments - -
Net L] 9,136,607 6,942,155
There is no significant restriction on sale of the KRR TFERBEEZRRK
long-term equity investments and collection of D E KRS -

the investment income for the Company.

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

Dividends
declared in
this year
AHsE
N
Re kA

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL TH. AR T REM T E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(2) Long-term equity investments 2Q) RUEBREREE)
(Continued)
(@) Subsidiaries (a) F4a
Changes in this period
ABEREY
Provision for
31 December ~ Increase in  Decrease in ~ Provisions 30 June  impairment
2018 investment investment for impairment Others 2019 balance
“EN\E AREE “8-nf HEER
t-A=+-A EnRE BORE Ef £ ~A=TA HRBE
SC. EEEL 734,095 - - - - 734,095 -
IFC IFC 20,480 - - - - 20,480 -
Central Plaza Central Plaza 39,466 - - - - 39,466 -
Bejing Capital EREEPERL
Longyuan Culture ¥RERLA
Development Co.,
Ltd. 369,970 - - - - 369,970 -
Bejing Capital Xinzi TREHNEER
Real Estate Ltd ERAR 642,625 - - - - 642,625 -
Beiing Anhua Shij Real L RZEELRHER
Estate Development ¥ERAA
Co., Ltd. 136,303 - - - - 136,303 -
Beijing Shangboya IRHBRRE
Investment BRERAA
Consultant Co,, Ltd. 30,000 - - - - 30,000 -
Beijing Xiangneng ERA 500,000 - - - - 500,000 -
Jiangsu Capital Real IHEREEERAA
Estate Development
Ltd. 60,165 - - - - 60,165 -
Beijing Capital Land EHEZRABRAA
Chengdu Co,, Ltd. 150,000 - - - - 150,000 -
Bejing Sunshine IRBRARNERR
City Real Estate R
Development Co,,
td,, 82,766 - - - - 82,766 -
Wuxi Capital Xindong ~ ESEEIFRESER
Real Estate R
Development Co.,
Ltd. 100,000 - - - - 100,000 -
Bejing Ruiyuanfengi IRERERELAR
Real Estate Al
Development Co.,
Ltd. 10,000 - - - - 10,000 -
Beijing Ruiyuanfengji FRETEEERAR
Real Estate R
Development Co.,
Ltd. 10,000 - - - - 10,000 -
Capital Guoxin Asset EEREEEERER
Management Co,, Ad
Ltd. 100,000 - - - - 100,000 -
Haikou Capital Xinye BREEINEREAR
Investment Co., Ltd. Al 10,000 - - - - 10,000 -
BECL Investment EEREERERAA
Holding Ltd. 67,29 - - - - 67,296 -

240 BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Long-term equity investments

TH. R F B R M R (#)

(2) REKRERE®E)

(Continued)
(@) Subsidiaries (Continued) (@) F23A#E)
Changes in this period
AREREY
Provision for  Dividends
31 December  Increase in - Decrease in -~ Provisions 30 June  impairment  declared in
2018 investment investment for impairment Others 2019 balance this year
- R
“2-)\E ARAE ZE-AF BEER A&
tZA=1-H ENRE  HORE Ef £ xA=1A BREE  BeRA
Shanghai Capital LEEEEEERAR

Zhengheng Real Rl

Estate Co. Ltd. 10,000 - - - - 10,000 - -
Bejing Dongqi Jinzhao A REMER

Infrastructure ERGHRE

Investment Co., Ltd. BRAF 30,000 - - - - 30,000 - -
Beijing Zhongzhi TRRESRRUE

Dingfu Real Estate REERAA

Co., Ltd. 100,000 - - - - 100,000 - -
Beijing Yongyuan ERATERREE

Jintai Investment BERAT

Management Co.,

Ltd. 216,530 - - - - 216,530 - -
Tianjin Eco City REERHEERAN

Jiaming Ronghe THERRAR

Development Co.,

Ltd. 60,000 - - - - 60,000 - -
Donghuan Xinrong REER 1,064,065 - - - - 1,064,065 - -
Bejing Zhongrui IRERIEREEE

Kaihua Investment ERRH

Management Co.,

Ltd. 10,000 - - - - 10,000 - -
Juyuan Xincheng EREARDRE

(Tianjin) Investment ERERARA

Management Co.,

Ltd. 500,000 - - - - 500,000 - -
Beijing Shouzhi IREEXLREER

Culture Technology ERAR

Development Co.,

Ltd. 60,000 40,000 - - - 100,000 - -
Prime Golden Capital BRER 300,000 - - - - 300,000 - -
Tiancheng Yongyuan KAk 998,555 - - - - 998,555 - -
Chongging Xinshi EEHA - 1,151,290 - - - 1,151,290 - -
Bejing Zhoulian Weiye  XRNBEZRERR

Investment Co., Ltd. AR - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 - -
Others Ef 61,968 - - - (12,000) 49,968 - -
Total A3t 6,474,284 2,191,290 - - (12,0000 8,653,574 - -

BRIEXRODARAR —E-AFPRHRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE_ZT-NAFRA=THENEASBE (KRR EHN

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(2)

Long-term equity investments

SHEMNAARETT)

+hH. A8 B R KM (8)

(2) REKRERE®E)

(Continued)
(b) Joint ventures (b) &8
Changes in this period
AEEEED
Provisions
31 Share of other Cash  Provisions for
December Increase in - Decrease in Share of net — comprehensive Other equity  dividend for 30 June  impairment
2018 investment  investment (loss)/profit income  changes  declared impairment Others 2019 balance
ZE-)\% R BERH
TR ABEH itga  Etka  RERA  HREE ZR-AE REER
=t-B  ENRE  HORE FRE hage 29 Bl Eh At RAZtR  HABE
Befing Wanzhu kREE 48,938 - - 6,320 - - - - - 55,258 -
Tonghua Qiangyu 14,365 - - 2,253 - - - - - 16,618 -
Zhuhai Henggin Fund 31,367 - - IE] - - - - - 31,410 -
Management Company
Shangbod Bl:Ed 103,154 - - 4,999 - - - - - 108,153 -
Total EL 197,824 - - 13,615 - - - - - M43 -
(c) Associates () BigEdzx
Changes in this period
AEEEED
Provisions
31 Share of other Cash  Provisions for
December Increase in - Decrease in Share of net — comprehensive Other equity ~ dividend for 30 June  impairment
2018 investment investment (loss)/profit income  changes  declared impairment Others 2019 balance
“E-)\% R BERH
+=A AEH iega  EtkE  RERA  HREE ZR-AE REER
=t-B  ENRE  HORE FEE hagz 29 Bl Eh At RAZtR  HABE
Golden Net 2RE 13217 - - (107) - - - - - 13170 -
Sunshine City Commercial Bt 250,217 - - 6,289 - - - - - 256,506 -
Kaiyuan Hean Az 6,553 - - (4,635) - - - - - 1,918 -
Total ait 210,047 - - 1541 - - - - - 2N,59 -
(3) Other payables (3) HitmEN
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—®-hE “EN\F
AA=+H +ZA=+—H
Payables to subsidiaries &+ R B FRIA 43,719,645 26,691,360
Payables to other related  J& - H {th B8 Bt 5 50 E
parties 1,034,489 -
Payables for routine JE A 4% & 1 2R K
business 2,797,342 2,021,702
Interests payable due to JERHEH T &
debentures payable = 577,225
Interests payable due to JE 8 3R B
borrowings = 15,420
Dividends payable of other  J& 1 H fib # 25 T A i% 7
equity instruments 813,420 422,697
Total a5t 48,364,896 29,728,404
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Other equity instruments 4)

+hH. NB B RERMT e (2)

Htt#E=TH

In April 2019, the Company issued Perpetual
Securities amounted to RMB1,000,000,000.
According to relevant terms of Offering Circular,
the raised funds are subject to no fixed
repayment terms. Unless the Company declares

RZZE-—NFMNA ARFE
TXEHRE 2BABARE
1,000,000,0007T » R E(HE & &
AEVEBER EEESEET
ERHIR  RARBE KD AL

dividend or reduces registered capital, it may DM ERS - ATAERRELE S
elect to defer distribution without any frequency fo iy & - A EGEE R BN X AW

limitations. The Company has no contracted
obligation to pay the principal or interests
to other investors, therefore the investment
complied with the definition of equity
instrument and were recognized as other equity
instrument in the consolidated level and in the
Company financial statement. The dividends
declared will be treated as profit distribution.
As at 30 June 2019, other equity instruments
amounted to RMB995,500,000 was recognized
after deducting the relevant costs.

In April 2019, CFAE established Bond
Financing Plan Investment amounted to
RMB2,000,000,000 in the Company. According
to relevant terms of Offering Circular, the
raised funds are subject to no fixed repayment
terms. Unless the Company declares dividend or
reduces registered capital, it may elect to defer
distribution without any frequency limitations.
The Company has no contracted obligation
to pay the principal or interests to other
investors, therefore the investment complied
with the definition of equity instrument and
were recognized as other equity instrument
in the consolidated level and in the Company
financial statement. The dividends declared will
be treated as profit distribution. Other equity
instruments amounted to RMB1,862,842,000
was recognized after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

BRE - BARRAL EEERER
ERIMEMDIRERNEHELE
B AdZERETA#E=STA
MEE EEEAHERNMEAAT
BEREEERASEMESTA
EEEIRBE DR RWAERRF
HEOEMERE - R-F—NFKA
=1+A {IKHEBERE  ERH
fib # 2= T A A R#995,500,000
5T o

RZZE-NFOA  LeMRIE
RBREFERERARA &8
A AER¥2,000,000,0007T © B #
(BEFHAB)RBKFK  EFE
T EE T ERIR  BRARAEIR
DAFRAD FEMEARIN - ATLAE
BRI D R Wa - M BORE R
NEAERRE - BARR L EER
KREXAS X MEMD KA BB
BHEY  AULZBERENARE
s TANER  £5EEHERR
ARRBEREEHER S EMER
THR BESIRAEMED AR
ERTNEIENRIE : MFAER
ARFABMEH DAL > RE
fib iz T A A R#1,862,842,000
5T o

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Other equity instruments (Continued)

In April 2019, AVIC Trust set up a Bond
Financing Plan Investment to raise a total
amount of RMB1,800,000,000. According to
the Trust loan contract, the raised funds are
subject to no fixed repayment terms. Unless
the Company declares dividend, reduces
registered capital, declares liquidation or breach
contractual obligations, the Company may
elect to defer the distribution without any
frequency limitations. In addition, there is no
contracted obligation for the Company to repay
the principal and distribute the interests. As a
result, this asset management plan complied
the definition of equity instrument and were
recognized as other equity instrument in the
consolidated level and in the Company financial
statement. The dividends will be treated as profit
distribution. Amounted of RMB1,685,347,000
was recognized as other equity instrument after
deducting the inevitable dividend payable in the
foreseeable future.

In September 2018, Sino-Australian International
Trust Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Sino-Australian
Trust”) set up a special asset management plan
amounted to RMB870,000,000. According to
the Investment Agreement, the raised funds
are subject to no fixed repayment terms.
Unless the Company declares dividend, the
Company may elect to defer the distribution
without any frequency limitations. Within 12
months from value date, the company shall not
exercise the right of deferred interest and the
frequency of deferring interest is not restricted.
In addition, there is no contracted obligation
for the Company to repay the principal and
distribute the interests. As a result, this asset
management plan complied the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as other
equity instrument in the consolidated level
and in the Company financial statement. The
dividends will be treated as profit distribution.
RMB796,050,000 was recognized as other
equity instrument after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BE_ZT-NFRNA=THIENEREGRERIZHEN

TH. 2 F B 7% R M aE (8)

(4)

HttEzm TR (#E)

R-ZF-NFOA FHREFLK
MABERAR ATHEPHRERED R
VEEBEFBRERARF
© %/ AK1,800,000,0007T °
RIBUEEE KA R)HE R &R
ERECEBEATERPBR  BA
NREBEIRDA - WA FEMER -
EMEERERARANENER
Sho AILABEBIRE D BL U s 0 A
BRERBAZERMEBS - BAX
NAYEEERERSHINE
ARMENEHNER - B
BERENARETIANES &
SEAHERMRARBAERER
BARHEMERTE  FETIK
#E B8 o3 AT B Rl 4 4F 3 FIE 2 BCEY
BRI HIBR AT B R R R AL %
MD4LE EREMERZTAEA
K #1,685,347,0007T °

R-F—N\FNLA  FREREF
BRAB A THEIEREFE )R
EHREEERENARA &
%3 AR#870,000,0007T © B #
(REBZ)IBRGS EFKES
EEEESHR  BRARRFEIRSD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL Th. A BB % R 2 B 5 o4F)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Other equity instruments (Continued) (4) HiEZITHE)

In September 2018, CFAE established Bond
Financing Plan Investment amounted to
RMB350,000,000 in the Company. According
to relevant terms of Offering Circular, the

RZZF—N\FNA LeMRIE
BREAERENARE  ©ER
A K ®350,000,0007T ° R#FE(E
SHPABEEGT  BEXEDE

raised funds are subject to no fixed repayment BEEEFHR  BRARFEIRSD AL
terms. Unless the Company declares dividend SR M E AR - AR ER
or reduces registered capital, it may elect to EHR U RBERH A

defer distribution and can’t exercise any such
rights within 12 months of value date without
any frequency limitations. The Company has
no contracted obligation to pay the principal
or interests to other investors, therefore the
investment complied with the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution. RMB337,400,000 was recognized
as other equity instrument after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable
future.

In August 2018, CFAE established Bond
Financing Plan investment amounted to
RMB1,800,000,000 in the Company. According
to relevant terms of Offering Circular, the
raised funds are subject to no fixed repayment
terms. Unless the Company declares dividend
or reduces registered capital, it may elect to
defer distribution and can’t exercise any such
rights within 12 months of value date without
any frequency limitations. The Company has
no contracted obligation to pay the principal
or interests to other investors, therefore the
investment complied with the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution. RMB1,735,200,000 was recognized
as other equity instrument after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable
future.

AN ARITEMNBELER - F
BELEREAZEMBRS - AR
NRAAEBEEBEREATHMNE
A IRMEMNENER - B %
ARENARETIANESE &
SEAHERMARRERER
BRASEMERTE FETIK
6 B8 0 4T B Bl 4% F & B 2 BE /Y
BRIEMERA AR KRR A E R
D4R EREMEZTEA
K #337,400,0007T °

RZZF—N\FENA kA RIUE
EREFIRENRARA &8
& AER#1,800,000,0007T © RiE
(EEHASBIHAIGER  EXE
T EE T ERIR  BRARAE IR
D ELOR D M E AN - AT LR
BELEHEREWzE  EEAM+ =
BAR - TEITENSETER -
MBEERBTZEMMES - B
AABY EEERERNS SN
TADRMENAHEL - Hit
ZERENEEZTANER
EEBEAHERRARRERE
mERSEMESTAE  F8E
& AR B8 0 AL B R AE R FE 9 B
o)z a1 IS SN N S N
MO AIR EREMERTA
A K #1,735,200,0007T °

HABEBRBARAT —B-AFFHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Other equity instruments (Continued)

In August 2018, the Company issued Perpetual
securities amounted to RMB2,000,000,000.
According to relevant terms of Offering Circular,
the raised funds are subject to no fixed
repayment terms. Unless the Company declares
dividend or reduces registered capital, it may
elect to defer distribution and cannot exercise
any such rights within 12 months of value date
without any frequency limitations. The Company
has no contracted obligation to pay the principal
or interests to other investors, therefore the
investment complied with the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution. RMB1,991,002,000 was recognized
as other equity instrument after deducting the
relevant costs.

In June 2018, the Company issued Perpetual
securities amounted to RMB2,000,000,000.
According to relevant terms of Offering Circular,
the raised funds are subject to no fixed
repayment terms. Unless the Company declares
dividend or reduces registered capital, it may
elect to defer distribution and cannot exercise
any such rights within 12 months of value date
without any frequency limitations. The Company
has no contracted obligation to pay the principal
or interests to other investors, therefore the
investment complied with the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution. RMB1,988,000,000 was recognized
as other equity instrument after deducting the
relevant costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE—_FT-NAFANA=TRALAEAREGRENZHAN  SEELABARE T

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Other equity instruments (Continued) (4)

+hH. NB B RERMT e (2)

HibEzm TR (%)

In April 2018, CFAE established Bond Financing
Plan investment amounted to RMB200,000,000
in the Company. According to relevant terms of
Offering Circular, the raised funds are subject to
no fixed repayment terms. Unless the Company

R-F-N\FOA  LEMRIE
EREAERENARR  ©ER
AR #200,000,0007T - BIFE(E
SRAB)INBEER EEEE
BEEERPR  FARBE IR AL

declares dividend or reduces registered capital, it SR DM E RSN - AR ER
may elect to defer distribution and can’t exercise B REAH @A

any such rights within 12 months of value date
without any frequency limitations. The Company
has no contracted obligation to pay the principal
or interests to other investors, therefore the
investment complied with the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution. RMB184,600,000 was recognized
as other equity instrument after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable
future.

AN ABITEMNEBIETHER - F
BIREEXRBAZEMRS - AAX
NEAYEEERERNSHINE
2R E M EHFES - B %
ERENARETIANESRE &
SEEHERMRARARERER
BRAREMERTE FETIK
A o3 AT B Rl 4 4F 3 R 2 BCAY
BRI HIBR A FE R R R AL %
MDA EREMESTAEA
K #184,600,0007T °

HEIEXERHBRAR ZE—NFPHKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Other equity instruments (Continued)

In March 2018, CFAE established Bond
Financing Plan investment amounted to
RMB600,000,000 in the Company. According
to relevant terms of Offering Circular, the
raised funds are subject to no fixed repayment
terms. Unless the Company declares dividend
or reduces registered capital, it may elect to
defer distribution and can’t exercise any such
rights within 12 months of value date without
any frequency limitations. The Company has
no contracted obligation to pay the principal
or interests to other investors, therefore the
investment complied with the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as profit
distribution. Other equity instruments amounted
to RMB553,800,000 was recognized as other
equity instrument after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future.

In December 2017, Sino-Australia Trust set up
a special asset management plan amounted to
RMB1,100,000,000. According to the Investment
Agreement, the raised funds are subject to no
fixed repayment terms. Unless the Company
declares dividend, the Company may elect to
defer the distribution without any frequency
limitations. Within 12 months from value date,
the company shall not exercise the right of
deferred interest and the frequency of deferring
interest is not restricted. In addition, there is no
contracted obligation for the Company to repay
the principal and distribute the interests. As a
result, this asset management plan complied
the definition of equity instrument and were
recognized as other equity instrument in the
consolidated level and in the Company financial
statement. The dividends will be treated as profit
distribution. RMB1,024,650,000 was recognized
as other equity instrument after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

+hH. NB B RERMT e (2)

(4) Other equity instruments (Continued) 4 HttE=m=TAE)
In September 2017, China Fortune RZE—tEFhA EZHKE
International Trust Co., Ltd. set up a AR AGRTEIBEBE S E

special asset management plan amounted
to RMB2,000,000,000. According to the
Investment Agreement, the raised funds are
subject to no fixed repayment terms. Unless
the Company declares dividend, the Company
may elect to defer the distribution without any
frequency limitations. In addition, there is no
contracted obligation for the Company to repay
the principal and distribute the interests. As a
result, this asset management plan complied
the definition of equity instrument and were
recognized as other equity instrument in the
consolidated level and in the Company financial
statement. The dividends will be treated as profit
distribution. RMB1,970,027,000 was recognized
as other equity instrument after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable
future.

BRERARA  2BRARK
2,000,000,0007T - R #E (&% & 1%
Z)RBEGR  ERESEBETE
FHR  BRARRE IR DAL - 7]
WEZRELE D RS - BT RE
PEAERRE - BARR L EEER
REAXS R MEMD KA BB
BHER AUZERENAE
S TANER  &5EEHERR
ARRBEREEER S EMER
TA HETIRMAMED AR
ERNEIENRE  MRAER
REAA@RH) DAL FERE
fib # = T A AR %1,970,027,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) Other equity instruments (Continued)

In July 2016, Shanghai Xinghan Asset
Management Co., Ltd. set up a special asset
management plan to raise a total amount
of RMB3,000,000,000 and entered into an
Investment Agreement with the Company to
invest all the raised money in the Company.
According to the Investment Agreement, the
raised funds are not subject to any fixed
repayment terms unless the Company declares
any dividends. The Company may elect to
defer the distribution without any frequency
limitations. In addition, there is no contracted
obligation for the Company to repay the
principal and distribute the interests. As a
result, the investment from the special asset
management plan complied the definition of
equity instrument and were recognized as
other equity instrument in the consolidated
level and in the Company financial statement.
The dividends declared will be treated as
profit distribution. As at 31 December 2018,
RMB2,895,291,000 was recognized as other
equity instrument after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future. In
March 2019, the Group issued a prepayment
notice in accordance with the Investment
Agreement to redeem 50% of principal of the
Assets Management Plan in July 2019. Since the
Group had the inevitable payment obligation
pursuant, such amount did not meet the
definition of equity instrument any longer and
was reclassified as current portion of long-term
borrowings after issue of prepayment notice,
and a decrease in capital reserve amounted
to RMB52,355,000 was recognized accordingly
(note 4(30)). As at 30 June 2019, the remaining
other equity instruments to RMB1,447,647,000
was recognized after deducting the current
portion of long-term borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL +hH. NB B RERMT e (2)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(5) Revenue and cost of sales (5) BEWANMEEREX
Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BE-Z2-hF BE_T-N\F
AA=t+HL NA=THBIE

8 B 5 & 7~ {E A 8
Revenue from main operations =& ¥ 7 Uk A (a)
(a) 35,666 7,667
Revenue from other operations = fth 2 7 Uz A (b)
(b) 1,599 5,962
Total =X 37,265 13,629
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BE-Z—hL& HE_ZT—N\F
~NA=1+HIE NA=F+HIE
8 B 5 7~ {E A 87
Cost of sales from main FEEBK A (@)
operations (a) = -
Cost of sales from other 9N (o))
operations (b) = -
Total =X = -
(a) Revenue and cost of sales from main (a) FEEBWRAFNEZEEBR
operations ¥
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BZE-ZE-NEAA=THLE HE_ZT-N\FE~A=tHL
ANEAHE N ERE !
Cost of Cost of
Revenue sales from Revenue sales from
from main main from main main

operations  operations operations operations
TERBRA FEXBRE FL2EBRA TEEBEE
Consulting services AL ON 35,666 = 7,667 -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL +hH. A8 B R KM (8)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(5) Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) (5) BEEWANMEERAK(E)

(b) Revenue and cost from other (b) HMEBWANMEMELR
operations ¥iN
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
HZ-Z-NEXA=1THLE EBEE-_ZT-/\FXA=tHL
~EAHE A~ A A

Cost of Cost of
Revenue sales from Revenue sales from
from other other  from other other

operations  operations operations operations
HithERMA HMEBRE EMEBRA HOEEKA

Temporary rental Rt & 1,599 = 5,962 -

(6) Financial expenses (6) MEEH
Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BE-ZT—h& HEZ—N\F
~NA=1+HIE NA=ZF+HIE

NE A H R 7~ & A B e
(Restated)
=519

Interest expense FEXH 1,002,267 901,541
Interest income A B A (91,561) (70,376)
Exchange gains or losses fE 518 5 10,395 9,992
Others Eth 61,792 29,726
Total &5 982,893 870,883
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R I iE

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
BEZ-NAERNA=ZTHALANEASE(RENZTAN  SHELSARETT)

15. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL +H. AR BEHRENFE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(7) Investment income (7) ‘_EWS
Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BE-Z2-hF BE_T-N\F
AA=t+HL NA=THBIE

1B A 5 & N EREEEIE
(Restated)
(&)
Share of net profit or WMEREFZEAEXDED
loss of investees under WIREEMFEENMNEE
equity method 15,162 22,348
Interest income earned BEREKREFA RGN
during the period of FLE WA
ownership of debt
investment 428,460 120,916
Gains from disposal of BREE PEWS
associates = 14,293
Others EAb 8,897 17,388
Total =¥ 452,519 174,945

ERIBEXROBERLAR —T-NFhHmSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 3R B R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BEZ-NAFAAZTRLEAEASBE(KREHNZEHN  SHEC/SARETT)

16. NET CURRENT ASSETS

TR FERBEE

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018

Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company

—Z-hE§ —E-)N\F —E-hf —T-N\EF

AA=tH +=ZA=+-H AA=tH +=ZA=1+-—H

&6 & NG NG|

Current assets MEEE 160,826,617 137,511,685 97,349,428 76,050,851
Less: current liabilities WRBEE (73,195,765)  (63,777,213)  (61,842,402)  (46,183,341)
Net current assets FRMEBEE 87,630,852 73,734,472 35,507,026 29,867,510

17. TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

TLREERRDAEE

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018

Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company

—E-NF —T-N\%F —E-hEF —T-N\E

AA=tH +=ZA=+-—H AA=tH +ZA=1+—H

& Bt & 0F NG| NG|

Total assets BELG 195,350,796 169,716,823 108,239,311 84,472,175
Less: current liabilities HRBEE (73,195,765)  (63,777,213)  (61,842,402)  (46,183,341)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRYERE 122,155,031 105,939,610 46,396,909 38,288,834
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COMPANY INFORMATION
REEH

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 3071, 3/F Office, Block 4,
No. 13 Kaifang East Road,
Huairou District,

Beijing, PRC

BEJING HEADQUARTERS

F17, Red Goldage,
No. 2, Guang Ning Bo Street,
Beijing, PRC

HONG KONG OFFICE

Suites 4602-05
One Exchange Square, Central, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.bjcapitalland.com

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:
Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong

As to PRC law:
JunZeJun Law Office

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank

Agricultural Bank of China

China Merchants Bank

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Industrial Bank

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
SPD Bank

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Note: The financial statements section in this Report has been prepared

in both Chinese and English. For any discrepancies, the Chinese
version shall prevail.
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